
 

 
 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

Meeting of
Madera County Board of Education 

Tuesday, September 13, 2022 
3:30 p.m. 

This meeting will be held at 
1105 South Madera Avenue, Conference Room 5,  

Madera, CA 93637 

AGENDA 

Reasonable Accommodation for any Individual with Disability – Pursuant to the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 and 
the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, any individual with a disability who requires reasonable 
accommodation to attend or participate in a meeting or function of the Madera County Board of Education, may 
request assistance by contacting the Office of the Madera County Superintendent of Schools.  All documents 
pertaining to open session agenda items are available to anyone upon request from the office at 1105 South 
Madera Avenue, Madera, CA 93637; Telephone: (559) 662-6274; FAX (559) 673-5569. 

1.0 Call to Order 
1.1 Flag Salute 

2.0 Consideration of Minutes 
2.1 Regular Meeting August 9, 2022 (Action) [Board]

3.0 Adoption of Board Agenda (Action) [Board]

4.0 Information 
4.1 Public Comment 

[This time is offered to members of the public wishing to 
address the Board on matters under the jurisdiction of the 
Board, but not listed on the agenda. Board members may 
listen to but not discuss matters not on the agenda. (G.C. 
54954.2) The Board will not take action on any items 
presented under public comment. Speakers are limited 
to 3 minutes.] 

4.2 Letters and Communications 

4.3 Non-School Sources 

4.4 Madera County School Boards Association (MCSBA)
           Executive Committee Meeting Report [Deniz/Vived] 

4.5 Madera County Foundation Board Report [Bustos] 

4.6 Member Report(s) [Member] 



 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
  
 

 

 

5.0 Information from the Superintendent and Staff 
5.1 Annual Report 

 [Distribution of report] [All] 

5.2 Compact Luncheon Video Speeches and News 
Coverage on Agriland 

5.3 Disclosure of Salary Adjustments Per Education 
Code 1302 
[Information per law] 

6.0 Old Business 

7.0 Closed Session 

8.0 New Business 
8.1 Consideration Issuance of Temporary County Certificates 

[Ratification of Temporary County Certificates  
issued previous month] (Action) [Casarez] 

8.2 Consideration Disposition of Surplus/Obsolete Equipment 
[Equipment to be declared obsolete and removed  
from inventory] (Action) [DeWall] 

8.3 Consideration Annual Update of Handbook for 
Emergency Care, Infectious Diseases and 
Specialized Care 
[Annual updates for contact information] (Action) [Drake] 

8.4 Approval of 2021-2022 Budget Revisions 
[Revisions made during closeout] (Action) [DeWall] 

5:15 p.m. Public Hearing – Instructional Materials and Supplies 2022-2023 

8.5 Consideration of Resolutions to Determine 
Sufficiency of Textbooks and Instructional 
Materials for Students Served in Madera County 
Superintendent of Schools Programs 
[Annual certification regarding textbooks and  

 instructional materials] (Action) [Drake/Cogan] 



 

 
 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 

  

 

 

  

 

8.5.1 Resolution No. 2, 2022-2023 Availability of 
Instructional Materials (Special Education) 
8.5.2 Resolution No. 3, 2022-2023 Availability of 
Instructional Materials (Career Technical and 
Alternative Education) 
8.5.3 Adoption of Instructional Materials for 
Pupils in Grades 9-12 

8.6 Consideration Adoption of Consolidated Application 
for Submission, Part II 
[Approval of Part II Application] (Action) [DeWall] 

8.7 Consideration LCAP Update 
[Clarification on Minimum Proportionality 
Percentage (MPP) calculation] (Action) [Cogan] 

8.8 Consideration Revision of MCOEP AR 2305 
Conflict of Interest Code 
[Annual update to designated positions reflecting 
levels of required disclosure] (Action) [Massetti] 

9.0 Other 
9.1 Video Start of School Deaf/Hard of Hearing Program 

9.2 Madera Community College, President’s Breakfast 
7:30 a.m., October 21, 2022 

  [Interest to attend] 

10.0 Adjournment 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

UNADOPTED 
Minutes of 

Madera County Board of Education 
August 9, 2022 

Present: Shelley Deniz, Zimri Padilla, Nancy Prosperi, Alfred Soares, Jr., Joe 
Vived Cecilia A. Massetti, Executive Secretary 

Absent: Cathie Bustos, Tammy Loveland 

Also Present: Kristen Andersen, Luz Barragan, Joe Casarez, Fred Cogan, Julie 
DeWall, Jessica Drake, Erika Franco, Sandra Gaytan, Nathalie Gomez, 
Jacklyn Jones, Juliet Okonkwo, Jennifer Pascale, Gini Pierce-
Cummings, Adriana Pompa, Tricia Protzman, Hugo Sanchez 

1.0 Call to Order 
1.1 Flag Salute 
President Soares, Jr., called the meeting to order at 3:30 p.m., followed by the flag 
salute. 

2.0 Consideration of Minutes 
2.1 Regular Meeting July 12, 2022
Zimri Padilla moved to approve the minutes of July 12, 2022, seconded by Nancy Prosperi 
and carried by majority vote. 

Ayes: Padilla, Prosperi, Soares, Jr., Vived 
Noes: None 
Abstain: Deniz 
Absent: Bustos, Loveland 

3.0 Adoption of Board Agenda
Dr. Massetti stated additional information is available for agenda item 8.6.2.  A 
coversheet was provided to Board members to discuss later in the meeting. 

Shelley Deniz moved to adopt the agenda as amended, seconded by Zimri Padilla and 
carried by unanimous vote. 

Ayes: Deniz, Padilla, Prosperi, Soares, Jr., Vived 
Noes: None 
Abstain: None 
Absent: Bustos, Loveland 

1 of 7 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

4.0 Information
4.1 Public Comment 
President Soares, Jr., stated this time is offered to members of the public wishing to 
address the Board on matters under the jurisdiction of the Board, but not listed on the 
agenda. Board members may listen to, but not discuss matters not on the agenda.  
(G.C. 54954.2) The Board will not take action on any items presented under public 
comment. Speakers are limited to three minutes. 

No one came forward to address the Board. 

4.2 Letters and Communications 

 Dr. Massetti shared an article on Dianna Marsh who was selected as the 
Association of California School Administrators (ACSA) Administrator of the Year 
and the State Administrator of the Year for Curriculum and Instruction.  The 
award ceremony will be held in November. 

 Snack boxes and personal protective equipment supplies were distributed to all 
staff members. The Board was provided with these items during the meeting. 

4.3 Non-School Sources 
None 

4.4 Madera County School Boards Association (MCSBA) Executive Committee 
Meeting Report
Mr. Vived reported the next meeting will be held August 24 at Stone Creek Elementary.  The 
topic is “Assessing Student Threats, School Safety: A Shared Responsibility” plus tips on 
social emotional learning. The presentation will be given by Dr. Rod Keeler. 

4.5 Madera County Foundation Board Report 
None 

4.6 Member Report(s)
None 

5.0 Information from the Superintendent and Staff 
5.1 MCSOS’ Report on Williams Complaints
Dr. Massetti reported no complaints have been filed with the districts thus far. 

5.2 Introduce New Staff 
Dr. Massetti noted a number of staff members received promotions and new employees 
were hired to fill positions. 

Jessica Drake and Fred Cogan reported on the beginning of the school year.  Students 
returned yesterday in the Madera area. Chowchilla and Eastern Madera County will be 
starting soon. Staff returned last week and were provided with the Seity training. 
Everyone was positive and happy to be back. Some of the additional time was used to 

2 of 7 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

assess students. Career and Alternative Education Services (CAES) assessed 70% of 
students. CAES has two open teaching positions. Student Programs provided 
cardiopulmonary resuscitation (CPR) training to Transportation staff. Dr. Keeler 
provided a behavior training. Ms. Jones added that early education is a year-round 
program. Staff were off for one week during the summer and were happy to return.  

Division administrators and supervisors introduced new staff and individuals who have 
earned a promotion. 

New Staff 

 Program Director Erica Franco will be responsible for the elementary programs in 
Special Education. 

 Program Director, English Language Arts (ELA)/English Language Development 
(ELD) Gini Pierce-Cummings previously worked for Madera Unified and 
Yosemite Unified. 

 Program Director, Early Learning, Special Education Juliet Okonkwo previously 
worked with Los Angeles County Office of Education. 

Promotions 

 Specialist, Early Learning Programs Nathalie Gomez will be helping districts 
navigate transitional kindergarten (TK) now that it is no longer optional.  

 Coordinator Early Learning Programs Sandra Gaytan will be filling the position 
vacated by Nathalie. Ms. Gaytan was formerly a teacher. 

 Director, Early Learning Programs Jacklyn Jones will supervise all Early 
Learning. She commented, “We are the foundation for education for children.” 

 Adriana Pompa is the new Payroll and Retirement Analyst. 

 HR Analyst Luz Barragan is in training to take the analyst position when Ms. 
Kline retires this coming June. 

 Director, Human Resources Kristen Andersen has returned to our organization.  
Previously, she was the coordinator for credentials at MCSOS.  

Dr. Massetti explained the Early Start Program is designed to provide specialized 
services to help students move into the general education population.  

Dr. Massetti announced that Mrs. Jones is the countywide administrator of the year for 
Excellence in Education. 

She noted Mrs. DeWall has a few open positions at this time. 

Mr. Cogan stated Ruby Horta has returned to CAES as a support staff member. 

6.0 Old Business 
None 

3 of 7 



 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

7.0 Closed Session 
None 

8.0 New Business 
8.1 Consideration Issuance of Temporary County Certificates
Mr. Casarez asked the Board to ratify the issuance of Temporary County Certificates 
(TCCs) from July 1-29, 2022. TCCs are issued in order to authorize the individual to 
work while the California Commission on Teacher Credentialing reviews waiver 
requests, emergency permits, initial and/or renewal credential application packets.   

Nancy Prosperi moved to ratify the TCCs, seconded by Joe Vived and carried by 
unanimous vote. 

Ayes: Deniz, Padilla, Prosperi, Soares, Jr., Vived 
Noes: None 
Abstain: None 
Absent: Bustos, Loveland 

8.2 Consideration Disposition of Surplus/Obsolete Equipment 
Mrs. DeWall provided the Board with a list of equipment declared obsolete.  Items 
included computers, a laptop, monitors, a scanner, and iPads. 

Shelley Deniz moved to approve the list of surplus/obsolete equipment submitted, 
seconded by Zimri Padilla and carried by unanimous vote. 

Ayes: Deniz, Padilla, Prosperi, Soares, Jr., Vived 
Noes: None 
Abstain: None 
Absent: Bustos, Loveland 

8.3 Consideration Investment Performance Statement 
Mrs. DeWall stated the rate of return is a little higher than last year at 0.71%.  The 
Madera County Treasury continues to invest conservatively.   

Mr. Vived asked about “Grand Anticipation Notes.” Mrs. DeWall was unsure of what 
those are and will contact the Treasury for an answer. 

Joe Vived moved to approve the report as presented, seconded by Zimri Padilla and 
carried by unanimous vote. 

Ayes: Deniz, Padilla, Prosperi, Soares, Jr., Vived 
Noes: None 
Abstain: None 
Absent: Bustos, Loveland 

4 of 7 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

8.4 Consideration of English Learner Plan
Mr. Sanchez reported Kirk Delmas and Danielle Ross have been assisting with English 
proficiency. Gini Pierce-Cummings is new this year and has already reviewed the 
English Learner Plan. It has been five years since MCSOS has reclassified a student. 
This year a second grader was reclassified.  She entered the program as a 
kindergartener and has been at grade level for two years. 14 other students have 
scored level 4. If they meet the local criteria, they can be reclassified. Mr. Sanchez 
commented that MCSOS is moving in the right direction. 

Mrs. Deniz asked if parental consent is needed to reclassify a student. Mr. Sanchez 
said parental consent is not needed, however, a consultation is completed with parents. 

Zimri Padilla moved to accept the Master Plan for English Learners, seconded by 
Shelley Deniz and carried by unanimous vote. 

Ayes: Deniz, Padilla, Prosperi, Soares, Jr., Vived 
Noes: None 
Abstain: None 
Absent: Bustos, Loveland 

8.5 Consideration Approval of 2022-2023 Budget Revisions 
Mrs. DeWall reported the Operations Grant fund has increased by $175,000 per district 
plus $14 per countywide ADA amounting to approximately $2.1 million. CTA and CSEA 
bargaining agreement adjustments along with non-represented group adjustments have 
been included, as well as Step and Column adjustments for all groups.  The overall 
increases are: $2,155,175 for unrestricted and $1,463,638. 

Mrs. Prosperi asked how long MCSOS would receive the grants.  Mrs. DeWall 
explained the grants are mostly one-time funds, although some pay out over several 
years. Dr. Massetti noted the important funding is the $175,000 per district, which is the 
core funding that will not go away and is to support work for districts in areas related to 
Differentiated Assistance (DA) and Local Control Accountability Plans (LCAPs). 

Shelley Deniz moved to approve the Madera County Superintendent of Schools 2022-
2023 Budget Revisions, seconded by Nancy Prosperi and carried by unanimous vote. 

Ayes: Deniz, Padilla, Prosperi, Soares, Jr., Vived 
Noes: None 
Abstain: None 
Absent: Bustos, Loveland 

8.6 Consideration Review of Independent Study Policies and Administrative
Regulations 
8.6.1 Elimination of MCBE P 5221 Independent Study for 2021-2022 
Dr. Massetti explained this policy dealt with the changes from AB 130. Those have 
sunsetted and the policy can be eliminated. 

5 of 7 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

Joe Vived moved to eliminate MCBE P 5221 Independent Study for 2021-2022, 
seconded by Shelley Deniz and carried by unanimous vote. 

Ayes: Deniz, Padilla, Prosperi, Soares, Jr., Vived 
Noes: None 
Abstain: None 
Absent: Bustos, Loveland 

8.6.2 Revisions to MCBE P AR 5220 Independent Study 
Dr. Massetti stated CAES has worked on revising this policy to meet the needs of new 
legislation. The Fiscal Crisis Management Assistance Team (FCMAT) suggests the 
effective date be the start of school, August 8, 2022. 

Nancy Prosperi moved to approve the revised administrative regulations to policy 
MCBE P 5220 Independent Study to meet requirements stated in Assembly Bill 181 
with an effective date of August 8, 2022, seconded by Zimri Padilla and carried by 
unanimous vote. 

Ayes: Deniz, Padilla, Prosperi, Soares, Jr., Vived 
Noes: None 
Abstain: None 
Absent: Bustos, Loveland 

8.7 Consideration Renewal of Career and Alternative Education Services 
(CAES) Waivers to the State Board of Education to Waive Education Code 52852 
in Order to Share School site Councils (SSCs) and Reduce the Number of 
Representatives Composing the SSC 
Mr. Cogan reported CAES programs meet the requirements for sharing school site 
councils. The programs do not exceed 1,000 pupils, they share the same geographic 
proximity, and address similar student needs, administration, funding, and staffing. 

Zimri Padilla moved to approve the submission of the waivers to the State Board of 
Education to Waive Education Code 52852 to share school site councils for CAES 
charter schools and Endeavor/Voyager, seconded by Nancy Prosperi and carried by 
unanimous vote. 

Ayes: Deniz, Padilla, Prosperi, Soares, Jr., Vived 
Noes: None 
Abstain: None 
Absent: Bustos, Loveland 

8.8 Consideration Bylaws Policy Update 
8.8.1 County Superintendent Remuneration MCBE BB 9501 
Dr. Massetti explained this policy was approved at the last meeting.  A new section is 
being added to the Board Bylaws: County Superintendent.  Dr. Massetti requested to 

6 of 7 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 

renumber this policy so that it may be moved to that section. 

Shelley Deniz moved to approve the renumbering of MCBE BB 9501 to MCBE BB 
9701, seconded by Nancy Prosperi and carried by unanimous vote. 

Ayes: Deniz, Padilla, Prosperi, Soares, Jr., Vived 
Noes: None 
Abstain: None 
Absent: Bustos, Loveland 

8.8.2 Filling County Superintendent Vacancy MCBE BB 9705 
Dr. Massetti explained this policy allows the Board of Education to appoint a new 
superintendent, during a term. Without this policy in place, another entity may appoint 
the superintendent. 

Nancy Prosperi moved to adopt MCBE BB 9705 Filling County Superintendent 
Vacancy, seconded by Zimri Padilla and carried by unanimous vote. 

Ayes: Deniz, Padilla, Prosperi, Soares, Jr., Vived 
Noes: None 
Abstain: None 
Absent: Bustos, Loveland 

9.0 Other
None 

10.0 Adjournment
Shelley Deniz moved to adjourn the meeting, seconded by Zimri Padilla and carried by 
unanimous vote. 

Ayes: Deniz, Padilla, Prosperi, Soares, Jr., Vived 
Noes: None 
Abstain: None 
Absent: Bustos, Loveland 

The meeting adjourned at 4:46 p.m. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Cecilia A. Massetti, Ed.D. 
Executive Secretary 

7 of 7 



 
 

  
 

   
 
 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Cecilia A. Massetti, Ed.D. 
Superintendent of Schools 

Agenda Item 5.3 

Board of Education Informational Item 
September 13, 2022 

Topic:
Disclosure of Salary Adjustment per Education Code 1302 

Background:  
Education Code 1302, passed in 2002, asks that any adjustments to 
salary or bonus over $10,000 be brought to the Board of Education for 
discussion. As the Cost of Living Adjustment (COLA) were applied, along 
with salary schedule steps and columns, promotions, increased number 
of work days, increases in longevity payments and work hours, there are 
a number of positions that are beyond the $10,000 threshold. 

2021-2022 School Year 
 56 Teaching and specialist positions with increases ranging from 

$10,563.00 to $19,412.00 
 2 Classified positions with increases ranging from $13,396.00 to 

$14,544.00 
 6 Classified/certificated administrative positions with increases 

ranging from $10,391.00 to $15,723.00 
 2 Internal classified and confidential positions with increases 

ranging from $11,310.00 to $11,312.00 

2022-2023 School Year 
 14 Teaching and specialist positions with increases ranging from 

$10,387.00 to $35,207.00 (* an employee changed careers from a 
classroom aide to a teaching position) 

 9 Classified positions with increases ranging from $10,203.00 to 
$22,507.00 

 20 Classified/certificated administrative positions with increases 
ranging from $10,297.00 to $23,514.00 

 7 Internal classified and confidential positions with increases 
ranging from $10,297.00 to $23,514.00 

Financial Impact:
Included in the approved budget. 

Resource: 
Cecilia A. Massetti, Ed.D. 
Madera County Superintendent of Schools 

1105 South Madera Avenue  Madera, CA 93637  (559) 673-6051 FAX (559) 673-5569 
www.mcsos.org 

www.mcsos.org


 

  
 

 

      
 

  
 
 

     
  

 
 

 
 

  
     
  

 
 

   
 

 
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  

Cecilia A. Massetti, Ed.D. 
Superintendent of Schools 

Agenda Item 8.1 

Board of Education Action Item 
September 13, 2022 

Topic:
Consideration Issuance of Temporary County Certificates. 

Background:
Attached is a listing of the Temporary County Certificates (TCC) 
issued from August 1, 2022. TCC’s are issued in order to authorize the 
individual to work while the California Commission on Teacher 
Credentialing reviews his/her waiver request, emergency permit, initial 
and/or renewal credential application packet. 

Dr. Cecilia A. Massetti, Madera County Superintendent of Schools or an 
assigned designee, approved and signed each certificate.  The Board is 
now requested to ratify this action. 

Financial Impact:
None 

Resource: 
Joe Casarez 
Chief Human Resources Officer 
Human Resources 

Recommendation: 
It is recommended the Board ratify the issuance of Temporary County 
Certificates from August 1-31, 2022. 

1105 South Madera Avenue  Madera, CA 93637  (559) 673-6051  FAX (559) 673-5569 
www.mcsos.org 

www.mcsos.org


 

     

   

  

  

 

  

  

 

  

  

   

  

MADERA COUNTY SUPERINTENDENT of SCHOOLS 

TEMPORARY COUNTY CERTIFICATES Issued  08/01/2022-08/31/2022 

Last Name First Name Credential Applied For Valid Dates of TCC Employing Date Issued Application 
District Type 

Alves Courtney Preliminary Single Subject Teaching 08/01/2022- Golden Valley 8/31/2022 New 
Credential 09/01/2023 USD 

Alves Courtney Emergency CLAD 08/01/2022- Golden Valley 8/31/2022 New 
09/01/2023 USD 

Alvey Bethany Preliminary Single Subject Teaching 08/01/2022- Madera USD 8/31/2022 New 
Credential 09/01/2023 

Alvey Bethany Emergency CLAD 08/01/2022- Madera USD 8/31/2022 New 
09/01/2023 

Arias Elvera Short Term Staff Permit 08/01/2022- Madera USD 8/31/2022 New 
09/01/2023 

Barajas Cassandra Short Term Staff Permit 08/01/2022- Madera USD 8/31/2022 New 
09/01/2023 

Benton Joseph Short Term Staff Permit 08/01/2022- Bass Lake SD 8/31/2022 New 
09/01/2023 

Carvalho Martin Limited Assignment Permit 08/01/2022- Golden Valley 8/31/2022 New 
09/01/2023 USD 

Castro Rayko EM 30-Day Substitute Permit 08/01/2022- Madera USD 8/31/2022 New 
09/01/2023 

Ceballos Erica Short Term Staff Permit 08/01/2022- Madera USD 8/31/2022 New 
09/01/2023 

Chavez Jason Provisional Internship Permit 08/01/2022- Madera USD 8/31/2022 New 
09/01/2023 

Franco Erika Preliminary Administrative Credential 08/01/2022- Madera USD 8/31/2022 New 
09/01/2023 

Galindo Patricia Short Term Staff Permit 08/01/2022- Golden Valley 8/31/2022 New 
09/01/2023 USD 

Garrison Erika Limited Assignment Permit 08/01/2022- Madera USD 8/31/2022 New 
09/01/2023 

Gonzalez Nathalie Short Term Staff Permit/ EM BCLAD 08/01/2022- Madera USD 8/31/2022 New 
09/01/2023 



 

  

  

 

  

  

  

  

  

 

 

 
 

 

  

Last Name First Name Credential Applied For Valid Dates of TCC Employing 
District 

Date Issued Application 
Type 

Gonzalez Noemi Short Term Staff Permit 08/01/2022-
09/01/2023 

Madera USD 8/31/2022 New 

Hansen Ryan Single Subject Teaching Credential 08/01/2022-
09/01/2023 

Madera USD 8/31/2022 Renewal 

Hernandez Roberto Short Term Staff Permit 08/01/2022-
09/01/2023 

Madera USD 8/31/2022 New 

Herspring Shelby Short Term Staff Permit 08/01/2022-
09/01/2023 

Madera USD 8/31/2022 New 

Hogan Gillian Emergency CLAD 08/01/2022-
09/01/2023 

Madera USD 8/31/2022 New 

Kaneko Daniel Single Subject Teaching Credential 08/01/2022-
09/01/2023 

Madera USD 8/31/2022 Renewal 

Lack Nicole Preliminary Administrative Credential 07/01/2022-
08/01/2023 

Madera USD 8/31/2022 New 

Leal Maria Prospective Sub Teaching Permit 08/02/2022-
09/01/2023 

County-Wide 
Substitute 

Teacher List 

8/31/2022 New 

Lincoln Mariah Short Term Staff Permit 08/01/2022-
09/01/2023 

Bass Lake SD 8/31/2022 New 

Lopez Lorena EM 30-Day Substitute Permit 08/01/2022-
09/01/2023 

Madera USD 8/31/2022 New 

McGrew Tim Preliminary Administrative Credential 07/01/2022-
08/01/2023 

Bass Lake SD 8/31/2022 New 

Nichols Rebecca Multiple Subject Waiver w/ EL 
Authorization 

08/08/2022-
09/01/2023 

Sherman 
Thomas 

Charter School 

8/31/2022 New 

Ochoa(Cabeza) Frances Multiple Subject Teaching Credential 08/01/2022-
09/01/2023 

Madera USD 8/31/2022 Renewal 

Ortiz Anita Provisional Internship Permit 08/01/2022-
09/01/2023 

Chowchilla 
Elementary SD 

8/31/2022 New 

Pearson Mary EM 30-Day Substitute Permit 08/01/2022-
09/01/2023 

Chawanakee 
USD 

8/31/2022 New 

Prado Gabriela Short Term Staff Permit 08/01/2022-
09/01/2023 

Madera USD 8/31/2022 New 



 

  

  

  

   

 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

  

  

Last Name First Name Credential Applied For Valid Dates of TCC Employing 
District 

Date Issued Application 
Type 

Prather Emily Short Term Staff Permit 08/01/2022-
09/01/2023 

Madera USD 8/31/2022 New 

Pulido Maribel Provisional Internship Permit 08/10/2022-
09/01/2023 

Chowchilla 
Elementary SD 

8/31/2022 New 

Riedel Anna Provisional Internship Permit 08/01/2022-
09/01/2023 

Yosemite USD 8/31/2022 New 

Rivera Darien Short Term Staff Permit 08/01/2022-
09/01/2023 

Madera USD 8/31/2022 New 

Rivera Marisela Multiple Subject Teaching Credential 08/01/2022-
09/01/2023 

Madera USD 8/31/2022 Renewal 

Salamanca Celina Provisional Internship Permit 08/04/2022-
09/01/2023 

Chowchilla 
Elementary SD 

8/31/2022 New 

Santillan Castillo Circe Short Term Staff Permit/ EM BCLAD 08/01/2022-
09/01/2023 

Madera USD 8/31/2022 New 

Santos Ryne Extension Preliminary Single Subject 
Credential 

08/01/2022-
09/01/2023 

Madera USD 8/31/2022 Renewal 

Schulter Eleanor Emergency CLAD 08/01/2022-
09/01/2023 

Madera USD 8/31/2022 New 

Serrano Cynthia Prospective Sub Teaching Permit 08/01/2022-
09/01/2023 

County-Wide 
Substitute 

Teacher List 

8/31/2022 New 

Siegl Katelyn Prospective Sub Teaching Permit 08/23/2022-
09/01/2023 

County-Wide 
Substitute 

Teacher List 

8/31/2022 New 

Smith April EM 30-Day Substitute Permit 08/31/2022-
09/01/2023 

County-Wide 
Substitute 

Teacher List 

8/31/2022 Renewal 

Somilleda Lucia Prospective Sub Teaching Permit 08/24/2022-
09/01/2023 

County-Wide 
Substitute 

Teacher List 

8/31/2022 New 

Springer Donna Short Term Staff Permit 08/01/2022-
09/01/2023 

Bass Lake SD 8/31/2022 New 

Stevens Peggy EM 30-Day Substitute Permit 08/01/2022-
09/01/2023 

Madera USD 8/31/2022 New 

Sturges Breeann EM 30-Day Substitute Permit 07/01/2022-
08/01/2023 

Madera USD 8/31/2022 New 



 

 
 

 

 

  

  

Last Name First Name Credential Applied For Valid Dates of TCC Employing 
District 

Date Issued Application 
Type 

Valdez Jessie Prospective Sub Teaching Permit 07/28/2022-
08/01/2023 

County-Wide 
Substitute 

Teacher List 

8/31/2022 New 

Ward Robin Multiple Subject Teaching Credential 08/01/2022-
09/01/2023 

Bass Lake SD 8/31/2022 Renewal 

Williams Marissa Short Term Staff Permit 08/01/2022-
09/01/2023 

Madera USD 8/31/2022 New 

Winters Jennifer Provisional Internship Permit 08/12/2022-
09/01/2023 

Chowchilla 
Elementary SD 

8/31/2022 New 

Wisniowski Joshua Short Term Staff Permit 08/01/2022-
09/01/2023 

Yosemite USD 8/31/2022 New 

Ybarra Robert Short Term Staff Permit 08/01/2022-
09/01/2023 

Madera USD 8/31/2022 New 



  
 

     
 

  
 
 

 
 

  
 

     
 

 
 

 
 

  
   
 

  
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

 
   

   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Cecilia A. Massetti, Ed.D. 
Superintendent of Schools 

Agenda Item 8.2 

Board of Education Action Item 
September 13, 2022 

Topic:
Consideration Disposition of Surplus/Obsolete Equipment. 

Background:
MCSOS staff members have completed a review of other equipment not 
in use and have determined that these items cannot be used in 
alternative placements.  The equipment is shown on the attached list. 
Once declared obsolete, the items will be removed from our Fixed Asset 
Inventory and discarded. 

Financial Impact:
None 

Resource: 
Julie DeWall 
Chief Officer 
Business & Administrative Services 

Recommendation: 
It is recommended the Board approve the attached list of equipment to be 
declared obsolete and removed from inventory. 

1105 South Madera Avenue  Madera, CA 93637  (559) 673-6051  FAX (559) 673-5569 
www.mcsos.org 

www.mcsos.org


 

 

 

   Obsolete Items List - For September 2022 Board 
Computers 
Description Make Model S/N Asset Tag Obsolete Non-operational 
Chrome Devices Acer Acer Chromebase 24 DQZ0DAA0018210243C3000 25761 X 
Chrome Devices Acer Acer Chromebase 25 DQZ0DAA001821023F23000 25760 X 
Laptop Dell Latitude E5520 57N0BT1 24357 X 
Computers Dell Optiplex 9030 AIO CMXKM22 24887 X 
Laptop Dell Latitude E5520 6N73LQ1 24150 X 
Laptop Dell Latitude E5570 970ZM72 25250 X 
Printers 
Description Make Model S/N Asset Tag Obsolete Non-operational 
HP MFP Printer HP OfficeJet Pro X476dn CN3AUGX08C 24636 X 
Other Items 
Description Make Model S/N Asset Tag Obsolete Non-operational 
Victor reader Victor reader DMP206A T D 206A020700131 22222 X 
Aversion document camera Aversion 537850806P 23332 X 
Aversion document camera Aversion Maico MA25 (WO#112) 6424 21421 X 
Screening Insta-Line Good-lite Co. (WO#111) C35649 X 



 
 

     
 

  

 

 

Cecilia A. Massetti, Ed.D. 
Superintendent of Schools 

Agenda Item 8.3 

Board of Education Action Item 
September 13, 2022 

Topic:
Review of Emergency Care, Infectious Diseases, and Specialized Health 
Care. 

Backround: 
Annually the Handbook for Emergency Care, Infectious Diseases, and 
Specialized Health Care is reviewed and updated. There are no changes 
to the policies and procedures. Phone numbers and contacts have been 
checked and updated. Updated pages will be distributed to school sites 
once approved. 

Financial Impact:
None 

Resource: 
Jessica Drake 
Executive Director 
Student Programs and Services 

Recommendation: 
Approval of the updates made to the Emergency Care, Infectious 
Diseases, and Specialized Health Care handbook. 

1105 South Madera Avenue  Madera, CA 93637  (559) 673-6051  FAX (559) 673-5569 
www.mcsos.org 

www.mcsos.org


 
  

  
 

 
 

 
 

    
 

 
    

    
 

  
 

 
    

  

   

    

   

    

  

     
   

 
     

     

    

     

   

   

  

  

   

   

  

  

EMERGENCY PHONE NUMBERS 
POST NEAR ALL PHONES 

September 13, 2022 

Apollo Campus 

EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES (EMS) INFORMATION
EMERGENCY PHONE NUMBER: 911 

Location(s) of Automated External Defibrillator (AED): None 
Location of First Aid Supplies: Classrooms, Site Office, and Nurse’s Office 

BE PREPARED TO GIVE THE FOLLOWING INFORMATION & DO NOT HANG UP BEFORE 
THE OTHER PERSON HANGS UP! 

• Apollo Mental Health & Special Education Programs & Your Name 

• Nature of Emergency 

• School Telephone Number: (559) 662-4648 

• Address and Easy directions: 28198 Avenue 14, Madera, CA 93638 

• Across from Madera County Independent Academy; near Road 28 

• Exact location of injured person (e.g., parking lot C, room number) 

• First aid already given. 

• Ways to make it easier to find you (ex: standing in front of building, red flag, etc.) 

Other Important Phone Numbers (Note: Nurse should be called on cell phone 1st) 

• Holly Cambra, School Nurse – Office: 559-662-4823 or Cell: 559-706-2413 

• Jason Peterson, Program Director - Office: 559-662-4611 or Cell: 559-917-5446 

• Dani Little, Mental Health Coordinator – Office: 559-662-4647 or Cell: 559-906-9227 

• Scott Sweazy, Program Director – Office: 559-662-4683 or Cell: 559-213-9450 

• Poison Control Center (California/National): 1-800-222-1222 

• Fire/Police Department: 9-1-1 

• Non-Emergency Police Department: 559-675-2097 
• Non-Emergency Madera County Sheriff’s Department: 559-675-7770/1-800-560-4911 

• Madera Community Hospital: 559-675-5555 

• Welfare Services-Child Protective Services: 559-675-7829 

• Community Action Partnership of Madera County (Rape Crisis Center): 1-800-355-8989 

• Madera Public Health Department: 559-675-7893 



 
  

 
  

 
 

 
 

 
   

  
 

   
     

  
    

 
   

 
 

  

  

   

      

   

    

  

     
 

 
 

      

   

   

  

  

  
   

  

  

  

EMERGENCY PHONE NUMBERS 
POST NEAR ALL PHONES 

September 12, 2022 

Berenda Elementary School 

EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES (EMS) INFORMATION
EMERGENCY PHONE NUMBER: 911 

Location(s) of Automated External Defibrillator (AED): School Office and Teacher’s Lounge 
Location of First Aid Supplies: MCSOS special education classrooms, Nurse’s Office, and 
Cafeteria. 

BE PREPARED TO GIVE THE FOLLOWING INFORMATION & DO NOT HANG UP BEFORE 
THE OTHER PERSON HANGS UP! 

• Berenda Elementary & Your Name 

• Nature of Emergency 

• School Telephone Number: (559) 674-3325 

• Address and Easy directions: 26820 Club Drive, Madera, CA 93638 

• Corner of Club Drive and Road 27; Near Madera Golf & Country Club 

• Exact location of injured person (e.g., parking lot C, room number) 

• First aid already given. 

• Ways to make it easier to find you (ex: standing in front of building, red flag, etc.) 

Other Important Phone Numbers  (Note: Nurse should be called on cell phone 1st) 

• Agustina Villanueva, School Nurse – Office: 559-662-4841 or Cell: 559-706-0272 

• Erika Franco, Program Director - Office: 559-662-4677 or Cell: 559-706-6171 

• Poison Control Center (California/National): 1-800-222-1222 

• Fire/Police Department: 9-1-1 

• Non-Emergency Police Department: 559-675-2097 

• Non-Emergency Madera County Sheriff’s Department: 559-675-7770/1-800-560-4911 
• Madera Community Hospital: 559-675-5555 

• Welfare Services-Child Protective Services: 559-675-7829 

• Community Action Partnership of Madera County (Rape Crisis Center): 1-800-355-8989 

• Madera Public Health Department: 559-675-7893 



 
  

 
  

 
 

 
 

 
   

  
   

 
 

   
 

 
  

 
 

   

  

    

     

      

    

  

     
 

     
 

      

     

   

  

  
  

   

  

   

  

EMERGENCY PHONE NUMBERS 
POST NEAR ALL PHONES 

September 13, 2022 

Chowchilla High School 

EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES (EMS) INFORMATION
EMERGENCY PHONE NUMBER: 911 

Location(s) of Automated External Defibrillator (AED): Gym, Front Office, Nurse’s Office, 
Cafeteria, Pool, and Sachem Building 
Location of First Aid Supplies: MCSOS Classroom Room, Nurse’s Office, Sachem Building, 
Gym, Pool 

BE PREPARED TO GIVE THE FOLLOWING INFORMATION & DO NOT HANG UP BEFORE 
THE OTHER PERSON HANGS UP! 

• Chowchilla High School & Your Name 

• Nature of Emergency 

• School Telephone Number: (559) 665-1331 

• Address and Easy directions: 805 Humboldt Avenue, Chowchilla, CA 93610 

• Humboldt Avenue and 8th Street, just south of Robertson Blvd. 

• Exact location of injured person (e.g., parking lot C, room number) 

• First aid already given. 

• Ways to make it easier to find you (ex: standing in front of building, red flag, etc.) 

Other Important Phone Numbers (Note: Nurse should be called on cell phone 1st) 

• Agustina Villanueva, School Nurse – Office: 559-662-4841 or Cell: 559-706-0272 

• Scott Sweazy, Program Director - Office: 559-662-4683 or Cell: 559-213-9450 

• Poison Control Center (California/National): 1-800-222-1222 

• Fire/Police Department: 9-1-1 

• Non-Emergency Police Department: 559-665-8600 
• Non-Emergency Madera County Sheriff’s Department: 559-675-7770/1-800-560-4911 
• Madera Community Hospital: 559-675-5555 

• Welfare Services-Child Protective Services: 559-675-7829 

• Community Action Partnership of Madera County (Rape Crisis Center): 1-800-355-8989 

• Madera Public Health Department: 559-675-7893 



 
  

 
  

 
 

 
 

 
   

  
 
 

   
    

 
  

 
 

  

  

   

    

   

    

  

     
 

 
 

    

      

   

  

  
  

   

  

   

  

 

EMERGENCY PHONE NUMBERS 
POST NEAR ALL PHONES 

September 13, 2022 

Coarsegold School 

EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES (EMS) INFORMATION
EMERGENCY PHONE NUMBER: 911 

Location(s) of Automated External Defibrillator (AED): School Main Office 
Location of First Aid Supplies: MCSOS Special Education Classrooms and Nurse’s Office 

BE PREPARED TO GIVE THE FOLLOWING INFORMATION & DO NOT HANG UP BEFORE 
THE OTHER PERSON HANGS UP! 

• Coarsegold Elementary & Your Name 

• Nature of Emergency 

• School Telephone Number: (559) 683-4841 

• Address and Easy directions: 45426 Road 415, Coarsegold, CA 93614-9522 

• Cross streets are Raymond Rd. and Bohna Ranch Rd. 

• Exact location of injured person (e.g., parking lot C, room number) 

• First aid already given. 

• Ways to make it easier to find you (ex: standing in front of building, red flag, etc.) 

Other Important Phone Numbers (Note: Nurse should be called on cell phone 1st) 

• Holly Cambra, School Nurse – Office: 559-662-4823 or Cell: 559-706-2413 

• Teresa Jorgensen, Program Director - Office: 559-662-4685 or Cell: 559-260-3044 

• Poison Control Center (California/National): 1-800-222-1222 

• Fire/Police Department: 9-1-1 

• Non-Emergency Police Department: 559-675-2097 
• Non-Emergency Madera County Sheriff’s Department: 559-675-7770/1-800-560-4911 

• Madera Community Hospital: 559-675-5555 

• Welfare Services-Child Protective Services: 559-675-7829 

• Community Action Partnership of Madera County (Rape Crisis Center): 1-800-355-8989 

• Madera Public Health Department: 559-675-7893 



 
  

 
  

 
 

 
  

 
    

  
 

   
    

   
 

  
 

 
   

  

   

     

  

    

  

       
 

 
 

      

   

   

  

  
   

   

  

  

  

EMERGENCY PHONE NUMBERS 
POST NEAR ALL PHONES 

September 13, 2022 

Desmond Middle School 

EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES (EMS) INFORMATION
EMERGENCY PHONE NUMBER: 911 

Location(s) of Automated External Defibrillator (AED): Main Office, Gym 
Location of First Aid Supplies: MCSOS Special Education Classrooms, Nurse’s Office, Gym 

BE PREPARED TO GIVE THE FOLLOWING INFORMATION & DO NOT HANG UP BEFORE 
THE OTHER PERSON HANGS UP! 

• Jack G. Desmond Middle & Your Name 

• Nature of Emergency 

• School Telephone Number: (559) 664-1775 

• Address and Easy directions: 26490 Martin St., Madera, CA 93638 

• Corner of Martin Street and D Street 

• Exact location of injured person (e.g., parking lot C, room number) 

• First aid already given. 

• Ways to make it easier to find you (ex: standing in front of building, red flag, etc.) 

Other Important Phone Numbers  (Note: Nurse should be called on cell phone 1st) 

• Agustina Villanueva, School Nurse – Office: 559-662-4841 or Cell: 559-706-0272 

• Scott Sweazy, Program Director - Office: 559-662-4683 or Cell: 559-213-9450 

• Poison Control Center (California/National): 1-800-222-1222 

• Fire/Police Department: 9-1-1 

• Non-Emergency Police Department: 559-675-2097 
• Non-Emergency Madera County Sheriff’s Department: 559-675-7770/1-800-560-4911 

• Madera Community Hospital: 559-675-5555 

• Welfare Services-Child Protective Services: 559-675-7829 

• Community Action Partnership of Madera County (Rape Crisis Center): 1-800-355-8989 

• Madera Public Health Department: 559-675-7893 



 
  

 

  
 

 
 

 
 

    
  

   
    

     
 

  
 

 
    

  

  

    

    

  

  

     
 

    
 

      
     

       

  

  

  

  
  

  

   

  

EMERGENCY PHONE NUMBERS 
POST NEAR ALL PHONES 

September 13, 2022 

Early Education Center (EEC) 

EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES (EMS) INFORMATION
EMERGENCY PHONE NUMBER: 911 

Location(s) of Automated External Defibrillator (AED): None 
Location of First Aid Supplies: Classrooms 

BE PREPARED TO GIVE THE FOLLOWING INFORMATION & DO NOT HANG UP BEFORE 
THE OTHER PERSON HANGS UP! 

• Madera County Superintendent of Schools Building 3 Early Education Center & Your Name 

• Nature of Emergency 

• School Telephone Number: (559) 662-3816 

• Address and Easy directions: 1105 South Madera Avenue, Madera, CA 93637; Building 3 

• Behind the Madera County Superintendent of Schools building in the back of the parking lot. 

• Exact location of injured person (e.g., front parking lot, room number) 

• First aid already given. 

• Ways to make it easier to find you (ex: standing in front of building, red flag, etc.) 

Other Important Phone Numbers (Note: Nurse should be called on cell phone 1st) 

• Agustina Villanueva, School Nurse – Office: 559-662-4841 or Cell: 559-706-0272 
• Juliet Okonkwo, Program Director, Early Learning - Office: 559-662-4827 or Cell: 559-240-4535 

• Jacklyn Jones, Director, Early Learning Programs - Office: 559-662-3821 or Cell: 559-975-5535 

• Poison Control Center (California/National): 1-800-222-1222 

• Fire/Police Department: 9-1-1 

• Non-Emergency Police Department: 559-675-2097 

• Non-Emergency Madera County Sheriff’s Department: 559-675-7770/1-800-560-4911 
• Madera Community Hospital: 559-675-5555 

• Welfare Services-Child Protective Services: 559-675-7829 

• Community Action Partnership of Madera County (Rape Crisis Center): 1-800-355-8989 

• Madera Public Health Department: 559-675-7893 



 
  

 

  
 

 
 

   
 

    
  

 
 

    
      

 
  

 
 

   

  

     

    

   

    

   

        
 

  
 

     

    

   

  

  
  
  

  

   

  

EMERGENCY PHONE NUMBERS 
POST NEAR ALL PHONES 

September 13, 2022 

Gould Educational Center 

EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES (EMS) INFORMATION
EMERGENCY PHONE NUMBER: 911 

Location(s) of Automated External Defibrillator (AED): None 
Location of First Aid Supplies: All Classrooms and Nurse’s Office 

BE PREPARED TO GIVE THE FOLLOWING INFORMATION & DO NOT HANG UP BEFORE 
THE OTHER PERSON HANGS UP! 

• Norman M. Gould Educational Center & Your Name 

• Nature of Emergency 

• School Telephone Number: (559) 662-4831 or (559) 674-0915 

• Address and Easy directions: 117 W. Dunham, Madera, CA 93637 

• On W. Dunham just west of 145/Madera Avenue 

• Exact location of injured person (e.g., parking lot C, room number) 

• First aid already given. 

• Ways to make it easier to find you (e.g., standing in front of building, red flag, etc.) 

Other Important Phone Numbers (Note: Nurse should be called on cell phone 1st) 

• Robbie Aledo, School Nurse – Office: 559-662-4843 or Cell: 559-517-6746 

• Tanya Hill, Program Director - Office: 559-662-4803 or Cell: 559-908-1685 

• Poison Control Center (California/National): 1-800-222-1222 

• Fire/Police Department: 9-1-1 

• Non-Emergency Police Department: 559-675-2097 
• Non-Emergency Madera County Sheriff’s Department: 559-675-7770/1-800-560-4911 

• Madera Community Hospital: 559-675-5555 

• Welfare Services-Child Protective Services: 559-675-7829 

• Community Action Partnership of Madera County (Rape Crisis Center): 1-800-355-8989 

• Madera Public Health Department: 559-675-7893 



 
  

 
  

 
  

 
 

 
     

  
 

   
    

       
   

   
 

 
   

  

   

   

     

    

   

     
 

   
 

      

     

   

  

  
  
   

  

  

  

EMERGENCY PHONE NUMBERS 
POST NEAR ALL PHONES 

September 13, 2022 

Howard School 

EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES (EMS) INFORMATION
EMERGENCY PHONE NUMBER: 911 

Location(s) of Automated External Defibrillator (AED): Teacher lounge and Nurse’s Office 
Location of First Aid Supplies: Classrooms and School Nurse’s Office 

BE PREPARED TO GIVE THE FOLLOWING INFORMATION DO NOT HANG UP BEFORE THE 
OTHER PERSON HANGS UP! 

• Howard Educational Center & Your Name 

• Nature of Emergency 

• School Telephone Number: (559) 674-8568 

• Address and Easy directions: 13878 Road 21 ½, Madera, CA 93637 

• On Road 21 ½ off Avenue 14 

• Exact location of injured person (e.g., parking lot C, room number) 

• First aide already given. 

• Ways to make it easier to find you (ex: standing in front of building, red flag, etc.) 

Other Important Phone Numbers  (Note: Nurse should be called on cell phone 1st) 

• Agustina Villanueva, School Nurse – Office: 559-662-4841 or Cell: 559-706-0272 

• Jason Peterson, Program Director - Office: 559-662-4611 or Cell: 559-917-5446 

• Poison Control Center (California/National): 1-800-222-1222 

• Fire/Police Department: 9-1-1 

• Non-Emergency Police Department: 559-675-2097 
• Non-Emergency Madera County Sheriff’s Department: 559-675-7770/1-800-560-4911 
• Madera Community Hospital: 559-675-5555 

• Welfare Services-Child Protective Services: 559-675-7829 

• Community Action Partnership of Madera County (Rape Crisis Center): 1-800-355-8989 

• Madera Public Health Department: 559-675-7893 



 
  

 

  
 

 
 

 
 

   
  

 
   

  
  

 
   

  
 

     

  

   

    

    

     

   

     
 

     
 

     

     

   

  

  

  
   

  

   

  

EMERGENCY PHONE NUMBERS 
POST NEAR ALL PHONES 

September 13, 2022 

Liberty High School 

EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES (EMS) INFORMATION
EMERGENCY PHONE NUMBER: 911 

Location(s) of Automated External Defibrillator (AED): Gym, Nurse’s Office, and Cafeteria 
Location of First Aid Supplies: MCSOS Special Education Classrooms, Nurse’s Office 

BE PREPARED TO GIVE THE FOLLOWING INFORMATION & DO NOT HANG UP BEFORE 
THE OTHER PERSON HANGS UP! 

• Liberty High School – Special Education & Your Name 

• Nature of Emergency 

• School Telephone Number: (559) 645-3500 

• Address and Easy directions: 12220 Road 36, Madera, CA 93636 

• Corner of Road 36 and Blossom Avenue off of Avenue 12 

• Exact location of injured person (e.g., parking lot C, room number) 

• First aide already given. 

• Ways to make it easier to find you (ex: standing in front of building, red flag, etc.) 

Other Important Phone Numbers (Note: Nurse should be called on cell phone 1st) 

• Holly Cambra, School Nurse – Office: 559-662-4823 or Cell: 559-706-2413 

• Scott Sweazy, Program Director - Office: 559-662-4683 or Cell: 559-213-9450 

• Poison Control Center (California/National): 1-800-222-1222 

• Fire/Police Department: 9-1-1 

• Non-Emergency Police Department: 559-675-2097 

• Non-Emergency Madera County Sheriff’s Department: 559-675-7770/1-800-560-4911 
• Madera Community Hospital: 559-675-5555 

• Welfare Services-Child Protective Services: 559-675-7829 

• Community Action Partnership of Madera County (Rape Crisis Center): 1-800-355-8989 

• Madera Public Health Department: 559-675-7893 



 
  

 

  
 

 
 

  
 

  
  

 
 

   
        

 
  

 
 

   

  

   

   

   

     

  

    
 

  
 

     

      

   

  

   

  
   

  

  

    

EMERGENCY PHONE NUMBERS 
POST NEAR ALL PHONES 

September 13, 2022 

Lincoln Community Day School 

EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES (EMS) INFORMATION
EMERGENCY PHONE NUMBER: 911 

Location(s) of Automated External Defibrillator (AED): Nurse’s Office 
Location of First Aid Supplies: In classroom and Nurse’s Office 

BE PREPARED TO GIVE THE FOLLOWING INFORMATION & DO NOT HANG UP BEFORE 
THE OTHER PERSON HANGS UP! 

• Lincoln Community Day School & Your Name 

• Nature of Emergency 

• School Telephone Number: (559) 645-3580 

• Address and Easy directions:12150 Road 36, Madera, CA 93636 

• Located at the Educational Options site to the west of Liberty High School 

• Exact location of injured person (e.g., parking lot C, room number) 

• First aid already given. 

• Ways to make it easier to find you (e.g., standing in front of building, red flag, etc.) 

Other Important Phone Numbers (Note: Nurse should be called on cell phone 1st) 

• Holly Cambra, School Nurse – Office: 559-662-4823 or Cell: 559-706-2413 

• Teresa Jorgensen, Program Director - Office: 559-662-4685 or Cell: 559-260-3044 

• Poison Control Center (California/National): 1-800-222-1222 

• Fire/Police Department: 9-1-1 

• Non-Emergency Police Department: 559-675-2097 

• Non-Emergency Madera County Sheriff’s Department: 559-675-7770/1-800-560-4911 
• Madera Community Hospital: 559-675-5555 

• Welfare Services-Child Protective Services: 559-675-7829 

• Community Action Partnership of Madera County (Rape Crisis Center): 1-800-355-8989 

• Madera Public Health Department: 559-675-7893 



 
  

 

  
 

 
 

   
 

    
  

 
   

      
        

 
  

 
 

      

  

   

    

     

    

  

     
 

    
 

    

      

   

  

  

  
   

  

  

  

EMERGENCY PHONE NUMBERS 
POST NEAR ALL PHONES 

September 13, 2022 

EARLY START - MCSOS Building 2 

EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES (EMS) INFORMATION
EMERGENCY PHONE NUMBER: 911 

Location(s) of Automated External Defibrillator (AED): None 
Location of First Aid Supplies: Classrooms, Office, Kitchen, and Nurse’s Office 

BE PREPARED TO GIVE THE FOLLOWING INFORMATION & DO NOT HANG UP BEFORE 
THE OTHER PERSON HANGS UP! 

• Madera County Superintendent of Schools, building 2, Early Start & Your Name 

• Nature of Emergency 

• School Telephone Number: (559) 662-4845 

• Address and Easy directions:1105 South Madera Avenue, Madera, CA 93637; Building 2 

• Next to Madera County Superintendent of Schools and across from Gill’s Auto Sales 

• Exact location of injured person (e.g., front parking lot, room number) 

• First aid already given. 

• Ways to make it easier to find you (ex: standing in front of building, red flag, etc.) 

Other Important Phone Numbers (Note: Nurse should be called on cell phone 1st) 

• Dolores West, School Nurse – Office: 559-662-4842 or 559-917-7701 

• Juliet Okonkwo, Program Director - Office: 559-662-4827 or Cell: 559-240-4535 

• Poison Control Center (California/National): 1-800-222-1222 

• Fire/Police Department: 9-1-1 

• Non-Emergency Police Department: 559-675-2097 

• Non-Emergency Madera County Sheriff’s Department: 559-675-7770/1-800-560-4911 
• Madera Community Hospital: 559-675-5555 

• Welfare Services-Child Protective Services: 559-675-7829 

• Community Action Partnership of Madera County (Rape Crisis Center): 1-800-355-8989 

• Madera Public Health Department: 559-675-7893 



 
  

 

  
 

 
 

 
 

   
   

 
    

      
 

  
 

 
    

  

    

      

     

 

     

  

     
 

  
 

     

     

   

   

  
  
   

   

    

  

EMERGENCY PHONE NUMBERS 
POST NEAR ALL PHONES 

September 13, 2022 

MCSOS Building 2 - PreK 

EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES (EMS) INFORMATION
EMERGENCY PHONE NUMBER: 911 

Location(s) of Automated External Defibrillator (AED): None 
Location of First Aid Supplies: Classrooms, Office, Kitchen, and Nurse’s Office 

BE PREPARED TO GIVE THE FOLLOWING INFORMATION & DO NOT HANG UP BEFORE 
THE OTHER PERSON HANGS UP! 

• Madera County Superintendent of Schools Building 2 & Your Name 

• Nature of Emergency 

• School Telephone Number: (559) 662-4630 

• Address and Easy directions: 1105 South Madera Avenue, Madera, CA 93637; Building 3 

• Next to Madera County Superintendent of Schools and across from Gill’s Auto Sales, 

behind building 2 

• Exact location of injured person (e.g., front parking lot, room number) 

• First aid already given. 

• Ways to make it easier to find you (ex: standing in front of building, red flag, etc.) 

Other Important Phone Numbers  (Note: Nurse should be called on cell phone 1st) 

• Robbie Aledo, School Nurse – Office: 559-662-4843 or Cell: 808-217-1918 

• Tanya Hill, Program Director - Office: 559-662-4803 or Cell: 559-908-1685 

• Poison Control Center (California/National): 1-800-222-1222 

• Fire/Police Department: 9-1-1 

• Non-Emergency Police Department: 559-675-2097 

• Non-Emergency Madera County Sheriff’s Department: 559-675-7770/1-800-560-4911 
• Madera Community Hospital: 559-675-5555 

• Welfare Services-Child Protective Services: 559-675-7829 

• Community Action Partnership of Madera County (Rape Crisis Center): 1-800-355-8989 

• Madera Public Health Department: 559-675-7893 



 
  

 

  
 

 
 

   
 

   
  

 
   

      
     

 
  

 
 

  

  

   

     

    

   

  

     
 

    
 

      

     

   

  

  
   
   

  

   

  

EMERGENCY PHONE NUMBERS 
POST NEAR ALL PHONES 

September 13, 2022 

Madera High School 

EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES (EMS) INFORMATION
EMERGENCY PHONE NUMBER: 911 

Location(s) of Automated External Defibrillator (AED): School Nurse’s Office, Gym, and Safety Trailer 
Location of First Aid Supplies: MCSOS Special Education Classrooms, Nurse’s Office, Gym 

BE PREPARED TO GIVE THE FOLLOWING INFORMATION & DO NOT HANG UP BEFORE 
THE OTHER PERSON HANGS UP! 

• Madera High School & Your Name 

• Nature of Emergency 

• School Telephone Number: (559) 675-4444 

• Address and Easy directions: 200 South L Street, Madera, CA 93637 

• Corner of L Street and 6th Street 

• Exact location of injured person (e.g., parking lot C, room number) 

• First aid already given? 

• Ways to make it easier to find you (ex: standing in front of building, red flag, etc.) 

Other Important Phone Numbers (Note: Nurse should be called on cell phone 1st) 

• Agustina Villanueva, School Nurse – Office: 559-662-4841 or Cell: 559-706-0272 

• Scott Sweazy, Program Director - Office: 559-662-4683 or Cell: 559-213-9450 

• Poison Control Center (California/National): 1-800-222-1222 

• Fire/Police Department: 9-1-1 

• Non-Emergency Police Department: 559-675-2097 
• Non-Emergency Madera County Sheriff’s Department: 559-675-7770/1-800-560-4911 

• Madera Community Hospital: 559-675-5555 

• Welfare Services-Child Protective Services: 559-675-7829 

• Community Action Partnership of Madera County (Rape Crisis Center): 1-800-355-8989 

• Madera Public Health Department: 559-675-7893 



 
  

 

  
 

 
 

   
 

    
  

   
  

   
   

 
   

 
 

   

  

   

     

    

    

  

     
   

 
      

     

      

   

  

  

  
   

  

  

  

EMERGENCY PHONE NUMBERS 
POST NEAR ALL PHONES 

September 13, 2022 

Madera South High 

EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES (EMS) INFORMATION
EMERGENCY PHONE NUMBER: 911 

Location(s) of Automated External Defibrillator (AED): School Nurse’s Office, Safety Office, 
Cafeteria, East & West Gym, Pool, and Training Room 
Location of First Aid Supplies: MCSOS Special Education Classrooms, Nurse’s Office 

BE PREPARED TO GIVE THE FOLLOWING INFORMATION & DO NOT HANG UP BEFORE 
THE OTHER PERSON HANGS UP! 

• Madera South High & Your Name 

• Nature of Emergency 

• School Telephone Number: (559) 675-4450 

• Address and Easy directions: 705 W. Pecan Ave., Madera, CA 9363 

• On Pecan Ave./Avenue 13, between Watt St. and Raymond Thomas St. 

• Exact location of injured person (e.g., parking lot C) 

• First aid already given. 

• Ways to make it easier to find you (ex: standing in front of building, red flag, etc.) 

Other Important Phone Numbers (Note: Nurse should be called on cell phone 1st) 

• Agustina Villanueva, School Nurse – Office: 559-662-4841 or Cell: 559-706-0272 

• Jason Peterson, Program Director - Office: 559-662-4611 or Cell: 559-917-5446 

• Scott Sweazy, Program Director – Office: 559-662-4683 or Cell: 559-213-9450 

• Poison Control Center (California/National): 1-800-222-1222 

• Fire/Police Department: 9-1-1 

• Non-Emergency Police Department: 559-675-2097 

• Non-Emergency Madera County Sheriff’s Department: 559-675-7770/1-800-560-4911 
• Madera Community Hospital: 559-675-5555 

• Welfare Services-Child Protective Services: 559-675-7829 

• Community Action Partnership of Madera County (Rape Crisis Center): 1-800-355-8989 

• Madera Public Health Department: 559-675-7893 



 
  

 

  
 

 
 
  

 
   

  
   

     
    

   
     

  
 

   

  

    

     

   

    

   

  
  

 
      

     

   

    

   

  

   
   
   

  

    

   

EMERGENCY PHONE NUMBERS 
POST NEAR ALL PHONES 

September 13, 2022 

Millview School 

EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES (EMS) INFORMATION
EMERGENCY PHONE NUMBER: 911 

Location(s) of Automated External Defibrillator (AED): Nurse’s Office 
Location of First Aid Supplies: MCSOS Special Education Classrooms, Break Room, and Staff Room 

BE PREPARED TO GIVE THE FOLLOWING INFORMATION & DO NOT HANG UP BEFORE THE 
OTHER PERSON HANGS UP! 

• Millview Educational Center & Your Name 

• Nature of Emergency 

• School Telephone Number: (559) 661-3558 or (559) 674-8509 

• Address and Easy directions: 1609 Clinton, Madera, CA 93638 

• Cross street is Tozer St.; Next to the Madera Sunrise Rotary Sports Complex 

• Exact location of injured person (e.g., parking lot C, room number) 

• First aid already given? 

• Ways to make it easier to find you (ex: standing in front of building, red flag, etc.) 

Other Important Phone Numbers (Note: Nurse should be called on cell phone 1st) 

• Agustina Villanueva, School Nurse – Office: 559-662-4841 or Cell: 559-706-0272 

• Robbie Aledo, School Nurse – Office: 559-662-4843 or Cell: 559-517-6746 

• Erika Franco, Program Director - Office: 559-662-4677 or Cell: 559-706-6171 

• Tanya Hill, Program Director - Office: 559-662-4803 or Cell: 559-908-1685 

• Poison Control Center (California/National): 1-800-222-1222 

• Fire/Police Department: 9-1-1 

• Non-Emergency Police Department: 559-675-2097 
• Non-Emergency Madera County Sheriff’s Department: 559-675-7770/1-800-560-4911 

• Madera Community Hospital: 559-675-5555 

• Welfare Services-Child Protective Services: 559-675-7829 

• Community Action Partnership of Madera County (Rape Crisis Center): 1-800-355-8989 

• Madera Public Health Department: 559-675-7893 



 
  

 

  
 

 
 

 
 

   
  

   
    

  
 

   
 

 
   

   

  

     

  

    

   

     
 

 
 

      

    

   

  

  
   

   

  

  

  

 

EMERGENCY PHONE NUMBERS 
POST NEAR ALL PHONES 

September 13, 2022 

Nishimoto School 

EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES (EMS) INFORMATION
EMERGENCY PHONE NUMBER: 911 

Location(s) of Automated External Defibrillator (AED): School Nurse’s Office 
Location of First Aid Supplies: MCSOS Special Education Classrooms, Nurse Office 

BE PREPARED TO GIVE THE FOLLOWING INFORMATION & DO NOT HANG UP BEFORE 
THE OTHER PERSON HANGS UP! 

• Nishimoto Elementary & Your Name 

• Nature of Emergency 

• School Telephone Number: (559) 664-8110 

• Address and Easy directions: 26460 Martin St., Madera, CA 93638 

• Corner of Martin Street and D Street 

• Exact location of injured person (e.g., parking lot C, room number) 

• First aid already given. 

• Ways to make it easier to find you (ex: standing in front of building, red flag, etc.) 

Other Important Phone Numbers  (Note: Nurse should be called on cell phone 1st) 

• Agustina Villanueva, School Nurse – Office: 559-662-4841 or Cell: 559-706-0272 

• Erika Franco, Program Director - Office: 559-662-4677 or Cell: 559-706-6171 

• Poison Control Center (California/National): 1-800-222-1222 

• Fire/Police Department: 9-1-1 

• Non-Emergency Police Department: 559-675-2097 
• Non-Emergency Madera County Sheriff’s Department: 559-675-7770/1-800-560-4911 

• Madera Community Hospital: 559-675-5555 

• Welfare Services-Child Protective Services: 559-675-7829 

• Community Action Partnership of Madera County (Rape Crisis Center): 1-800-355-8989 

• Madera Public Health Department: 559-675-7893 



 
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
    

  
 

      
   

     
  

 
 

    

  

   

    

    

    

  

    
 

   
 

     

    

    

  

  
  

   

  

  

  

 

EMERGENCY PHONE NUMBERS 
POST NEAR ALL PHONES 

September 13, 2022 

Parkwood School 

EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES (EMS) INFORMATION
EMERGENCY PHONE NUMBER: 911 

Location(s) of Automated External Defibrillator (AED): Office Hallway 
Location of First Aid Supplies: MCSOS Special Education Classroom, Nurse’s Office 

BE PREPARED TO GIVE THE FOLLOWING INFORMATION & DO NOT HANG UP BEFORE 
THE OTHER PERSON HANGS UP! 

• Parkwood Elementary School & Your Name 

• Nature of Emergency 

• School Telephone Number: (559) 673-2500 

• Address and Easy directions:1150 E. Pecan Ave, Madera, CA 93637 

• On E. Pecan Ave. just east of 145/Madera Ave. 

• Exact location of injured person (e.g., parking lot C, room number) 

• First aid already given. 

• Ways to make it easier to find you (e.g., standing in front of building, red flag, etc.) 

Other Important Phone Numbers (Note: Nurse should be called on cell phone 1st) 

• Holly Cambra, School Nurse – Office: 559-662-4823 or Cell: 559-706-2413 

• Erika Franco, Program Director - Office: 559-662-4677 or Cell: 559-706-6171 

• Poison Control Center (California/National): 1-800-222-1222 

• Fire/Police Department: 9-1-1 

• Non-Emergency Police Department: 559-675-2097 
• Non-Emergency Madera County Sheriff’s Department: 559-675-7770/1-800-560-4911 

• Madera Community Hospital: 559-675-5555 

• Welfare Services-Child Protective Services: 559-675-7829 

• Community Action Partnership of Madera County (Rape Crisis Center): 1-800-355-8989 

• Madera Public Health Department: 559-675-7893 



 
  

 
  

 
  

 
  

 
   

  
   

      
      

 
   

 
 

  

  

   

    

      

    

  

    
 

   
 

     

      

   

  

  

  

   

   

  

  

 

EMERGENCY PHONE NUMBERS 
POST NEAR ALL PHONES 

September 13, 2022 

Pioneer Technical Center (PTC) 

EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES (EMS) INFORMATION
EMERGENCY PHONE NUMBER: 911 

Location(s) of Automated External Defibrillator (AED): None 
Location of First Aid Supplies: Staff Break Room, Classrooms, Office 

BE PREPARED TO GIVE THE FOLLOWING INFORMATION & DO NOT HANG UP BEFORE THE 
OTHER PERSON HANGS UP! 

• Pioneer Technical Center & Your Name 

• Nature of Emergency 

• School Telephone Number: (559) 664-1600 

• Address and Easy directions: 28261 Avenue 14, Madera, CA 93638 

• Located across from Madera County Independent Academy; near Road 28 

• Exact location of injured person (e.g., parking lot C, room number) 

• First aid already given. 

• Ways to make it easier to find you (ex: standing in front of building, red flag, etc.) 

Other Important Phone Numbers (Note: Nurse should be called on cell phone 1st) 

• Holly Cambra, School Nurse – Office: 559-662-4823 or Cell: 559-706-2413 

• Teresa Jorgensen, Program Director - Office: 559-662-4685 or Cell: 559-260-3044 

• Poison Control Center (California/National): 1-800-222-1222 

• Fire/Police Department: 9-1-1 

• Non-Emergency Police Department: 559-675-2097 

• Non-Emergency Madera County Sheriff’s Department: 559-675-7770/1-800-560-4911 
• Madera Community Hospital: 559-675-5555 

• Welfare Services-Child Protective Services: 559-675-7829 

• Community Action Partnership of Madera County (Rape Crisis Center): 1-800-355-8989 

• Madera Public Health Department: 559-675-7893 



 
  

 
  

 
 
 

   
 

   
  

   
  

  
 

  
 

 
   

 
 

   

  

   

       

    

    

  

    
 

 
 

     

      

   

  

   

   

  

    

  

EMERGENCY PHONE NUMBERS 
POST NEAR ALL PHONES 

September 13, 2022 

Yosemite High School 

EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES (EMS) INFORMATION
EMERGENCY PHONE NUMBER: 911 

Location(s) of Automated External Defibrillator (AED): School Nurse’s Office, Pool, Softball 
Field, School Office, and Gym. 

Location of First Aid Supplies: MCSOS Special Education Classrooms, Health Aide Office, 
School Main Office, Gym, and Pool 

BE PREPARED TO GIVE THE FOLLOWING INFORMATION & DO NOT HANG UP BEFORE 
THE OTHER PERSON HANGS UP! 

• Yosemite High School & Your Name 

• Nature of Emergency 

• School Telephone Number: (559) 683-4667 

• Address and Easy directions: 50200 Road 427, Oakhurst, CA 93644 

• Between Woodsong Way and Alema Way - near the football stadium 

• Exact location of injured person (e.g., parking lot C, room number) 

• First aide already given 

• Ways to make it easier to find you (ex: standing in front of building, red flag, etc.) 

Other Important Phone Numbers  (Note: Nurse should be called on cell phone 1st) 

• Holly Cambra, School Nurse – Office: 559-662-4823 or Cell: 559-706-2413 

• Teresa Jorgensen, Program Director - Office: 559-662-4685 or Cell: 559-260-3044 

• Poison Control Center (California/National): 1-800-222-1222 

• Fire/Police Department: 9-1-1 

• Non-Emergency: Madera County Sheriff’s Department: 559-658-2555 

• Madera Community Hospital: 559-675-5555 

• Welfare Services-Child Protective Services: 559-675-7829 

• Community Action Partnership of Madera County (Rape Crisis Center): 1-800-355-8989 

• Madera Public Health Department: 559-675-7893 



 
  

 

  
   

 
 

 
 

  
 

 
 

  
  

  
 

   
  

    
 

 
 

   
  

 
 

   
 

 
   

  
  

 
  

  
 

 
  

  
  

  
 

  
  

    
 

 
 

  
 

 

Madera County Superintendent of Schools 
Student Programs and Services/Career and Alternative Education Services 

ADMINISTRATIVE CONTACTS 
2022-2023 

Fred Cogan, Executive Director, Career and Alternative Education Services (CAES) 
Office Phone: 559-662-6294 
Assigned Sites/Programs: CAES all sites 

Jessica Drake, Executive Director 
Office Phone: 559-662-4669 Cell Phone: 559-363-3337 
Assigned Sites/Programs: All sites/programs 

Jacklyn Jones, Director, Early Learning Programs
Office Phone: 559-662-3821 Cell Phone: 559-975-5535 
Assigned Sites/Programs: Early Start, Early Education Center, Wilson Preschool and Reagan 
Preschool 

Erika Franco 
Office Phone: 559-662-4677 Cell Phone: 559 706-6171 
Assigned Sites/Programs: Berenda, Millview, Nishimoto, Parkwood 

Jason Peterson, Program Director 
Office Phone: 559-662-4611 Cell Phone: 559-917-5446 
Assigned Sites/Programs: Apollo, Howard, Madera South High 

Juliet Okonkwo, Program Director, Early Learning, Special Education
Office Phone: 559-662-4827 Cell Phone: 559-240-4535 
Assigned Sites/Programs: Early Start Program 

Marisa Etheridge, SELPA Director
Office Phone: 559-662-4673 Cell Phone: 559-681-8303 
Assigned Sites/Programs: Itinerants Programs, Occupational Therapy, Speech Pathologists 

Scott Sweazy, Program Director 
Office Phone: 559-662-4683 Cell Phone: 559-213-9450 
Assigned Sites/Programs: Desmond, Madera High, Madera South High, Apollo Adult Transition 
Program, Liberty High Adult Transition Program, Chowchilla Union High School 

Tanya Hill, Program Director
Office Phone: 559-662-4803 Cell Phone: 559-908-1685 
Assigned Sites/Programs: Gould Educational Center, MCSOS Building 2- PreK, and Millview 
Preschool 

Teresa Jorgensen, Program Director 
Office Phone: 559-662-4685 Cell Phone: 559-260-3044 
Assigned Sites/Programs: Coarsegold, CAES Special Education, Yosemite High, Lincoln 
Community Day School 



 
  

 

 
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
  

 
 

     
  

  
  

 
 

 
 

  
  

 
 

  
 

  
   

 
 
 
 
 

Madera County Superintendent of Schools 
Student Programs and Services 

SCHOOL NURSE DIRECTORY 
2022-2023 

Agustina Villanueva 
Office: MCSOS Building 2 
Office Phone:559-662-4841 
Cell Phone: 559-706-0272 
E-Mail: avillanueva@mcsos.org 

Dolores West 
Office: Early Start – MCSOS Building 2 
Office Phone: 559 662-4842 
Cell Phone: 559-917-7701 
E-Mail: dwest@mcsos.org 

Holly Cambra
Office: MCSOS Building 2 
Office Phone: 559-662-4823 
Cell Phone: 559-706-2413 
E-Mail: hcambra@mcsos.org 

Robbie Aledo 
Office: Gould Educational Center 
Office Phone: 559-662-4843 
Cell Phone: 517-6746 
E-Mail: raledo@mcsos.org 

mailto:dwest@mcsos.org
mailto:hcambra@mcsos.org
mailto:raledo@mcsos.org
mailto:avillanueva@mcsos.org


 

  
 

 

      
 

  
 
 

     
  

 
 

 
 

  
 

 
      

     
  

   
  

  
  

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

 
 

 

Cecilia A. Massetti, Ed.D. 
Superintendent of Schools 

Agenda Item 8.4 

Board of Education Action Item 
September 13, 2022 

Topic:
Fund Budget Revisions 

Background:
Budget Revisions Accomplish the Following: 

1. Attached are the 2021-2022 budget revisions compared to the 
2021-2022 Board Approved Revised Budget. Budget revisions 
are being done as staff works through the closeout process. 
These are preliminary numbers. The largest adjustments have 
been savings recognized for supplies and services.  The final 
Unaudited Actual amounts will be brought back to you at a later 
meeting. 

Fiscal Impact:
See attached sheets. 

Resource: 
Julie DeWall 
Chief Business and Administrative Services Officer 

Recommendation: 
Approval as presented. 

1105 South Madera Avenue  Madera, CA 93637  (559) 673-6051  FAX (559) 673-5569 
www.mcsos.org 

www.mcsos.org


 

Madera County Superintendent of Schools 
2021-22 General Fund Budget Revisions 

September 13, 2022 Board Meeting 

2021-22 2021-22 2021-22 
Unrestricted Restricted Total 

Board Approved Operating Budget 
2021-22 2021-22 2021-22 

Unrestricted Restricted Total 

Revised Budget 
2021-22 2021-22 2021-22 Percent 

Unrestricted Restricted Total Difference 

Changes 

Revenues 
LCFF Sources $6,179,491 $6,308,579 $12,488,070 $6,123,926 $6,808,300 $12,932,226 -$55,565 $499,721 $444,156 3.6% 
Federal Revenue $480,000 $10,671,539 $11,151,539 $0 $8,873,940 $8,873,940 -$480,000 -$1,797,599 -$2,277,599 -20.4% 
Other State Revenue $88,958 $16,029,981 $16,118,939 $124,886 $15,541,812 $15,666,698 $35,928 -$488,169 -$452,241 -2.8% 
Other Local Revenue $3,099,413 $9,866,533 $12,965,946 $4,015,329 $9,537,424 $13,552,753 $915,916 -$329,109 $586,807 4.5% 
Total Revenues $9,847,862 $42,876,632 $52,724,494 $10,264,141 $40,761,476 $51,025,617 $416,279 -$2,115,156 -$1,698,877 -3.2% 

Expenditures 
Certificated Salaries $1,996,305 $9,071,435 $11,067,740 $1,969,233 $8,954,021 $10,923,254 -$27,072 -$117,414 -$144,486 -1.3% 
Classified Salaries $4,170,366 $7,735,926 $11,906,292 $4,171,329 $7,722,705 $11,894,034 $963 -$13,221 -$12,258 -0.1% 
Employee Benefits $2,619,229 $7,824,877 $10,444,106 $2,654,976 $8,436,088 $11,091,064 $35,747 $611,211 $646,958 6.2% 
Books and Supplies $424,659 $1,424,842 $1,849,501 $204,041 $865,490 $1,069,531 -$220,618 -$559,352 -$779,970 -42.2% 
Services and Other Operating Exp $1,384,560 $10,462,177 $11,846,737 $557,776 $6,159,695 $6,717,471 -$826,784 -$4,302,482 -$5,129,266 -43.3% 
Capital Outlay $50,516 $421,081 $471,597 $77,205 $407,462 $484,667 $26,689 -$13,619 $13,070 2.8% 
Other Outgo excluding Indirect Costs $1,137,683 $122,157 $1,259,840 $1,137,527 $122,156 $1,259,683 -$156 -$1 -$157 0.0% 
Other Outgo - Transfers of Indirect Costs -$3,358,880 $3,087,208 -$271,672 -$2,939,175 $2,684,986 -$254,189 $419,705 -$402,222 $17,483 -6.4% 
Total Expenditures $8,424,438 $40,149,703 $48,574,141 $7,832,912 $35,352,603 $43,185,515 -$591,526 -$4,797,100 -$5,388,626 -11.1% 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues over 
Expendiures before Financing Sources and $1,423,424 $2,726,929 $4,150,353 $2,431,229 $5,408,873 $7,840,102 $1,007,805 $2,681,944 $3,689,749 88.9% 
Uses 

Other Financing Sources/Uses 
Interfund Transfers In $0 $0 $30,279 $0 $30,279 $30,279 $0 $30,279 100.0% 
Interfund Transfer Out $400,000 $16,076 $416,076 $400,000 $0 $400,000 $0 -$16,076 -$16,076 -3.9% 
Other Sources $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 0.0% 
Other Uses $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 0.0% 
Contributions -$262,419 $262,419 $0 -$254,684 $254,684 $0 $7,735 -$7,735 $0 0.0% 
Total Other Financing Sources/Uses -$662,419 $246,343 -$416,076 -$624,405 $254,684 -$369,721 $38,014 $8,341 $46,355 -11.1% 

Net Increase (Decrease) in Fund Balance $761,005 $2,973,272 $3,734,277 $1,806,824 $5,663,557 $7,470,381 $1,045,819 $2,690,285 $3,736,104 100.0% 

1 



Madera County Superintendent of Schools 
2021-22 General Fund Budget Revisions 

September 13, 2022 Board Meeting 

2021-22 2021-22 2021-22 
Unrestricted Restricted Total 

Board Approved Operating Budget 
2021-22 2021-22 2021-22 

Unrestricted Restricted Total 

Revised Budget 
2021-22 2021-22 2021-22 Percent 

Unrestricted Restricted Total Difference 

Changes 

Beginning Balance $8,504,912 $8,996,102 $17,501,014 $8,504,912 $8,996,102 $17,501,014 $0 $0 $0 0.0% 
Audit Adjustments $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 0.0% 
As of July 1 - Audited $8,504,912 $8,996,102 $17,501,014 $8,504,912 $8,996,102 $17,501,014 $0 $0 $0 0.0% 
Restatements $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 0.0% 
Adjusted Beginning Balance $8,504,912 $8,996,102 $17,501,014 $8,504,912 $8,996,102 $17,501,014 $0 $0 $0 0.0% 
Ending Balance $9,265,917 $11,969,374 $21,235,291 $10,311,736 $14,659,659 $24,971,395 $1,045,819 $2,690,285 $3,736,104 17.6% 

Components fo Ending Fund Balance 
Nonspendable Revolving Cash $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 0.0% 
Stores $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 0.0% 
Prepaid Expenses $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 0.0% 
All others $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 0.0% 
Restricted $0 $11,969,374 $11,969,374 $0 $14,659,659 $14,659,659 $0 $2,690,285 $2,690,285 22.5% 
Committed - Stabilization $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 0.0% 
Other Commitments $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 0.0% 

Assigned 
Other Assignments $2,002,835 $0 $2,002,835 $2,002,835 $0 $2,002,835 $0 $0 $0 0.0% 

$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 0.0%
   LCAP Oversight $64,477 $0 $64,477 $64,477 $0 $64,477 $0 $0 $0 0.0%
   Differentiated Assistance $1,938,358 $0 $1,938,358 $1,938,358 $0 $1,938,358 $0 $0 $0 0.0% 

$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 0.0% 
Unassigned/Unappropriated 

Reserve for Ecomonic Uncertainty $1,270,850 $0 $1,270,850 $1,270,850 $0 $1,270,850 $0 $0 $0 0.0% 

Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount $5,992,232 $0 $5,992,232 $7,038,051 $0 $7,038,051 $1,045,819 $0 $1,045,819 17.5% 

2 



MCSOS General Fund 
Expense 

2021-2022 Budget Revisions 

$12,000,000 

$10,000,000 

$8,000,000 

$6,000,000 

$4,000,000 

$2,000,000 

$0 

($2,000,000) 

Board Approved Revised 



  

MCSOS General Fund 
Revenue 

2021-2022 Budget Revisions 

$0 

$2,000,000 

$4,000,000 

$6,000,000 

$8,000,000 

$10,000,000 

$12,000,000 

$14,000,000 

$16,000,000 

$18,000,000 

LCFF Sources Federal Revenue Other State Other Local 
Revenue Revenue 

Board Approved Revised 



       
       

       
       

         

       
                           
                           

       
                           

       
       

                           
         

         

       
       
       
       
       

         

         

 

Madera County Superintendent of Schools 
2020-21 Child Development Fund Budget Revisions 

September 14, 2021 Board Meeting 

2021-22 2021-22 2021-22 
Unrestricted Restricted Total 

Board Approved Operating Budget 
2021-22 2021-22 2021-22 

Unrestricted Restricted Total 

Revised Budget 
2021-22 2021-22 2021-22 Percent 

Unrestricted Restricted Total Difference 

Changes 

Revenues 
LCFF Sources $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - 0.0% 
Federal Revenue $ 322,766.00 $ 322,766.00 $ 267,954.00 $ 267,954.00 $ - $ (54,812.00) $ (54,812.00) -17.0% 
Other State Revenue $ 2,619,137.00 $ 2,619,137.00 $ 2,756,591.00 $ 2,756,591.00 $ - $ 137,454.00 $ 137,454.00 5.2% 
Other Local Revenue $ 39,900.00 $ 39,900.00 $ - $ - $ - $ (39,900.00) $ (39,900.00) -100.0% 
Total Revenues $ - $ 2,981,803.00 $ 2,981,803.00 $ - $ 3,024,545.00 $ 3,024,545.00 $ - $ 42,742.00 $ 42,742.00 1.4% 

Expenditures 
Certificated Salaries $ 475,796.00 $ 475,796.00 $ 458,133.00 $ 458,133.00 $ - $ (17,663.00) $ (17,663.00) -3.7% 
Classified Salaries 947,088.00 $ 947,088.00 977,343.00 $ 977,343.00 $ - $ 30,255.00 $ 30,255.00 3.2% 
Employee Benefits 648,148.00 $ 648,148.00 634,924.00 $ 634,924.00 $ - $ (13,224.00) $ (13,224.00) -2.0% 
Books and Supplies $ 237,834.00 $ 237,834.00 $ 125,552.00 $ 125,552.00 $ - $ (112,282.00) $ (112,282.00) -47.2% 
Services and Other Operating Exp 480,161.00 $ 480,161.00 457,457.00 $ 457,457.00 $ - $ (22,704.00) $ (22,704.00) -4.7% 
Capital Outlay $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - 0.0% 
Other Outgo excluding Indirect Costs $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - 0.0% 
Other Outgo - Transfers of Indirect Costs 252,401.00 $ 252,401.00 243,568.00 $ 243,568.00 $ - $ (8,833.00) $ (8,833.00) -3.5% 
Total Expenditures $ - $ 3,041,428.00 $ 3,041,428.00 $ - $ 2,896,977.00 $ 2,896,977.00 $ - $ (144,451.00) $ (144,451.00) -4.7% 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues over 
Expendiures before Financing Sources and $ - $ (59,625.00) $ (59,625.00) $ - $ 127,568.00 $ 127,568.00 $ - $ 187,193.00 $ 187,193.00 -314.0% 
Uses 

Other Financing Sources/Uses 
Interfund Transfers In $ 16,076.00 $ 16,076.00 $ - $ - $ - $ (16,076.00) $ (16,076.00) -100.0% 
Interfund Transfer Out $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - 0.0% 
Other Sources $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - 0.0% 
Other Uses $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - 0.0% 
Contributions $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - 0.0% 
Total Other Financing Sources/Uses $ - $ 16,076.00 $ 16,076.00 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ (16,076.00) $ (16,076.00) -100.0% 

Net Increase (Decrease) in Fund Balance $ - $ (43,549.00) $ (43,549.00) $ - $ 127,568.00 $ 127,568.00 $ - $ 171,117.00 $ 171,117.00 -392.9% 

1 



         
         
         
         
         
         

Madera County Superintendent of Schools 
2020-21 Child Development Fund Budget Revisions 

September 14, 2021 Board Meeting 

2021-22 2021-22 2021-22 
Unrestricted Restricted Total 

Board Approved Operating Budget 
2021-22 2021-22 2021-22 

Unrestricted Restricted Total 

Revised Budget 
2021-22 2021-22 2021-22 Percent 

Unrestricted Restricted Total Difference 

Changes 

Beginning Balance $ - $ 43,549.00 $ 43,549.00 $ - $ 43,549.00 $ 43,549.00 $ - $ - $ - 0.0% 
Audit Adjustments $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - 0.0% 
As of July 1 - Audited $ - $ 43,549.00 $ 43,549.00 $ - $ 43,549.00 $ 43,549.00 $ - $ - $ - 0.0% 
Restatements $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - 0.0% 
Adjusted Beginning Balance $ - $ 43,549.00 $ 43,549.00 $ - $ 43,549.00 $ 43,549.00 $ - $ - $ - 0.0% 
Ending Balance $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 171,117.00 $ 171,117.00 $ - $ 171,117.00 $ 171,117.00 100.0% 

Components fo Ending Fund Balance 
Nonspendable Revolving Cash 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 
Stores 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 
Prepaid Expenses 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 
All others 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 
Restricted 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 171,117.00 171,117.00 0.00 171,117.00 171,117.00 100.0% 
Committed - Stabilization 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 
Other Commitments 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

Assigned 
Other Assignments 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
   LCAP Oversight 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
   Differentiated Assistance 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 
Unassigned/Unappropriated 

Reserve for Ecomonic Uncertainty 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 

2 



 MCSOS Child Development Fund 
Expense 

2021-2022 Budget Revisions 

$1,000,000
$900,000
$800,000
$700,000
$600,000
$500,000
$400,000
$300,000
$200,000
$100,000

$0 
-$100,000 

Board Approved Revised 



 

 MCSOS Child Development Fund 
Revenue 

2021-2022 Budget Revisions 

$0 

$500,000 

$1,000,000 

$1,500,000 

$2,000,000 

$2,500,000 

$3,000,000 

LCFF Sources Federal Revenue Other State Other Local 
Revenue Revenue 

Board Approved Revised 



 

Madera County Superintendent of Schools 
2020-21 Pioneer Technical Center Budget Revisions 

September 13, 2022 Board Meeting 

2021-22 2021-22 2021-22 
Unrestricted Restricted Total 

Board Approved Operating Budget 
2021-22 2021-22 2021-22 

Unrestricted Restricted Total 

Revised Budget 
2021-22 2021-22 2021-22 Percent 

Unrestricted Restricted Total Difference 

Changes 

Revenues 
LCFF Sources $2,838,918 $0 $2,838,918 $3,087,416 $0 $3,087,416 $248,498 $0 $248,498 8.8% 
Federal Revenue $67,659 $67,659 $0 $53,537 $53,537 $0 -$14,122 -$14,122 -20.9% 
Other State Revenue $56,611 $603,220 $659,831 $64,077 $490,510 $554,587 $7,466 -$112,710 -$105,244 -16.0% 
Other Local Revenue $25,700 $94,630 $120,330 $10,284 $94,698 $104,982 -$15,416 $68 -$15,348 -12.8% 
Total Revenues $2,921,229 $765,509 $3,686,738 $3,161,777 $638,745 $3,800,522 $240,548 -$126,764 $113,784 3.1% 

Expenditures 
Certificated Salaries $1,852,988 $35,426 $1,888,414 $1,840,214 $62,817 $1,903,031 -$12,774 $27,391 $14,617 0.8% 
Classified Salaries $388,003 $24,903 $412,906 $382,283 $26,428 $408,711 -$5,720 $1,525 -$4,195 -1.0% 
Employee Benefits $876,102 $266,542 $1,142,644 $863,142 $267,994 $1,131,136 -$12,960 $1,452 -$11,508 -1.0% 
Books and Supplies $209,669 $101,455 $311,124 $47,769 $59,159 $106,928 -$161,900 -$42,296 -$204,196 -65.6% 
Services and Other Operating Exp $763,747 $404,564 $1,168,311 -$242,804 $129,819 -$112,985 -$1,006,551 -$274,745 -$1,281,296 -109.7% 
Capital Outlay $38,500 $0 $38,500 $0 $0 $0 -$38,500 $0 -$38,500 -100.0% 
Other Outgo excluding Indirect Costs $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 0.0% 
Other Outgo - Transfers of Indirect Costs $0 $14,927 $14,927 $0 $9,454 $9,454 $0 -$5,473 -$5,473 -36.7% 
Total Expenditures $4,129,009 $847,817 $4,976,826 $2,890,604 $555,671 $3,446,275 -$1,238,405 -$292,146 -$1,530,551 -30.8% 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues over 
Expendiures before Financing Sources and -$1,207,780 -$82,308 -$1,290,088 $271,173 $83,074 $354,247 $1,478,953 $165,382 $1,644,335 -127.5% 
Uses 

Other Financing Sources/Uses 
Interfund Transfers In $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 0.0% 
Interfund Transfer Out $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 0.0% 
Other Sources $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 0.0% 
Other Uses $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 0.0% 
Contributions $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 0.0% 
Total Other Financing Sources/Uses $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 0.0% 

Net Increase (Decrease) in Fund Balance -$1,207,780 -$82,308 -$1,290,088 $271,173 $83,074 $354,247 $1,478,953 $165,382 $1,644,335 -127.5% 

1 



Madera County Superintendent of Schools 
2020-21 Pioneer Technical Center Budget Revisions 

September 13, 2022 Board Meeting 

2021-22 2021-22 2021-22 
Unrestricted Restricted Total 

Board Approved Operating Budget 
2021-22 2021-22 2021-22 

Unrestricted Restricted Total 

Revised Budget 
2021-22 2021-22 2021-22 Percent 

Unrestricted Restricted Total Difference 

Changes 

Beginning Balance $1,710,500 $292,470 $2,002,970 $1,710,500 $292,470 $2,002,970 $0 $0 $0 0.0% 
Audit Adjustments $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 0.0% 
As of July 1 - Audited $1,710,500 $292,470 $2,002,970 $1,710,500 $292,470 $2,002,970 $0 $0 $0 0.0% 
Restatements $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 0.0% 
Adjusted Beginning Balance $1,710,500 $292,470 $2,002,970 $1,710,500 $292,470 $2,002,970 $0 $0 $0 0.0% 
Ending Balance $502,720 $210,162 $712,882 $1,981,673 $375,544 $2,357,217 $1,478,953 $165,382 $1,644,335 230.7% 

Components fo Ending Fund Balance 
Nonspendable Revolving Cash $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 0.0% 
Stores $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 0.0% 
Prepaid Expenses $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 0.0% 
All others $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 0.0% 
Restricted $0 $210,162 $210,162 $0 $375,544 $375,544 $0 $165,382 $165,382 78.7% 
Committed - Stabilization $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 0.0% 
Other Commitments $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 0.0% 

Assigned 
Other Assignments $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 0.0% 

$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 0.0% 
$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 0.0% 
$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 0.0% 
$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 0.0% 

Unassigned/Unappropriated 
Reserve for Ecomonic Uncertainty $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 0.0% 

Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount $502,720 $0 $502,720 $1,981,673 $0 $1,981,673 $1,478,953 $0 $1,478,953 294.2% 

2 



 Pioneer Technical Center 
Expense 

2021-2022 Budget Revisions 

$2,000,000 

$1,500,000 

$1,000,000 

$500,000 

$0 

($500,000) 

Board Approved Revised 



   

 Pioneer Technical Center 
Revenue 

2021-2022 Budget Revisions 

$0 

$1,000,000 

$2,000,000 

$3,000,000 

$4,000,000 

LCFF Sources Federal Revenue Other State Other Local 
Revenue Revenue 

Board Approved Revised 



 

Madera County Superintendent of Schools 
2021-22 Madera County Independent Academy Budget Revisions 

September 13, 2022 Board Meeting 

2021-22 2021-22 2021-22 
Unrestricted Restricted Total 

Board Approved Operating Budget 
2021-22 2021-22 2021-22 

Unrestricted Restricted Total 

Revised Budget 
2021-22 2021-22 2021-22 Percent 

Unrestricted Restricted Total Difference 

Changes 

Revenues 
LCFF Sources $504,759 $0 $504,759 $645,076 $0 $645,076 $140,317 $0 $140,317 27.8% 
Federal Revenue $0 $17,415 $17,415 $0 $13,574 $13,574 $0 -$3,841 -$3,841 -22.1% 
Other State Revenue $8,642 $81,989 $90,631 $12,005 $39,910 $51,915 $3,363 -$42,079 -$38,716 -42.7% 
Other Local Revenue $0 $21,214 $21,214 $64 $21,187 $21,251 $64 -$27 $37 0.2% 
Total Revenues $513,401 $120,618 $634,019 $657,145 $74,671 $731,816 $143,744 -$45,947 $97,797 15.4% 

Expenditures 
Certificated Salaries $312,589 $20,930 $333,519 $308,542 $26,467 $335,009 -$4,047 $5,537 $1,490 0.4% 
Classified Salaries $88,814 $1,038 $89,852 $88,786 $1,038 $89,824 -$28 $0 -$28 0.0% 
Employee Benefits $164,490 $9,338 $173,828 $162,928 $10,688 $173,616 -$1,562 $1,350 -$212 -0.1% 
Books and Supplies $53,917 $4,560 $58,477 $20,609 $4,523 $25,132 -$33,308 -$37 -$33,345 -57.0% 
Services and Other Operating Exp $211,194 $90,252 $301,446 $61,528 $9,643 $71,171 -$149,666 -$80,609 -$230,275 -76.4% 
Capital Outlay $21,311 $0 $21,311 $0 $0 $0 -$21,311 $0 -$21,311 -100.0% 
Other Outgo excluding Indirect Costs $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 0.0% 
Other Outgo - Transfers of Indirect Costs $0 $4,344 $4,344 $0 $1,167 $1,167 $0 -$3,177 -$3,177 -73.1% 
Total Expenditures $852,315 $130,462 $982,777 $642,393 $53,526 $695,919 -$209,922 -$76,936 -$286,858 -29.2% 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues over 
Expendiures before Financing Sources and -$338,914 -$9,844 -$348,758 $14,752 $21,145 $35,897 $353,666 $30,989 $384,655 -110.3% 
Uses 

Other Financing Sources/Uses 
Interfund Transfers In $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 0.0% 
Interfund Transfer Out $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 0.0% 
Other Sources $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 0.0% 
Other Uses $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 0.0% 
Contributions -$12,392 $12,392 $0 -$11,794 $11,794 $0 $598 -$598 $0 0.0% 
Total Other Financing Sources/Uses -$12,392 $12,392 $0 -$11,794 $11,794 $0 $598 -$598 $0 0.0% 

Net Increase (Decrease) in Fund Balance -$351,306 $2,548 -$348,758 $2,958 $32,939 $35,897 $354,264 $30,391 $384,655 -110.3% 

1 



Madera County Superintendent of Schools 
2021-22 Madera County Independent Academy Budget Revisions 

September 13, 2022 Board Meeting 

2021-22 2021-22 2021-22 
Unrestricted Restricted Total 

Board Approved Operating Budget 
2021-22 2021-22 2021-22 

Unrestricted Restricted Total 

Revised Budget 
2021-22 2021-22 2021-22 Percent 

Unrestricted Restricted Total Difference 

Changes 

Beginning Balance $1,766,808 $62,214 $1,829,022 $1,766,808 $62,214 $1,829,022 $0 $0 $0 0.0% 
Audit Adjustments $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 0.0% 
As of July 1 - Audited $1,766,808 $62,214 $1,829,022 $1,766,808 $62,214 $1,829,022 $0 $0 $0 0.0% 
Restatements $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 0.0% 
Adjusted Beginning Balance $1,766,808 $62,214 $1,829,022 $1,766,808 $62,214 $1,829,022 $0 $0 $0 0.0% 
Ending Balance $1,415,502 $64,762 $1,480,264 $1,769,766 $95,153 $1,864,919 $354,264 $30,391 $384,655 26.0% 

Components fo Ending Fund Balance 
Nonspendable Revolving Cash $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 0.0% 
Stores $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 0.0% 
Prepaid Expenses $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 0.0% 
All others $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 0.0% 
Restricted $0 $64,762 $64,762 $0 $95,153 $95,153 $0 $30,391 $30,391 46.9% 
Committed - Stabilization $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 0.0% 
Other Commitments $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 0.0% 

Assigned 
Other Assignments $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 0.0% 

$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 0.0% 
$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 0.0% 
$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 0.0% 
$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 0.0% 

Unassigned/Unappropriated 
Reserve for Ecomonic Uncertainty $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 0.0% 

Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount $1,415,502 $0 $1,415,502 $1,769,766 $0 $1,769,766 $354,264 $0 $354,264 25.0% 

2 



  Madera County Independent Academy 
Expense 

2021-2022 Budget Revisions 

$350,000 
$300,000 
$250,000 
$200,000 
$150,000 
$100,000 

$50,000 
$0 

Board Approved Revised 



  

  Madera County Independent Academy 
Revenue 

2021-2022 Budget Revisions 

$0 
$500,000 

$1,000,000 

LCFF Sources Federal Other State Other Local 
Revenue Revenue Revenue 

Board Approved Revised 



 
 

     
 

  

 
  

 
  

 

  
    

 
   

  
 

   
 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 

Cecilia A. Massetti, Ed.D. 
Superintendent of Schools 

Agenda Item 8.5 

Board of Education Action Item 
September 13, 2022 

Topic:
Consideration adoption of instructional materials for the Career and 
Alternative Education Services programs and Special Education 
programs in grades 9-12. 

Background:
Resolutions on the Sufficiency of Textbooks and Instructional Materials for 
Students Served in Madera County Superintendent of Schools Programs. 
The Board is also required to review and adopt basic instructional materials 
for pupils in grades 9-12. 

8.5.1 Resolution Number 2, 2022-2023 Availability of Instructional 
Materials (Special Education) 

8.5.2 Resolution Number 3, 2022-2023 Availability of Instructional 
Materials (Career Technical and Alternative Education)  

8.5.3 Adoption of Instructional Materials for Pupils in Grades 9-12 

Financial Impact: 
Budgeted as regular expenditures. 

Resource: 
Jessica Drake 
Executive Director 
Student Programs and Services 

Fred Cogan 
Executive Director 
Career and Alternative Education Services 

1105 South Madera Avenue  Madera, CA 93637  (559) 673-6051  FAX (559) 673-5569 
www.mcsos.org 

www.mcsos.org


  
 

 
   

   
 

   
  

 
 

  
  

 
 
 

      
 

   
     

  
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
   

  
 

     
 

 
 

  
  

 
 
 

     
 

  
   

   
 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 

To determine the Sufficiency of Textbooks and Instructional Materials for Students 
Served in Madera County Superintendent of Schools programs. 

Tuesday, September 13, 2022 
5:15 p.m. 

Conference Room 5/6 

Madera County Superintendent of Schools 
1105 South Madera Avenue 

Madera, CA 93637 

Note: This notice was posted on August 22, 2022, at seven sites: 

Madera County Superintendent of Schools, Gould Educational Center, Yosemite High 
School, Pioneer Technical Center, Pioneer Technical Center – Chowchilla, Chowchilla 

High School, and Madera County Independent Academy 

AVISO DE AUDIENCIA PÚBLICA 

Para determinar la suficiencia de libros y materiales académicos de estudiantes 
servidos en Programas del Condado de Madera Superintendente de Escuelas. 

martes, 13 de septiembre del 2022 
5:15 p.m. 

Sala de Conferencias 5/6 

Superintendente de Escuelas del Condado de Madera 
1105 South Madera Avenue 

Madera, CA 93637 

Nota: Este aviso se publicó el 22 de agosto del 2022, en siete lugares: 

Superintendente de Escuelas del Condado de Madera, Centro Educativo Gould, 
Escuela Secundaria Yosemite, Centro Técnico Pioneer, Centro Técnico Pioneer -
Chowchilla, Escuela Secundaria Chowchilla, y en la Academia Independiente del 

Condado de Madera. 



 
 

     
 

  

 

Cecilia A. Massetti, Ed.D. 
Superintendent of Schools 

Agenda Item 8.5.1 

Board of Education Action Item 
September 13, 2022 

Topic:
Resolution Number 2, 2022-2023 Availability of Instructional Materials 
(Special Education) 

Backround: 
To comply with Education Code 60119, a public hearing was held related 
to the sufficiency of instructional materials in Madera County 
Superintendent of Schools (MCSOS) programs. In this resolution, the 
Madera County Board of Education acknowledges the adoption of 
materials for special education students. The instructional program for 
special education students matches the specifications of their 
Individualized Education Plan (IEP). Students accessing regular education 
programs are provided State adopted textbooks and materials that are 
appropriate for the courses and match their IEPs. These materials are 
aligned to the adopted content standards, are consistent with the cycles of 
curriculum frameworks adopted by the state board of education, and align 
with the materials utilized by the district in which the student is attending. 

Financial Impact:
Budgeted as regular expenditures. 

Resource: 
Jessica Drake 
Executive Director 
Student Programs and Services 

Recommendation: 
It is recommended the Madera County Board of Education adopt 
Resolution Number 2, 2022-2023 on the availability of instructional 
materials for MCSOS Special Education students. 

1105 South Madera Avenue  Madera, CA 93637  (559) 673-6051  FAX (559) 673-5569 
www.mcsos.org 

www.mcsos.org


 

   
   

 
   

  
   

   
 

 
     

  
    

 
    

  
 

 
  

 
 

   
     

  
 

 
 

 
    

   
  

  
 

 
   

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

 
 
 

_______________________________________________________________ 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 2 – 2022-2023 
Availability of Instructional Materials 2022-2023 

WHEREAS, the Madera County Board of Education and Madera County 
Superintendent of Schools (MCSOS), in order to comply with the requirements of 
Education Code Section 60119, held a public hearing on September 13, 2022, at 5:15 
p.m., which is on or before the eighth week of school and which did not take place 
during or immediately following school hours, and; 

WHEREAS, the governing board provided at least 10 days notice of the public 
hearing posted in at least three public places within the Madera County Superintendent 
of Schools attendance area that stated the time, place, and purpose of the hearing, and; 

WHEREAS, the governing board encouraged participation by parents, teachers, 
members of the community, and bargaining unit leaders in the public hearing, and; 

WHEREAS, information provided at the public hearing and to the governing 
board at the public meeting detailed the extent to which textbooks and instructional 
materials were provided to all students, including English learners, in the county office 
of education, and; 

WHEREAS, the definition of “sufficient textbooks or instructional materials” 
means that each pupil has a textbook or instructional materials, or both, to use in class 
and to take home, and; 

WHEREAS, sufficient textbooks and instructional materials were provided to 
each student, consistent with their Individualized Education Plan (IEP). 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that for the 2022-2023 school year, the 
Madera County Board of Education acknowledges the adoption of sufficient textbooks 
and instructional materials aligned to the academic content standards and consistent 
with the cycles and content of the curriculum frameworks as appropriate for Special 
Education Programs. 

ADOPTED by the following vote this 13th day of September 2022. 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSTAIN: 
ABSENT: 

Alfred Soares, Jr., President 



 
 

     
 

  

 

 
 
 

 

Cecilia A. Massetti, Ed.D. 
Superintendent of Schools 

Agenda Item 8.5.2 

Board of Education Action Item 
September 13, 2022 

Topic:
Resolution Number 3, 2022-2023 Availability of Instructional Materials 
(Career Technical and Alternative Education) 

Background: 
To comply with Education Code 60119, a public hearing was held related 
to the sufficiency of instructional materials in the Madera County 
Superintendent of Schools Career and Alternative Education programs. 
In this resolution, the Madera County Board of Education acknowledges 
the adoption of instructional materials for Career Technical and 
Alternative Education students. 

Financial Impact:
Budgeted as regular expenditures. 

Resource: 
Fred Cogan 
Executive Director 
Career and Alternative Education Services 

Recommendation: 
It is recommended the Madera County Board of Education adopt 
Resolution Number 3, 2022-2023 on the availability of instructional 
materials for MCSOS Career Technical and Alternative Education 
students. 

1105 South Madera Avenue  Madera, CA 93637  (559) 673-6051  FAX (559) 673-5569 
www.mcsos.org 

www.mcsos.org


 

   
  

 
   

     
  

   
  

 
   

    
   

 
    

  
 

 
    

 
  

 
 
    

     
  

 
   

   
   

 
  
  
  
  

 
 

   
  

 
   

 
 

 
 

 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 3 – 2022-2023 
Availability of Instructional Materials 2022-2023 

WHEREAS, the Madera County Board of Education and Madera County 
Superintendent of Schools (MCSOS), in order to comply with the requirements of 
Education Code Section 60119 held a public hearing on September 13, 2022, at 5:15 
p.m., which is on or before the eighth week of school and which did not take place 
during or immediately following school hours; and 

WHEREAS, the Madera County Board of Education provided at least 10 days 
notice of the public hearing posted in at least three public places within the district that 
stated the time, place and purpose of the hearing; and 

WHEREAS, the Madera County Board of Education encouraged participation by 
parents, teachers, members of the community, and bargaining unit leaders in the public 
hearing; and 

WHEREAS, information provided at the public hearing and to the board at the 
public meeting detailed the extent to which textbooks and instructional materials were 
provided to all students, including English learners, in the county office of education; 
and 

WHEREAS, the definition of “sufficient textbooks or instructional materials” 
means that each pupil has a textbook or instructional materials, or both, to use in class 
and to take home; and 

WHEREAS, sufficient textbooks and instructional materials listed in Attachment 
A were provided to each student, including English learners that are aligned to the 
academic content standards and consistent with the cycles and content of the 
curriculum frameworks in the following subjects: 

• Mathematics 
• Science 
• History-Social Science 
• English/Language Arts, including the English language development 

component of an adopted program 

WHEREAS, sufficient textbooks or instructional materials were provided to each 
pupil enrolled in foreign language or health classes; and 

WHEREAS, laboratory science equipment was available for science laboratory 
classes offered in grades 9-12, inclusive; and 

WHEREAS, for students in K-8, the instructional materials were purchased from 
an approved standards-aligned state adoption list as required by CCR, Title 5, Section 
9531; and 



    
  

 
  

   
   

 
  

 
 

      
 

 
 

 
 

 
       

 
 
 
 

WHEREAS, for students in grades 9-12, the instructional materials were adopted 
by the local governing board following review of the materials and their alignment with 
state content standards as required by CCR, Title 5, Section 9531. 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that for the 2022-2023 school year, the 
Madera County Board of Education and Madera County Superintendent of Schools has 
provided each pupil with sufficient textbooks and instructional materials aligned to the 
academic content standards and consistent with the cycles and content of the 
curriculum frameworks. 

ADOPTED by the following vote this 13th day of September 2022. 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSTAIN: 
ABSENT: 

Alfred Soares, Jr., President 



 
 

     
 

  

 

Cecilia A. Massetti, Ed.D. 
Superintendent of Schools 

Agenda Item 8.5.3 

Board of Education Action Item 
September 13, 2022 

Topic:
Consideration adoption of instructional materials for the Career and 
Alternative Education Services programs and Special Education programs 
in grades 9-12. 

Background: 
California Department of Education (CDE) requires districts and the 
county office to review and adopt basic instructional materials for pupils in 
grades 9-12 (EC 60422 (a), EC 60451). Materials must be adopted by the 
Board of Education. The materials are listed in Attachment A. 

For school year 2022-2023 only, MCSOS will establish an ad hoc 
committee for the purpose of ensuring adequate instructional materials-at 
all grade levels and to assist in the mainstreaming process, as well as 
equivalent courses taught by MCSOS employees. The committee will be 
comprised of up to three MCOETA teachers and up to three MCSOS 
appointees for a total of no more than six members. 

Financial Impact:
Budgeted as regular expenditures. 

Resource: 
Jessica Drake 
Executive Director 
Student Programs and Services 

Fred Cogan 
Executive Director 
Career and Alternative Education Services 

Recommendation: 
Approval of the attached list of textbooks and instructional materials for 
the use and purchase in Career and Alternative Education Services and 
Special Education Programs of the Madera County Superintendent of 
Schools for the 2022-2023 school year. 

1105 South Madera Avenue  Madera, CA 93637  (559) 673-6051  FAX (559) 673-5569 
www.mcsos.org 

www.mcsos.org


 
 

  
 

 
  

  
     

    
 

 
 

 
   
    

        
     

 
 

     
     
      
      

      
       

     
      

      
     

     
   

    
       

   
 

 
    

      
     

      
    

      
    

     
    

      
     

     
     
      

 

Attachment A 

Recommended Textbook Adoptions 
Madera County Superintendent of Schools 
Career and Alternative Education Services 

School Year 2022 – 2023 

Secondary Programs 

Book Title Publisher 
Write Ahead Great Source Education 

(Division of Houghton Mifflin) 
Inside Writing Program Great Source Education 

English/Language Arts
American Literature American Guidance Service, Inc. 
Basic English American Guidance Service, Inc. 
Basic English Composition American Guidance Service, Inc. 
Basic English Grammar American Guidance Service, Inc. 
English to Use American Guidance Service, Inc. 
English for the Work World American Guidance Service, Inc. 
Exploring Literature American Guidance Service, Inc. 
Life Skills English American Guidance Service, Inc. 
Preparing for Writing Tests American Guidance Service, Inc. 
World Literature American Guidance Service, Inc. 
Literature & Language Arts Holt, Rinehart and 
Winston Meeting the Challenge for English/Lang. Arts Pearson Education 
Vocabulary Connection Steck Vaughn 
California PASS Program Fresno County Office of Education 
Study Sync Mcgraw Hill Companies 

Mathematics 
Algebra American Guidance Service, Inc. 
Basic Math Skills American Guidance Service, Inc. 
Consumer Math American Guidance Service, Inc. 
Life Skills Math American Guidance Service, Inc. 
Geometry American Guidance Service, Inc. 
Math for the Work World American Guidance Service, Inc. 
Pre-Algebra American Guidance Service, Inc. 
Algebra I McDougal Littell 
Geometry McDougal Littell 
Meeting the Challenge for High School Math Pearson Education 
Working With Numbers Algebra Steck Vaughn 
Working with Numbers Refresher Books Steck Vaughn 
Algebra II Houghton Mifflin 
Algebra (Cyber High) Quantum Research and Evaluation 

1 



 
 

 
 

  
  

     
   

 
 

    
     

     
     
     

       
      

     
      

      
 

 
    
    
    

      
      
      

    
    

   
   

 
      

    
     

    
   

    
 

 
     

   
 

 
      

  
    

 
 

      
 

Attachment A 

Recommended Textbook Adoptions 
Madera County Superintendent of Schools 
Career and Alternative Education Services 

School Year 2022 – 2023 

Science/Health 
Biology 
Earth Science 
General Science 
Physical Science 
Discover Health 
Biology: Cycles of Life 
California PASS Program 
California Focus on Life Science 
Miller & Levine Biology *
Physical Science Concepts in Action 

Social/Science
Economics 
Economics 
Economics 
Modern World History
United States Government 
United States History
World Geography 
Guidance Service, Inc. World History 

American  Guidance  Service, Inc. 
American  Guidance  Service, Inc. 
American  Guidance  Service, Inc. 
American  Guidance  Service, Inc. 
American  Guidance  Service, Inc. 
American Guidance Service, Inc. 
Fresno County Office of Education 
Pearson  Prentice Hall 
Pearson  Prentice Hall 
Pearson Prentice Hall 

American Guidance Service, Inc. 
Pearson Learning Group 
Prentice Hall 
McDougal Littell
American Guidance Service, Inc. 
American Guidance Service, Inc. 
American 
American Guidance 

Service, Inc. Learning About Our United States Series American Guidance 
Service, Inc. History Quantum Research and 
Evaluation 
Americans: Reconstruction to 21st Century McDougal Littell 
World Geography- My World Interactive Pearson 
World History- The Modern World Pearson 
United States History-The 20th Century Pearson 
Economics-Principles in Action Pearson 
Civics- Magruder’s American Government Pearson 

English Language Development
Making Connections Heinle and Heinle 
Study Sync Mcgraw Hill Companies 

Visual/Performing Arts
Introduction to Theater Arts Meriwether Publishing Ltd. 

(by Suzi Zimmerman) 
Understanding Art Glencoe/McGraw-Hill 

* 

Life Skills/Job Skills/Career Education 
Skills for Independent Living Globe Fearon 

2 



 
 

 
 

  
  

     
   

 
      

    
 

 
  

 
 

    
 

      
      

 
 

 
 

  
      
    

 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Attachment A 

Recommended Textbook Adoptions 
Madera County Superintendent of Schools 
Career and Alternative Education Services 

School Year 2022 – 2023 

Life Skills Health American Guidance Service, Inc. 
Transitions Curriculum James Stansfield Co. (State Center 
Consortium) 
Everything You Need to Know to Score 
High on the Armed Services Vocational 
Aptitude Battery (ASVAB) (including all 
revisions and 
new versions) ARCO/MacMillan 
Career Cruising Online
Careers / Life Skills / CD Business Education Publishing 
Top Careers for 21st Century Business Education Publishing 

GED 
GED Exercises: 
Mathematics, Literature, Writing,
Sciences, Social Science (including all revisions 
and new versions) American Guidance Service, Inc. 
GED Preparation ARCO/MacMillan 

Online Learning 
Imagine Edgenuity (See attached list for complete course offerings) 

3 



 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
   
   
   
  
  
  
  
   
  
  
  
  
  

 
   
   
   
  
  
  
   
   
   
   
  
  
   
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
    
  
    
  
    
   
  
   

 
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
   
  
  

 
  

Attachment A 

Imagine Edgenuity 
2022-2023 California Course List 
Core Curriculum and Electives 

English Language Arts 
 English Language Arts 6 
 English Language Arts 7 
 English Language Arts 8 
 English 1 
 English 1 Accelerated 
 English 2 
 English 2 Honors 
 English 3/American Lit 
 English 3 Honors 
 English 4/British Lit 
 English 4 Honors 
 Expository Reading and Writing 
 Classic Novels and Author Studies 

Science 
 MS Life Science 
 MS Physical Science 
 MS Earth Science 
 Integrated Science 6 
 Integrated Science 7 
 Integrated Science 8 
 Biology 
 Biology Honors 
 Chemistry 
 Chemistry Honors 
 Chemistry in the Earth System 
 Chemistry in the Earth System Honors 
 Earth and Space Science 
 Physical Science 
 Physics 
 Physics Honors 
 Physics in the Universe 
 Physics in the Universe Honors 
 The Living Earth 
 The Living Earth Honors 

 Math 8 
 Accelerated Math 7/8 
 Grade 8 Algebra I 
 Grade 8 Mathematics I 

Mathematics (Continued) 
 Pre-Algebra 
 Supportive Algebra (year 1 of 2) 
 Supportive Algebra (year 2 of 2) 
 Algebra I 
 Algebra I Honors 
 Geometry 
 Geometry Honors 
 Algebra II 
 Algebra II Honors 
 Pre-Calculus 
 Pre-Calculus Honors 
 Mathematics I 
 Mathematics I Honors 
 Mathematics II 
 Mathematics II Honors 
 Mathematics Ill 
 Mathematics Ill Honors 
 Mathematical Analysis 
 Trigonometry 
 Statistics and Probability 

World Languages 
MIDDLE SCHOOL 
 Spanish I 
 French I 
 Chinese I 
 Latin I 
 Spanish II 
 French II 
 Chinese II 
 German II 

Mathematics  Latin II 
 Math 6 

HIGH SCHOOL  Math 7 
 Spanish I 

1 



 

 
 

  
  
  
  
  

  

 
 

  
  

 
  
  
  
  
  

 
   

 
   

  
  

 
  
   
   

 
  
  
  
  

 
  

 
  

 
 
 

  
  
  
   
   
   
  
   

  
   
  
   
  
  

 
  
   

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
  
  
  
  
  
   

 
 

  
  
  

 
   
  
   
  
  
  

 French I  French II 
 Chinese I 
 German I 
 Latin I 
 Spanish II 

Core Curriculum and Electives 
World Languages 
HIGH SCHOOL (Continued) 
 Chinese II 
 German II 
 Latin II 
 Spanish III 
 French III 

Social Studies 
 MS World History and Geography: 

Ancient Civilizations 
 MS World History and Geography: 

Medieval and Early Modern Times 
 MS United States History and 

Geography 
 Modern World History 
 Principles of American Democracy 
 Principles of American Democracy 

Honors 
 U.S. History and Geography 
 U.S. History and Geography Honors 
 World History, Culture, and Geography 
 World History, Culture, and Geography 

Honors 
 Civics and Citizenship* 

Advance Placement 
All AP courses except Computer Science 
Principles, English Literature and Composition, 
Environmental Science, Human Geography, 
Psychology, and Spanish require textbooks. 

 Biology 
 Calculus AB 
 Computer Science Principles 
 English Language & Composition 
 English Literature & Composition 
 Environmental Science 
 French Language & Culture 
 Human Geography 

 Psychology 
 Spanish Language & Culture 
 Statistics 
 U.S. Government & Politics 
 U.S. History 
 World History: Modern 

National Test Preparation 
 ACCUPLACER 
 ACT WORK KEYS 

National Test Preparation (Continued) 
 ACT 
 ASVAB (MATH, VERBAL, SCIENCE) 
 GED 
 HiSET 
 PSAT 
 SAT 
 TASC 

CALIFORNIA TEST PREPARATION 
 CAA Grade 11 Math 
 CAST Grade 8 Science 
 CAST HS Science 
 CHSPE Language 
 CHSPE Mathematics 
 CHSPE Reading 

General Electives 
MIDDLE SCHOOL 
 Digital Literacy 
 Online Learning & Digital Citizenship 
 Keyboarding and Applications 

HIGH SCHOOL 
 Art History I 
 Computer Applications: MS Office' 2016 
 Computer Science Principles 
 Contemporary Health 
 Economics 
 Economics Honors 

2 



 

 
 

  
   
   
  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 

  
 

   
   
   
   
  
   

  
  

  
  
  
    

  
  
   

 

   
   

 
  
  

 

 
  
 

 
  
  
  
  
   

  
  
   

 

 

 

 

 
 

  
 

 
  
 

 
  
  
  

  
  
   
   
  

 
    
  
  

  
  

  

 Environmental Science 
 Foundations of Personal Wellness 
 Intro to Communications & Speech I 
 Intro to Communications & Speech II 
 Introduction to Computer Science 
 Lifetime Fitness (semester) 
 Lifetime Fitness (full-year) 
 Literacy and Comprehension I 
 Literacy and Comprehension II 

 Linear Algebra 
 Psychology 
 Sociology 
 Strategies for Academic Success 
 Visual Arts 
 World Regional Geography (semester) 
 World Regional Geography (full year) 

CTE Electives can be added to concurrent or site licenses for an additional cost. 
Career Readiness 
 Career Explorations I 
 Career Explorations II 
 Career Explorations Ill 
 Career Explorations 
 Career Management 
 Career Planning and Development 

Career Clusters 
AGRICULTURE & NATURAL RESOURCES 
 Agribusiness Systems 
 Animal Systems 
 Food Products and Processing Systems 
 Introduction to Agriculture, Food, & 

Natural Resources 
 Plant Systems 
 Power, Structural, and Technical 

Systems 

ARTS, MEDIA, & ENTERTAINMENT 
 Fundamentals of Digital Media 

BUILDING & CONSTRUCTION TRADES 
 Construction Careers 
 Introduction to Careers in Architecture & 

Construction 

BUSINESS & FINANCE 
 Banking Services Careers 
 Business Computer Information 

Systems 
 Business Law 
 Financial Math 
 Introduction to Business and Finance 
 Introduction to Careers in Finance 
 Keyboarding and Applications 

 Personal Finance 
 Small Business Entrepreneurship 
 Technology and Business 

EDUCATION, CHILD DEVELOPMENT, & 
FAMILY SERVICES 
 Family and Community Services 
 Introduction to Careers in Education and 

Training 
 Introduction to Consumer Services 
 Introduction to Human Growth and 

Development 
 Introduction to Human Services 
 Personal Care Services 
 Teaching and Training Careers 

ENGINEERING & ARCHITECTURE 
 Engineering and Design 
 Engineering and Product Development 
 Introduction to STEM 
 Science and Mathematics in the Real 

World 
 Scientific Discovery and Development 
 Scientific Research 
 STEM and Problem Solving 

HEALTH SCIENCE & MEDICAL 
TECHNOLOGY 
 Careers in Allied Health 

3 



 

 
 

  
 

   
   
 

 
  
   

 
  
   
 

   

  
 

  
 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

   
 

 
   
 

 
   
  

   
 

 

 
   
    
  

  
 

  
  
  
  

  
 

  
   
  

  
  

  

 
  

 
  
  
  

 
   

 
 

    
 

  
  
    

 
 

 
 

 

 Health, Safety and Ethics in the Health 
Environment 

 Health Science Concepts 
 Health Science & Medical Technology 
 Introduction to Careers in the Health 

Sciences 
 Medical Terminology 
 Nursing: Unlimited Possibilities & 

Unlimited Potential 
 Nursing Assistant 
 Pharmacy Technician 
 Physicians, Pharmacists, Dentists, 

Veterinarians and Other Doctors 

 Public Health Discovering the Gig 
Picture in Heal 

 Public Health Discovering the Big 
Picture in Health Care 

 Therapeutics: The Art of Restoring and 
Maintaining Wellness 

Career and Technical Education 
CTE Electives can be added to concurrent or site licenses for an additional cost. 

Career Clusters (Continued) 
HOSPITALITY, TOURISM & RECREATION 
 Food Safety and Sanitation 
 Marketing and Sales for Tourism and 

Hospitality 
 Planning Meetings and Special Events 
 Sustainable Service Management for 

Hospitality & Tourism 
 D Transportation and Tours for the 

Traveler 

INFORMATION & COMMUNICATION 
TECHNOLOGIES 
 Computer Science Principles 
 Fundamentals of Computer Systems 
 Fundamentals of Programming and 

Software Development 
 Information and Communication 

Technology 
 Introduction to Coding 
 Introduction to Computer Science 
 Introduction to Information Technology 

Support 
& Services 

 Introduction to Network Systems 
 Microsoft Office Specialist 
 Network System Design 

 New Applications: Web Development in 
the 21st Century 

 Software Development Tools 

MARKETING, SALES, & SERVICES 
 Careers in Marketing Research 

PUBLIC SERVICES 
 Corrections: Policies and Procedures 
 Fire and Emergency Services 
 Forensics: Using Science to Solve a 

Mystery 
 Introduction to Careers in Government 

and 
Public Administration 

 Introduction to Law, Public Safety, 
Corrections, & Security 

 Law Enforcement Field Services 
 Legal Service 
 Security and Protective Services 

Transportation 
 Careers in Logistics Planning and 

management Services 
 Introduction to Careers in 

Transportation, Distribution, and 
Logistics 

4 



 

 
 

 
 

  
   

 
 

 
  

 
 

 
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

 

Attachment A 

Chowchilla Union High School District 
9-12 Core Curriculum List 

2022-2023 

Math I (SPED)
Pacemaker Algebra I (SPED) 
Pearson 

Math II (SPED)
Pacemaker Algebra I (SPED) 
Pearson 

AP Stats 
The Practice of Statistics 
Freeman 

Biology
High School Living Earth 
Discovery 

Biology (SPED)
High School Living Earth 
Discovery 

Biology Honors 9th 

High School Living Earth 
Discovery 

Pre-Calculus 
Precalculus with Limits (A Graphing Approach) 
Larson, Hostetler, Edwards 

Chemistry 
High School Chemistry 
Discovery 

Chemistry (SPED)
High School Chemistry 
Discovery 

Personal Finance 
Foundations in Personal Finance 
Ramsey Solution 

AP Biology
Campbell Biology in Focus 3rd Ed. 
Pearson 

1 



 

 
 

 
 

  
   

 
 

 
  

 
 

 
   

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

  
  

 
 

 
  
 

 
  

  
 

 
  

  
 

 
  

  
 

 
 

  
 

Attachment A 

Chowchilla Union High School District 
9-12 Core Curriculum List 

2022-2023 

AP Calculus AB/BC 
Calculus 
Prentice Hall 

AP Psychology
Myers' Psychology for AP 
Worth Publishers 

AP Chemistry
AP Edition Chemistry 
Brown ISBN 978-0-13-217508 

AP US History
The American Pagent 
Wadwworth Cengage Learning 

Miscellaneous 
The Video Collection Revealed 
Cengage 

Spanish I
Hasi Se Dice 1 
McGraw Hill 

Spanish II
Hasi Se Dice 2 
McGraw Hill 

Spanish III
Hasi Se Dice 3 
McGraw Hill 

AP Government 
Government in America 
Pearson 

Math I 
Mathematics 1 Common Core 
Pearson 

Math I (H) 
Mathematics 1 Common Core 
Pearson 

2 



 

 
 

 
 

  
   

 
 

  
  

 
 

 
  

 
 

 
  

 
 

 
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

  
 

 
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

 
 

  
   

 
 

  
 

 

Attachment A 

Chowchilla Union High School District 
9-12 Core Curriculum List 

2022-2023 

Math II 
Mathematics 2 Common Core 
Pearson 

Math II (H) 
Mathematics 2 Common Core 
Pearson 

Math III 
Mathematics 3 Common Core 
Pearson 

Math III (H) 
Mathematics 3 Common Core 
Pearson 

MRWC 
Pre-Calculus with Limits (A Graphing Approach) 
Larson, Hostetler, Edwards 
Pearson 

Digital Media Prod 
Adobe Design Collection Revealed 
Cengage Learning 

AP European
History Western Civilization 
Cengage Learning 

Psychology 
Psychology in Everyday Life 
BFW 

English 9 (H)
California Collections: Grade 9 

English 10
My Perspectives 10th Grade 
Savvas 

English 10 (H)
California Collections: Grade 10 

3 



 

 
 

 
 

  
   

 
 

  
 

 
 

  
 

 
 

  
 

 
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

   
 

 
 

   
 

 
  

 
 

 
  

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
   

 

Attachment A 

Chowchilla Union High School District 
9-12 Core Curriculum List 

2022-2023 

English 11
My Perspectives 11th Grade 
Savvas 

English 12
My Perspectives 12th Grade 
Savvas 

English 9
My Perspectives 9th Grade 
Savvas 
Sustain Ag (H)
The Science of Agriculture a Biological Approach 
Cengage Learning 

Sustain Ag Bio 
The Science of Agriculture a Biological Approach 
Cengage Learning 

Civics 
Magruder's American Government 
Prentice Hall 

Civics (SPED)
Magruder's American Government 
Prentice Hall 

Academic Decathlon 
Academic Decathlon Resource Guides 
United States Academic Decathlon 

Anatomy/Phys
Fundamentals of Anatomy and Physiology Eleventh Edition 
Pearson 

AP Lang Comp
Ideas in Argument 
BFW 

Music Keyboard
Music, an Appreciation : Roger Kamien: Alfred's Basic Adult Course Piano level 1 
McGraw-HIll : Alfred's Publishing 

4 



 

 

 
 

  
   

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
   
  

  
 

 
 

   
  

  
 

 
  

 
   

 
 

   
 

 
  
 

 
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
  

 

Attachment A 

Chowchilla Union High School District 
9-12 Core Curriculum List 

2022-2023 

AP Eng Lit
The Norton: Introduction to Literature 
Norton 

Art I 
Art Talk -3rd edition (33) 
Art Talk -4th edition (34) 
Art in Focus (71) 
Glencoe/McGraw-Hill 

Art II 
Art Talk -3rd edition (33) 
Art Talk -4th edition (34) 
Art in Focus (71) 
Glencoe/McGraw-Hill 

Ag Comm
Modern Manners and Habitudes 
Potter Style and National FFA 

AP Spanish
Temas y Triángulo Aprobado 
Vista Higher Learning and Wayside Publishing 

Economics 
Economics 
Pearson 

English 9/10 (SPED)
My Perspectives 9th/10th Grade 
Savvas 

English 11/12 (SPED)
My Perspective 11th/12th Grade 
Savvas 

Gen Math 1-3 (SPED)
Global Learning Book 
Pearson 

Miscellaneous 
The Office-38 copies 2007 5th edition 978-0-538-44354-8 

5 



 

 
 

 
 

  
   

 
 

  
    

 
 

    
  

  
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

 
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Attachment A 

Chowchilla Union High School District 
9-12 Core Curriculum List 

2022-2023 

Miscellaneous 
A Little History of the World 41 copies 978-0-300-19718-1 

Physics (H)
Holt McDougal Physics Textbook - Student Edition 
ISBN: 0547586698 
Holt McDougal 

Power Mech 2 
iCEVOnline.com 
Delmar 

World History
IMPACT: World History 
McGraw Hill 

United States History
IMPACT: US History 
McGraw Hill 

World History (SPED)
IMPACT: World History 
McGraw Hill 
United States History (SPED)
IMPACT: US History 
McGraw Hill 

Introduction to Business 
Foundations of Business 
Cengage 

Introduction to Marketing
Essentials of Marketing 
McGraw Hill 

Public Safety 1
Introduction to Criminal Justice 
McGraw Hill 

Public Safety 2
Street Law 
McGraw Hill 

6 

https://iCEVOnline.com


 

 
 

 
 

  
   

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Attachment A 

Chowchilla Union High School District 
9-12 Core Curriculum List 

2022-2023 

CTE Health and Medicine 
Healthcare: Science Technology 
McGraw Hill 

SPED English
iLit (Supplemental) 
Savvas 

English Language Development
iLit/My Perspectives Companion Workbook 
Savvas 

7 



 
 

 

 
 

  
 

 
 
 

 
 

    
     

  
 

 
 

     
  

 
 

 
      

   
 

 
   

     
  

 
 

 
    

  
  

 
         
   

 
 

  
    

  
       

 
 

      
  

 
 

 
 

 
 
  

Attachment A 

Madera Unified School District 
9-12 Core Curriculum List 

2022-2023 

English Department 

English I & Enhanced English I (9th): 
StudySync California Edition w/Designated ELD 
McGraw Hill Book Co., 2016 
Adopted May 24, 2016 

English II (10th): 
StudySync California Edition w/Designated ELD 
McGraw Hill Book Co., 2016 
Adopted May 24, 2016 

Honors English II (10th): 
Advanced Language & Literature 
Bedford, Freeman & Worth, 2016 
Adopted January 25, 2022 

English III & Honors English III (11th):
StudySync California Edition w/Designated ELD 
McGraw Hill Book Co., 2016 
Adopted May 24, 2016 

AP Language (11th):
Language of Composition: Reading, Writing, Rhetoric 
Bedford/St. Martin’s, 2008 
Adopted July 17, 2007 

The Bedford Reader 
Bedford/St. Martin’s, 11th Edition, 2012 
Adopted March 28, 2000 

Expository Reading & Writing Course (ERWC) (12th):
Expository Reading & Writing Course, Third Edition 
California State University Online Press, 2019 
Adopted May 26, 2009 

AP Literature (12th):
Perrine’s Literature: Structure & Sense 
Harcourt Brace, 10th & 11th eds., 2009 & 2017 
Adopted March 28, 2000 

English 1A Dual Enrollment (12th)
The Blair Reader: Exploring Issues and Ideas 
Pearson, 9th Edition, 2016 

1 



 
 

 

 
 
  

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

  
     

 
 

 
    

     
 

 
 

   
     

 
 

 
    

    
 

  
   

 
      

  
           

 
 

              
 

 
 

  
             

  
  

 
 

 
  

           
 

 
 
 

Attachment A 

Madera Unified School District 
9-12 Core Curriculum List 

2022-2023 

Mathematics Department 

Integrated Math I & Enhanced Integrated Math I (9th):
Springboard Mathematics – Integrated Mathematics I (accessed digitally) 
The College Board, 2014 
Adopted April 29, 2014 

Integrated Math II & Enhanced Integrated Math II (10th):
Springboard Mathematics – Integrated Mathematics II (accessed digitally) 
The College Board, 2014 
Adopted April 29, 2014 

Integrated Math III & Honors Integrated Math III (11th): 
Springboard Mathematics – Integrated Mathematics III (accessed digitally) 
The College Board, 2014 
Adopted April 29, 2014 

Mathematical Reasoning With Connections (MRWC) (12th):
Mathematical Reasoning with Connections, 1st Edition 
California State University Online Press, 2019 
Adopted March 26, 2019 

AP Calculus AB/BC (12th): 
Calculus of a Single Variable/Calculus with Analytical Geometry, 9th Ed. 
Brooks/Cole Cengage Learning, 2010 
Adopted June 29, 2010 

Statistics & Probability (12th):
Understanding Statistics, 8th Edition 
Houghton Mifflin Harcourt, 2006 
Adopted May 14, 2006 

AP Statistics (12th):
The Practice of Statistics, 5th Edition 
Bedford, Freeman & Worth, 2014 
Adopted June 26, 2014 

Social Science Department 

World History (10th):
California World History: The Modern World 
Pearson, 2019 
Adopted May 8, 2018 

2 



 
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

 
 

 
    

  
            

  
 

 
 

     
 

 
 

 
      

 
 

 
       

   
 

 
   

               
 

 
 

  
              

 
 

 
  

  
 

 
 

  
       

 
 

 
 

     
 

 
 
 

Attachment A 

Madera Unified School District 
9-12 Core Curriculum List 

2022-2023 

AP European History (10th):
A History of European Society Since 1300 
Bedford/St. Martins, 2011 
Adopted June 11, 2013 

US History (11th): 
California United States History: The Twentieth Century 
Pearson, 2019 
Adopted May 8, 2018 

AP US History (11th): 
The American Pageant: History of a Republic, 13th ed. 
Houghton-Mifflin, 2006 
Adopted May 8, 2008 

US History Dual Enrollment (11th):
American History: Connecting with the Past, Vol. 1 
McGraw Hill, 2014 

Civics (American Government) (12th):
California Magruder’s American Government 
Pearson, 2019 
Adopted May 8, 2018 

Economics (12th):
California Economics: Principles in Action 
Pearson, 2019 
Adopted May 8, 2018 

AP Human Geography (9-12th):
The Cultural Landscape: An Introduction to Human Geography, 13th Ed. 
Savvas (Pearson), 2020 
Adopted June 23, 2020 

AP American Government (12th):
American Government: Stories of a Nation 
BFW Publishers, 2021 
Adopted May 24, 2022 

AP Comparative Government (12th):
Essentials of Comparative Politics with Cases, 7th Edition 
W.W. Norton & Company, 2021 
Adopted June 8, 2021 

3 



 
 

 

 
  

 
 

 
 

 
       

 
 

 
 

 
  

     
 

 
 

      
      

 
 

 
   

         
  

              
 

 
         

 
  

 
    

       
 

 
 

  
     

   
                  

 
 

               
 

  
 

 
       

 
 

 

Attachment A 
Madera Unified School District 

9-12 Core Curriculum List 
2022-2023 

AP Microeconomics (12th):
Krugman’s Economics, 3rd Edition 
BFW Publishers, 2019 
Adopted June 8, 2021 

Science Department 

The Living Earth/AG Biology (9th):
Open Source: The Living Earth Student Edition 
Printshop, 2021 
Adopted June 22, 2021 

Chemistry in the Earth Systems/Honors Chemistry in the Earth Systems/Agriculture Chemistry (10th): 
Experience Chemistry, Volumes 1 & 2 
Savvas, 2021 
Adopted June 22, 2021 

Physics of the Universe (11th):
Honors Physics, 6th Edition 
Pearson Prentice Hall 2005 
Adopted May 14, 2006 

AP Biology (11-12th):
Principles of Life, 2nd Edition 
WH Freeman & Company, 2014 
Adopted May 26, 2015 

AP Chemistry (11-12th):
Chemistry: The Central Science, 14th Edition 
Savvas (Pearson), 2018 
Adopted June 23, 2020 

Human Anatomy & Physiology (11-12th):
Mader’s Understanding Human Anatomy & Physiology 
McGraw Hill, 6th & 10th eds., 2008 & 2019 
Adopted August 14, 2007 

Honors Human Anatomy & Physiology (11-12th): 
Human Anatomy & Physiology, 7th Edition 
Pearson, 2007 
Adopted July 17, 2007 

AP Environmental Science (11-12th):
Environmental Science for AP, 2nd Ed. 
WH Freeman & Company, 2015 
Adopted May 26, 2015 

4 



 
 

 

 
 
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
          

 
 

 
   

          
 

 
 

  
          

 
 

 
   

            
 

 
 

   
          

 
 

 
   

           
 

 
 

 
           

 
 

 
 

          
 

 
 

 
          

 
 

Attachment A 

Madera Unified School District 
9-12 Core Curriculum List 

2022-2023 

World Language 

Spanish I:
Encuentros 1 
Vista Higher Learning, 2022 
Adopted May 24, 2022 

Spanish II:
Encuentros 2 
Vista Higher Learning, 2022 
Adopted May 24, 2022 

Spanish III:
Encuentros 3 
Vista Higher Learning, 2022 
Adopted May 24, 2022 

Spanish for Heritage Speakers I: 
Galeria 1 
Vista Higher Learning, 2020 
Adopted May 24, 2022 

Spanish for Heritage Speakers II: 
Galeria 2 
Vista Higher Learning, 2020 
Adopted May 24, 2022 

AP Spanish Language:
Temas 
Vista Higher Learning, 2020 
Adopted May 24, 2022 

AP Spanish Literature:
Temas 
Vista Higher Learning, 2020 
Adopted May 24, 2022 

French I-IV: 
D’accord 
Vista Higher Learning, 2019 
Adopted May 24, 2022 

French I: 
D’accord 1 
Vista Higher Learning, 2019 
Adopted May 24, 202 

5 



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

 
 

 
 

 
          

 
 

 
 
          

 
 

 
 

          
 

 
 
 
 

French II: 
D’accord 2 
Vista Higher Learning, 2019 
Adopted May 24, 2022 

French III: 
D’accord 3 
Vista Higher Learning, 2019 
Adopted May 24, 2022 

AP French: 
Themes 
Vista Higher Learning, 2022 
Adopted May 24, 2022 

Attachment A 

Madera Unified School District 
9-12 Core Curriculum List 

2022-2023 

6 



 

   
                                  

     
 

  
 

    
  

 
   

  
 

  
     

 
  

       
  

 
 

  
   

 
   

 
 

   
 

    
       

 
 

 
 

  
 

 
    

  
 

Cecilia A. Massetti, Ed.D. 
Superintendent of Schools 

Agenda Item 8.6 

Board of Education Action Item 
September 13, 2022 

Topic:
2022-2023 Consolidated Application 

Background:
The Madera County Superintendent of Schools normally submits the first 
part of the Consolidated Application (Con App) by June 30th each year. The 
Con App is an application for federal funds and the submission of several 
reports. This year the application period was not opened until August 1 so it 
has been completed and brought to this meeting instead of an earlier 
meeting. 

The second part of the Con App is submitted in February. Federal funds are 
distributed to sites based on the information in Part II. 

Attached is the application for federal funds of the Consolidated Application, 
which shows funding sources MCSOS programs request.  A complete 
application packet is available upon request. 

Fiscal Impact:
The MCSOS programs received approximately $858,836 in federal 
entitlements in 2021-2022 for Title I Part A, Title I Part D, and Title II Part A.  

Resource: 
Julie DeWall 
Chief Officer 
Business and Administrative Services 

Recommendation: 
Approval of the submission of the application for funds and receipt of funds 
through the Consolidated Application, for 2022-2023. 

1105 South Madera Avenue  Madera, CA 93637  (559) 673-6051  FAX (559) 673-5569 
www.mcsos.org 

www.mcsos.org


California Department of Education Consolidated Application 

Madera County Superintendent of Schools (20 10207 0000000) Status: Draft 
Saved by: Fred Cogan 

Date: 8/11/2022 1:14 PM 

2022–23 Application for Funding 

CDE Program Contact: 
Consolidated Application Support Desk, Education Data Office, ConAppSupport@cde.ca.gov, 916-319-0297 

Local Governing Board Approval 

The local educational agency (LEA) is required to review and receive approval of their Application for Funding 
selections with their local governing board. 

By checking this box the LEA certifies that the Local Board has approved 
the Application for Funding for the listed fiscal year 

Yes 

District English Learner Advisory Committee Review 

Per Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations Section 11308, if your LEA has more than 50 English learners, 
then the LEA must establish a District English Learner Advisory Committee (DELAC) which shall review and 
advise on the development of the application for funding programs that serve English learners. 

By checking this box the LEA certifies that parent input has been received 
from the District English Learner Committee (if applicable) regarding the 
spending of Title III funds for the listed fiscal year 

No 

Application for Categorical Programs 

To receive specific categorical funds for a school year, the LEA must apply for the funds by selecting Yes below. 
Only the categorical funds that the LEA is eligible to receive are displayed. 

Title I, Part A (Basic Grant) 

ESSA Sec. 1111 et seq. 
SACS 3010 

Yes 

Title I, Part D Subpart 2 (Delinquent) 

ESSA Sec. 1401 
SACS 3025 

Yes 

Title II, Part A (Supporting Effective Instruction) 

ESEA Sec. 2104 
SACS 4035 

Yes 

Title III English Learner 

ESEA Sec. 3102 
SACS 4203 

No 

Title III Immigrant 

ESEA Sec. 3102 
SACS 4201 

No 

Title IV, Part A (Student and School Support) 

ESSA Sec. 4101 
SACS 4127 

Yes 

***Warning***
The data in this report may be protected by the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) and 

other applicable data privacy laws. Unauthorized access or sharing of this data may constitute a 
violation of both state and federal law.

Report Date:9/6/2022 
R02 

Page 1 of 1 

mailto:ConAppSupport@cde.ca.gov


  
 

  
 
 

 
 

  
 

  
  

 
 

  
  

 
  

 
 

  
  
 

 
 

 

  
   

  
 

 
  

    

  
  

     
   

   
 

  
  

Cecilia A. Massetti, Ed.D. 
Superintendent of Schools 

Agenda Item 8.7 

Board of Education Action Item 
September 13, 2022 

Topic:
LCAP Update: Clarification on Minimum Proportionality Percentage 
(MPP) calculation 

Background:
Per a California Department of Education (CDE) Local Control 
Accountability Plan (LCAP) review, Madera County Superintendent of 
Schools (MCSOS) was advised to evolve the current Local Control 
Funding Formula (LCFF) to now include the Operations Grant as part of 
the Projected LCFF Base Grant. In doing so, the Projected Percentage to 
Increase or Improve Services, also referred as the Minimum 
Proportionality Percentage (MPP) changed. This change is being made 
for all 58 county offices of education. 

Incorporating the Operations Grant into the MCSOS existing LCFF 
formula results in value changes to several figures in the Increased or 
Improved Services for Foster Youth, English Learners, and Low-Income 
Students (2022-23) section found on page 82 including: 

Projected Percentage to Increase or Improve Services for the Coming 
School Year change from 53.68% to 4.18%, 

LCFF Carryover-Percentage change from 18.92% to 1.62%, 

Total Percentage to Increase or Improve Services for the Coming 
School Year change from 72.60% to 5.80% 

Also, new values in the 2022-2023 Contributing Actions Table found on 
page 92 resulted in the following changes: 

Item 1: Projected LCFF Base Grant change from $376,210 to 
$4,827,601 

Item 3: Projected Percentage to Increase or Improve Services for the 
Coming School Year change from 53.68% to 4.18% 



      
 

  
 

 
   

   
 

   
  

   
 

  
   

    

 
   

 
  

    

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Total Percentage to Increase or Improve Services for the Coming School Year 
change from 72.60% to 5.80% 

Planned Percentage to Increase or Improve Services for the Coming School 
Year change from 83.24% to 6.49% 

Furthermore, changes to the 2021-2022 LCFF Carryover Table found on Page 99 
were necessary, as the LCFF Carryover Percentage automatically populates to the 
2022-2023 Contributing Actions Table (LCFF Carryover Percentage from Prior 
Year). Those changes include: 

Item 9: Estimated Actual LCFF Base Grant change from $390,427 to $4,565,322. 
Of these funds $390,427 are available for program expenditures, the $4,565,322 
in funding is designated to provide base services and oversight duties for 
districts. For example, technology, business, educational services, human 
resources, etc. along with monitoring and technical assistance requirements. 

Item 10: Total Percentage to Increase or Improve Services for the Current School 
Year change from 53.64% to 4.59% 

Item 11: Estimated Actual Percentage of Increased of Improved Services change 
from 34.72% to 2.97% 

Item 13: LCFF Carryover decreased from 18.92% to 1.62% 

Financial Impact:
None 

Resource: 
Frederick Cogan 
Executive Director 
Career Alternative Education Services (CAES) 

Recommendation: 
Approve 

1105 South Madera Avenue  Madera, CA 93637  (559) 673-6051  FAX (559) 673-5569 
www.mcsos.org 

www.mcsos.org


 
 

  
 

 

 
 

   
 

  
 

  
  

 
 

   
  

 
  

 

 

   
 

 
  

LCFF Budget Overview for Parents 
Local Educational Agency (LEA) Name: Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor/Voyager) 
CDS Code: 20102070000000 
School Year: 2022-23 
LEA contact information: 
Hugo Sanchez 
Program Director - Career/Alternative Education Services 
hsanchez@mcsos.org 
(559) 662-6211 
School districts receive funding from different sources: state funds under the Local Control Funding Formula 
(LCFF), other state funds, local funds, and federal funds. LCFF funds include a base level of funding for all LEAs 
and extra funding - called "supplemental and concentration" grants - to LEAs based on the enrollment of high 
needs students (foster youth, English learners, and low-income students). 

Budget Overview for the 2022-23 School Year 

This chart shows the total general purpose revenue Madera County Superintendent of Schools 
(Endeavor/Voyager) expects to receive in the coming year from all sources. 

The text description for the above chart is as follows: The total revenue projected for Madera County 
Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor/Voyager) is $52,851,434, of which $12,740,361 is Local Control Funding 
2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor/Voyager) Page 1 of 121 

mailto:hsanchez@mcsos.org


 
 

  
 

 
     

  
  

Formula (LCFF), $16,612,759 is other state funds, $13,374,624 is local funds, and $10,123,690 is federal funds. 
Of the $12,740,361 in LCFF Funds, $201,954 is generated based on the enrollment of high needs students 
(foster youth, English learner, and low-income students). 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor/Voyager) Page 2 of 121 



 
 

  
 

 
 

    
   

  
 

 

 
   

 
 

 

  
 

  

 
 

        
 

 
  

 

 
 

  
    

 
 
 

LCFF Budget Overview for Parents 
The LCFF gives school districts more flexibility in deciding how to use state funds. In exchange, school districts 
must work with parents, educators, students, and the community to develop a Local Control and Accountability 
Plan (LCAP) that shows how they will use these funds to serve students. 

This chart provides a quick summary of how much Madera County Superintendent of Schools 
(Endeavor/Voyager) plans to spend for 2022-23. It shows how much of the total is tied to planned actions and 

services in the LCAP. 

The text description of the above chart is as follows: Madera County Superintendent of Schools 
(Endeavor/Voyager) plans to spend $48,482,228 for the 2022-23 school year. Of that amount, $1,099,112 is tied 
to actions/services in the LCAP and $47,383,116 is not included in the LCAP. The budgeted expenditures that 
are not included in the LCAP will be used for the following: 

Total GF Budget is $48,482,228 and of that total $47,383,116 is not included (Restricted-$16,387,714) 
$12,277,268 Special Education - $2,893,157 ESSA COE and other restricted, Special Ed Mental Health 
$1,217,289. STRS on Behalf ($1,110,689) due to restricted programs county offices operate on a county-wide or 
regional bases. General operations of Human Resources, Info. Services, Business Services, 
Operations/Facilities and General Administration total $29,884,713 and are also not included.  

Increased or Improved Services for High Needs Students in the 
LCAP for the 2022-23 School Year 

In 2022-23, Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor/Voyager) is projecting it will receive $201,954 
based on the enrollment of foster youth, English learner, and low-income students. Madera County 
Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor/Voyager) must describe how it intends to increase or improve services for 
high needs students in the LCAP.  Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor/Voyager) plans to 
spend $313,155 towards meeting this requirement, as described in the LCAP. 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor/Voyager) Page 3 of 121 



 
 

  
 

  

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor/Voyager) Page 4 of 121 



 
 

  
 

 
 

 

 

 
  

  
 

 
 

  
 
  

LCFF Budget Overview for Parents 

Update on Increased or Improved Services for High Needs 
Students in 2021-22 

This chart compares what Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor/Voyager) budgeted last year in 
the LCAP for actions and services that contribute to increasing or improving services for high needs students with 

what Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor/Voyager) estimates it has spent on actions and 
services that contribute to increasing or improving services for high needs students in the current year. 

The text description of the above chart is as follows: In 2021-22, Madera County Superintendent of Schools 
(Endeavor/Voyager)'s LCAP budgeted $134,536 for planned actions to increase or improve services for high 
needs students. Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor/Voyager) actually spent $135,552.25 for 
actions to increase or improve services for high needs students in 2021-22. 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor/Voyager) Page 5 of 121 



 
 

  

 

 
 

   
 

       
       

 
      

 
 

 
  

    
 

 
      

 

 
 

  
 

 
 

 

  
  

 
 

 
  

 
 

 

    
  

 

 
 

  

Supplement to the Annual Update to the 2021–22 Local Control and 
Accountability Plan 
Local Educational Agency (LEA) Name Contact Name and Title Email and Phone 
Madera County Superintendent of Schools 
(Endeavor/Voyager)     

Mr. Hugo Sanchez - Program Director    hsanchez@mcsos.org     
(559) 662-4640 

California’s 2021–22 Budget Act, the federal American Rescue Plan Act of 2021, and other state and federal relief acts have provided local 
educational agencies (LEAs) with a significant increase in funding to support students, teachers, staff, and their communities in recovering 
from the COVID-19 pandemic and to address the impacts of distance learning on students. The following is a one-time mid-year report to the 
local governing board or body and educational partners related to engagement on, and implementation of, these Acts. 
A description of how and when the LEA engaged, or plans to engage, its educational partners on the use of funds provided through the 
Budget Act of 2021 that were not included in the 2020–21 Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP). 

MCSOS did not receive additional funds through the Budget Act of 2021 that were not already included in the 2021-22 LCAP at the time of 
adoption. Educational partners were engaged regarding the use of all funds included in the 2021-22 MCSOS Local Control and Accountability 
Plan (LCAP) during the initial LCAP adoption process. 

A description of how the LEA used, or plans to use, the additional concentration grant add-on funding it received to increase the number of 
staff who provide direct services to students on school campuses with an enrollment of students who are low-income, English learners, and/or 
foster youth that is greater than 55 percent. 

MCSOS did not receive the additional 15% supplemental and concentration grant add-on funds. 

A description of how and when the LEA engaged its educational partners on the use of one-time federal funds received that are intended to 
support recovery from the COVID-19 pandemic and the impacts of distance learning on pupils. 

CAES and Student Programs staff members were surveyed using a Google Survey and a meeting was held at Gould Educational Center.  
Some staff felt the additional assessment days prior to the start of school helped with an efficient start to the year given teachers were able to 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor/Voyager) Page 6 of 121 



 
 

  

 
 

 

 
 

   
 

 
   

  
 

  
    

  
   

 
 

  
    

  
 

    
  

 
 

   
   

 
  

   
  

     
  

 
 
 

establish needed academic baselines for planning instruction. Staff members also supported the need for an outdoor learning space at the 
Gould Center. 

On September 28,2021, the Executive Director of Student Programs and Services met with the Community Advisory Committee.  LEA 
partners were in attendance.  She shared with the members proposed activities and solicited input and feedback on proposed expenditures.  
The LEA's educational partners agreed with the plan and expressed strong support of the outdoor learning center at the Gould Center which 
serves the students with the most significant disabilities in Madera County. 

On October 4, 2021, the MCSOS Superintendent of Schools met with the Interagency Youth and Children Services Council Executive 
Committee.  In attendance were MCSOS, Madera County Behavioral Health. Madera County Department of Public Health, Madera County 
Probation and Madera County Courts.  The superintendent presented the plan and highlighted the Community Resource Center. She 
explained the purpose of the center and who would benefit from its services.  The council was also very supportive of the plan. 

On October 8, 2021, the Executive Director of Student Program and Services communicated with a tribal representative from the Native 
American community.  In this discussion of ESSER III funds, the tribal representative focused on the educational needs of Native American 
students. Concerns she shared included the ongoing need for social-emotional support for students as they return back to school and from 
possible periods of quarantine, and extra time with students was a good idea as well. Both concerns can be addressed through the 
Community Resource Center. 

On October 8, 2021, the Executive Director of Career and Alternative Education Services met with the Pioneer Technical Center Leadership 
class. Students received a presentation on the ESSER III plan and gave their input following that presentation.  The students gave many 
suggestions including more time with teachers for struggling learners and tutors or a resource center for help with school work. These 
suggestions were incorporated into the plan.  Teachers are able to spend more time with students through the extra professional 
development/assessment days that have been added at the beginning of the school year.  Tutors will be available at the Community Resource 
Center after its opening. 

On October 25, 2021, the Executive Director of Career and Alternative Education communicated with a representative of the California Rural 
Legal Assistance, Inc., a local advocacy group for students of color and low-income families, to discuss the ESSER III plan. This 
representative also represents the Coalition for Community Justice and Padres Unidos for the Madera community. The representative 
provided feedback to the ESSER III plan on October 29, 2021, and included praise for the “substantive content of the plan,” expressed 
concerns for the hardships students and families have experienced at the hands of the COVID-19 Pandemic, and the learning difficulties 
students have experienced, as well. Further, the representative added that funds must be used to close the gap created by learning loss 
during the pandemic due to reduced instructional hours, and the weakened bond between student and teacher. Additionally, consideration 
must be given to 1:1 tutoring, enrichment, and mental wellness due to the pandemic-induced trauma students have experienced. These 
concerns have been addressed in the ESSER III plan through the concept of the Community Resource Center and the Project Lifeguard 
program being initiated with staff and students starting with school year 2021-2022. 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor/Voyager) Page 7 of 121 



 
 

  

 
 

   
 

 
 

  
 

 
  

 
 

 
  

 
 

 
     

 
   

  
 

  
 

 
    

      
    

   
 

 
  

     
 

    
 

 

A description of how the LEA is implementing the federal American Rescue Plan Act and federal Elementary and Secondary School 
Emergency Relief expenditure plan, and the successes and challenges experienced during implementation. 

The Madera County Superintendent of Schools adopted a plan for a safe return to schools in March 2021. In this plan, the LEA outlined clear 
guidelines for the safe return of all MCSOS students and staff. This plan is monitored and evolving, and MCSOS staff is working directly with 
Madera County Department of Public Health and California Department of Public Health. Components of the plan include, but are not limited 
to, Personal Protective Equipment (PPE) for all staff and students, health and safety protocols training for all staff members, and continual 
communication with educational partners throughout this pandemic. The link to the complete plan is provided below: 

https://www.mcsos.org/cms/lib/CA01001244/Centricity/Domain/4/8.2%20REOPENING%20PLAN%20ADA.pdf 

The Madera County Superintendent of Schools approved the ESSER III plan on December 2021 and its link is listed below: 

https://www.mcsos.org/cms/lib/CA01001244/Centricity/Domain/4/MCSOS%20Approved%20ESSER%20III%20Ependiture%20Plan.pdf 

A description of the implementation of the ESSER III plan includes the following actions, successes and challenges. 

1) Establishing a community resource center: As of 5/17/22, MCSOS personnel are working with an architect to access the needs and develop 
a remodeling plan for one of the existing MCSOS buildings that will serve as the community resource center. This process is successfully 
moving forward as MCSOS has identified a Project Manager who is working on plans for the building to be remodeled. Inherent challenges to 
this project at this given time would include potential supply chain issues with building materials including increased inflationary costs of said 
building materials. 

2) Replacing Gould playground to create a new outdoor learning center: MCSOS personnel has developed an outdoor learning center plan, 
secured a contractor and ordered materials for a July 2022 installation. This outdoor learning center is planned to be ready for students in the 
2022-23 school year. This action to date has proven successful because plans are solidified and underway. Inherent challenges could include 
late building material delivery, thus affecting project completion prior to the beginning of school. 

3) Providing lifeguard training: MCSOS has been working with Seity Health on the Lifeguard Initiative through Stanislaus County Office of 
Education. A Leadership "Go" Team, or training group was established and has delivered training to administrators and internal classified 
personnel, completed in April 2022. Teachers and students will be trained in Fall of 2022 for full implementation of the program. This action 
has proven successful as two employee groups have undergone appropriate training and using the Seity Health Lifeguard Initiative. At this 
time, no challenges have been identified to this action. 

4) Providing COVID-19 testing for staff and students: A mandatory COVID-19 testing monitoring program has been implemented for all 
unvaccinated employees of the Madera County Superintendent of Schools. This weekly program currently monitors approximately 100 
2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor/Voyager) Page 8 of 121 

https://www.mcsos.org/cms/lib/CA01001244/Centricity/Domain/4/8.2%20REOPENING%20PLAN%20ADA.pdf
https://www.mcsos.org/cms/lib/CA01001244/Centricity/Domain/4/MCSOS%20Approved%20ESSER%20III%20Ependiture%20Plan.pdf


 
 

  

   
  

 
   

 
   

    
  

 
    

 
  

  
  

 
 

 

 
  

 
 

   
    

     
 

 
    

 
  

 
 

   
 

 

employees. All students and staff have been provided home test kits several times throughout the year as an additional precautionary safety 
measure to prevent the spread of COVID-19. This action proved successful to help prevent/mitigate the spread of COVID-19 amongst staff 
and students of MCSOS schools. Potential challenges include spikes of COVID-19 positive cases and people not taking the appropriate 
COVID-19 protocols preventing the spread of COVID-19. 

5) Adding additional days to instructional calendar: For school year 2021-22, MCSOS successfully negotiated with union partners for the 
addition of 4 additional days for the purposes of assessing the academic impact of lost instructional time by administering academic 
assessments prior to the start of school. This action proved successful given staff members were able to academically assess students prior to 
the beginning of the 2021-22 school year in an effort to mitigate any learning loss as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic in school year 2020-
21. Additionally, 2 days were provided for professional development for all staff notably in the areas of SEL and core content curricula. At this 
time, no challenges have been identified to this action. 

6) Providing hotspots, devices and services: To help socio-economically disadvantaged students with technological needs such as hotspots, 
Chromebooks and Wifi service fees, MCSOS has provided these items for all students. These items have been utilized directly in instruction 
on a daily basis. This action proved successful as a continuation of the current 1:1 technology plan for all students. At this time, 2 challenges 
have been identified including the limited technological life-span of a Chromebook (2-3 years) and continued replacement cost of those 
devices. 

A description of how the LEA is using its fiscal resources received for the 2021–22 school year in a manner that is consistent with the 
applicable plans and is aligned with the LEA’s 2021–22 LCAP and Annual Update. 

The LEA is using its fiscal resources received for the school year 2021-22 to support students and teachers during the COVID-19 pandemic. 
Action Plans were developed and fiscal resources were utilized during this time period. These following plans were aligned to the LEAs' LCAP 
to address the needs of these of students: The Learning Continuity Plan (LCP) The Safe Return to Schools Plan and the Elementary 
Secondary School Emergency Relief (ESSER III) plan. The ESSER plan specifically aligns to the MCSOS LCAP in the following goals and 
actions: 

Goal 1 - Juvenile Hall (Endeavor/Voyager) students will stay on track and become college and career ready through state adopted standards 
instructions. Actions 1, Address on-going Professional Development needs, 6, Improving academic proficiency of SED Students on SBAC 
Math and ELA assessments, and 9 all SED students to make academic progress as measured by i-Ready assessments. 

Goal 2 - MCSOS will provide resources and services to  improve the social-emotional well-being of each student and provide a safe 
environment conducive to learning. Actions: 1 - Maintaining a low Teacher to Student Ratio, 2 - Providing Counseling Presentations,4 - 
Maintaining access to technology and 7 - Maintaining a positive Environment. 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor/Voyager) Page 9 of 121 



Goal 3 - Increase parent involvement by developing meaningful partnerships and participation, Actions: 1 - Build CAES Foster and Homeless 
parent/caregiver capacity to support the educational and social-emotional needs of youth, and 4 - Increase the number of parents attending 
school events. 

Goal 4 - Facilitate the county-wide coordination of services for the educational success of students in foster care. Actions: 1 Build the LEA's 
capacity to support the educational needs of Foster Youth, 3 - Develop and coordinate college and career readiness and awareness support 
services and activities, and 5, Build caregiver capacity to support the educational and social-emotional needs of Foster Youth. 

Instructions for the Supplement to the Annual Update for the 2021–22 Local 
Control and Accountability Plan Year 

 
 

   

    
   

  
 

 
     

     
 
 
 

 

 

   
 

 
 

   
  

 

 
 

 
  

  
    

     
   
      

    
   

 
    

   
   

 
 
 

 

For additional questions or technical assistance related to the completion of the Supplement to the Annual Update to the 2021–22 Local 
Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP), please contact the local county office of education (COE), or the California Department of Education’s 
(CDE’s) Local Agency Systems Support Office, by phone at 916-319-0809 or by email at lcff@cde.ca.gov. 

Introduction 

California’s 2021–22 Budget Act, the federal American Rescue Plan Act of 2021, and other state and federal relief acts have provided local 
educational agencies (LEAs) with a significant increase in funding to support students, teachers, staff, and their communities in recovering 
from the COVID-19 pandemic and to address the impacts of distance learning on students. Section 124(e) of Assembly Bill 130 requires LEAs 
to present an update on the Annual Update to the 2021–22 LCAP and Budget Overview for Parents on or before February 28, 2022, at a 
regularly scheduled meeting of the governing board or body of the LEA. At this meeting, the LEA must include all of the following: 

• The Supplement to the Annual Update for the 2021–22 LCAP (2021–22 Supplement); 
• All available mid-year outcome data related to metrics identified in the 2021–22 LCAP; and 
• Mid-year expenditure and implementation data on all actions identified in the 2021–22 LCAP. 

When reporting available mid-year outcome, expenditure, and implementation data, LEAs have flexibility to provide this information as best 
suits the local context, provided that it is succinct and contains a level of detail that is meaningful and accessible for the LEA’s educational 
partners. 
The 2021–22 Supplement is considered part of the 2022–23 LCAP for the purposes of adoption, review, and approval, and must be included 
with the LCAP as follows: 

• The 2022–23 Budget Overview for Parents 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor/Voyager) Page 10 of 121 

mailto:lcff@cde.ca.gov


 
 

   

  
  
    
  

 
  

 

 
   

  
   

 
 

  
   

 
       

   
 

    
    

 
   

 
  

  
 

 
 

 
  

    
   

    
 

  
   

 
 
 
 

• The 2021–22 Supplement 
• The 2022–23 LCAP 
• The Action Tables for the 2022–23 LCAP 
• The Instructions for the LCAP Template 

As such, the 2021–22 Supplement will be submitted for review and approval as part of the LEA’s 2022–23 LCAP. 

Instructions 
Respond to the following prompts, as required. In responding to these prompts, LEAs must, to the greatest extent practicable, provide succinct 
responses that contain a level of detail that will be meaningful and accessible for the LEA’s educational partners and the broader public and 
must, to the greatest extent practicable, use language that is understandable and accessible to parents. 

In responding to these prompts, the LEA has flexibility to reference information provided in other planning documents. An LEA that chooses to 
reference information provided in other planning documents must identify the plan(s) being referenced, where the plan(s) are located (such as 
a link to a web page), and where in the plan the information being referenced may be found. 

Prompt 1: “A description of how and when the LEA engaged, or plans to engage, its educational partners on the use of funds provided 
through the Budget Act of 2021 that were not included in the 2020–21 Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP).” 

In general, LEAs have flexibility in deciding what funds are included in the LCAP and to what extent those funds are included. If the LEA 
received funding through the Budget Act of 2021 that it would have typically included within its LCAP, identify the funds provided in the Budget 
Act of 2021 that were not included in the LCAP and provide a description of how the LEA has engaged its educational partners on the use of 
funds. If an LEA included the applicable funds in its adopted 2021–22 LCAP, provide this explanation. 

Prompt 2: “A description of how LEA used, or plans to use, the concentration grant add-on funding it received to increase the number of staff 
who provide direct services to students on school campuses with an enrollment of students who are low-income, English learners, and/or 
foster youth that is greater than 55 percent.” 

If LEA does not receive a concentration grant or the concentration grant add-on, provide this explanation. 

Describe how the LEA is using, or plans to use, the concentration grant add-on funds received consistent with California Education Code 
Section 42238.02, as amended, to increase the number of certificated staff, classified staff, or both, including custodial staff, who provide 
direct services to students on school campuses with greater than 55 percent unduplicated pupil enrollment, as compared to schools with an 
enrollment of unduplicated students that is equal to or less than 55 percent. 

In the event that the additional concentration grant add-on is not sufficient to increase the number of staff providing direct services to students 
at a school with an enrollment of unduplicated students that is greater than 55 percent, describe how the LEA is using the funds to retain staff 
2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor/Voyager) Page 11 of 121 



 
 

   

 
 

     
  

 
 

 
 

   
    

   
 

  
 

    
   

 
   

 
   

  
 

  
  

 
     

    
   

 
 

 
 

providing direct services to students at a school with an enrollment of unduplicated students that is greater than 55 percent. 

Prompt 3: “A description of how and when the LEA engaged its educational partners on the use of one-time federal funds received that are 
intended to support recovery from the COVID-19 pandemic and the impacts of distance learning on pupils.” 

If the LEA did not receive one-time federal funding to support recovery from the COVID-19 pandemic and the impacts of distance learning on 
students, provide this explanation. 

Describe how and when the LEA engaged its educational partners on the use of one-time federal funds it received that are intended to support 
recovery from the COVID-19 pandemic and the impacts of distance learning on students. See the COVID-19 Relief Funding Summary Sheet 
web page (https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/cr/relieffunds.asp) for a listing of COVID-19 relief funding and the Federal Stimulus Funding web page 
(https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/cr/) for additional information on these funds. The LEA is not required to describe engagement that has taken place 
related to state funds. 

Prompt 4: “A description of how the LEA is implementing the federal American Rescue Plan Act and federal Elementary and Secondary 
School Emergency Relief expenditure plan, and the successes and challenges experienced during implementation.” 

If an LEA does not receive ESSER III funding, provide this explanation. 

Describe the LEA’s implementation of its efforts to maintain the health and safety of students, educators, and other staff and ensure the 
continuity of services, as required by the federal American Rescue Plan Act of 2021, and its implementation of the federal Elementary and 
Secondary School Emergency Relief (ESSER) expenditure plan to date, including successes and challenges. 

Prompt 5: “A description of how the LEA is using its fiscal resources received for the 2021–22 school year in a manner that is consistent with 
the applicable plans and is aligned with the LEA’s 2021–22 LCAP and Annual Update.” 

Summarize how the LEA is using its fiscal resources received for the 2021–22 school year to implement the requirements of applicable plans 
in a manner that is aligned with the LEA’s 2021–22 LCAP. For purposes of responding to this prompt, “applicable plans” include the Safe 
Return to In-Person Instruction and Continuity of Services Plan and the ESSER III Expenditure Plan. 

California Department of Education 
November 2021 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor/Voyager) Page 12 of 121 

https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/cr/relieffunds.asp
https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/cr/


 
 

   

 

 
 

 
 

      
 

       
        

 

      
 

 

 
 

 
 

   
 

   
 

  
  

 
  

 
  
     
   

  
  
  
  

 
 

  
 

  
   

 

Local Control Accountability Plan 
The instructions for completing the Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP) follow the template. 

Local Educational Agency (LEA) Name Contact Name and Title Email and Phone 
Madera County Superintendent of Schools 
(Endeavor/Voyager)     

Hugo Sanchez    
Program Director - Career/Alternative Education 
Services 

hsanchez@mcsos.org     
(559) 662-6211 

Plan Summary [2022-23] 

General Information 
A description of the LEA, its schools, and its students in grades transitional kindergarten–12, as applicable to the LEA. 

The Vision of the Madera County Superintendent of Schools (MCSOS) is "Enhancing the quality of life through education." 

The mission of the Madera County Superintendent of Schools, is to identify and provide programs, services and resources for the benefit of 
students, families, school districts and agencies in the Madera Community and the Madera County Community at large. 

Believing that all students can learn, MCSOS: 

• Supports teachers, schools, and districts in their efforts to foster student success 
• Values caring teachers with high professional standards who are supported with meaningful professional development 
• Advocates, supports, and reinforces civic and personal values in students such as responsibility, mutual respect, tolerance, honesty, 

integrity, compassion, critical thinking, problem solving skills, and a strong work ethic 
• Supports rigorous academic and vocational curriculum toward student achievement for college and career readiness 
• Supports students to become nurturing, committed, caring, and connected adults 
• Develops meaningful partnerships and active family participation in their student’s education 

The Madera County Superintendent of Schools (MCSOS) serves students in Juvenile Hall (Endeavor) or the Cadet Academy (Voyager) in 
Madera County. 

The goal of MCSOS's Career and Alternative Educational (CAES) Services is to assist students in returning to their districts of residence by 
encouraging them to attend school on a regular basis, to earn passing grades with a “C” or better in all classes, and to be model citizens. 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor/Voyager) Page 13 of 121 



 
 

   

  
  

     
  

 

  
 

 
 

  
    

 
   

 

 
 

  

   
   

 
  

   
    

 
  

  
   

   
  

 
    

   
     

It is estimated that approximately 20-25 students will be enrolled in Endeavor/Voyager programs at any one time, but more than 100 students 
over the course of the year. Enrollment fluctuates due to the student population served, and given the effects of the COVID-19 pandemic, 
enrollment numbers declined in the previous year. Since July 1st, enrollment has climbed from pandemic numbers. Demographically, 
approximately 68% of students are Hispanic, 8% White, 5% African American, 5% American Indian, and 14% other or declined to state. 
Currently 29% of students enrolled in Endeavor/Voyager are English Learners (EL) with Spanish being the primary language spoken in the 
home. 100% of students participate in the school lunch program as wards of the court. Approximately 17% of the students have identified 
special needs. Of these students identified, the majority enter Alternative Education programs with existing Individualized Education Plans 
(IEPs). Service delivery models include general education teachers that provide one-on-one instruction, small group, and whole classroom 
instruction. Additionally, special education staff support student learning in an inclusive setting. Instructional strategies and actions/services 
are implemented that benefit all student groups including those specifically identified in this document. 

All students have access to instructional materials aligned to the California State Standards. Teachers' professional development focuses on 
continued implementation of the Common Core State Standards (CCSS) through appropriate instructional strategies and materials. 
Alternative Education programs have been successful in helping students with credit recovery and graduating with a high school diploma. 
These instructional achievements are more appropriate and realistic for students served. Currently, students in alternative education 
programs do not participate in either the Early Assessment (EAP) or Advanced Placement (AP) programs. 

As stated above, the student population of the correctional facility is highly transient. Typically, students are enrolled anywhere from a few 
days to 60 days in Endeavor School, and from four to six months in the Voyager Program. As such, many state metrics are not available for 
alternative schools. Given the short term placement in these programs, the educational goal is to maintain progress on core coursework and 
address gaps in educational credits in order to achieve a high school diploma, either in the correctional facility program or, once released, in 
their district of residence or county program. Students who would need access to University of California (UC) approved courses or 
Advanced Placement can be accommodated on an individual basis online. However, as an alternative school, the school does not receive 
school AP or UC completion rates for purposes of accountability. Additionally, the school does review State testing scores in ELA and Math, 
with a focus on needs of students who are low income, foster youth, English Learners and special needs students, and receives Dashboard 
Alternative School Status (DASS) results for academic indicators in English Language Arts and Math, Suspension rates, Graduation rates, 
EAP, College and Career Indicators, and will soon start receiving DASS reports for English Learner Progress. The schools in Juvenile Hall 
and the Cadet Academy do not expel students; thus there is no expulsion rate. School attendance is mandatory, so attendance rates are 
very high and there is not a student drop-out rate during the student’s time in the correctional facility programs. As an alternative school, 
graduation rates are not calculated on a four-year graduation cohort, however, the programs are accountable for graduation rates on a one-
year cohort basis. In order to have a better measure of the one year cohort, academic counselors have grade-level reclassified students 
according to credits earned instead of years in school. Gathering data form California School Dashboard is challenging, since not enough 
students are eligible for state assessments, which are administered once during high school, or as in the case of English Learners 
Proficiency Assessments of California (ELPAC), yearly for EL students until reclassified. 

Attendance rates are routinely high for both Endeavor and Voyager programs. All students are required to attend school which is closely 
monitored by juvenile probation. If a student is unable to be a part of the classroom, instruction is provided to that student through alternative 
means. Working closely with other county agencies such as Madera County Probation Department and Madera County Behavioral Health 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor/Voyager) Page 14 of 121 



 
 

   

  
 

  
         

 

   
 

 
 
 

 
 

  
 

 

 
 

   
  

 
   

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

 
 

 
  

 

leads to increased student success. 

Partnering with the nine school districts within county, MCSOS strives to ensure that all foster youth have access to the same educational 
rights and resources as all other students. Any youth residing in the county who is officially in the foster care system or in out-of-home care is 
eligible to receive services from MCSOS that emphasize Training, Education, Advocacy, and Mentorship (TEAM). Working collaboratively 
with Madera County Probation Department, Madera County Department of Social Services, Local Education Agencies (LEA), Foster Family 
Agencies (FFA), and the local community college, specific services for foster youth include case management, academic counseling, life 
skills training, vocational education, and self-advocacy training. Goals of the foster youth program are to increase stability and to improve 
student engagement and student outcomes. 

Reflections: Successes 
A description of successes and/or progress based on a review of the California School Dashboard (Dashboard) and local data. 

The Endeavor/Voyager staff had been delivering in-person instruction prior to the start of the 2020-21 schoolyear; which was the middle of 
the COVID-19 pandemic. The Endeavor/Voyager staff had utilized the social-emotional training they received on during the COVID-19 
pandemic. Madera County Superintendent of Schools and Madera County Behavioral Health department provided multiple professional 
development opportunities and focused on the social-emotional needs of staff and students during, and continuing after, the pandemic. 
Because of these trainings, the MCSOS staff has been able to better address the needs of students, and better utilizing referrals to the 
school psychologist and the Student Success Team (SST) to help develop supports for struggling students. This year has shown an increase 
in these notifications and local mental health experts anticipate long lasting social and emotional impacts, long after the conclusion of the 
pandemic. It is these ongoing and continued needs that drive the continued learning and acquisition of resources to support the social-
emotional needs of incarcerated students. 

One great success for Endeavor/Voyager students has been the implementation of i-Ready assessments for ELA and Math.  Aside from 
providing data on subskill strengths and areas of growth, i-Ready also assigns individualized prescriptive lessons to support each student's 
progress toward grade-level proficiency.  Since the enrollment at Endeavor/Voyager is relatively small, Dashboard data is not available, as 
very few enrolled students are required to take state assessments for students in grades, 7, 8, and 11. 

Teachers accessing professional development was an identified need for increasing student achievement for the 2021-22 school year. This 
goal was met with weekly professional growth and development including, but not limited to, i-Ready curriculum and development, 
mathematics content and pedagogical and SEL training for all teachers. 

Instructional technology, including Chromebooks, were provided to all Endeavor/Voyager students for the 2021-22 schoolyear. MCSOS will 
continue to prioritize access to technology for all students allowing for greater access to curriculum resources and online assessments.  
Professional development for the 2021-22 school year both focused and targeted grade level deficiencies in Mathematics experienced by our 
students. 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor/Voyager) Page 15 of 121 



 
 

   

 
  

 
 

 
 

 
  

 
 

 
 

 
  

    
 

   
 

 
    

 
  

 

  
 

   
 

 
  

   
  

         
 

All instructional materials 9-12 are aligned to the California Common Core State Standards (CCSS). 

All teachers are appropriately credentialed. 

The suspension rate for Endeavor/Voyager continues to remain lower than the state average. 

Endeavor English Language Arts teacher participated in monthly ELD network with other CAES ELD  teachers. 

Academic Counselor met with all Endeavor students (15 days or longer) and completed individual progress plans and career assessment 
surveys. Counselor also assisted interested graduating high school students with matriculation process at Madera Community College 
including FAFSA process. 

Academic Counselor updated all student credit evaluations, maintained effective communication with home districts to ensure all proper 
courses were assigned and any students enrolled more than 15 days, earned partial credits. 

A daily list was maintained for all students on an IEP and each student worked with an RSP teacher, with assistance from an Instructional 
Assistant, to receive academic support. 

Provided Common Core State Standards aligned curriculum in the areas of ELA and ELD. 

Endeavor English Language Arts teacher participated in vetting and selection of new standards-aligned social studies curriculum. 

All Endeavor/Voyager students have been better prepared for SBAC success as students have taken formative 1 and 2 assessments prior to 
the summative SBAC. 

Eight Endeavor/Voyager students completed the virtual welding class in the Fall semester 2021. 

The Student Information System (SIS) for Endeavor/Voyager, indicates an attendance rate of 99.8%.  StudySync, a new supplemental 
curriculum for ELA, with online access was implemented in school year 2020-21 and teachers provides academic supports for students to 
continue to grow toward English Language proficiency to be demonstrated on SBAC and ELPAC assessments.  In addition, this curriculum 
supports ELD students in Endeavor/Voyager. 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor/Voyager) Page 16 of 121 



 
 

   

 
 

  
  

 

 
 

 
 

 

    
 

 
 

   
    

  
   

 
 

  
 

  
 

 
 

    
 

    
   

  
   

         
 

Reflections: Identified Need 
A description of any areas that need significant improvement based on a review of Dashboard and local data, including any areas of low 
performance and significant performance gaps among student groups on Dashboard indicators, and any steps taken to address those areas. 

An identified need at Endeavor/Voyager is the increase in use on an online curriculum platform to offer A-G courses, credit recovery options, 
and CTE offerings that align with home districts. To address this area of need, a new online program will be incorporated for schoolyear 
2022-23. 

Another identified need is increased English Language proficiency of EL students. Steps taken to address this area of need include 
designated ELD curriculum and instructional model, an Endeavor/Voyager teacher participating and collaborating with the ELD PLC, two 
professional staff development days with MCSOS ELA/ELD Program Director and usage of LAS Links formative assessment tool to identify 
English proficiency in the domains of reading, writing, speaking and listening. 

As indicated from the most recent i-Ready formative assessment 3 (Spring 2022) Endeavor/Voyager students showed significant deficits in 
ELA and Mathematics performance. Only 6% percent of all students were on grade level and 94% were two or more years below grade level 
in ELA; specifically in comprehension of informational text. For mathematics, 0% of students tested were on grade level and 100% were one 
grade levels or more below grade level. To address this area of need for greater success in ELA and Math, continued intensive and targeted 
instructional interventions are needed for these students. In addition, the new StudySync ELA/ELD supplemental curriculum has been 
implemented to address student literacy skills and staff is receiving ongoing professional development for ELA/ELD instructional practices. 

Career Technical Education course completion is also an area for needed growth for Endeavor/Voyager students, even though the majority 
of students are enrolled for fewer than 30 days.  To address this need, access was created to an Introduction to Welding course. This 
increased access to CTE instruction introduced students to a career offering.  The CAES LCAP Survey administered in January 2022, 
indicated that 26.3% of students were interested in welding as a CTE pathway, which will justify maintaining this course pathway. However, 
additional CTE courses will be provided using new online curriculum. Expanding CTE offerings will contribute to students approaching 
college and career readiness. 

Although most students are assessed through i-Ready upon entering Juvenile Hall and prior to their release, several students have not been.  
This year has shown greater challenges for assessing, because safety precautions for COVID-19 did not allow access to students for at least 
14 days. To address this need, increased communication with correctional staff continues to be paramount. 

According to a supervising mental health clinician from Madera County Behavioral Health Services, the students in alternative education 
programs, specifically those in Juvenile Hall, are at "ground zero" in terms of needing trauma informed practices and SEL best practices. 
The effects on these students as a result of the pandemic are unknown, but indications are that the impact of the COVID-19 Pandemic will be 
long-lasting and require extensive interventions. 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor/Voyager) Page 17 of 121 



 
 

   

 
 

  
 

  
  

 
 

  
 

  
 

 
    

 
 

     
 

    
    

    
   

     

  
 

 
 

    
  

 
   

   
 

 
  

 

LCAP Highlights 
A brief overview of the LCAP, including any key features that should be emphasized. 

The 2022-23 LCAP is written with input from members of each educational partnership group of Madera County Superintendent of Schools. 
Educational partnership input aligns with the 2021-22 goals. MCSOS will continue focusing on efforts to support all students and increased 
efforts will be made to focus on the specific needs of foster or homeless youth, English Learners, and socio-economically disadvantaged 
(SED) students, representing 100% of the Endeavor/Voyager student population. These three goals also address the ten state priorities, 
which are: 1) Student Achievement, 2) Student Engagement, 3) Student Outcomes, 4) School Climate, 5) Parent Involvement, 6) Basic 
Services, 7) Implementation of the Common Core State Standards, 8) Course Access, 9) Expelled Youth, and 10) Foster Youth. 

Several key features listed in MCSOS's LCAP for the 2021-22 school year included: Social-Emotional Foundational awareness for teachers 
and students, improved academic supports in Math, targeted academic support in ELA, and CTE pathway enrichment and completion. 

Goal 1: Juvenile Hall (Endeavor/Voyager) students will stay on track to becoming college and career ready through state adopted standards 
instructions. 

Key actions in the LCAP supporting this goal include increasing grade-level on i-Ready ELA and math assessments through targeted, 
accelerated interventions, improved academic support, access to CTE introductory courses, and low teacher to student ratios. Virtual welding 
will continue be available to students in the Cadet Academy (Voyager), which will support students acquiring technical skills and facilitate 
transition into CTE courses at their districts of residence.  While COVID-19 forced instruction to move to a Distance Learning model for most 
of the 2020-21 school year, MCSOS was prepared to bring all students back on site for direct instruction and optimizing the time spent with 
students while supporting students' social-emotional learning needs.  A key outcome from distance learning was the use of a variety of 
instructional strategies and feedback to ensure optimized learning opportunities and drive instructional decisions. Those outcomes will be the 
foundation that MCSOS will build on as those students return to classrooms for seat-based instruction.  To support these changes; 
professional development in the area of Mathematics was planned and conducted throughout the year to support increased student 
achievement through improving instructional practices. Keeping the student to teacher ratio low is imperative for students to receive 
differentiated instruction that meets their individual needs. 

Goal 2: MCSOS will provide resources and services to improve the social-emotional well-being of each student and provide a safe 
environment conducive to learning. 

Moving into the 2022-23 school year, while MCSOS is unsure of the specific social-emotional needs of staff and students, planned 
professional development will be assisted by CAES staff and Madera County Behavioral Health Department, to help in identifying and 
supporting student needs through this awareness of local supports.  Educational partnerships with both internal and external sources provide 
the support and resource platform that will be built upon. This is key to learning and growth for Juvenile Hall students as we provide support 
for the whole child, knowing that if students do not feel physically and emotionally "safe," learning will not occur.  As the COVID-19 pandemic 
created educational challenges and the need for Distance Learning, students' social-emotional well-being was at the forefront of most 
professional growth and staff development. 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor/Voyager) Page 18 of 121 



 
 

   

 
   

 
 

 
    

 
   

     
 

  
    

      
 

   
 

     
 

  
    

   
  

   
   

 
 

     
 

 
  

         
 

Goal 3: Increase parent involvement by developing meaningful partnerships and participation. 

The emphasis on building and maintaining stronger family and community engagement, will continue with local community partnerships, 
parent-teacher conferences, parent academic and informational workshops and continued correspondence through ParentSquare. An 
additional emphasis will be building stronger family and community engagement. COVID-19 provided MCSOS an opportunity to evaluate and 
refine its communication protocols with teachers, correctional staff, parents, and administration. These protocols for communication have 
been transferred over into the new school year and will be continuously improved moving forward. Parent workshops are being planned to 
help with current and future needs for students ranging from transition support, and attendance policies and requirements for college 
enrollment and financial aid. Providing external learning opportunities such as visiting a business or college, historical sites and museums, 
and community volunteer experiences will help in developing more well-rounded students.  The involvement of parents in the educational 
process of students who are incarcerated can present unique challenges. To improve this involvement, staff will make positive contacts with 
parents which will be monitored and documented through communication log templates. As students prepare to transition from the 
correctional facility, staff members will conduct transitional meetings that will include the student, his/her parents/guardians, teachers, 
counselors, and probation officer. To improve parent participation on formal and informal committees, staff will make personal contacts 
through phone calls or face to face meetings to encourage involvement.  The Career and Alternative Education Services (CAES) Division's 
combined School Site Council (SSC) has created greater opportunities for students, parents, and correctional/probation staff to provide 
valuable input in the decision-making and approval process for specific funding. 

Goal 4: Facilitate the county-wide coordination of services for the educational success of students in foster care. 

The Madera County Superintendent of Schools (MCSOS) will continue its high commitment to serving foster youth within the county. MCSOS 
will take the lead in the coordination of services for foster youth throughout the county with various agencies in the county including, but not 
limited to, Madera County Department of Social Services and Local Education Agencies (LEA). Meetings and trainings will be conducted for 
the foster youth parents to provide them with information that will assist children in their care as they participate in school, and prepare to exit 
the foster youth program. A greater emphasis will be placed on providing services to students who are identified as foster youth that attend 
school in the correctional facility which will include increased counseling as appropriate, FAFSA completion, and reviewing a community 
college matriculation process. 

Goal 5: Facilitate the county-wide coordination of services for the educational success of students in foster care. 

Working with nine (9) districts, MCSOS maintains the countywide collaborative process for developing and revising plans to address the 
educational services for expelled youth including offering charter school options. 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor/Voyager) Page 19 of 121 



 
 

   

 
 

  
 

 
 

       
 

 
  

   
     

  
 

 
   

  
 

 
 

    
     

  
         

 

 
 

  
 

  
        

    
    

    
 

 
   

   
 

  
 

Comprehensive Support and Improvement 
An LEA with a school or schools eligible for comprehensive support and improvement must respond to the following prompts. 

Schools Identified 
A list of the schools in the LEA that are eligible for comprehensive support and improvement. 

The Gould Educational Center services students from the nine different school districts that make up Madera County in regionalized 
programs for students with moderated to severe disabilities. Students with identified special needs from preschool to age 22 participate in the 
Gould Educational Center programs. These students are served in Special Day Classes at various locations including regular education 
school sites and a center based educational site. The students served by the Gould Educational Center may have severe cognitive 
disabilities, significant emotional and behavioral needs, or may be students who are deaf/hard of hearing. For the majority of the students, 
academic achievement is measured by the California Alternate Assessment (CAA) as well as their progress and attainment of individual 
goals and objectives developed by their Individualized Education Plan (IEP). In addition to their specialized academic instruction, students 
often receive additional designated services such as speech/language therapy, occupational therapy, deaf/hard of hearing services, services 
for the visually impaired, orientation and mobility services, specialized health care, behavior intervention services and adapted physical 
education. 

Gould Educational Center was identified for Comprehensive Support and Improvement (CSI) based on a graduation rate below 67%. In lieu 
of official California School Dashboard graduation rate data for 2020, The Madera County Superintendent of Schools used local California 
Longitudinal Pupil Achievement Data Systems (CALPADS) data to determine a graduation rate of 16.7% for a diploma and 26.7% for a 
diploma and Certificate of Completion. 

Support for Identified Schools 
A description of how the LEA has or will support its eligible schools in developing comprehensive support and improvement plans. 

Again, the Gould Educational Center serves students who have moderate to severe disabilities. Many of the students who attend Gould have 
severe cognitive delays in addition to significant medical or emotional and behavioral needs that require the intensive service by the 
restrictive nature of the Gould Educational Center special day classes. For the majority of the students served by Gould academic 
achievement is measured by the California Alternate Assessment (CAA) and progress on individual IEP goals. MCSOS is a service provider 
for the nine school districts within Madera County and as students are able to move to a lesser restrictive environment, students are referred 
back to their district of residence. 

Using the Dashboard results and data from our many sites, Gould Educational Center educational partners identified areas for improvement. 
Staff from the Madera County Superintendent of School, our LEA, were involved in every step of developing the CSI Plan and the LEA’s 
Local Control and Accountability Plan. The comprehensive school-level needs assessment was facilitated by the LEA, and completed by 
looking at both state and local school data, survey data, and consultations with stakeholders, including staff and parents. 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor/Voyager) Page 20 of 121 



 
 

   

  
  

  
 

  
  

  
 

 
  

    
 

 
 

   
  

     
 

 
  

 
 

    
     

     
   

   
 

 

 
 

 
 

Our LEA and educational comprehensive needs assessment followed the Improvement Science model, including: an initial goal setting 
meeting; a deep data dive following the 2019 Dashboard release to better understand our challenges and the systems of cause; and a root 
cause analysis in order to focus our collaborative efforts and identify drivers. 

As mentioned previously, all students served by the Gould Educational Center have an Individualized Education Plan (IEP). IEP teams meet 
yearly to discuss present levels, progress on goals, new goals, services and placement.  Parents are integral members of an IEP team and 
play a major role in the development of their child’s IEP. This open and ongoing communication allows for frequent feedback from parents 
and guardians. 

Educational Partner input has been an important aspect of providing services to our students. The Gould Educational Center established a 
School Site Council in 2019 to help address the requirements of CSI. The School Site Council will annually review and provide feedback on 
the SPSA and LCAP. 

Additional suggestions were gathered from student and parent empathy surveys that were developed through the CSI Improvement Plan 
development process. Each of the Program Directors interviewed students and parents soliciting specific feedback on targeted areas. Each 
of the Program Directors interviewed a selection of students and parents. Parents were contacted via phone and students were interviewed 
in person. Interviewees were asked to answer a variety of questions about how they feel about their teacher or their child’s teacher and how 
they are supported at school. Parents were asked additional questions about how to increase potential parent involvement and what type of 
activities they feel would be beneficial at the school for their child. Staff feedback is gathered annually via survey, in addition to monthly 
meetings with Program Directors. 

Based on educational partner feedback, various interventions were identified to address the student outcomes, school climate, and 
conditions of learning. Those interventions include continued and increased support to new and veteran teachers. In past years, the Gould 
Educational Center has employed high numbers of new teachers who are teaching on a Short-Term Staff Permit (STSP) or a Provisional 
Internship Permits (PIP). These teachers are just entering intern programs and therefore are not yet eligible for an Induction Program. In an 
effort to support and grow these new teachers the Madera County Superintendent of Schools has created a new teacher Professional 
Learning Coach Program. New teachers are paired with veteran teachers who meet set criteria. These veteran teachers go through an 
application and interview process prior to being selected and paired with a new teacher. The Professional Learning Coaches receive a 
$2,000 stipend for the year and work with no more than two new teachers. These Professional Learning Coaches communicate regularly with 
their new teachers throughout the school year. They also provide opportunities for classroom observations, the new teachers observing in 
their Professional Learning Coaches classrooms and the Professional Learning Coaches observing in their new teachers’ classrooms. 
Debrief and discussion follow each classroom observation. In addition to the support of the Professional Learning Coach, newly hired 
teachers also attend an additional day of training prior to the start of the school year. New staff learn about the Madera County 
Superintendent of Schools and the students served by the Gould Educational Center in addition to various trainings designed to meet the 
needs of new teachers such as, classroom management, working with instructional assistants, classroom set up and introductory information 
about Individualized Education Plans (IEPs). 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor/Voyager) Page 21 of 121 



 
 

   

   
   

  
   

   
     

   
 

  
   

  
   

 
   

 
   

 
 

   
  

 
   

  
  

  
   

 
     

   
 

 
    

   
 

 

In addition to the Professional Learning Coach Program, teachers are encouraged to attend a variety of professional learning opportunities, 
such as SELPA sponsored trainings, Diagnostic Center trainings, MCSOS IT Department trainings, and any outside trainings that have been 
preapproved by administration. Strong teachers provide students with an engaging and rigorous education and professional development 
allows educators to hone their skills as professionals. The Gould Educational Center provides a wide spectrum of services for students with 
moderate to severe disabilities. With such a wide variety of services being offered, professional development opportunities may need to look 
different to meet the various needs of the staff. Teachers are able to attend trainings sponsored by the Special Education Local Plan Area 
(SELPA), which are local, trainers are brought into work with the Gould Educational Center Staff and staff is able to attend approved outside 
trainings as well. Professional development strengthens the teaching skills of the staff working with the students in the Special Day Classes. 

One of the mandates of an Individualized Education Plan (IEP) is that the student be educated in the least restrictive environment. Staff is 
always working towards preparing students for the next least restrictive environment, which may be an integrated school site, mainstreaming 
with typically developing peers or possibly even returning to their district of special education accountability or district of residence. It is 
important for teachers to be familiar with what environment students are working toward. Understanding the skills students will need to be 
successful in the next less restrictive environment allows teachers to be even more intentional about goal setting and the creation of teaching 
opportunities. Classroom observations allow teachers to see the actual environment that their student may entering; this allows them to see 
how to most appropriately prepare them for their new classroom setting. Teachers also benefit from observing fellow educators who have 
successful classroom practices. Program Directors are able to set up observations, which allow teachers to learn from their peers. All 
observations are followed with discussion about what was observed and how they might incorporate those strategies into their own practices 
as a classroom teacher. Obviously during school closures was unable to visit other classrooms. MCSOS continues to work with the district of 
residence for students to determine placement and during this time have completed joint assessments and observations of students in the 
virtual classrooms. Once this type of activities safely becomes an opportunity again, observations will resume. Until then staff will continue to 
adjust as needed and as they are able to do so. 

The Madera County Superintendent of Schools operates programs for students who have met the criteria for special education services in 
the areas of deaf/hard of hearing. Many of these students have average cognition and are working toward a high school diploma. One 
student has chosen to participate in the afterschool Upward Bound Program. The Upward Bound Program is designed to increase the 
student completion of high school and enroll in and graduate from postsecondary education. Sign language interpreters are utilized for these 
college and career readiness opportunities. This student is currently in his senior year of high school. 

The Comprehensive Support and Improvement (CSI) funds will also allow the Madera County Superintendent of Schools to add to the 
technology that is already in place in the Gould Educational Center classrooms. Using past CSI funds, the Gould Educational Center has 
increased the amount of technology in the classroom substantially. Classrooms have received iPads and Chromebooks for individual student 
use. From the 2021-2022 school year the CSI funds were used to increase and upgrade classroom technology as well. Technology plays a 
major role in education in this ever-increasing digital world and many of the MCSOS classes use an online curriculum designed for students 
with moderate to severe disabilities. In addition to increasing student engagement and participation, this new technology also allows for new 
and improved accommodations and modifications for students. 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor/Voyager) Page 22 of 121 



 
 

   

 
   

 
   

     
  

     
   

  
   

   
 

 
   

  
 

   

  
  

 
 

 
   

  
  

  
 

  
 

 
 

 
   

         
 

As mentioned previously, the Madera County Superintendent of Schools operates several regional classes for students who are eligible for 
special education with the qualifier of Emotional Disturbance (ED). Many of these student miss varying amounts of class time due to behavior 
and sensory regulation needs. When class time is missed, it does not allow the student to participate in lessons and learn key educational 
concepts, which can be vital to future learning exercises. The students served in the ED classes have already exhausted all resources at 
their school of residence, and by the time they are referred to the Madera County Superintendent of Schools many have significant learning 
gaps. These students are still demonstrating the same inability to regulate their emotions and behaviors that caused them to miss instruction 
in their school of residence. Many of these students do not react to sensory input in the same ways as their typically developing peers, which 
can result in students needing more sensory input to actively engage in their learning. When sensory needs are significant, it cannot only 
disrupt their learning, but also the learning of those around them. One of the integrated school sites that houses ED classes has a newly 
vacated space where a sensory regulation space was created. Instruction continues while students make use of the sensory regulation 
space. This space has been extremely effective and well used as students have transitioned back to entirely in-person instruction. 

MCSOS continues to address the social emotional needs of students in all classes. With the school closures due to COVID-19, additional 
emphasis has been placed on the social emotional needs of students. Staff have expressed a need for materials to assist them in addressing 
the social emotional needs of their students. The Second Step Programs build students’ social-emotional skills using evidence-based 
strategies and lessons. The family of programs available through Second Step includes curriculum for children participating in Early 
Childhood programs through high school programs. Students in Early Childhood programs will learn skills to harness their energy and 
potential by teaching them how to listen, pay attention, manage their behavior and get along with others. When students learn self-regulation 
and social-emotional skills taught with Second Step Social-Emotional Learning (SEL), they are ready to successfully participate in the 
elementary environment. The Second Step program supports the needs of students in the K-5 environment by promoting the students’ social, 
emotional, and academic success. The Second Step program nurtures social-emotional competence and develops foundational learning 
skills. Once children are middle school students, the Second Step program is designed with middle schoolers in mind. The skills taught in this 
program are how to handle strong emotions, setting and meeting goals, making good decisions, and forging positive relationships. A 
successful learner is not measured by academics alone. The Second Step program teaches skills for resolving conflicts, working with others, 
forming healthy relationships, and making good decisions—so students can be more successful emotionally, socially, and academically. 
Social, emotional, and cognitive development are interdependent. The Second Step program is a universal social-emotional learning 
program that has proven to improve daily student attendance and graduation rate for the schools that have implemented the learning 
programs. MCSOS has already used the Second Step program in various setting and has purchased additional materials to expand the 
program even further to address student needs. Additional training for staff will be provided as well for these new materials. 

As the team worked to identify and describe any resource inequities it was determined that there do not appear to be any resources 
inequities between the students served by the Madera County Superintendent of Schools. One hundred percent of the students served are 
students with disabilities and as mandated by the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA), all students are afforded a Free and 
Appropriate Public Education (FAPE) with an Individualized Education Plan (IEP) in the Least Restrictive Environment (LRE).  All things 
necessary for a student to receive educational benefit are provided to students. MCSOS works with the district of residence for each student 
to provide all that is detailed in each individual IEP. 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor/Voyager) Page 23 of 121 



 
 

   

 
 

    
 

   

    
   

   
   

 
   

 
  

 
   

 
 

  
  

  
 

 
     

 
  

    
    

   
   

 
   

  
  

 
 

   

Monitoring and Evaluating Effectiveness 
A description of how the LEA will monitor and evaluate the plan to support student and school improvement. 

The first goal for the Gould Educational Center School Plan for Student Achievement was to increase the percentage of students who 
graduated from the Gould Educational Center. The California School Dashboard data continues to show a graduation percentage that falls in 
the red category. This goal continues to be a challenge for the Madera County Superintendent of Schools (MCSOS). All of the students who 
attend the Gould Educational Center are students with disabilities. In fact, the students served have moderate to severe disabilities. As with 
all special education services, the goal is to serve students in the least restrictive environment. While some of the students served by 
MCSOS have average cognition, those students that have gained the skills necessary to be successful in a lesser restrictive environment are 
transitioned back to their district of residence. We will continue to use the Dashboard data to evaluate the graduation rate for the Gould 
Educational Center, however in lieu of official California School Dashboard graduation rate data for 2020, The Madera County 
Superintendent of Schools used local California Longitudinal Pupil Achievement Data Systems (CALPADS) data to determine a graduation 
rate of 16.7% for a diploma and 26.7% for a diploma and Certificate of Completion. 

When engaging in the comprehensive needs assessment the LEA and stakeholders felt that it was appropriate to add a second goal to target 
professional development opportunities for Gould instructional staff.  The second goal was to provide staff with the skills necessary to 
increase the rigor of instruction. While previously staff attendance to non-mandatory training was not formally measured, approximately 25% 
of the instructional staff attended non-mandatory trainings during the 2018-2019 school year. During the 2019-2020 school year 69% of the 
teaching staff attended non-mandatory professional development opportunities. During the 2020-2021 school year, 64% of the teaching staff 
attended non-mandatory trainings. This is a slight decrease from the previous year’s data, continues to be an increase over past years. We 
will continue to monitor staff attendance to non-mandatory trainings and create additional staff surveys specific to professional development. 

The first strategy/activity was to provide professional development opportunities for staff. As mentioned previously the Gould Educational 
Center provides a wide variety of services for students with moderate to severe disabilities. In order to meet the varied needs of the staff, 
professional development opportunities need to specifically designed to meet the needs of each group. During the 2020-2021 school year 
presenters were brought in to provide professional development and many teachers attended trainings sponsored by the Special Education 
Local Plan Area (SELPA) Many of those trainings have no registration fee. Staff also attended approved outside trainings. The funds were to 
be used for registration or presenter fees, supplies and to pay for substitute teachers. During the 2020-2021 school year staff attended a 
variety of virtual trainings. Having the opportunity for virtual trainings allowed staff to attend trainings that might not normally be an option. 
The money that was not spent during the 2019-2020 and 2020-2021 school years will continue to be spend on professional development 
opportunities. MCSOS continues to offer mandatory trainings as well as non-mandatory trainings. 

The second strategy/activity was designed to support new teachers recently hired by the Madera County Superintendent of Schools. In past 
years, the Gould Educational Center has employed high numbers of new teachers who are teaching on a Short-Term Staff Permit (STSP) or 
a Provisional Internship Permit (PIP). These teachers are just entering an intern programs and therefore are not yet eligible for an Induction 
Program. In an effort to support and grow these new teachers the Madera County Superintendent of Schools has created a new teacher 
Professional Learning Coach Program. New teachers are paired with veteran teachers who meet set criteria. The veteran teachers go 
through an application and interview process prior to being selected and paired with a new teacher. The Professional Learning Coaches 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor/Voyager) Page 24 of 121 



 
 

   

     
 

 
 

 
        

  
   

     
 

  
 

 
 

   

   
 

 
  

      
     

      
  

 

 
    

  
 

 
 

 
     

 
   

receive a $2,000 stipend for the year and work with no more than two new teachers. These Professional Leaning Coaches are required to 
communicate with their new teacher at least once per week. They also provide opportunities for classroom observations, the new teachers 
observing in their Professional Learning Coaches classrooms and the Professional Learning Coaches observing in their new teacher’s 
classrooms. Debrief and discussion follow each classroom observation. In addition to the support of the Professional Learning Coaches 
newly hired teachers also attend an additional day of training prior to the school year starting. Prior the 2021-2022 school year all new 
teachers were able to attend an in-person new teacher training. Staff who were new to MCSOS during the 2020-2021 school year were also 
able to attend the training, which had to be canceled the previous year. During the 2019-2020 and 2020-2021 not all of the proposed 
expenditures were spent for a variety of reasons. One being that we have fewer new teachers that fit into this category. Over the last few 
years few new teachers have been needed to fill open positions. We were also unable to provide some of the in-person trainings due to 
COVID-19 restrictions. Any additional funds will be used in upcoming years. 

The third strategy/activity was designed to allow staff time for classroom observations of the lesser restrictive environment that are the goal 
environment for their students. The Gould Educational Center provides a spectrum of services for students with moderate to severe 
disabilities. One of the mandates of an Individualized Education Plan (IEP) is that the student be educated in the least restrictive 
environment. Staff is always working towards preparing students for the next least restrictive environment, which may be an integrated 
school site, mainstreaming with typically developing peers or possibly even returning to their district of special education accountability or 
district of residence. It is important for teachers to be familiar with what environment students are working toward. Understanding the skills 
students will need to be successful in the next less restrictive environment allows teachers to be even more intentional about goal setting and 
the creation of teaching opportunities. Classroom observations allow teachers to see the actual environment that their student may be 
entering; this allows them to see how to appropriately prepare them for their new classroom setting. Teachers also benefit from observing 
fellow educators who have successful classroom practices. Unfortunately, this strategy/activity was not able to be fully implemented. Last 
year was the first year that the Gould Educational Center was required to write a SPSA so it was approved late in the year. This would not 
have been a problem and visits were being schedule, but due to school closures they were not made. During the 2020-2021 school year in-
person classroom observations continued to be a challenge for staff due to COVID-19 limitations. As restrictions continue to relax, staff were 
able to start scheduling observations again. 

The fourth strategy/activity was to provide additional sign language interpreting services for a student participating in the Upward Bound 
Program with Madera South High School. This activity implemented after the plan was approved by the board. The Upward Bound Program 
was continued even after the school closure and the student and interpreter attended through Zoom. The student plans on continuing the 
program into the 2021-2022 school year. The student is currently in his senior year of high school. This strategy will be evaluated by 
reviewing the students progress toward meeting graduation requirements and grades as well as student and parent interviews. 

The fifth strategy/activity was to purchase additional Chromebooks and iPads to what is already in place in the classroom to provide students 
with the opportunity to increase their interaction with the curriculum and further engage students.  The goal was for students to also become 
more proficient at using technology for academic and career readiness purposes. The Chromebooks were purchased, but they were not 
distributed to the classrooms, but to the students directly. Again, this was due to the school closures. In addition to technology for individual 
student use, classroom technology has also been increased and upgraded to further increase student engagement and provided for 
additional access to the online curriculum that is used in the moderate to severe special day classes. Staff and student surveys will provide 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor/Voyager) Page 25 of 121 



 
 

   

   
  

 
 

    
  

    

   
 

 
   

  
     

     
 

         
 

feedback as to the effectiveness of this strategy. For students who are able to participate in district general education classes may also be a 
source of feedback. 

The sixth strategy/activity was the creation of a sensory regulation space for the Emotional Disturbance classrooms located on an integrated 
school site. Sensory regulation can help students, who have an emotional disturbance, academically in the classroom by helping them 
control their disruptive behaviors. Learning these self-regulation skills allows the student and the education staff to focus more on their 
academic deficits. The space would be used for body stabilization equipment, quiet space, light regulators, auditory deregulation tools and 
gross body movement space. Instruction will continue while students are in the sensory regulation space, which lessens the impact of their 
behaviors on both their education and the education of their classmates. This sensory space is used regularly now that students have 
transitioned back to in-person instruction. This strategy will be evaluated by reviewing student behavioral data, suspension and discipline 
rates, grades as well as student teacher interviews. 

MCSOS will also be expanding the use of the Second Step curriculum to address the social-emotional needs of students. This program 
works to build the social-emotional skills using evidence-based strategies and lessons. The materials have been purchased and are available 
to all staff. The next step will be to provide additional training for staff, so they are able to use the program to the fullest extent. To assess the 
effectiveness of this strategy student daily attendance, discipline and suspension date will be reviewed as well as teacher, student and parent 
feedback. 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor/Voyager) Page 26 of 121 



 
 

   

 
 

  
 

      
 

     
 

  
  

 
 

 
   

  
 

  
 

 
   

  
 

 
    

 
    

 
   

   
     

  
 
 
 

 
   

Engaging Educational Partners 
A summary of the process used to engage educational partners and how this engagement was considered before finalizing the LCAP. 

Gathering Educational partnership input and feedback is a valuable process in the evaluation and development of the LCAP. MCSOS 
believes this input actively drives this process by consulting parents, students, teachers, principals, program directors, school counselors, 
school staff, local bargaining unit members and the community, over the course of the year in conducting multiple opportunities for input by 
administering surveys and meetings for these groups. To maintain optimal access and safety for our community partners, all meetings were 
held via a Zoom format. Translation services were also provided at each meeting, as needed, and MCSOS made all efforts to ensure all 
voices were heard from our partners representing all English Learner, socio-economically disadvantaged, and foster/homeless students. In 
each of the input meetings, LCAP process, student achievement data, and program successes and challenges, were shared. The CAES 
leadership team, consisting of the Executive Director, Program Directors, Principals, and School Counselors, analyzed feedback gathered 
from the surveys and meetings and used this to draft the LCAP. Although many other topics were addressed, the focus on goals and actions 
were given highest priority in the writing of the LCAP. To obtain educational partner input in the development and approval of the MCSOS 
LCAP, MCSOS hosted a series of educational partnership input meetings that were scheduled as follows: 

1/10/22 - All CAES (MCSOS/PTC/MCIA) Staff LCAP Survey sent out by email to support staff, school counselors, instructional assistants, 
teachers, principals and administrators: 
1/18/22-2/5/22 - LCAP Google Survey Window Open - Link sent via ParentSquare to all CAES (MCSOS/PTC/MCIA) parents and students in 
both English and Spanish. 
1/20/22 - MCSOS LCAP Educational Partner Zoom 1 (10:00 – 11:00 a.m.) Attended by Alan Macedo-Program Director, Hugo Sanchez-
Program Director, Mrs. Jennifer Clark-ATP Teacher MCSOS, Ms. Bianca Cabello - Business Systems Specialist MCSOS, Mrs. Lori Hamada 
– MCSOS/Bridges to Leadership Director. Presentation held with student/parent survey results provided. 
1/20/22 - MCSOS LCAP Educational Partner Zoom Meeting 2 (1:00 – 2:00 p.m.) – MCSOS/SELPA Attendees: Linda Igoe – Program Director 
/ Bridges to Leadership 
Marisa Etheridge – Madera/Mariposa Director of SELPA. Although Special Education does not fall into an unduplicated category, suggestion 
was made to have Program Director provide students with IEPs to the "students we serve" slide on the LCAP presentation, and added "The 
LCAP team has done a wonderful job!" Linda Igoe's feedback was "Thank you Alan for a very informative presentation and your passion for 
our students!" 
1/25/22 (10:00 – 11:00 a.m. and 1:00 p.m. – 2:00 p.m.) All CAES (MCSOS/MCIA/PTC) Parent Advisory Committee (PAC) LCAP input Zoom 
Meeting #1 - Attended by Program Directors Hugo Sanchez and Alan Macedo and Endeavor parent, Ms. Melissa Munoz, parent of RM. Input 
given: Son wants to graduate early and become a motivational speaker to keep others from following the same pathway. Parent asked about 
graduation credits as she was contacted by FY/H Liaison, Mrs. E. Rodriguez, AB 2306 and via Parent Square. 
2/24/22 - LCAP PAC Meeting 2 (10:00 a.m. – 11:00 a.m.) No PAC Members in attendance 
3/24/22 - LCAP PAC Meeting 3 (10:00 a.m. – 11:00 a.m.) No PAC Members in attendance 
4/28/22 - LCAP PAC Meeting 4 (10:00 a.m. – 11:00 a.m.) No PAC Members in attendance 
5/25/22 - LCAP PAC Meeting 5 (10:00 a.m. – 11:00 a.m.) Presentation to Parent Advisory Committee - No PAC Members in attendance 
5/31/22 - MCSOS LCAP Presented to CAES ELAC (2:00 - 3:00 p.m.) 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor/Voyager) Page 27 of 121 



 
 

   

 
 

  
   

 
 

  
 

   
 

  
 

 
    

    
    

  
     

    
    

   
 

 
 

  
 

   
   

 
   

 
 

 
 

   
 

  

------------------------------------------------------------------------------

6/14/22 - MCSOS, MCIA, PTC LCAPs Presented to Madera County Board of Education for review 
6/21/22 - LCAP (MCSOS, MCIA, PTC) Presented to Madera County Board of Education for approval 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/9308346617?pwd=MW9JOEVtMHBSVDh5WWxST1EyRmlndz09, Meeting ID: 930 834 6617, Passcode: CAES 
All CAES (MCSOS/PTC/MCIA) Parent response total =18% 
All CAES (MCSOS/PTC/ MCIA) Student responses = 51% 

Average of Total Google Survey Responses = 33% 

A summary of the feedback provided by specific educational partners. 

MCSOS Educational Partner feedback provided very positive themes from input, surveys and ongoing meetings to drive the LCAP process. 
Common ideas/themes/trends of the feedback included: 

1. Educational partners recognize the value of meaningful instruction and academic supports as paramount to student success. Teachers 
and school staff are encouraging students for academic success, families believe MCSOS programs are meeting the needs of English 
learners, and MCSOS are preparing students for life beyond high school.  Of the results returned, 95.4% of parents strongly agree/agree the 
school promotes academic success for all students. 92.3% strongly agree/agree that the school is able to meet the needs of its English 
learners as well as provide information and resources to support student learning at home.  Finally, 90.8% of parents strongly strongly 
agree/agree the school teaches their children the skills they will need to be successful in life and the school has policies in place for teachers 
to meet and discuss progress and ways to work together to support and improve student achievement.  Student feedback provided excellent 
insight for the LCAP process as 94.3% of students agree/strongly agree their teacher is very knowledgeable in their subject area, 93.6% 
strongly agree/agree they feel comfortable reading and writing in English, 93.2% strongly agree/agree their teacher encourages them to be 
successful. 93.1% agree/strongly agree their teachers give them enough time to complete their work and 92.2% of students agree/strongly 
agree they receive the support they need from their teachers. These responses support the MCSOS Goal 1 and the importance of 
Endeavor/Voyager students staying on course to graduate and qualify as prepared to be college and career ready.  On the CAES staff LCAP 
survey, staff indicate the following results, which are congruent to the educational partner feedback provided. CAES staff survey results 
indicated 76.5% of staff members rated high implementation or full implementation toward CAES programs making progress in providing 
professional learning for the California academic standards and/or curriculum frameworks in English/Language Arts (ELA), 75.8% rated high 
or full implementation in making progress toward providing professional learning for the California academic standards and/or curriculum 
frameworks in Mathematics, and 67.6% rated high or full implementation in making progress toward providing professional learning for the 
California academic standards and/or curriculum frameworks in English Language Development (ELD) (Aligned to ELA Standards).  These 
educational partners' feedback are very closely aligned with one another and provide validation and guidance in the further development of 
Goal 1. 

2. Educational partners recognize greatly the provided resources and services to improve the social-emotional well-being of each student 
and provide a safe, well-maintained, and conducive learning environment.  Parents recognize and value the relationships between home and 
school.  In the analysis and reflection of the survey data, MCSOS staff is assured that parents are highly comfortable with the learning 
environment for their child.  The following feedback strongly supports MCSOS Goal 2: 95.4% of parents strongly agree/agree the school has 
created a welcoming environment (friendly and helpful) for their child(ren), 95.4% strongly agree/agree their child's school has clean and 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor/Voyager) Page 28 of 121 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/9308346617?pwd=MW9JOEVtMHBSVDh5WWxST1EyRmlndz09,


 
 

   

   
 

   
  

    
   

 
 

  
  

   
  

 

 
 

  
  

  
  

 
   

   
   

    

   
  

  
   

 
   

   

well-maintained facilities, 92.3% strongly agree/agree their child feels safe at their school and that the school takes parent concerns 
seriously.  Furthermore, 87.7% of parents strongly agree/agree the staff at their school builds a trusting and respectful relationship, while 
86.2% strongly agree/agree the staff at my child's school is interested in their family's culture, language and children's goals.  As for students, 
94.3% strongly agree/agree their school buildings are clean, 92% strongly agree/agree the staff at my school treats students fairly, 88% 
strongly agree/agree their school has very clear expectations for student behavior.  In addition, 86.2% strongly agree/agree they feel safe at 
their school, 82.8% strongly agree/agree the staff at my school care about students, and 77.8% strongly agree/agree feel like they are part of 
their school.  On the CAES staff LCAP survey, staff indicated the following results, which are congruent to the educational partner feedback 
provided.  CAES staff survey results indicated 84.5% of staff members rated high or full implementation in making progress toward creating 
welcoming environments for all families in the community. (Friendly staff members, neat and attractive facilities, etc.), 76.3% rated high or full 
implementation in making progress toward developing multiple opportunities for school sites to engage in two-way communication between 
families and instructional staff, and 55.2% rated high or full implementation in making progress toward supporting staff to learn about each 
family’s strengths, cultures, languages, and goals for their children. 

3. Educational partners recognized greatly the importance of parent involvement in their child's educational process and the need for parent 
involvement and increased student engagement.  Parents and students positively expressed the effective regular two-way communication 
between home and school, and the need for parent involvement by developing meaningful partnerships and participation outreach in order to 
increase student engagement, achievement and social-emotional well-being.  Some survey data points that validate this analysis summary 
include the following: 92.3% strongly agree/agree the school utilizes two-way communication, 86.2% strongly agree/agree the school staff 
communicates with them on a regular basis, 81.6% strongly agree/agree the school supports and builds capacity of family members to 
participate in advisory groups like SSC/ELAC/PAC, 81.5% strongly agree/agree the school provides opportunities for input on school policies 
and programs and seeks input from all represented groups in the community, and 76.9% strongly agree/agree their child's school provides 
opportunities to have families, teachers, principals, and district administrators work together to plan, design, implement, and evaluate 
engagement.  However, student survey responses provided insightful data on the lack of parent participation with 67.4% of students strongly 
agree/agree their parents feel welcome at their school, 50.2% strongly agree/agree their teacher speaks to/communicates with the 
parent/guardian on a regular basis, and 29.7% strongly agree/agree their parents participate in school events.  While this data supports the 
effectiveness of certain aspects of MCSOS actions, parent engagement is a continuous to area of concern, given parent participation of in-
person meetings continues to be low.  As a case and point, while MCSOS parent survey data is powerful, only one in five parents responded.  
MCSOS will continue to use ParentSquare as a two-way communication vehicle, continue personal calls to parents, and explore increasing 
in-person parent engagement opportunities.  Parent participation has been a historical problem for MCSOS programs and although 
ParentSquare has improved two-way communication between school and parents, live communication will still be needed to continue to 
improve overall parent participation.  On the CAES staff LCAP survey, staff indicated the following results, which are congruent to the 
educational partner feedback provided.  CAES staff survey results indicated 76.3% of staff members rated high or full implementation in 
making progress toward developing the capacity of staff (i.e. administrators, teachers, and classified staff) to build trusting and respectful 
relationships with families, 63.2% rated high or full implementation for CAES staff’s progress in building the capacity of and supporting 
principals and staff to effectively engage families in advisory groups and with decision-making for their child's school, 60.5% rate high or full 
implementation the CAES staff’s progress in providing professional learning and support to instructional staff and principals to improve a 
school’s capacity to partner with families, and 55.2% rated high or full implementation for CAES staff’s progress in providing opportunities to 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor/Voyager) Page 29 of 121 



 
 

   

 
 

  
 

  
 

  
 

  
    

  
 

  

 
    
   

 
  

   
  

 
 

   
 

 
   

    
 

  
    

 
 

 
 

 
  

have families, instructional staff, principals, and district administrators work together to plan, design, implement and evaluate family 
engagement activities at school and district levels. 

The data listed below comes from the MCSOS CAES LCAP Survey (Endeavor/Voyager, MCIA, PTC) responses by PARENTS (18%): 

1) Parent Survey Responses = 40% PTC Chowchilla. 30.8% PTC Madera, 29.2% MCIA 
2) Ethnicity = 60% Hispanic or Latino, 23% White, non-Hispanic, 7.7% Preferred not to state, 5% two or more races, 4.7% American Indian, 
or Alaska Native 
3) 36.9% = Stated they participate in the free and reduced meal program, 33.8% = Stated none, and 29.2% weren't sure. 
4) 87.7% strongly agree/agree the staff at their school builds a trusting and respectful relationship 
5) 95.4% strongly agree/agree the school has created a welcoming environment (friendly and helpful) for their child (ren) 
6) 86.2% strongly agree/agree the staff at my child's school is interested in their family's culture, language and children's goals 
7) 92.3% strongly agree/agree the school utilizes two-way communication. 
8) 92.3% strongly agree/agree the school provides information and resources to support student learning at home 
9) 90.8% strongly agree/agree the school has policies for teachers to meet with families and students to discuss progress and ways to work 
together to support improved student achievement. 
10) 83.1% strongly agree/agree the school helps the family understand and exercise their legal rights to advocate for their child 
11) 81.6% strongly agree/agree the school supports and builds capacity of family members to participate in advisory groups like 
SSC/ELAC/PAC, etc. 
12) 81.5% strongly agree/agree the school provides opportunities for input on school policies and programs and seeks input from all 
represented groups in the community 
13) 76.9% strongly agree/agree their child's school provides opportunities to have families, teachers, principals, and district administrators 
work together to plan, design implement and evaluate engagement. 
14) 95.4% strongly agree/agree the school promotes academic success for all students. 
15) 92.3% strongly agree/agree the school is able to meet the academic needs of English learners. 
16) 90.8% strongly agree/agree the school teaches their child skills that are helpful in life 
17) 92.3% strongly agree/agree the school takes parent concerns seriously 
18) 86.2% strongly agree/agree the school staff communicates with them on a regular basis 
19) 92.3% strongly agree/agree their child feels safe at their school 
20) 95.4% strongly agree/agree their child's school has clean and well-maintained facilities 
21) 92.3% strongly agree/agree their child's teacher (s) are well qualified to teach 
22) 75% of parents participated in School Conferences, 32.3% in Open House and 26% in Back to School Night /New parent orientation 
23) 40% 0f parents wanted workshops offered in Homework Assistance, 35% in Technology, 32.3% in Healthy Lifestyles 29% in Math 
Support and 23% in Social/Emotional Supports. 

CAES Survey Responses by STUDENTS (51%) 

1) Student survey responses = 34.9% MCIA, 31.4% PTC Madera. 21.1% PTC Chowchilla, 12.6% Endeavor/Voyager (MCSOS) 
2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor/Voyager) Page 30 of 121 



 
 

   

  
 

 
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

    
  
  
   
  
    
   

    
   

   
   
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

  
 

         
 

   
 

   
   

 

2) Grade Level 21.1% - 12th, 11th - 17.1%,, 10 -15.4%, 9th -12%, 8th - 7.4%,K - 5.7%, 4th - 5.1%,2nd/6th - 4%, 5th/1st - 2.3%, 3rd - 1.1% 
3) Ethnicity = 62.9% Hispanic/Latino, 16.3% White, non-Hispanic, 7.3% America-Indian, 6.7% Two or more races, 7.3% prefer not to answer, 
Black, African-American 1.7% Asian .6% Middle Eastern .6% 
4) Participation in the following programs: 45.7% None, Not sure 29.1%, Designated ELD 17.7%, Free and Reduced 6.3%, Foster Youth 
2.3%, Special Education 1.7% 
5) 86.2% strongly agree/agree they feel safe at their school 
6) 77.8% strongly agree/agree feel like they are part of their school 
7) 93.2% strongly agree/agree their teacher encourages them to be successful 
8) 93.1% strongly agree/agree their teachers give them enough time to complete their school/homework 
9) 65.1% strongly agree/agree they are excited about learning 
10) 30.9% strongly agree/agree they would like more help with their school/homework 
11) 67.5% strongly agree/agree they are learning life skills at school 
12) 50.2% strongly agree/agree their teacher speaks to/communicates with the parent/guardian on a regular basis 
13) 29.7% strongly agree/agree their parents participate in school events 
14) 94.3% strongly agree/agree their teachers are very knowledgeable in their subject area 
15) 91.4% strongly agree/agree their teachers teach them in a way they can understand 
16) 56.5% strongly agree/agree they would like to go to a trade/technical school after high school 
17) 88% strongly agree/agree their school has very clear expectations for student behavior 
18) 82.8% strongly agree/agree the staff at my school care about me 
19) 92% strongly agree/agree the staff at my school treats student fairly 
20) 94.3% strongly agree/agree their school buildings are clean 
21) 67.4% strongly agree/agree their parents feel welcome at their school 
22) 74.4% strongly agree/agree they feel happy at their school 
23) 92.2% strongly agree/agree they receive the support they need from their teachers 
24) 90.3% strongly agree/agree (EL) feel comfortable speaking English in class 
25) 93.6% strongly agree/agree feel comfortable reading and/or writing in English 
27) 31.4% participate in careers in education, 29.4% child development, 29.4% welding, and 17.6% construction 
28) 34.7% not interested in CTE pathways, Interested in 26.3% welding, 20% child development, 18.9% Medical careers, 14.7% 
Construction/Criminal Justice, 11.6% cosmetology 10.5% culinary arts/hospitality, 7.4% fire-fighting/careers in education, 6.3% digital 
media/graphic design 

A description of the aspects of the LCAP that were influenced by specific input from educational partners. 

The five goals of the LCAP were created with educational partnership input. This input continues to demonstrate that our efforts are focused 
in the right areas.  The following will continue to remain the focus of this plan: 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor/Voyager) Page 31 of 121 



 
 

   

    
 

   
 

   
    

      
   

 
  

 
    

 
   

 
  

 
 

 
    

  
    

  
 

   
 

  
 

     
 

     
    

 
    

 
  

  
   

1) Juvenile Hall (Endeavor/Voyager) students will stay on track to becoming college and career ready through state adopted standards 
instructions. 
2) MCSOS will provide resources and services to improve the social-emotional well-being of each student and provide a safe environment 
conducive to learning. 
3) Increase parent involvement by developing meaningful partnerships and participation. 
4) Facilitate the county-wide coordination of services for the educational success of students in foster care. 
5) Coordinate the instruction of Expelled Pupils and facilitate the collaborative process for developing and revising the countywide plan to 
address the educational services for expelled youth and their transition to district of residence or charter school settings. 

Continued aspects of the LCAP influenced by specific educational partnership input: 

Goal 1: Juvenile Hall (Endeavor/Voyager) students will stay on track to becoming college and career ready through state adopted standards 
and instruction. 
1) Juvenile Hall students are still not performing academically at grade level and need to be ready for post-graduation options - Goal 1 Action 
2, 6, 7, 9, 11 
2) Professional Development for staff continuing in the areas of ELA, ELD, and social-emotional learning. Parents and students reported 
agreeing with statements that the school promotes success for all students and teachers are well qualified to teach students - Goal 1 Action 
1, 5 Goal 2 Action 2 

Goal 2: MCSOS will provide resources and services to improve the social-emotional well-being of each student and provide a safe 
environment conducive to learning. 
1) Effects of prolonged isolation from family's impact on SEL Goal 2 Action 1, 2, 7 
2) Reduce suspension rate and safe classroom environment Goal 2 Action 1, 5, 7 

Goal 3: Increase parent involvement by developing meaningful partnerships and participation. 
1) Parents not participating in advisory committees Goal 3 Action 3, 4, 5, 6 
2) Low participation from EL students' parents Goal 3 Action 6 

Goal 4: Facilitate the county-wide coordination of services for the educational success of students in foster care. 

Goal 5: Coordinate the instruction of Expelled Pupils and facilitate the collaborative process for developing and revising the countywide plan 
to address the educational services for expelled youth and their transition to district of residence or charter school. 

New aspects of the LCAP influenced by specific stakeholder input: 
1) i-Ready acceleration and assessment to increase student achievement 
2) Social-Emotional Services expanded to SED 
3) Virtual welding class for Cadet Academy students 
4) School events for parent participation at Juvenile Hall 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor/Voyager) Page 32 of 121 



 
 

   

    
 

         
 

5) Increased communication and collaboration with Madera County Probation to provide increased services to parents and Juvenile Hall 
students 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor/Voyager) Page 33 of 121 



 
 

   

 
 

 
 

  
  

      
 

   
 

 
 

     
 

 
   

 

  
   

  
    

   
 

  

    
    

 
 

     
  

         
 

 
 

Goals and Actions 

Goal 
Goal # Description 

1 Juvenile Hall (Endeavor/Voyager) students will stay on course to graduate and qualify as prepared to be college and 
career ready through state adopted standards-based instruction.    

An explanation of why the LEA has developed this goal. 
Students are enrolled in Juvenile Hall (Endeavor/Voyager) from school districts throughout Madera County, as well as, districts in other 
counties.  The length of enrollment varies greatly, so fulfilling this goal helps ensure students do not fall behind academically.  Based on 
limited state data resulting from suspension of assessments due to COVID-19, as well as the low numbers of students required to complete 
the ELPAC, assessment data collected from i-Ready assessments for ELA and Math will allow for monitoring academic progress.  Local 
assessment data, stakeholder consultation, and other collected data identify this goal and subsequent actions as priorities for the Juvenile 
Hall. Goal 1 is a broad goal focused on improving academic performance for English Learners and SED students, progress monitoring of 
students academically deficient, and improving instructional practices of all teachers. Endeavor/Voyager will continue to focus on high-quality 
professional development to increase all teachers' effectiveness in teaching incarcerated youth with varying abilities, challenges and levels of 
proficiency. Specifically, Goal 1 Action 1 addresses the importance of relevant professional development for teachers to affect academic 
achievement of EL and SED students.  Local, common formative assessment data will be the primary method for monitoring academic 
growth. Currently, the students of Endeavor/Voyager have not shown to be college and career ready on the California State School 
Dashboard given the small number of qualified students.  Endeavor/Voyager educational staff members recognize the importance of 
providing students access to courses to stay on track with their home districts graduation requirements. 

The educational outcomes of English Learners and SED students continue to be of concern not only at the state level, but for Madera County 
Superintendent of Schools, as well.  Many incarcerated students do not graduate on time with their high school cohorts, and the graduation 
rate for incarcerated EL and SED students is even lower.  Of those who enroll in a post-secondary program, very few students successfully 
complete.  Additionally, English Learner and SED high school students often have higher chronic absenteeism rates, which adversely affect 
academic achievement on state or local assessments and progress toward graduation.  Ensuring students receive the necessary information 
and support to graduate from high school and be prepared for college/career is vital.  Due to transiency for incarcerated students, developing 
and maintaining strong educational practices, increasing teachers’ capacity through professional learning, and collecting local data on 
academic achievement is paramount.  In order to successfully achieve this goal and included actions, the principal, school counselor, 
teachers and RSP teacher will continue to work closely and communicate often with correctional staff. 

Measuring and Reporting Results 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor/Voyager) Page 34 of 121 



 
 

   

      
  

       

 

 

  

 

 
  

  
 

 

 
 

   

 
 

 

 

    

  

  

 

  

 

 

 

  
 

 

  

     
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome Desired Outcome for 
2023–24 

1. Percentage of 
teachers and staff 
attending professional 
development 
trainings. 

100% of teachers and 
staff received ongoing 
professional 
development of 90 
minutes embedded 
into the weekly 
instructional schedule 
throughout school 
year 20-21. In 
addition, teachers 
accessed additional 
professional 
development. 

100% of teachers 
attended professional 
development trainings 
with CAES colleagues 
from MCIA and PTC 
led by MCSOS staff in 
the areas of Math, 
SEL and ELD. In 
addition, Madera 
County Behavioral 
Health provided 
professional learning 
on Mental Health First 
Aid. 

100% of teachers and 
staff will participate 
annually in 
professional 
development on 
California Common 
Core State Standards 
in ELA, Mathematics, 
Social Science, and 
Science, either 
through MCSOS or 
other professional 
educational 
organizations 

2. Average number of 
credits earned by 
credit-deficient 
students. 

For school year 2020-
21, 142 incarcerated 
students earned 586.5 
credits for an average 
of 4.13 credits per 
student. 

For school year 2021-
22, 95 incarcerated 
students earned 525.5 
credits for an average 
of 5.53 credits per 
student. 

Increase the average 
number of credits 
earned by credit-
deficient students. 

3. Number of students Baseline data Career Assessment All students who are 
completing Individual unavailable due to survey to be given in in Juvenile Hall longer 
Graduation Progress 2020-21 COVID-19 Spring 2022. School than 15 days will 
Plan and Career protocols for Counselor meets with receive an Individual 
Assessment Survey. incarcerated youth. all graduating seniors 

to assist with college 
matriculation and 
financial aid 
applications. 

Graduation Progress 
Plan and a career 
assessment survey. 

4. Percentage of 0% of EL students Pending ELPAC 10% of EL students 
English Learner (EL) have been reclassified results will be reclassified 
reclassifications.   in 2020-21. from Spring 2022 

administration. 
annually. 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor/Voyager) Page 35 of 121 



 
 

   

      
  

 
 

 
      

 

 

 

 

 
 

   

 
 

 
 

     
 

  

  

  

 

    
 

 

 

  

 

 

   

 

 

 

 

   

  

  

  
 

   

  

  
 

 

 

 

    

  

 
 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome Desired Outcome for 
2023–24 

5. Percentage of 100% of students 100% of students 100% of students 
students with have access to have access to receive standards 
Instruction and standards based standards based based instruction and 
materials aligned with instruction and instruction and instructional materials. 
Common Core State instructional materials instructional materials. 
Standards (CCSS). in 2020-21. 
6. Distance from 
Standard (DFS) 
standard as measured 
by SBAC. 

SBAC data not 
available for baseline 
due to minimum 
cohort requirement of 
11 students not met. 

Results to be 
analyzed after SBAC 
Assessment given in 
Spring 2022. 

Continue to increase 
SBAC scores annually 
to meet standard. 

7. Number of students 3 Students graduated In June 2022, 3 All students fulfilling 
graduating with a high in 2019-20. Endeavor and 5 graduation 
school diploma.     Voyager students 

graduated. 
requirements will 
receive a high school 
diploma from 
Endeavor/Voyager. 

8. Number of students 
receiving academic 
intervention and 
supports.     

All students with an 
IEP receive 
interventions and 
supports identified on 
their IEP in 2020-21. 

All students with an 
IEP receive 
interventions and 
supports identified on 
their IEPs. 

All students with an 
IEP will receive 
interventions identified 
on their IEP. 

9. Percentage of 
students showing 
growth on i-Ready 
assessments in ELA 
and Math. 

Baseline data 
unavailable due to 
2020-21 COVID-19 
protocols for 
incarcerated youth. 

As indicated by results 
from i-Ready 
diagnostic 2 in 
January 2022 to 
Diagnostic 3 in Spring 
2022, an increase of 
6% of students were 
on grade level in ELA. 
No measurable 
growth indicated in 
Math from diagnostic 
2 to 3 in 2022. 

100% of 
Endeavor/Voyager 
students will show 
growth on i-Ready 
diagnostic 
assessments in ELA 
and Math. 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor/Voyager) Page 36 of 121 



 
 

   

      

 

 
     

 

   

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

   
 

 
 

 

 

 
   

 
  

 
 

 

  

 

    

 

 

 

 

  

 

 
 

 
   

  

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome Desired Outcome for 
2023–24 

10. Number of 
students screened to 
qualify for modified 
graduation track or 
grade level 
reclassification.   

All 11th and 12th 
grade students were 
screened in the 2020-
21 school year. 

To date, 30 students 
have been screened. 
Of those students, 18 
were officially placed 
on an Assembly 
Bill/Modified 
Graduation track. 
Another 7 of the 30 
were approved but 
were not placed on 
the modified 
graduation track either 
because they were 
released before we 
were able to do so or 
their guardian failed to 
attend the 
appointment. Of the 
currently enrolled 
students, 8 are on an 
AB graduation track. 

All students in 11th 
and 12th grades will 
be assessed or 
screened to determine 
qualification for grade 
level reclassification 
or modified graduation 
requirements. 

11. Number of 
students enrolled in 
Career Technical 
Education (CTE) 
introductory welding 
course. 

0 students accessed 
virtual welding course 
during 2020-21 school 
year due to COVID-19 
protocols for 
incarcerated youth. 

Currently, there are 8 
students in the Cadet 
Academy who are 
enrolled in the 
Introduction to 
Welding course. 

The number of 
students in the Cadet 
Academy taking 
virtual welding course 
will increase annually. 

12. Percentage of 
teachers appropriately 
credentialed.    

100% of teachers are 
appropriately 
credentialed in 2020-
21. 

100% of teachers are 
appropriately 
credentialed in 2021-
22. 

Maintain 100% of 
teachers being 
appropriately 
credentialed. 

13. Percentage of 
teachers trained in 

MTSS PD to begin in 
SY 2022-23 

New metric for 2022-
23 LCAP. 

100% of all teachers 
trained in MTSS 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor/Voyager) Page 37 of 121 



 
 

   

      
 

    
 

 
 

     
 

    

  
 

 

 

 
   

 
 

   
 

  

  

 
 

 
 

  
  

 
 

  
 

 
 
 

   
 

  
 

   

 
 

 
 

   
 

X

X

X

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome Desired Outcome for 
2023–24 

Multi-Tier Systems of 
Support (MTSS)    

Actions 

Action # Title Description Total Funds Contributing 
1.1 Teacher Professional 

Development specific 
to English Learners    

Professional development for Endeavor/Voyager is designed to meet 
the academic, social, and emotional needs of students to maximize 
academic achievement. Professional development will also focus on 
identifying and implementing best instructional practices principally 
directed at meeting the needs of English Learners. Professional 
development is designed for teachers, administrators, counselors, and 
other support staff. Teachers are encouraged to seek professional 
development opportunities or conferences provided by other 
educational organizations, aside from those provided by MCSOS. 

$2,700.00 Yes 

1.2 Provide Credit 
Recovery Options for 
All Students      

Students enrolled in Juvenile Hall come from various districts from 
Madera and other counties.  Furthermore, the majority of students are 
significantly credit deficient.  To help students recover credits needed 
to fulfill graduation requirements, online courses such as 
Odysseyware or Edgenuity will be used.  Students needing to 
complete A-G courses and increased CTE offerings will benefit from 
this option. Teachers and instructional assistants also will be able to 
provide additional support.  Partial credits will be awarded for students 
who get released prior to the end of the semester.  Academic 
counselor, counseling specialist, and administrators will ensure 
academic records are obtained and provided in a timely manner. 

$231,792.00 No 

1.3 Create Individual 
Progress Plans and 
Career Assessment 
Surveys 

Academic Counselor will meet with all students in the Cadet Academy, 
and students enrolled in Endeavor for more than 15 days to complete 
Individual Progress Plan and Career Assessment Survey.  Academic 
Counselor will also assist graduating high school students with 

$0.00 No 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor/Voyager) Page 38 of 121 



 
 

   

     
  

 
 
 

  
   

 

 

  
 

  

 
  

 
 
 

   
 

  

 
   

 
 

  
 

 
  

 
 
 

   
 

 
 

  

 

   
 

X

X

X

Action # Title Description Total Funds Contributing 
registration at Madera Community College and completion of FAFSA 
documents. 

1.4 Reclassify EL 
Students 

To support EL students in achieving English Language 
reclassification, Endeavor/Voyager educational staff will use LAS 
Links English Language Proficiency Assessments as a local 
assessment to meet reclassification criteria. LAS Links provides 
English Learner proficiency results in speaking, listening, reading, and 
writing domains.  An ELPAC score of "4" is required for EL 
reclassification, along with three other criteria required by the state. 
The fourth criteria allows for use of local assessments for 
reclassification. The Program Director (Bilingual Coordinator), along 
with the academic counselor will review assessment results and 
consult with teacher. Parental opinion and consultation is also a 
requirement. 0% of English learners have been reclassified in the last 
three school years. 

$18,494.00 No 

1.5 Provide CCSS 
Curriculum and 
Materials for SED 
students 

Since 0% of low-income students have demonstrated meeting or 
exceeding standard on SBAC assessments in ELA or Math, 
Endeavor/Voyager will provide SED students with high-quality, 
standards aligned instructional support materials in ELA, Math, ELD, 
Social Science, and Science. Materials will include textbooks, 
StudySync (books and software) and other online software/curriculum.  
The increased rigor will support academic progress toward proficiency.  
The most recent California School Dashboard results from 2019 show 
that 0% of students are at standard or meeting the College/Career 
Indicator. 

$5,000.00 Yes 

1.6 Improve academic 
proficiency of SED 
Students on SBAC 
Math and ELA 
assessments      

Based upon 0% proficiency in ELA and Math for SED students, 
Endeavor/Voyager staff will provide instruction and instructional 
materials to support SED students' academic growth as measured by 
SBAC ELA and Math assessments. Summative SBAC assessments 

$0.00 Yes 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor/Voyager) Page 39 of 121 



 
 

   

     

 
 

  

   
  

  
 

   
 
 
 

  
  

    

   
   

  

 
 
 

   
 

 
      

 

 
 
 

   
 

  
  

   
 

X

X

X

Action # Title Description Total Funds Contributing 
will be administered by teachers, and results will be disaggregated by 
administrators, program director, teachers and academic counselors. 

Since state data may not be available given the small sample size of 
students required to complete the assessments, i-Ready assessments 
are used to show academic growth. School year 2021-22 i-Ready 3 
summative results indicate 6% of students are on grade level in ELA, 
and 0% in Math. Teachers will use formative i-Ready assessments 
and prescriptive lessons to help students become more academically 
proficient. Teachers will assign i-Ready lessons as part of the required 
classwork to support learning and increase academic proficiency. 

1.7 Maintain students on 
track for Graduation      

Counseling specialist to maintain communication with home districts of 
all students enrolled in Endeavor/Voyager to ensure appropriate 
credits are assigned and minimize loss of credits toward graduation. 
Academic Counselor to facilitate updated Credit Evaluation so that 
teachers can assign coursework.  All students enrolled in 
Endeavor/Voyager at least 15 days are eligible to earn partial credits, 
which will be forwarded to home districts upon release. An Aftercare 
Liaison will assist returning students to home districts for the purposes 
of reengagement and support through graduation. 

$43,177.00 No 

1.8 Support students with 
IEPs 

All teachers receive a daily roster of students with IEPs, which allows 
teachers to make appropriate instructional accommodations for 
students. In addition, the RSP teacher meets individually or in small 
groups with all students with IEPs.  Regular communication between 
core academic teachers and RSP teacher ensures identified students 
are receiving appropriate support.  Support for students can be push-
in or pull-out to provide additional instructional options. 

$500.00 No 

1.9 SED students to 
make academic 

As 0% of SED students are meeting or exceeding standard on SBAC 
assessments for ELA and Math, i-Ready will be used to provide 

$26,537.00 Yes 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor/Voyager) Page 40 of 121 



 
 

   

     

   
   

 

   
  

 

 
  

 
 
 

 

     

 

 

   
 
 

   
 

 

     
  

 
 
 

   
 

 
  

  
 

  
   

   
 

X

X

X

Action # Title Description Total Funds Contributing 
progress as 
measured by i-Ready 
assessments 
(Includes funding 
related to Goal 1, 
Action 6) 

individually prescribed lessons to support subskill weaknesses for 
each student.  Teachers will use formative i-Ready assessments and 
prescriptive lessons to help students become more academically 
proficient. Teachers will assign i-Ready lessons as part of the required 
classwork to support learning and increase academic proficiency. The 
instructional assistant will assist low-performing students with 
additional support.  Additional instructional materials will be purchased 
to support classroom instruction, as needed.  Data from state 
assessments is contingent on a minimum number of students 
completing assessments, so that data is not reliable as it is not 
available on a yearly basis.  An additional teacher will support low-
performing SED students through an additional five periods of weekly 
math instruction. 

1.10 Modify Graduation 
Requirements and 
Grade Level 
Reclassification, as 
needed   

Academic Counselor to grade level reclassify all qualifying students 
based on credits earned, as opposed to years in high school.  In 
addition, academic counselors screen students for AB2306 or other 
appropriate ABs to determine qualification for modified graduation 
requirements.  Upon satisfying requirements for any of the programs, 
appropriate courses will be assigned, as the graduation requirements 
may change.  Counselor to inform counseling specialist and teachers 
to ensure records are updated and enrollment in appropriate courses. 

$0.00 No 

1.11 Increase students 
completing CTE 
Introductory Course  

In order to increase the number of students enrolled in CTE courses, 
an Introduction to Welding course will be provided. These virtual 
welders will allow the CTE instructor to create a live welding scenario 
in a safe environment. 

$27,720.00 Yes 

1.12 Maintain low student 
to teacher ratio 

Student to teacher ratio should be 16:1, but during the 2021-22 school 
year, the ratio was below 7:1. Having an extra teacher allows students 
to receive increased support from all teachers, since case loads are 
lower. SED students will improve academic achievement in ELA and 
Math through the increased support. 

$152,806.00 Yes 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor/Voyager) Page 41 of 121 



 
 

   

     
 
 

 
  

  
  

   

 
 

 
 
 

   
 

 
  

 

 

 
 
 

   
 

 

    

 
  

 

 
 

 
 

   
 

 

 
  

  
 

      
 

X

X

X

Action # Title Description Total Funds Contributing 

1.13 Maintain low student 
to teacher ratio 

Student to teacher ratio should be 16:1, but during the 2021-22 school 
year, Endeavor/Voyager was below 7:1.  Having an extra teacher 
allows students to receive increased individualized support from all 
teachers, since the student to teacher ration is significantly lower. SED 
students are significantly behind grade level as measured by i-Ready 
assessments for ELA and Math. Students will improve academic 
achievement in ELA and Math through the increased support and 
availability of the teachers.  The additional teacher allows students to 
benefit from increased in-person course offerings. 

$137,213.00 Yes 

1.14 Retain Highly 
Effective Teachers 

MCSOS will provide high quality professional development to increase 
teacher and staff effectiveness. Building teacher capacity in this 
manner will increase staff retention and contribute to a positive 
working environment. MCSOS will also offer competitive salaries to 
increase teacher retention. 

$0.00 No 

1.15 Multi-Tiered Support 
Systems (MTSS) 
Professional 
Development    

Based on reflections of prior practice, this new metric/action was 
added for the schoolyear 2022-23. After a needs assessment 
demonstrated low attendance rates in Powerschool, lack of ELA/Math 
progress (SBAC/i-Ready) high SEL concerns (parent LCAP surveys), 
the need for instructional staff trained in Multi-Tier Support Systems 
(MTSS) is evident for the 2022-23 school year. 

$1,800.00 No 

Goal Analysis [2021-22]
An analysis of how this goal was carried out in the previous year. 
A description of any substantive differences in planned actions and actual implementation of these actions. 

The following goal analysis description addresses the substantive differences in planned actions and the actual implementation in goal 1: 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor/Voyager) Page 42 of 121 



 
 

   

  
 

     
 

 
 

 
   

  
   

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
   

  
 

 
 

   
  

 
 

 
   

  
  

  
 

 
 

  

Goal 1, action 2 – While MCSOS planned to purchase online curriculum, such as Odysseyware, for credit recovery purposes, no online 
curriculum was purchased for Endeavor/Voyager for the 2021-22 school year.  Due to the ongoing concerns of the COVID-19 Pandemic, the 
enrollment of incarcerated youth dropped drastically for school year 2020-21 (142 students), and as such, greatly affected Title I Part D 
funding for school year 2021-22.  Because of this low enrollment and greater core curriculum needs, teachers employed other credit recovery 
options for credit-deficient students. 

Goal 1, actions 1 and 4 - MCSOS' goal to reclassify EL students has continued through school year 2021-22 supported by the following 
actions. Substantive differences in planned actions and implementation include the issues of assessment timing, data tracking and 
professional development. Endeavor/Voyager students are assessed using LAS Links, during the beginning of each school year. However, 
due to the high transiency rate (as the average stay for an incarcerated student is 24 days) of EL students entering the program, LAS Links 
data is one-dimensional in nature due to its short window availability. Therefore, tracking progress for EL students after the initial 
administration, is difficult to monitor longitudinally in student preparation for the summative ELPAC assessment in Spring. 

All other actions from goal 1 were implemented without substantive differences. Below are the successes and challenges of goal 1 
implementation: 

Successes and challenges in the implementation of Goal 1, action 1, external professional growth for MCSOS staff members. Due to COVID-
19 pandemic restrictions during the 2021-22 school year, there were fewer external professional development offerings available for teachers 
to attend in person. However, a success was the internal professional development provided on a monthly basis from the MCSOS bilingual 
coordinator for administrators and instructors responsible for effective EL instruction. This network includes teachers and administrators 
discussing ELD instructional strategies, formative and summative student achievement data analysis and frequent student progress 
monitoring. MCSOS will continue seeking external professional development opportunities and monthly meetings will be an ongoing ELD 
support network for teachers. 

Successes and challenges in the implementation of Goal 1, action 2, credit recovery or students. For school year 2021-22, the success is 
that 95 incarcerated students earned 525.5 credits total for an average of 5.53 credits per student. The challenge is that Endeavor/Voyager 
students average only 24 days in Juvenile Hall; thus creating the challenge to allow students ample time to recover such credits as 
necessary. 

Successes and challenges in the implementation of Goal 1, action 3, the success is the opportunity for an Academic Counselor to meet with 
all students in the Cadet Academy, and students enrolled in Endeavor for more than 15 days to complete Individual Progress Plan and 
Career Assessment Survey.  An Academic Counselor also assists graduating high school students with registration at Madera Community 
College and completion of FAFSA documents. The only notable challenge would be if the student is released before a meeting was 
scheduled or able to take place. 

Successes and challenges in the implementation of Goal 1, action 4, reclassification of EL students. A success of this implementation is 
Endeavor/Voyager students are instructed with the same ELA/ELD standards aligned curriculum as CAES general education students and a 
Teacher regularly attends the CAES ELD network of planning and sharing best practices. Students are also able to be assessed with initial 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor/Voyager) Page 43 of 121 



 
 

   

 
  

 

 
  

 
 

  
  

    
 

  
     

 

   
 

 
 

 
     

 
   

   
    

 
 

 
  

  
 

   
  

 

LAS Links diagnostics in the Fall and the summative ELPAC assessments in the Spring. Challenges to implementation include students 
being released prior to the assessment window being open and/or not reaching an ELPAC score of 4. 

Successes and challenges in the implementation of Goal 1, action 5, providing Endeavor/Voyager students with high-quality, standards 
aligned instructional support materials in ELA, Math, ELD, Social Science, and Science. A success is materials include textbooks, StudySync 
(books and software) and other online software/curriculum, which increases rigor and supports academic progress toward proficiency. The 
challenge (as per most recent California School Dashboard results 2019) show that 0% of students are at standard or meeting the 
College/Career Indicator. 

Successes and challenges in the implementation of Goal 1, action 6, focus on moving achieving proficiency on the ELA/Math sections of 
SBAC. Success in implementation includes standards-aligned instruction in ELA and Math for all Endeavor/Voyager students and ELA/Math 
professional growth and training for all Endeavor/Voyager teachers. SBAC results to be released in Summer of 2022. 

Successes and challenges in the implementation of Goal 1, action 7, keeping Endeavor/Voyager students on track for graduation. A 
significant success for this action was the increase in graduates from 3 in 2020-21 to 8 in 2021-22. The challenges remain with students 
coming to Endeavor/Voyager or returning to district with less credits due to the period of transition and/or incarceration. 

Successes and challenges in the implementation of Goal 1, action 8, supporting students with IEPs. Success in implementation includes all 
students with IEPs are provided services by their RSP teacher in accordance with their IEP. 

Successes and challenges in the implementation of Goal 1, action 9, Successes include use of i-Ready to monitor student achievement, 
students having access to embedded intervention lessons and the ability for teachers to utilize both formative and summative assessments 
to monitor student growth and achievement. Progress made by Endeavor/Voyager students showed a 6% growth in ELA on i-Ready 3 
summative but challenges remain in the area of Math, with a 0% proficiency rating for Endeavor/Voyager students in School Year 2021- 22. 

Successes and challenges in the implementation of Goal 1, action 10, modifying graduation requirements and grade-level reclassifications, 
as needed. Successes include the Academic Counselor being able to review and complete, review and reclassify students who qualify for AB 
2306 to reduce the number of credits necessary (Electives) to graduate from 230 to 130. Challenges include student transiency rates that 
interrupt credit recovery. 

Successes and challenges in the implementation of Goal 1, action 11, increasing the number of students completing CTE Introductory 
courses. Successes include to the accessibility of Endeavor/Voyager students to use the virtual welders to obtain CTE credit, along with A-G 
grant funded Online Curricula (Edgenuity) to allow students the opportunity to earn CTE credits. 

Successes and challenges in the implementation of Goal 1, actions 12 and 13, maintaining a low student to teacher ratio. Success includes 
Endeavor/Voyager teachers currently average a 7:1 ratio, but are not to exceed 10:1. 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor/Voyager) Page 44 of 121 



 
 

   

   
   

 

 
        

 
  

 
 

 
 

     
 

  
 

     
 

  
  

   
 

  
  

  
 

     
 

 
    

 
   

        
 

Successes and challenges in the implementation of Goal 1, action 14, retaining highly effective teachers. Success includes maintaining 3 full-
time employed teachers with no current staffing challenges. 

Successes and challenges in the implementation of Goal 1, action 15, Multi-Tiered Support Systems (MTSS) Professional Development. 
Success includes the roll-out of this program in 2022-23. 

An explanation of material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures and/or Planned Percentages of 
Improved Services and Estimated Actual Percentages of Improved Services. 

The following explains material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures and/or Planned Percentages 
of Improved Services and Estimated Actual /or Planned Percentages of Improved Services and Estimated Actual Percentages of Improved 
Services. 

Goal 1, action 2 - While the difference of the budgeted expenditures versus actual expenditures for this action differed by only $6,557.00, the 
budgeted expenditure of $35,000.00 was not used to purchase any online curriculum.  Instead, the actual expenditures included nearly all of 
the $35,000 for increased employee costs.  For the reasons stated in Prompt 1, an online curriculum was not purchased. 

Goal 1, action 4 - The difference of the budgeted expenditure versus actual expenditure for this action came as a result of having to reduce 
the contracted time for MCSOS Bilingual Coordinator by $18,494, which was lower than estimated for school year 2021-22. The demand for 
the Coordinator increased in other areas supported by MCSOS.  Also, a second contributing factor to this material difference resulted from 
LAS Links Assessments purchased using CSI funding instead of using Title I D funds.  Both of these changes resulted in the material 
difference between the Budgeted Expenditure and the Actual Expenditure. 

Goal 1, action 9 - The difference of the budgeted expenditure versus actual expenditure for this action resulted from using CSI funds instead 
of S&C funds for the purchase of i-Ready formative diagnostic assessments.  This purchase was made as a three year agreement (2021-22 
through 2023-24). 

Goal 1, action 11 -The difference of the budgeted expenditure versus actual expenditure for this action resulted from not having to purchase 
an additional virtual welder package to replace the existing package. 

Goal 1, action 12 - The difference of the budgeted expenditure versus actual expenditure for this action resulted from a miscalculation in 
determining the budgeted expenditure for the cost of this staff member.  This miscalculation was realized during the 2022-23 LCAP 
development process.  The estimated actual expenditure is correct after recalculation. 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor/Voyager) Page 45 of 121 



 
 

   

 
 

   
 

  
 

   
 

  
 

    
 

 
 

 
   

 

    
 

 
  

   
 

 
 

  
  

    
 

    
  

 
   

 
 

An explanation of how effective the specific actions were in making progress toward the goal. 

The following actions show effective progress toward Goal 1. 

Goal 1, action 2 - Although MCSOS did not purchase an online curriculum to support the academic needs of credit-deficient students, 
teachers employed other approved curriculum materials and resources, including textbooks and supplemental publisher materials, to meet 
these needs.  To date 95 students have earned 525.5 credits toward graduation with the school year ending June 30, 2022. 

Goal 1, action 3 - An academic counselor will meet with all students in the Cadet Academy, and students enrolled in Endeavor for more than 
15 days to complete Individual Progress Plan and Career Assessment Survey. The Academic Counselor will also assist graduating high 
school students with registration at Madera Community College and completion of FAFSA documents. 

Goal 1, action 4 - Internal professional development is provided on a monthly basis from the MCSOS bilingual coordinator for administrators 
and instructors responsible for effective EL instruction. This ELD network includes teachers and administrators discussing ELD instructional 
strategies, formative and summative student achievement data analysis and frequent student progress monitoring. MCSOS will continue 
seeking external professional development opportunities and monthly meetings will be an ongoing ELD support network for teachers. 

Goal 1, action 5 - Endeavor/Voyager students are provided with with high-quality, standards aligned instructional support materials in ELA, 
Math, ELD, Social Science, and Science. Materials include textbooks, StudySync (books and software) and other online software and 
curriculum. 

Goal 1, actions 6 and 9 - In the school year 2021-22 i-Ready results indicated 0% of Endeavor/Voyager students are on grade level in ELA 
and Math. Teachers will continue to use formative i-Ready assessments and prescriptive lessons to help students become more 
academically proficient. Teachers will assign i-Ready lessons as part of the required classwork to support learning and increase academic 
proficiency. Professional Development, specific to Math Pedagogy and Content, will continue to be provided to staff in the 2022-23 school 
year. 

Goal 1, actions 7 and 10 - A counseling specialist will continue to maintain communication with home districts of all students enrolled in 
Endeavor/Voyager, to ensure appropriate credits are assigned, and minimize the loss of credits toward graduation.  The academic counselor 
facilitates updated credit evaluation so that teachers can assign necessary coursework.  All students enrolled in Endeavor/Voyager for at 
least 15 days are eligible to earn partial credits, which will be forwarded to home districts upon release. An Aftercare Liaison will assist 
returning students to home districts for the purposes of reengagement and support through graduation. The academic counselor will 
reclassify all qualifying students to appropriate grade level, based on credits earned, as opposed to years enrolled in high school.  In addition, 
the academic counselor screens students for AB2306 or other appropriate assembly bills (AB) to determine qualification for modified 
graduation requirements.  Upon satisfying requirements for any of the programs, appropriate courses will be assigned, as the graduation 
requirements may change.  The counselor will inform the counseling specialist and all teachers to ensure student records are updated and 
enrollment is made into appropriate courses. 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor/Voyager) Page 46 of 121 



 
 

   

  
 

  
 

  
 

 

 
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

 
 
        

 
  

 
 

   
 

 
  

 
 

       
  

  
 

   
 

  

Goal 1, action 8 - All teachers receive a daily roster of students with IEPs, which allows teachers to make appropriate instructional 
accommodations for students.  In addition, the RSP teacher meets individually or in small groups with all students with IEPs.  Regular 
communication between core academic teachers and RSP teacher ensures identified students are receiving appropriate support.  Support 
for students can be push-in or pull-out 
to provide additional instructional options. 

Goal 1, action 11 - A second opportunity for students to develop CTE skills involves an afterschool program provided by the Madera County 
Arts Council and facilitated by Madera County Probation department staff members. This grant opportunity is designed to provide students a 
chance to learn both fine arts and construction skills in an afterschool setting. This program will help students develop further construction 
skills involving woodworking and welding to design and construct various projects. While funding for arts and construction materials is 
included in the grant itself, support is needed in procuring commonly used power tools. 

Goal 1, actions 12 and 13 - Student to teacher ratio should be 16:1, but during the 2021-22 school year, the ratio was below 7:1. Having an 
extra teacher allows students to receive increased support from all teachers, since case loads are lower. SED students will improve 
academic achievement in ELA and Math through the increased support. 

Goal 1, action 14 - Professional Development. MCSOS will provide high quality professional development to increase teacher and staff 
effectiveness. Building teacher capacity in this manner will increase staff retention and contribute to a positive working environment. MCSOS 
will also offer competitive salaries to increase teacher retention. 

A description of any changes made to the planned goal, metrics, desired outcomes, or actions for the coming year that resulted from 
reflections on prior practice. 

There were no changes in Goal 1. However, based on reflections of prior practice, the following changes were made to the metrics, desired 
outcomes and actions: 

Goal 1, metric 1 - The metric was changed to include "staff" as well as teachers receiving professional development. 

Goal 1, metric 2 - The metric was changed to evaluate the average number of credits earned by incarcerated students while in the 
Endeavor/Voyager program.  Goal 1, action 2 – While the population of incarcerated students has yet to return to pre-pandemic levels, 245 
students in 2019-20 and 95 students in 2021-22, credit recovery needs were met by MCSOS teachers in the core instructional areas.  
However, there were challenges to not having expanded curriculum offerings available through online curriculum platforms.  The Edgenuity 
platform offers students opportunities to access core A – G approved courses, electives courses, and CTE curriculum. MCSOS will purchase 
Edgenuity online curriculum for school year 2022-23 using A – G Completion Grant funding. 

Goal 1, metric 3 - Baseline data was changed to "Baseline data unavailable due to 2020-21 COVID-19 protocols for incarcerated youth." 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor/Voyager) Page 47 of 121 



 
 

   

 
   

 
     

 
 

 
  

 
 

  

  
 

  
    

      
  

 
  

 
 

 
        

 
 

 
 

 

Goal 1, metric 4 - Baseline was changed to "0% of EL students have been reclassified in 2022-21." 

Goal 1, metric 6 - Baseline was changed to "SBAC data not available for baseline due to minimum cohort requirement of 11 students not 
met." 

Goal 1, metric 7 - The metric was changed to "Number of students graduating with a high school diploma."  The desired outcome was also 
changed to, "All students fulfilling graduation requirements will receive a high school diploma from Endeavor/Voyager." 

Goal 1, metric 9 - The change was made with the removal of LAS Links as a local indicator, " Percentage of students showing growth on i-
Ready assessments in ELA and Math." The baseline was changed to "Baseline data unavailable due 2020-21 COVID-19 protocols for 
incarcerated youth." The desired outcome was also changed to, "100% of Endeavor/Voyager students will show growth on i-Ready 
diagnostic assessments in ELA and Math." 

Goal 1, metric 10 - The metric was changed to "Number of students screened to quality for modified graduation track or grade-level 
reclassification." The baseline was changed to "All 11th and 12th grade students were screened in 2020-21 school year." Finally, the 
outcome was changed to "All students in 11th and 12th grades will be assessed or screened to determine qualification for grade-level 
reclassification or modified graduation requirements. 

Goal 1, metric 11 - The baseline was changed to, "0 students accessed virtual welding course during 2020-21 school year due to COVID-19 
protocols for incarcerated youth." 

Goal 1, metric 13 - A new metric was added as, "Percentage of teachers trained in Multi-Tier Systems of Support (MTSS) for school year 
2022-23." 

A report of the Total Estimated Actual Expenditures for last year’s actions may be found in the Annual Update Table. A report of the 
Estimated Actual Percentages of Improved Services for last year’s actions may be found in the Contributing Actions Annual Update 
Table. 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor/Voyager) Page 48 of 121 



 
 

   

 
 

 
 

  
    

       
 

   
 

 
  

  
  

  
    

       
 

 
 

      

    
  

  
 
  

     
 

  

  

 
  

  
 

 

 
 

 

  

 

Goals and Actions 

Goal 
Goal # Description 

2 MCSOS will provide resources and services to improve the social-emotional well-being of each student and provide a safe 
and conducive learning environment.  

An explanation of why the LEA has developed this goal. 
Many incarcerated students have a history of academic struggles and high absenteeism rates, so this goal aims to target the whole child to 
account for academic, social-emotional, and behavioral well-being.  An annual survey will measure whether students, teachers, principal and 
educational support staff feel they have best supports in an emotionally, physically and cognitively safe learning environment.  Through 
regularly scheduled professional learning opportunities, all educational staff will develop research-based best practices to support the social-
emotional needs of incarcerated youth.  Partnerships with Madera County Department of Behavioral Health (and potentially other agencies) 
will provide relevant SEL training to MCSOS teachers, administrators and support staff directly affecting students in Endeavor and Voyager. 
In addition, external learning opportunities allows students to extend educational lessons beyond the classroom, since many seldom have 
those opportunities in their home districts.  Collaboration with the Madera County Probation department facilitates referrals of students 
needing additional mental health supports, while school counselors provide academic supports in progress toward graduation, transition to 
home districts, registration for community college, financial aid applications, and/or other post-graduation opportunities.  The inclusion of 
these SEL supports will contribute to progress toward graduation and reduce chronic absenteeism.  

Measuring and Reporting Results 
Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome Desired Outcome for 

2023–24 
1. Student to teacher 
ratio. 

Student to teacher 
ratio is 7:1 during 20-
21 

Student to teacher 
ratio is 7:1 during 
2021-22 SY. 

Maintain student to 
teacher ratio no 
greater than 12:1. 

2. Number of annual 
presentations to 
students. 

2 presentations were 
made in school year 
2020-21 

There were 2 student 
presentations held in 
school year 2021-22. 

Maintain or increase 
presentations to 
students on topics of 
interest and need. 

3. Percentage of 
Chronic Absenteeism.     

0% of students are 
chronically absent in 
2020-21. 

0% of students were 
chronically absent in 
2021-22. 

Maintain chronic 
absenteeism rate of 
0%. 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor/Voyager) Page 49 of 121 



 
 

   

      

        

 

 

 

  

 

     
 

 

 
 

   
  

  

 
   

 

 

 

 

  

 

   

 
 

  

 
      

 
 

 

 

 

   

 

 
 
     

 

  

 

  

 

 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome Desired Outcome for 
2023–24 

4. Facilities Inspection FIT in October 2020 FIT in October 2021- Maintain FIT score of 
Tool (FIT)  score. scored 

Endeavor/Voyager in 
"Good Repair" 

22 scored 
Endeavor/Voyager in 
"Good Repair" 

"Good Repair" 
annually. 

5. Suspension rate.  Suspension rate was 
2.6% in School year 
2020-21 per 
DataQuest. 

Suspension rate was 
.03% in school year 
2021-22. 

Suspension rate will 
be 0% annually. 

6. Percentage of 
students participating 
in learning 
opportunities outside 
of the classroom. 

In school year 2019-
20, 100% of students 
participated in 
extended learning 
opportunities, outside 
the classroom which 
include, but not limited 
to field trips, essay 
and poetry contests, 
and athletic 
competitions. 

In school year 2021-
22, 100% of students 
participated in 
learning opportunities 
outside the classroom. 
These included 
"Wreaths Across 
America," 
Poetry/Essay contest, 
and a Mushball 
Tournament. 

100% of students will  
participate in 
extended learning 
opportunities outside 
the classroom. 

7. Percentage of Spring 2021 LCAP CAES student LCAP 100% of students will 
students stating a survey states 95% of surveys in Jan. 2022 state they are 
positive school students feel state 92.3% of encouraged to 
environment.  encouraged to 

succeed. 
students feel 
encouraged to be 
successful by school 
staff. 

succeed. 

8. Number of SEL In school year 2020- In school year 2021- Increase to at least 6 
presentations to staff 21 there were 3 22, staff has received SEL presentations by 
by Madera County presentations to 5 SEL professional the 2023-24 school 
Behavioral Health and MCSOS staff. growth and year. 
other agencies.   development 

trainings. 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor/Voyager) Page 50 of 121 



 
 

   

 
 

     
 

 
        

  

 
 

  
 

 
 
 
 

   
 

 
      

 
 

     
 

 
 

 
 

   
 

 
    

   
 

 

   
  

 
 

   
 

X

X

X

Actions 

Action # Title Description Total Funds Contributing 
2.1 Maintain a low 

Teacher to Student 
Ratio 

MCSOS will maintain a low teacher to student ratio to better support 
students academically, socially, emotionally, and behaviorally.  
Current ratio is lower than 10:1, allowing students to receive increased 
academic support from teachers.  In addition, an Instructional 
Assistant provides additional academic support to Unduplicated 
Students. Program Director maintains communication with Deputy 
Chief Probation Officer to discuss changes in student enrollment. 

This Action is addressed in Goal 1, Action 12 

$56,564.00 Yes 

2.2 Counseling 
Presentations  

Academic counselors present or invite guest presenters to provide 
information on resources and services available to students upon their 
release, and some that may be available during their incarceration. 
Presentations include topics such as workforce preparation, college 
registration, financial aid, Job Corps, and other topics of interest.  In 
addition, Rotary Club speakers are invited by the ELA teacher to 
provide valuable information on resources in Madera County.  
"Wreaths Across America" program is also invited to present so that 
students can support the organization's efforts. 

$0.00 No 

2.3 Maintain Low Chronic 
Absenteeism Rate   

Students in Endeavor/Voyager have historically high levels of truancy 
and academic struggles in their districts of residency.  All teachers will 
create a positive learning environment to encourage students to attend 
class. Although students are incarcerated, they have the option to not 
attend class. Teachers, academic counselor and Program Director to 
participate in monthly Treatment Team meetings with corrections staff 
to learn of issues and supports for students who are struggling with 
incarceration, which can impact school attendance. 

$1,000.00 No 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor/Voyager) Page 51 of 121 



 
 

   

     
 

     
 

 
 

  
    

   
 

  
 
 

   
 

 
   

 
 

  
 
 

   
 

 
     

 
  

  
 

  
 
 

   
 

 

      

 

  
 

   
 

X

X

X

X

Action # Title Description Total Funds Contributing 
2.4 Maintain access to 

technology   
Students in Endeavor/Voyager will have access to curriculum and 
resources in a cybersafe environment and use technology 
appropriately.  GoGuardian ensures students work on appropriate 
internet sites only.  Students will be better prepared to access online 
assessments, such as ELPAC and SBAC state assessments, along 
with local assessments.  In addition, online courses will allow students 
to stay on course to graduate in accordance with home district 
requirements. In an effort to support student learning and academic 
proficiency, teachers will have access to upgraded hardware and 
software, toner and ink cartridges to print student data results. 
Professional Learning will continue to provide pedagogy and 
resources for all teachers and students. 

$5,200.00 No 

2.5 Reduce Suspension 
Rate 

Reduce suspensions by creating opportunities for students to increase 
connectedness to school. Regular communication with teachers, 
administrators, and families will help support students' needs. 
Behavioral concerns will be addressed and communicated to provide 
appropriate interventions. Parent conferences help communication 
between home and school, as well as other reporting opportunities like 
student report cards, progress reporting and regular calls home.  
Communication and collaboration with correctional staff will also 
contribute to students feeling more connected to school. 

$300.00 No 

2.6 Increase Student 
Participation   

Extended learning opportunities, such as field trips and guest 
presentations allow students more enriched learning. Teachers will 
plan field trips and guest presenters that enhance student learning and 
increase connectedness to school. Some field trip destinations now 
allow for virtual access, which can also contribute to learning goals. 

$1,000.00 Yes 

2.7 Maintain a Positive 
Learning 
Environment  

When students feel physically, cognitively, and emotionally safe, they 
are better able to optimize their learning capacity. ParentSquare 
allows safe and effective communication between the school and 
parents. Teachers will teach, model, and practice social-emotional 

$9,000.00 Yes 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor/Voyager) Page 52 of 121 



 
 

   

     
    

  

  

 
  

  
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
       

 

  
 
 

   
 

 

 
  

  
 

 
 

 
   

 
 

 
    

 
 

 
 

   
 

X

Action # Title Description Total Funds Contributing 
skills that promote a safe learning environment. After two years of 
being in the pandemic, academic counselors will provide lessons on a 
variety of topics that affect social-emotional learning and better equip 
students to cope with challenges to academic achievement. 
Academic counselor, RSP teacher and school psychologist to provide 
services to students to support academic needs and teach skills to 
cope with difficulties.  A small student to teacher ratio also contributes 
to positive school environment by allowing teachers to develop 
stronger teacher to student relationships. 

2.8 Increase 
collaboration with 
Madera County 
Department of 
Behavioral Health 
(MCDBH) 

In order to support the SEL needs of Endeavor/Voyager students, 
MCSOS will collaborate with MCDBH to provide additional SEL 
professional development to MCSOS staff.  These trainings are free of 
charge and can be incorporated into regularly scheduled PD time. 

$0.00 No 

Goal Analysis [2021-22]
An analysis of how this goal was carried out in the previous year. 
A description of any substantive differences in planned actions and actual implementation of these actions. 

After an analysis of how this goal was carried out in the previous year, there were no substantive differences in planned actions or actual 
implementations of these actions. Successes and challenges in implementation include: 

Goal 2, action 1 - The student to teacher ratio remaining lower than 10:1 is a success of the program. 

Goal 2, action 2 - Counselors being able to present or invite presenters to students is a success of the program. 

Goal 2, action 3 - The low percentage of chronic absenteeism in the Endeavor/Voyager program is also a success of the program. 

Goal 2, action 4 - All students having access to instructional technology, including GoGuardian, i-Ready and LAS Links remains a success as 
well as all teachers having updated technology and resources. 

Goal 2, action 5 - The suspension rate remaining lower than the previous year and the state average continues to be a program success. 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor/Voyager) Page 53 of 121 



 
 

   

  
 

   
   

 
  

  
        

 
  

 
 

 
 

    
     

  
        

 
 

 

   
 

   
 

   
 

 
 

   
  

 
 

 

Goal 2, action 6 - With the challenge of COVID-19 restrictions, Endeavor/Voyager students were not able to participate in learning 
opportunities outside of the classroom with the same frequency as pre-COVID conditions. 

Goal 2, action 7 - A major success based on LCAP survey results, was the percentage (92.3%) of students indicating they were in a positive 
school environment and encouraged to be successful. 

Goal 2, action 8 - Another major success was the high number of SEL presentations (5 total) provided to CAES staff in 2021-22, by the 
Madera County Behavioral Health Department and other agencies. 

An explanation of material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures and/or Planned Percentages of 
Improved Services and Estimated Actual Percentages of Improved Services. 

The following explains material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures and/or Planned Percentages 
of Improved Services and Estimated Actual /or Planned Percentages of Improved Services and Estimated Actual Percentages of Improved 
Services. 

Goal 2, action 1 - The difference of the budgeted expenditure versus actual expenditure for this action resulted due to the budgeted 
expenditure for the cost of the Instructional Assistant was assumed to be captured in a different action, but it was not.  Upon the evaluation of 
Estimated Actual Expenditures, it was determined the actual expenditure should be noted to Goal 2, action1. 

An explanation of how effective the specific actions were in making progress toward the goal. 

The following actions have demonstrated making progress towards reaching goal: 

Goal 2, action 1 - The student to teacher ratio has remained lower than 10:1. 

Goal 2, action 2 - Counselors were able to present of invite presenters to students annually. 

Goal 2, action 3 - The percentage of chronic absenteeism in the Endeavor/Voyager program remains low. 

Goal 2, action 4 - All students had access to instructional technology, including GoGuardian, i-Ready and LAS Links.  All teachers have 
updated technology and resources. 

Goal 2, action 5 - The suspension rate remains lower than the previous year and the state average. 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor/Voyager) Page 54 of 121 



 
 

   

  
 

   
  

 
  

  
        

 
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

    
   

 
    

        
 

 
 

 
 

Goal 2, action 6 - In spite of COVID-19 restrictions, 100% of students of Endeavor/Voyager were able to participate safety in learning 
opportunities outside of the classroom. 

Goal 2, action 7 - Based on LCAP survey results, the percentage of students indicating they were in a positive school environment and 
encouraged to be successful was 92.3%. 

Goal 2, action 8 - There was a significantly high number of SEL presentations (5 total) provided to staff in 2021-22, by Madera County 
Behavioral Health and other agencies. 

A description of any changes made to the planned goal, metrics, desired outcomes, or actions for the coming year that resulted from 
reflections on prior practice. 

There were no changes to Goal 2. However, based on reflections made on prior practice, there were changes to the following actions, 
metrics and desired outcomes. 

Goal 2, action 6 - The baseline was changed to,  "In school year 2019-20, 100% of students participated in extended learning opportunities, 
outside the classroom which include, but not limited to field trips, essay and poetry contests, and athletic competitions." The outcome was 
also changed to, "100% of students will participate in extended learning opportunities outside the classroom." 

Goal 2, action 7 - The baseline was changed to, "The Spring 2021 LCAP states 95% of students feel encouraged to succeed." 

A report of the Total Estimated Actual Expenditures for last year’s actions may be found in the Annual Update Table. A report of the 
Estimated Actual Percentages of Improved Services for last year’s actions may be found in the Contributing Actions Annual Update 
Table. 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor/Voyager) Page 55 of 121 



 
 

   

 
 

 
 

  
    

        
 

   
 

  
 

  
  

  
  

   
         

 

 
 

      

     

  

 

 
 

 

 

  
 

 

  

   

 
 

 

   
 

 

Goals and Actions 

Goal 
Goal # Description 

3 Increase parent involvement by developing meaningful partnerships and participation outreach, in order to increase 
student engagement, achievement and social-emotional well-being. 

An explanation of why the LEA has developed this goal. 
Academic success of students is greatly influenced by strong relationships with at least one parent or guardian.  Using feedback from parents 
to increase specific program services or consider services that are not offered will contribute to developing the best academic program for all 
students. Due to the transient nature of incarcerated students, establishing strong school to family relationships will lead to greater student 
engagement, improved academic success and increased social-emotional well-being of students.  Providing families and other prosocial 
adults with information about the unique academic needs of their students through trainings and other supports will develop their capacity to 
advocate for their needs.  Research continues to highlight the importance of parents in the academic success of their children, and MCSOS 
considers strong partnerships with all parents, particularly parents of English Learners and SED students as vital for students in 
Endeavor/Voyager.  Teachers will connect with families to share academic progress of students, as well as concerns.  Parents will be 
encouraged to attend student recognition ceremonies, graduation ceremonies, as well parent advisory committees (PAC). 

Measuring and Reporting Results 
Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome Desired Outcome for 

2023–24 
1. Average 
percentage of Foster 
Youth caregiver 
participation in 
monthly workshops.   

Baseline data 
unavailable due to 
2020-21 COVID-19 
protocols. 
To be established in 
2021-22. 

For the school year 
2021-22, the average 
percentage of Madera 
County Foster Youth 
caregivers who 
participated in monthly 
caregiver workshops 
was 4%. 

On average, 25% of 
caregivers/parents will 
participate in monthly 
parent workshops. 

2. Percentage of 
caregivers who 
believe they have the 
capacity to meet the 
educational and 

Baseline was 
generated in 2021-22 
due to COVID 
restrictions. 83% of 
caregivers believe that 

Spring, 2022 was the 
first time caregivers 
were surveyed for 
feedback regarding 
whether they  believe 

100% of surveyed 
caregivers believe 
they have the capacity 
to meet the 
educational and 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor/Voyager) Page 56 of 121 



 
 

   

      
 

    

 
 

 

 
 

  

 

 

 

  

   

  
 

 

  

   
 

 

  

        
 

 

   
 

 

  
 

 
  

        

 
 

   

 
 

  
 

        

 
 
 
 

 

   
  

  

 

 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome Desired Outcome for 
2023–24 

social-emotional 
needs of students in 
foster care (via Annual 
Caregiver feedback 
survey). 

they have the capacity 
to meet the 
educational and 
social-emotional 
needs of students in 
foster care. 

they have the capacity 
to meet the 
educational and 
social-emotional 
needs of students in 
foster care. 83% of 
respondents felt that 
they do have the 
capacity to support 
foster youth. 

social-emotional 
needs of students in 
foster care. 

3. Percentage of 0% of Teachers made 100% of Teachers 100% of teachers will 
teachers making 
PowerSchool log 
entries. 

log entries in 2020-21. were provided access 
to Powerschool to log 
entries in 2021-22 

make log entries into 
PowerSchool. 

4. Percentage of 0% of parents 1% of parents Increase parent 
parents attending attended school attended a PAC attendance to school 
school events. events or advisory 

committee meetings in 
2020-21. 

meeting in February 
2022. 

events or advisory 
meetings by 10% 
annually. 

5. Percentage of 
parents using 
ParentSquare to 
communicate with 
school. 

ParentSquare was 
implemented in 2021-
22. 

83% of parents are in 
contact with teachers 
via ParentSquare 
texting feature. 

Increase percentage 
of parents using 
ParentSquare to 
communicate with 
school. 

6. Percentage of 
parents of EL and 
SED students 
attending 
Endeavor/Voyager 
Parent Advisory 
Committee (PAC) 
meetings. 

0% of parents of EL 
and SED students 
attend Parent 
Advisory Committee 
(PAC) in 
2020-21. 

1% of parents 
attended a PAC 
meeting in February. 

Parent participation 
for EL and SED 
students will increase 
at least 10% annually. 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor/Voyager) Page 57 of 121 



 
 

   

 
 

     
  

 
 

        

 

  
 

  
 
 

   
 

 
 

     

 
 

 
 
 

   
 

 
        

 

  

 

 
  

 
 

   
 

 
        

 

   
 

X

X

X

X

Actions 

Action # Title Description Total Funds Contributing 
3.1 Build CAES Foster 

and Homeless 
parent/caregiver 
capacity to support 
the educational and 
social-emotional 
needs of youth. 

Coordinate monthly workshops to inform caregivers about the unique 
needs of Foster and Homeless Youth.  Workshop topics include 
AB490/McKinney-Vento, overview of resources and support services, 
trauma informed Strategies for Behavior at Home, Ensuring Healthy 
Relationships for Youth, Suicide Awareness, Supporting Youth 
through Early College Awareness and Preparation, the Special 
Education Process, and Human Trafficking Awareness; Ensure 
caregiver accessibility by providing virtual opportunities to participate. 

$300,781.00 No 

3.2 Document Home-
School 
Communication     

Documentation of all communication in PowerSchool by teachers on a 
daily basis for students on their schedule. Administrators, counselors, 
and other support staff will also log communication with students and 
parents. Documentation will contribute to effective communication by 
all staff, especially administrators and academic counselors, while 
meeting with parents to discuss successes or concerns about their 
child's academic progress. 

$0.00 No 

3.3 Endeavor/Voyager 
School Events 

Increase parent participation at school events and informational 
meetings to support identified needs of families. Voyager hosts Cadet 
Academy Graduation ceremonies throughout the year and parents will 
be invited to attend.  Parents can attend athletic competitions or 
academic competitions as well.  There are additional advisory 
committees for students and families to provide input on 
programmatic improvements. Families requiring transportation will be 
provided Madera Area Express tickets/vouchers to access 
transportation to attend school events. 

$200.00 No 

3.4 Parents Attending 
School Events 

Program Director to work with correctional staff to make 
accommodations for school/student related meetings to be held on-
site to increase parent attendance.  Input from families will help 
establish informational meeting topics of interest to provide families 

$0.00 No 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor/Voyager) Page 58 of 121 



 
 

   

     
 

 

 
 
 

 

       

 
  

 
 

  
  

 
 
 

   
 

 
    

 
 

  

 

 
 
 

   
 

 

 
  

  
 

  

  

X

X

Action # Title Description Total Funds Contributing 
with resources and skills to support their student's academic and 
social-emotional needs.  Partnerships with Madera County 
Department of Public/Behavioral Health will provide local resources 
accessible to families in Madera County. 

3.5 Promote School 
Communication with 
Families 

ParentSquare, which allows for two-way communication between 
school and home, and phone calls for school events  will be used to 
contact all families. All communication will be translated to families' 
preferred languages, currently English and Spanish. Translations of 
announcements and documents through ParentSquare will also 
provide opportunities for parents to provide feedback through surveys 
distributed through ParentSquare. 

$0.00 No 

3.6 Increase feedback 
from EL Parents 

MCSOS will increase participation of EL parents through personal 
invitations via phone calls from administrators, academic counselors, 
or other support staff. Parent consultation and feedback meetings for 
the purpose of EL reclassification will also provide opportunities for 
parents to provide feedback. ParentSquare translates communications 
to the language of EL students' parents.  Administrator, academic 
counselor, instructional assistant and support staff are Spanish-
speaking, which is the primary language of more than 99% of EL 
students enrolled in Endeavor/Voyager. 

$0.00 No 

Goal Analysis [2021-22]
An analysis of how this goal was carried out in the previous year. 
A description of any substantive differences in planned actions and actual implementation of these actions. 

An analysis of how this goal was carried out in the previous year A description of any substantive differences in planned actions and actual 
implementation of these actions: There were no substantive difference in the planning or implementation of this goal.  Monthly county-wide 
workshops were coordinated and provided to inform caregivers about the unique needs of Foster Youth.  Workshop topics included 
AB490/Resources and Supports Overview, Trauma-Informed Strategies for Behavior at Home, Ensuring Healthy Relationships for Youth, 
Suicide Awareness, Supporting Youth through Early College Awareness and Preparation, the Special Education Process, and Human 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor/Voyager) Page 59 of 121 



 
 

   

  

  
  

 
  

  
  

 
 

   
 

 
  

    
 

  
   

 
    

  
 

    
  

    
        

 
  

 
 

 
 

    
 

 

Trafficking Awareness.  Child care and translation services were provided during each workshop to ensure access to workshops.  83% of 
caregivers who responded to a survey believe that they have the capacity to meet the educational and social-emotional needs of students in 
foster care. Monthly workshops will continue during the 2022-2023 school year.  Topics and guest speakers will be identified through 
caregiver survey feedback.  Challenges and successes in the implementation of Goal 3 include: 

Goal 3, action 1 - Success in this action lies in the growth in progress of higher participation being made this year with positive survey results 
at 83% of caregivers believing that they have the capacity to support the educational and social-emotional needs of students in foster care. 
The challenge continues to rest in the number of responses returned on Parent Square and the decline of participation in a virtual format 
coming out of COVID restriction protocols. 

Goal 3, action 2 - Challenges in this implementation include the daily use of PowerSchool by Endeavor/Voyager teachers. Success is these 
teachers will utilize for the 2022-23. 

Goal 3, action 3 - This action proved successful in the attendance of parents to celebratory ceremonies. The challenge continues to be the 
number of parents involved in PAC/SSC/ELAC and all other educational partners. 

Goal 3, action 4 - This action holds challenges in the number and % of parents attending school events. This continues to be an issue and is 
being addressed by increased advertisement and communication to attend. 

Goal 3, action 5 - This action was deemed successful as 83% of parents are in contact with teachers via the ParentSquare texting feature. 
The challenge remains in the follow-up of attending school activities/events. 

Goal 3, action 6 - This action is deemed unsuccessful as there was only a 1% increase towards reaching the goal. All communication is 
provided for EL parents in Spanish on ParentSquare and all surveys were sent out in Spanish as well.  Communication will continue for EL 
parents in Spanish on ParentSquare, phone calls for events, and staff available to translate for meetings, IEPs, etc. 

An explanation of material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures and/or Planned Percentages of 
Improved Services and Estimated Actual Percentages of Improved Services. 

The following explains material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures and/or Planned Percentages 
of Improved Services and Estimated Actual /or Planned Percentages of Improved Services and Estimated Actual Percentages of Improved 
Services. 

Goal 3, action 1 - The the difference of the budgeted expenditure versus actual expenditure for this action resulted from      Change due to 
cost overestimation (high) 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor/Voyager) Page 60 of 121 



 
 

   

     
  

        
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
     

    
 

  
   

 
   

 
 

  
 

 
 

   

   
        

 
  

 
 

 
 

 
  

   
 

Goal 3, action 6 - The difference of the budgeted expenditure versus actual expenditure for this action came as a result of having the actual 
expenditure of this action included in Goal 1, action 4. 

An explanation of how effective the specific actions were in making progress toward the goal. 

The following actions were deemed effective in making progress towards the goal: 

Goal 3, action 1 - This action was determined effective as the program is coming out of COVID restriction protocols. Progress in participation 
is being made. 

Goal 3, action 2 - This action was deemed effective in making progress towards the goal.  83% of caregivers who responded to a caregiver 
feedback survey believe that they have the capacity to support the educational and social-emotional needs of students in foster care. 

Goal 3, action 3 - The action was deemed not effective by the LEA, but making progress towards reaching the goal. Increased parent 
involvement will be the target focus of the 2022-23 school year. 

Goal 3, action 4 - This action was deemed not effective as there was only a 1% increase towards reaching the goal. COVID-19, 
communication strands. 

Goal 3, action 5 - This action was deemed effective as 83% of parents are in contact with teachers via the ParentSquare texting feature. 
Feedback from 
an Endeavor/Voyager parent stating 

Goal 3, action 6 - This action was deemed not effective as there was only a 1% increase towards reaching the goal. However, all 
communication is provided for EL parents in Spanish on ParentSquare, all surveys were sent out in Spanish as well.  Communication will 
continue for EL parents in Spanish on ParentSquare, phone calls for events, and staff available to translate for meetings, IEPs, etc. 

A description of any changes made to the planned goal, metrics, desired outcomes, or actions for the coming year that resulted from 
reflections on prior practice. 

There were no changes to Goal 3. However, based on reflections made from prior practices, the following changes were made to metrics, 
actions or desired outcomes: 

Goal 3, metric 1 - The metric was changed from tracking a number to tracking a percentage to ensure congruity between metric and desired 
outcome. The baseline was changed to, "Baseline data unavailable due to 2020-21 COVID-19 protocols." 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor/Voyager) Page 61 of 121 



 
 

   

  
 

 
    

  
 

 
 

  
  

        
 

 
 

 
 

Goal 3, metric 2 - There is no change in the metric. Baseline was changed to 2021-22 school year due to COVID restrictions in 2020-21. 

Goal 3, metric 3 - The metric was changed to, "Percentage of teachers making PowerSchool log entries." The baseline was also changed to, 
"0% of teachers made log entries in 2020-21." The 1-year progress indicator was changed to, "100% of Teachers were provided access to 
Powerschool for logging parent contacts." Finally, the desired outcome was changed to, "100% of teachers will make log entries into 
PowerSchool." 

Goal 3, metric 5 - The metric was changed to, "Percentage of parents using ParentSquare to communicate with school." The baseline was 
also changed to, "ParentSquare was implemented in 2021-22."  The desired outcome was changed to "Increase percentage of parents using 
ParentSquare to communicate with school." 

A report of the Total Estimated Actual Expenditures for last year’s actions may be found in the Annual Update Table. A report of the 
Estimated Actual Percentages of Improved Services for last year’s actions may be found in the Contributing Actions Annual Update 
Table. 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor/Voyager) Page 62 of 121 



 
 

   

 
 

 
 

  
             

 

   
 

      

 
 

    
  

  
 

    
 

 
 

  
  

   

  
 

 

     
 

  
    

   
 

    

Goals and Actions 

Goal 
Goal # Description 

4 Facilitate the county-wide coordination of services for the educational success of students in foster care. 

An explanation of why the LEA has developed this goal. 
The educational outcomes of students in foster care continue to be of concern not only statewide, but, locally as well.  A low percentage of 
students in foster care graduate from high school, and, although most Foster Youth say they want to go to college, very few do.  Of those 
who enroll in a post-secondary program, very few successfully complete.  Additionally, students in foster care often change placements, 
impacting their academic and social-emotional success and well-being.  Students in foster care consistently perform low in ELA and Math 
state assessments. Ensuring students in foster care receive the necessary information and support to graduate from high school and to be 
prepared for college/career is vital.  Due to the high mobility of Foster Youth, establishing county-wide policies and procedures to address 
school stability and the immediate enrollment of Foster Youth is critical.  Providing LEAs and other stakeholders with information about the 
unique needs of Foster Youth, trainings, and support to develop their capacity to advocate for and support this group of youth is critical for 
the stability and success off our students in foster care.  The Foster Youth Services Coordinating Program works to ensure the county-wide 
coordination of services for foster youth to ensure school stability and, thus, college/career readiness and academic and social-emotional 
success. 

Building the capacity of local LEAs to understand the unique needs of students in care will facilitate the identification of barriers faced by this 
population and, thus, facilitate the identification of strategies to minimize those barriers.  An annual LEA feedback survey will measure 
whether liaisons/LEAs feel they have the knowledge and tools to best support foster youth academically and social-emotionally.  Through 
professional development and training opportunities, gathering of and sharing best practices, case management, policy review/development, 
grade level transition support and through the provision of academic support services such as tutoring, the foster youth services program 
expects that LEAs will have sufficient knowledge, tools, and strategies to minimize the rate of school mobility and improve the academic and 
social outcomes of foster youth.  Additionally, helping LEAs understand how to ensure school stability through "best interested determination" 
is critical to the academic/social well-being of students in care.  Making Foster Youth enrollment/mobility tools accessible such as the Foster 
Focus database will facilitate the monitoring of students in care as potential changes in placement occur.  The completion of a county-wide 
interagency agreement outlining a common procedure in making "best interest determinations" and outlining the processes used in the 
development of a transportation plan (to maintain school of origin) will ensure that a consistent system and process is used.  On-going 
professional development and Foster Youth Executive Advisory Council meetings provide a consistent venue through which new information 
and best practices are shared, helping to build capacity and ensuring the collaboration and facilitation of county-wide foster youth services. 

Through the development and implementation of county-wide college and career readiness opportunities including policies to ensure 
accessibility to summer school, credit recovery, A-G/CTE/AP/Honors courses, dual enrollment courses, etc., as well as through college visits, 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor/Voyager) Page 63 of 121 



 
 

   

   
    

   
    

  
 

 

 
 

  
    

         
 

 
 

      
  

    
 

  

 

 

    

 
 

case management, grade level transition services, work experience, and student workshops, students in foster care have the opportunity to 
participate in activities that will help them become college and career ready and informed about post-secondary options.  They will learn 
about the paths necessary to take based on their individual interests.  Additionally, monthly caregiver workshops will help caregivers stay 
informed about an array of topics and are designed to provide them with tools and strategies to support the academic and social success of 
students. An annual caregiver survey will measure whether they feel they have the capacity to meet the social and academic needs of all 
foster youth. 

The combination of ensuring LEAs have the capacity to support the needs of foster youth, including ensuring their school stability and 
academic/social-emotional success, as well as ensuring that foster youth are college and career ready and that caregivers have the 
knowledge, tools, and support to address the academic and social-emotional needs of youth in their care is the goal of Madera County's 
Foster Youth Services. Through the coordination of stakeholder, caregiver, and student activities and services as indicated below, the Foster 
Youth Services Program expects that Madera County foster youth will have the opportunities they need to maximize their potential 
academically and develop a post-secondary plan that they will be able to successfully transition into upon graduating from high school. 

Measuring and Reporting Results 
Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome Desired Outcome for 

2023–24 
1. Percentage of Survey to be Survey conducted 100% of district 
LEA/district liaisons conducted in Spring April, 2022. 100% of liaisons feel they have 
who feel they have the 2022 due to COVID- LEA/district liaisons the capacity to meet 
capacity to meet the 19. responded that they the academic and 
academic and social- feel they have the social-emotional 
emotional needs of capacity to meet the needs of Foster Youth 
Foster Youth in their academic and social-
district (via Annual emotional needs of 
LEA feedback survey)  foster youth in their 

district. Half of the 
respondents 
indicated, however, 
that they would like 
additional support 
including: 
*increased awareness 
of community 
resources 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor/Voyager) Page 64 of 121 



 
 

   

      

 
 

  
 

 
 

    

  

 
 

  

 

 

 

  

 

  
 

    

 

 

 
 

 
 

  
 

 
 

 

  

 

 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome Desired Outcome for 
2023–24 

*more professional 
development 
*assistance to provide 
case management 
services for students 
*assistance to 
coordinate post-
secondary preparation 
activities/events 

2. School stability rate 
(as measured in 
DataQuest) 

52.6% of Madera 
County Foster Youth 
were determined to 
have a stable 
enrollment during the 
academic year. (2018-
2019 CDE DataQuest 
Report) 

LEA has begun 
tracking mobility using 
the new CDE 
Dataquest Stability 
Rate tool. 2020-2021 
CDE DataQuest 
Report indicates that 
60.2% of Madera 
County Foster Youth 
had stable enrollment 
during the academic 
year. 

70% of Madera 
County Foster Youth 
will be identified as 
having a stable 
enrollment during the 
academic year. 

3. Number of 
Educational Partner 
professional 
development and 
training opportunities 
provided in areas 
relevant to Foster 
Youth. 

8 professional 
development and 
training opportunities 
provided in 
2019-20 and included 
in Foster Youth 
Services Coordinating 
Program (FYSCP) 
EOY Report data. 

9 Professional 
Development 
workshops have been 
offered: 
*AB 490 Overview 
*How to Support the 
Positive Social-
Emotional Well-Being 
of your Child 
*Support Youth 
Through Early College 

The number of 
professional 
development/training 
opportunities for 
liaisons and other 
stakeholders will be 
maintained or 
increased. 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor/Voyager) Page 65 of 121 



 
 

   

      

 

 

 

 
  

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
   

  
 

  
 

 
 

  
 

 

 
 

 

 

 

   

   

 

  

 
 

 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome Desired Outcome for 
2023–24 

Awareness and 
Preparation 
*Ensuring Healthy 
Relationships for Your 
Child 
*Human Trafficking 
Awareness 
*The Special 
Education Process 
*Trauma Informed 
Strategies for 
Behavior at Home 
(offered twice) 
*Suicide Awareness. 

4. Development and 
sharing of best 
practices for 
immediate enrollment, 
school stability, 
engagement, 
grade/credit 
protection, and grade 
level transition support 
services. 

Best practices in the 
identified areas have 
not been collected. 

This metric has been 
discontinued due to 
educational partner 
feedback stating that 
this metric is not 
accurately 
measurable and is 
currently addressed in 
another metric. 

Best practices for 
immediate enrollment, 
school stability, 
engagement, 
grade/credit 
protection, and grade 
level transition support 
services will be 
developed and 
disseminated to all 
district liaisons and 
relevant community 
educational partners. 

5. Number of Foster 
Youth served through 
case management 
services. 

120 Foster Youth 
served in 2019-20. 

170 students were 
served in the FY 
program during the 
2021-2022 school 
year. 

Maintain of increase 
the number of Foster 
Youth that will be 
served through case 
management 
services. 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor/Voyager) Page 66 of 121 



 
 

   

      

 
 

     

 

 

 

 

 
  

 

  

 
 

  
 

 

 

      

 
 

  
 

 

 
 

 
  

 

 
   

   

 

 
 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome Desired Outcome for 
2023–24 

6. Number of liaisons 3 liaisons utilized 4 liaisons are currently All district liaisons will 
who utilize the Foster Foster Focus utilizing the Foster utilize the Foster 
Focus Database to Database in 2019-20. Focus database to Focus database to 
track school mobility.  track changes in 

school placement 
among foster youth. 

5 of the 9 district 
liaisons have started 
using the new CDE 
Dataquest stability 
tool. 

track school 
mobility/stability. 

7. Number of college 9 college visits and *2 Field trips have Opportunities to visit 
visits and other student been held at the colleges and to 
student event/activity events/activities held Fresno Chaffee Zoo participate in various 
opportunities.   in 2019-20. and CSU Fresno - 

November 22 and 
November 23, 2021. 
*1 post-secondary 
preparation workshop 
held on September 
30, 2021. 
*3 Senior support 
workshops held on 
October 7 ,November 
18, 2021 and 
February 24, 2022. 
*Annual College and 
Career Fair held on 
March 4, 2022. 
*Digital Arts Workshop 
Series held Spring, 
2022 (5 sessions) 

student 
events/activities will 
be available for all 
Foster Youth in 
grades 1st-12th 
grade.   Provide 10 
opportunities per year. 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor/Voyager) Page 67 of 121 



 
 

   

      
 

 

  
 

 

      

 
  

  

  

 

 

       
  

  
 

 

  

 

 

       

 
 

  
 

 
 

   
 

 

 

  
 

  
 

  
  

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome Desired Outcome for 
2023–24 

*Field trip to CSU, 
Monterey Bay and the 
Monterey Bay 
Aquarium held on 
April 12, 2022. 

8. Number of youth 12 youth participated 8 youth participated in Maintain or increase 
that participate in the in work experience work experience the number of work 
Skills4Success work program. during the 2021-22 experience 
experience program. school year. opportunities for 

Foster Youth. 
9. Number of students 
who participate in the 
annual College and 
Career Fair. 

34 students 
participated in annual 
fair held in 2018-19 
school year. 

59 students 
participated in the 
2022 College and 
Career Fair (R.I.S.E. 
Conference). 

Maintain or increase 
the number of Foster 
Youth grades 7th-12th 
grade that will 
participate in the 
annual College and 
Career Fair. 

10. Percentage of No prior data. 25% of Seniors 100% of seniors 
seniors who Baseline will be participated in Senior interested in 
participate in the established 2021-22 Support Workshops. completing the 
Senior Support community college 
Workshop Series. 25% will serve as the 

baseline. 
matriculation process 
will participate in the 
Senior Support 
Workshop Series. 

11. Development and 
dissemination of best 
practices to ensure 
access to 
college/career 
readiness courses 
and services (i.e. 
summer school, credit 

Best practices in the 
identified areas have 
not been collected 

This metric has been 
discontinued due to 
educational partner 
feedback stating that 
this metric is not 
accurately 
measurable and is 

Best practices to 
ensure access to 
college/career 
readiness courses 
and services (i.e. 
summer school, credit 
recovery, dual 
enrollment, A-G and 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor/Voyager) Page 68 of 121 



 
 

   

      

      

 
 

  

 
   

 
 

 

 

 

 

   

 

 

 
  

  

     
 

 
 

  

  

  
 
 

     

   

 
 

  

 

 

 
  

   
 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome Desired Outcome for 
2023–24 

recovery, dual currently addressed in CTE courses, etc.) will 
enrollment, A-G and another metric. be developed and 
CTE courses, etc.) disseminated to all 

liaisons and pertinent 
school staff. 

12. Percentage of 
youth that participate 
in grade level 
transition and SEL 
activities. 

No prior data. 
Baseline will be 
established during the 
2022-2023 school 
year as 2021-2022 will 
be used to research 
and gather best 
practices for the 
identification of 
services/activities. 

Planning of grade 
level services is 
scheduled for 
Spring/Summer 2022. 

100% of Foster Youth 
identified for SEL 
support will participate 
in SEL activities; 
100% of Foster Youth 
in K, 6th, 8th, and 
12th grades will 
receive grade level 
transition support. 

13.Number of trauma- 4 trauma-informed 2 trauma-informed Maintain or increase 
informed professional professional professional the number of trauma-
development and development and development and informed trainings and 
training opportunities. training opportunities 

in 2019-20. 
trainings were held in 
2021-22. 

professional 
development 
opportunities for 
liaisons and other 
school staff 

14. Gathering and SEL resources have This metric has been SEL resources will be 
sharing of SEL not been compiled. discontinued due to gathered and regularly 
resources with educational partner shared with 
stakeholders   feedback stating that 

this metric is not 
accurately 
measurable and is 
currently addressed in 
another metric. 

stakeholders and will 
be 
maintained/updated 
as necessary. 

15. Development and 
sharing of best 

Best practices on how 
to increase Foster 

This metric has been 
discontinued due to 

Best practices on how 
to increase Foster 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor/Voyager) Page 69 of 121 



 
 

   

      
 

        
 

 

 

 
 

 
        

 

  

 

 
 

   

 

 

   
 

 
 

 

 
 

 

  
 

 

   

 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome Desired Outcome for 
2023–24 

practices to increase Youth access to educational partner Youth access to 
Foster Youth access school-based SEL feedback stating that school-based SEL 
to school-based SEL resources and this metric is not resources and 
resources and interventions have not accurately interventions will be 
interventions.  been compiled measurable and is 

currently addressed in 
another metric. 

gathered and shared 
with liaisons and other 
pertinent school staff 
regularly and as 
requested. 

16. Gathering and 
sharing of best 
practices/evidence-
based mentoring 
programs. 

Best 
practices/evidence-
based mentoring 
programs have not 
been compiled. 

This metric has been 
discontinued due to 
educational partner 
feedback stating that 
this metric is not 
accurately 
measurable and is 
currently addressed in 
another metric. 

Best practices in 
mentoring and 
evidence-based 
mentoring program 
options will be 
gathered and shared 
with LEAs; support will 
be provided as 
requested for the 
development and 
implementation of 
local programs, 
services or activities 

17. Percentage of No prior data. Research and 100% of Foster Youth 
youth that participate Baseline will be gathering of best identified for 
in mentoring activities.    established during the 

2022-2023 SY as 
2021-2022 will be 
used to research and 
gather best 
practices/evidence-
based program 
information for the 
identification of 
services/activities. 

practices/evidence-
based programs will 
take place Summer, 
2022. 

mentoring will 
participate in 
mentoring activities 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor/Voyager) Page 70 of 121 



 
 

   

      
 

       

 

 

 

 

  

  

 

 
 

    

 
 

 

 
 

  

 
 

 

 

 
 

   
 

 
 

 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome Desired Outcome for 
2023–24 

18. Average number Average number of An average of 6 Maintain or increase 
of caregivers caregiver attendance caregivers attended average number of 
attending monthly in monthly workshops monthly workshops attendance for 
workshops. is 21 participants in 

2019-20. 
during the 2021-2022 
school year. 

caregivers that will 
participate in monthly 
parent workshops. 

19. Percentage of 
caregivers who 
believe they have the 
capacity to meet the 
educational and 
social-emotional 
needs of students in 
foster care (via Annual 
Caregiver feedback 
survey). 

To be established Fall 
2021. 

100% of caregivers 
who responded to the 
feedback survey 
indicated that they feel 
they have the capacity 
to meet the 
educational and 
social-emotional 
needs of students in 
foster care. However, 
75% of respondents 
indicated that they feel 
they need additional 
information/support 
regarding strategies 
on how to talk with 
their children about 
healthy relationships. 
Additionally, half of 
respondents indicated 
they would like more 
strategies to better 
support the academic 
success of their child 
as well as more 
information about the 
special education 
process. 

100% of surveyed 
caregivers believe 
they have the capacity 
to meet the 
educational and 
social-emotional 
needs of students in 
foster care. 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor/Voyager) Page 71 of 121 



 
 

   

      
 

   

  

 

  

 

  

 

 
 

 
 

     
 

     

  
 

 
   

 
 
 

   
 

 
   

    

  
    

 
  

  
   

 
   

 

   
 

X

X

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome Desired Outcome for 
2023–24 

20. Average number 
of students who 
participate in quarterly 
College & Career 
Readiness 
Workshops. 

Average of 12 
students participated 
in quarterly College & 
Career Readiness 
Workshops. 

Average of 10 
students participated 
in quarterly College & 
Career Readiness 
Workshops in 2021-
22. 

Maintain or increase 
the average of Foster 
Youth in grades 7th-
12th that will 
participate in quarterly 
College and  Career 
Workshops. 

Actions 

Action # Title Description Total Funds Contributing 
4.1 Build LEA capacity to 

support the 
educational needs of 
Foster Youth. 

Provide professional development and training opportunities to LEAs 
in areas relevant to foster youth; gather and share best practices for 
immediate enrollment, school stability, youth engagement, 
grade/credit protection, engagement in extracurricular activities, etc.; 
Assist LEAs to review policies and practices in areas that impact foster 
youth (i.e. discipline, attendance, behavior, enrollment); gather and 
share grade-level transition support best practices and provide LEA 
assistance to implement transition support services;  provide case 
management support and academic/tutorial support as requested; 
continue facilitating monthly Executive Advisory Council meetings. 

$2,000.00 No 

4.2 Ensure school 
stability by minimizing 
changes in school 
placement if in the 
best interest of the 
youth. 

Provide accessibility and training on Foster Focus (a Foster Youth 
database) to all liaisons to help monitor school mobility. Facilitate the 
completion and implementation of a county-wide interagency 
agreement that includes a best-interest determination check-list and a 
school of origin transportation plan and provide relevant stakeholders 
with training/overview of the agreement; develop and share best 
practices to increase school stability and provide staff training to 
implement school stability; continue facilitating monthly Executive 
Advisory Council meetings where educational partners are able to 
discuss individual youth and work to ensure the best school placement 
option. 

$1,500.00 No 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor/Voyager) Page 72 of 121 



 
 

   

     
 
 

 

   

 
 

  

 
  

 

 
 
 

   
 

 

     

 
 

  

   
 

  

  
 

 
 

   
 

 

 
 

    

 
 

   
 

X

X

X

Action # Title Description Total Funds Contributing 

4.3 Develop and 
coordinate college 
and career readiness 
and awareness 
support services and 
activities. 

Develop and share best practices to ensure access to summer school, 
credit recovery, dual enrollment, A-G and CTE enrollment, academic 
counseling, etc.; develop and provide support for grade level transition 
services; provide support for work experience opportunities; 
coordinate and facilitate post-secondary preparation support services 
and activities; provide case management support; coordinate college 
visits and other student event opportunities; coordinate and facilitate 
monthly caregiver workshops to ensure post-secondary preparation 
knowledge; coordinate and facilitate an annual College and Career 
Fair; coordinate and facilitate Senior Support workshops; coordinate 
other academic/social-emotional enrichment activities. 

$45,800.00 No 

4.4 Build LEA capacity to 
support the social-
emotional needs of 
Foster Youth. 

Ensure staff working with Foster Youth have adequate knowledge, 
trauma-informed training, and resources to meet the SEL needs of 
Foster Youth; gather and share best practices on ways to increase 
access to and participation in available school-based SEL resources 
and intervention systems and extra-curricular activities; assist to 
review policies/practices to ensure Foster Youth experiencing school 
discipline receive priority access to positive behavior supports, Pupil 
Services counseling, mental health services, and other positive 
behavior modification services; Provide assistance for case managers; 
research, gather and share best practices in mentoring programs and 
share with LEAs; support LEAs to develop and implement local 
mentoring programs as needed. 

$15,000.00 No 

4.5 Build caregiver 
capacity to support 
the educational and 
social-emotional 
needs of Foster 
Youth. 

Coordinate monthly workshops to inform caregivers about the unique 
needs of Foster Youth.  Workshop topics include AB490, Overview of 
Resources and Support Services, Trauma Informed Strategies for 
Behavior at Home, Ensuring Healthy Relationships for Youth, Suicide 
Awareness, Supporting Youth through Early College Awareness and 
Preparation, the Special Education Process, and Human Trafficking 

$500.00 No 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor/Voyager) Page 73 of 121 



 
 

   

     
  

 
 
 

 

 
  

  
 

      
 

  
 

 
  

 
   

 
 

   
   

 
   

 
  

  
  

 
 

    
 

  
   

  
   

Action # Title Description Total Funds Contributing 
Awareness; Ensure caregiver accessibility by providing virtual 
opportunities to participate. 

Goal Analysis [2021-22]
An analysis of how this goal was carried out in the previous year. 
A description of any substantive differences in planned actions and actual implementation of these actions. 

The county-wide coordination of services for the educational success of students in foster care continued during the 2021-2022 school year.  
In order to develop local education agency (LEA) capacity to support the educational success of foster youth, various professional 
development and training opportunities were made available to LEAs including an ongoing virtual training series covering an array of topics 
and supporting local stakeholders to participate in various professional development opportunities.  Virtual trainings included the following 
topics: AB490 Overview, Meeting the High School Needs of Foster Youth, Foster Youth and School Stability, Foster Youth and Financial 
Aid, Foster Youth and the LCAP, and Foster Focus and Data Collection.  In addition, monthly Foster Youth Services Coordinating Program 
Advisory Council (FYSCP EAC) meetings were held beginning in August through May.  Council meetings provide a venue in which LEA 
partners and other local stakeholders receive legislative updates, learn about county wide foster youth and caregiver opportunities such as 
college field trips, student conferences and events, and caregiver workshops as well as learn about bests practices for immediate enrollment, 
school stability, and grade/credit protection.  Professional development opportunities for LEA stakeholders include participation in the 
California Association of Supervisors of Child Welfare and Attendance (CASCWA) State Conference and the Foster Youth Education 
Summit. Also, in order to support LEAs with the educational success of foster youth, tutorial support was implemented spring, 2022 for 
students in K-12 grades. Students will be able to obtain additional academic support in core academic areas, including English Language 
Arts, math, history, science In order to ensure school stability among foster youth (when in their best interest), a county-wide school 
stability/transportation interagency agreement was completed and finalized spring, 2022. Stakeholders in this agreement include the nine 
local LEAs, the Madera County Superintendent of Schools, and the Madera County Department of Social Services.  A best interest 
determination checklist for determining best school placement options is included in the agreement.  Through the virtual training series and 
other professional development opportunities indicated above, information regarding best practices to ensure school stability has been made 
available.  Time during monthly FYSCP EAC meetings has also been allotted for professional development areas of interest, including school 
stability.  Additionally, the training “Foster Youth and School Stability” was conducted December, 2021.  Finally, participation in Child Family 
Team (CFT) meetings, hosted by the placement agency, ensures that school of origin / school stability is the priority when a child’s 
placement changes.  Also, participation in After Care Team Meetings (ATMs) ensures foster youth pending release from the juvenile 
detention facility and their guardian understand the school placement options they are entitled to, based on their best interest. 

The coordination of college and career readiness support services and activities continued through the development and implementation of 
quarterly College and Career Readiness workshops for middle and high school foster youth.  Students learned about high school graduation 
requirements, A-G college entrance requirements, the California systems of higher education and participated in career exploration activities. 
In addition, an annual College and Career Fair was held spring, 2022 where students learned about careers in health, education, and law 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor/Voyager) Page 74 of 121 



 
 

   

 
 

   
 

   
 

  
   

  

  
   

     
 

 

   
     

  
  

 
    
   

  

   
 

   
  

   
   

 
 

 
  

 
 

enforcement.  Students also learned about career technical education careers and learned about the different colleges in California.  
Additionally, Seniors had the opportunity for additional support to complete the on-line community college matriculation process as well as 
the Free Application for Federal Student Aid (FAFSA) through participation in a virtual Senior Support Workshop Series.  Monthly Parent 
Connection Workshops ensured that parents received information on foster youth education rights under AB490 (immediate enrollment, 
school of origin, etc.) and AB167 (credit/graduation protection) as well as on how to best advocate for the education of foster youth.  
Caregivers learned about post-secondary options, the California systems of higher education and about educational milestones in middle 
school foundations (i.e. ensuring youth meet with a school counselor, seek tutoring, explore careers), high school transitions (i.e. maintain 
regular attendance, see a school counselor, explore careers through electives, enroll in A-G, go on college tours) and in career exploration 
and academic preparation (i.e. take a career assessment, take the PSAT/SAT, register for dual enrollment classes, join an academic 
enrichment program such as AVID).  Caregivers also learned about financial support opportunities including the Free Application for Federal 
Student Aid, loans, scholarships, and grants. Also, case management support ensured that student’s academic and social-emotional needs 
were identified and referrals made.  In addition, through case management of students, transcript audits were conducted to identify students 
on track to graduate as well as those who are not on track.  Also, youth in 11th or 12th grade were screened for AB167/216 (modified 
graduation requirements), thereby ensuring timely graduation for many youth in foster care.  Finally, foster youth had the opportunity to 
participate in work experience opportunities through a collaboration with the Workforce Development Skills4Success Program. In addition to 
the development of college and career awareness, the FYSCP began work to build LEA capacity to support the social-emotional needs of 
foster youth. Workshops on trauma and the brain were held spring, 2022.  School staff and caregivers learned about how trauma impacts 
the development and behavior of children.  They also learned strategies to work with children in the home and in the classroom.  Additional 
trauma training for partners and local stakeholders is planned for the upcoming school year.  In addition, FYSCP staff will research mentoring 
programs in the spring and will share findings with LEAs.  Support to develop and implement local mentoring programs will be provided as 
requested. Finally, FYSCP EAC members understand the importance of developing relationships with foster youth and have prioritized the 
development of on-going youth meetings focused on understanding trauma that will be developed and plan to be implemented fall, 2022.  
Finally, monthly Parent Connection meetings were held to build caregiver capacity to support the educational and social-emotional needs of 
foster youth. The following workshops were held:  AB490 Overview / Resources Round Up, How to Support the Positive Social-Emotional 
Well-Being of Your Child, Supporting Youth Through Early College Awareness and Preparation, Ensuring Healthy Relationships for Your 
Child, The Special Education Process, Trauma Informed Strategies for Behavior at Home, and Suicide Awareness. 

Goal 4, action 1, Challenges and Successes - The on-going facilitation of monthly Executive Advisory Council meetings and the high 
participation rate among district liaisons and community partners/stakeholders has helped in the success of this goal.  Additionally, the Virtual 
Training Series for partners and stakeholders has been instrumental in ensuring local partners have the information required to ensure the 
educational needs of foster youth are met.  The implementation of tutorial services has also been a success this year as it is something that 
has never been done.  Also, providing case management services ensures that foster youth's educational and social-emotional needs are 
identified and met.  While tutorial support is now being offered, it has been challenging to increase the number of families/students taking 
advantage of this opportunity.  Additionally, the review of policies and practices related to foster youth were not reviewed this year and are 
scheduled for review during the upcoming school year.  Likewise, providing grade level transition support services is planned for the 
upcoming school year. 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor/Voyager) Page 75 of 121 



 
 

   

   
  

   
   

   
    

  
       

 
  

    
 

   
  

  
 

 
  

     
 

 
 

   
 

   
      

 
  

 
 

        
 

  
 

 

       
 

Goal 4, action 2, Challenges and Successes -The biggest success in the area of school stability this year was the finalization of a county-
wide transportation plan that includes a checklist to ensure the best interest of students.  All nine school district superintendents and the 
director of social services signed the agreement that ensures foster youth remain in their school of origin when a change in placement occurs 
if it is in their best interest. It also outlines how additional transportation costs will be paid for.  Another success in this area would be the 
inclusion of training topics during monthly Executive Advisory Council meetings.  School stability has been a common topic of discussion 
among district liaisons and other stakeholders.  Having a regular venue during which to share and discuss this information is critical to ensure 
that foster you have advocates for their school stability.  While training and a plan are in place, the biggest challenge this year has been a 
shortage of school personnel to to physically provide transportation when needed to foster youth remaining in their school of origin. 

Goal 4, action 3, Challenges and Successes - One of the successes this year was the development and implementation of the R.I.S.E. 
Youth Conference for foster youth in middle and high school.  60 students participated in this college/career awareness event.  While work 
experience opportunities, quarterly college/career readiness workshops, and senior support workshops were offered, student participation 
was challenging both in person and virtually.  Monthly parent workshops were also held to ensure post-secondary preparation knowledge, 
but participation was also challenging. The development and sharing of best practices to ensure access to summer school, credit recovery, 
dual enrollment, A-G and CTE enrollment, academic counseling, etc. in addition to providing support for grade level transition services is 
scheduled to take place during the upcoming school year. Another challenge that we continued to have this year were COVID-related 
restrictions regarding college visits.  In person college visits are planned to resume in the coming school year. 

Goal 4, action 4, Challenges and Successes - An area of strength the FYSCP had in helping LEAs meet the social-emotional needs of foster 
youth were the various professional development opportunities offered.  The FYSCP ensured LEAs were familiar with and had the 
opportunity to attend various trainings and conferences.  Additionally, on-going trainings were available as requested.  The increased 
coordination of trauma-informed trainings and resources to meet the SEL needs of foster youth is a priority for the upcoming school year  to 
ensure staff working with Foster Youth have adequate knowledge and skills to meet these needs.  Additionally, gathering and sharing of best 
practices in mentoring programs is also a priority for the upcoming school year. 

Goal 4, action 5, Challenges and Successes -The Foster Parent Connection Workshop Series has been a service that we have implemented 
over the past ten years to ensure that caregivers have the capacity to support the educational and social-emotional needs of foster youth. 
This year, topics covered included:  AB490/Overview of Resources and Support Services, Trauma Informed Strategies for Behavior at Home, 
Ensuring Healthy Relationships for Youth, Suicide Awareness, Supporting Youth through Early College Awareness and Preparation, the 
Special Education Process, and Human Trafficking Awareness;  A significant challenge this year has been caregiver engagement, in person 
and virtually. 

An explanation of material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures and/or Planned Percentages of 
Improved Services and Estimated Actual Percentages of Improved Services. 

There were no material differences. 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor/Voyager) Page 76 of 121 



 
 

   

 
 

 
   

  
  

   
 

   
   

  
   

 
  
    

   
    

   
 

 

 
   

   
   

    
  

 
 

 
 

   

  
 

    
        

 

An explanation of how effective the specific actions were in making progress toward the goal. 

Overall, the selected actions were effective in making progress toward the goal.  Surveys to measure the extent to which LEA/district liaisons 
as well as caregivers feel they have the capacity to meet the academic and social-emotional needs of foster youth are planned for spring, 
2022. Various professional development and training opportunities have been provided, however, ensuring liaisons and caregivers have the 
information and support needed to guarantee the academic and social-emotional success of foster youth.  Work to decrease the mobility rate 
among foster youth is showing progress.  With the increased awareness of the importance of school stability as a result of various 
professional development and training opportunities and ongoing EAC discussions, the school stability rate among foster youth has 
increased during the past year.  Per DataQuest, the stability rate for foster youth during the 2019-2020 school year was 52.7%.  During the 
2020-2021 school year, the rate increased to 60.2%.  With the recent completion of the countywide transportation/school stability interagency 
agreement, we anticipate that the school stability rate will continue to increase. In addition, more district liaisons have began using the Foster 
Focus student database system which is a tool that can be used to track changes in school placement/mobility at the local level.  Additionally, 
the increase of professional development and training opportunities in various areas relevant to foster youth ensure the coordination of 
services for foster youth by helping liaisons and stakeholders understand the unique needs of foster youth, helping to identify strategies and 
services to address these needs and helping to develop a support system where LEAs and community agencies work together in support of 
foster youth. In addition, ongoing monthly Executive Advisory Council meetings also serve as a venue through which activities, events, and 
services are planned and delivered and offers a place for discussion for leveraging resources. Also, ongoing advisory council meeting 
provide a place to conduct focus groups in order to determine gaps and service delivery and provide a venue to share information related to 
immediate enrollment, school stability, engagement, grade/credit protection, and grade level transition support. 

The coordination of college and career readiness and post-secondary preparation services have also been prioritized.  Through a 
collaborative effort between local LEAs, the Madera County Superintendent of Schools, the Madera Community College, and various 
community agencies, an annual college and career fair (R.I.S.E. Youth Conference) was held spring, 2022.  59 students learned about 
careers in education, law enforcement, and medicine as well as learned about career technical education careers.  Seniors also had the 
opportunity to participate in a Senior Support Workshop Series to ensure the completion of the community college matriculation process. 
While only 25% of seniors participated in these workshops, the FYSCP ensured that LEAs and community partners worked with seniors to 
confirm that students completed this process. Also, through a partnership with the Skills4Success Program, students had the opportunity to 
participate in work experience.  Quarterly College & Career Readiness workshops were also coordinated with LEAs to ensure that students 
participated in career exploration and post-secondary preparation informational workshops. While it is a goal to increase the total number of 
foster youth who participate in these workshops, the partnership between the FYSCP, LEAs and placing agencies will guarantee that these 
opportunities continue while we work collaboratively to increase participation. Planning and delivering monthly Parent Connection Workshops 
is another collaborative project where the FYSCP, local LEAs, and the Madera County Department of Social Services work to identify topics 
of interest and provide workshops focused on these topics.  Workshop presenters from local community partners including Madera County 
Behavioral Health, Madera County Public Health, Madera County Superintendent of Schools, and local LEAs work together to provide 
workshop presenters and leverage local resources (i.e. child care, food, translators) for our resource families. During the upcoming school 
year, social-emotional (SEL) support services will be prioritized.  Through partnerships with the local Court Appointed Special Advocates 
(CASA), LEAs, and Madera County Behavioral Health, SEL services and supports will be planned and implemented. 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor/Voyager) Page 77 of 121 



 
 

   

  
 

 

  
  

 
   

 
   

  
        

 
 

 
 

 

A description of any changes made to the planned goal, metrics, desired outcomes, or actions for the coming year that resulted from 
reflections on prior practice. 

There will be no changes to goal 4. However, based on reflections on prior practice, the following changes were made to the following 
metrics, outcomes and  actions for the coming year: 

Goal 4, metric 1 - The baseline was changed to, "Survey to be conducted in Spring 2022 due to COVID-19." 

Goal 4, metric 4, 11, 14, 15 and 16 have been discontinued due to educational partner feedback stating the metrics are not accurately 
measurable and are actions currently addressed in other metrics. 

A report of the Total Estimated Actual Expenditures for last year’s actions may be found in the Annual Update Table. A report of the 
Estimated Actual Percentages of Improved Services for last year’s actions may be found in the Contributing Actions Annual Update 
Table. 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor/Voyager) Page 78 of 121 



 
 

   

 
 

 
 

  
        

 

   
 

 
     

   
 

 
  

           
 

 
 

      
 

   

 
 

  
 

  

 

      
 

 
  

  

 
 

 

 
 

     
  

  
  

Goals and Actions 

Goal 
Goal # Description 

5 Facilitate the county-wide coordination of services for the educational success of expelled youth.     

An explanation of why the LEA has developed this goal. 
In order to ensure continuity of academic instruction and limit the learning loss resulting from expulsions, Madera County Superintendent of 
Schools will lead the process of writing and updating the Expelled Youth Plan in conjunction with school districts in Madera County.  The 
execution of this plan will lead the coordination to develop the countywide Expelled Youth Plan to ensure the academic success of expelled 
youth and minimize learning loss as they transition from their home district to another school site, and back to their home district.  As a result 
of the most recent Expelled Youth Plan, representatives from Madera County school districts agreed to meet annually to provide updates on 
the implementation and effectiveness of the plan to support the needs of expelled youth from every district.  Every three years, the expulsion 
data will be reviewed and analyzed to ensure relevance of actions, take note of and rewrite the plan to reflect changing needs. 

Measuring and Reporting Results 
Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome Desired Outcome for 

2023–24 
1.Madera County 
Student Expulsion 
Rate 

Madera County 
currently has a 0.13% 
expulsion rate 

2020-21 had a .01% 
expulsion rate of 
students from Madera 
County. 

Maintain or reduce the 
expulsion rate 
annually. 

2. Annual Meeting   Plan approved for 
2021-2024 cycle. 

3-year meeting was 
held in Spring of 2022. 

MCSOS will facilitate 
annual meetings to 
review, monitor, and 
discuss impact and 
effectiveness of plan. 

Actions 

Action # Title Description Total Funds Contributing 
5.1 Triennial Meetings      MCSOS will provide personnel for full cooperation to oversee and 

monitor the Expelled Youth Plan and lead the process on a triennial 
$12,328.00 No 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor/Voyager) Page 79 of 121 



 
 

   

     
  

    
   

 
 
 

 
 

     
  

 
 
  

 
 

   
 

 

 
  

  
 

   

    
   

   
   

       
 

  
 

 

    
     

     
 

 
 

 
       

X

X

Action # Title Description Total Funds Contributing 
basis to develop this plan in collaboration with the nine districts in 
Madera County.  The Executive Director, Career Alternative Education 
Services (CAES) Division, will lead the process with representatives 
from each of the other districts in Madera County. 

5.2 Annual Reviews      Annual review and monitoring of Expelled Youth Plan to ensure 
implementation and identify possible gaps, along with effective 
strategies for serving expelled youth. All efforts will be made to 
effectively support expelled students to return to district of residence 
by satisfactorily meeting the stipulations of the expulsion. 

$200.00 No 

Goal Analysis [2021-22]
An analysis of how this goal was carried out in the previous year. 
A description of any substantive differences in planned actions and actual implementation of these actions. 

Goal 5, action 1 - The substantive difference for this action in creating the triennial plan for Countywide Expelled Youth Services is that the 
action listed in goal 5 action 1 actually occurred and was completed during school year 2020-21, not school year 2021-22. As this plan is also 
a 3-year document, it coincides at the same pace as the MCSOS LCAP, thus, the success in this action is Year 1 of the plan execution 
occurred during school year 2021-22. The attainable challenge is this action was listed as a placeholder for future action to occur during the 
2023-24 school year. Goal 5, action 2 success in the plan to monitor expelled youth has been initiated. Goal 5, action 2,  success is in the 
annual review and monitoring its expelled youth through the plan to ensure implementation and identify possible gaps, along with effective 
strategies for serving expelled youth. 

An explanation of material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures and/or Planned Percentages of 
Improved Services and Estimated Actual Percentages of Improved Services. 

Goal 5, action 1 - The difference of the budgeted expenditure versus actual expenditure for this action was not a material difference given 
that this action should have been a no-cost item. The expenditure of $15,685 dollars was actually spent during school year 2020-21 which is 
the year the plan was written and approved.  For school year 2022-23, this action will be a no cost action.   

An explanation of how effective the specific actions were in making progress toward the goal. 

Goal 5, action 1 - The action of coordinating the plan review, analysis, and drafting the new plan for the new plan cycle of school year 2021-
24 was effective. The executive director oversaw this process working together with representatives of the nine school districts that make up 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor/Voyager) Page 80 of 121 



 
 

   

   
 

  
   

 
  

 
 

   
    

       
 

 
 

 
 

Madera County. Representatives from each of the districts were able to provide valuable input via Zoom meetings given COVID-19 
Pandemic and subsequent safety protocols. Representatives provided feedback as to the previous plan’s effectiveness for Expelled Youth. 
This feedback also informed all representatives on how best to modify, change, or continue services during the next plan cycle to best 
service expelled students. Representatives will continue plan review during the plan application phase for future successes, challenges, and 
necessary modifications to serving Madera County expelled youth.     

A description of any changes made to the planned goal, metrics, desired outcomes, or actions for the coming year that resulted from 
reflections on prior practice. 

Goal 5, action 1 – An analysis of this action yielded that the action must be kept for the purpose of the MCSOS LCAP, however, for next 
school year the action would be a no cost item. The Countywide Expelled Youth Plan will not require a triennial update until school year 
2023-24, at which time, a cost would be attached to the action for the executive director’s time overseeing the coordination of the plan 
review, analysis, and drafting the new plan for the new plan cycle of school year 2024-27.     

A report of the Total Estimated Actual Expenditures for last year’s actions may be found in the Annual Update Table. A report of the 
Estimated Actual Percentages of Improved Services for last year’s actions may be found in the Contributing Actions Annual Update 
Table. 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor/Voyager) Page 81 of 121 



 
 

   

  
 

 
      

  
 

   
 

  
 

    
 
  

  
    

 
  

 
 

 

   

   
 

 
  

 
   

    
   

    
      

  
    

   
  

  
   

Increased or Improved Services for Foster Youth, English Learners, and Low-
Income Students [2022-23] 

Projected LCFF Supplemental and/or Concentration Grants Projected Additional LCFF Concentration Grant (15 percent) 
201,954 0 

Required Percentage to Increase or Improve Services for the LCAP Year 
Projected Percentage to Increase 
or Improve Services for the 
Coming School Year 

LCFF Carryover — Percentage LCFF Carryover — Dollar 
Total Percentage to Increase or 
Improve Services for the Coming 
School Year 

53.68% 18.92% $73,864.75 72.60% 

The Budgeted Expenditures for Actions identified as Contributing may be found in the Contributing Actions Table. 

Required Descriptions 
For each action being provided to an entire school, or across the entire school district or county office of education (COE), an explanation of 
(1) how the needs of foster youth, English learners, and low-income students were considered first, and (2) how these actions are effective in 
meeting the goals for these students. 

All actions and expenditures of funds marked as contributing to increased or improved services were developed focusing on the needs, 
conditions, or circumstances of the unduplicated population with further consideration of the actions design, content, method, and/or location 
that best meets the identified needs. All actions were developed using a careful analysis of data and input from our educational partners. 
These contributing actions are principally directed toward the unduplicated student population to help them be effective in improving student 
academic performance and fulfill the identified needs of our unduplicated student groups. In the goals section of this plan, each action 
marked "yes" for contributing contains a detailed explanation of how that action is directed toward the unduplicated student population and 
effective in helping close equity and performance gaps, and meet the goals of MCSOS. MCSOS incorporated the language required by 5 
CCR Section 15496 into the description of each specific actions language because each response is unique and specific to each contributing 
action in this plan. MCSOS's intention in doing this is to increase transparency for all educational partners when reading this "living action 
plan" so they can better understand the rationale behind each unique LEA-wide action. These actions and services are being performed on 
an LEA-wide basis in order to increased their overall efficiency and effectiveness.  As described in the LCAP instructions, MCSOS has 
ensured funds are principally directed toward Unduplicated Pupils and are effective in meeting their needs as addressed within the goals and 
actions of this plan. Using the calculation tool provided by the state, MCSOS will receive $201,954 in Supplemental and Concentration 
funding from the Local Control Funding Formula. 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor/Voyager) Page 82 of 121 



 
 

   

 
 

 
  

   
 

  
  

 
  

   
   

 
  

  
    

 
    

    

   
 

  
 

     
 

 
    

  
 

  
 

   
  

From educational partner input, survey data and considering the specific needs, conditions and circumstances of incarcerated students, Goal 
1 Actions 3, 4, and 6 from the 2017- 20 MCSOS LCAP have continued or contributed to Goal 1 Actions 1, 5, 6 and 9 for the 2021-24 LCAP.  
These actions are principally directed to increase academic achievement and proficiency for incarcerated students. Additionally, by 
increasing the number of teachers to reduce class size/student-to-teacher ratio and using improved instructional practices along with 
standards-based instructional materials, will directly contribute to achieving goal 1. In addition, the MCSOS 2017-20 LCAP Goal 2 Action 6 
continued in the current LCAP through Goal 1 Action 13, and Goal 2 Actions 7 and 8.  According to Madera County Behavior health 
specialist, the mental health implications resulting from the COVID-19 pandemic will be seen for many years and can manifest through 
behaviors.  The isolation of individuals, particularly incarcerated students, will require increased attention to supporting social-emotional 
needs in order to effectively improve their academic achievement. 

After assessing the needs, conditions, and circumstances of our low-income Endeavor/Voyager students, 94% of Juvenile Hall students are 
at least two years below current grade level in ELA and 100% in Mathematics, based on i-Ready Diagnostic 3. These incarcerated youth 
arrive at Endeavor/Voyager at very low performing levels as they have traditionally been students who have struggled throughout their 
academic careers with high transiency rates, credit deficiencies, low academic performance and high recidivism.  In order to address this 
these unique needs of our low-income students, we will continue to implement and refine our current intervention program that is designed to 
address some of the major causes of low academic performance, including individual learning plans such as the i-Ready pathway program, 
as well as a school a positive school climate that emphasizes importance of student achievement. Goal 1, actions 1, 5, 6 and 9 focus on 
academic achievement for students resources as well as a districtwide educational campaign to support these students. These actions are 
being provided on an LEA-wide basis and we expect/hope that all students below grade level to make growth by as measured credits 
recovered and increase in i-Ready and SBAC scores. However, because of the significantly lower performance rare of our low-income 
students, and because the actions meet needs most associated with the periods of incarceration, potential lack of at home and experiences 
of a socio-economically disadvantaged status, we expect that the levels of academic proficiency for our low-income students will increase 
significantly more than the average proficiency rate of all other students. MCSOS also references available research on learning loss, which 
indicates that "Preliminary COVID slide estimates suggest students returned in the Fall of 2021 with roughly 70% of the learning gains in 
reading relative to a typical school year. However, in Mathematics, students are likely to show much smaller learning gains, returning with 
less than 50% of the learning gains and in some grades, nearly a full year behind what we would observe in normal conditions." (NWEA, 
Collaborative for Student Growth, April, 2020) 

Goal 1, action 1 - 0% of Endeavor/Voyager students have been reclassified as Redesignated Fluent English Proficient. To meet the unique 
learning needs of these unduplicated pupils with high transiency and low academic performance levels. To address these unique needs, 
professional development will continue to be provided to all staff in the content areas of ELD, ELA and mathematics. Hattie (2003) indicates 
that the teacher effectiveness has the greatest effect size on student learning.  To increase teacher effectiveness, MCSOS will provide 
ongoing professional development that is: 1) planned over time, sustained, rigorous and embedded within the context of the school; 2) Uses 
data to directly link to the school goals; 3) Is evidence-based and data driven both to guide improvement and measure impact; and 4) Is 
differentiated and ensures an intensive focus on the teaching/learning relationship. Keeping in mind that 100% of Endeavor/Voyager students 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor/Voyager) Page 83 of 121 



 
 

   

      

   

   
  

 
 

 
 

  
   

    
  

     
    

 
   

  
   

  
   

 
 

   

    

    
   

 
     

  

are 38% EL students, a practice of continued and responsive professional development provided by county office curriculum and instruction 
content specialists and site leaders will inform and address the needs of Endeavor/Voyager's EL population. This focused professional 
development will help address Goal 1 by improving instructional practices through sustained trainings grounded in the current standards and 
frameworks, which will lead to greater achievement in mathematics and improved graduation rates. Growth and achievement will be 
measured through local assessments such as LAS Links (measured by number of students below grade level) and on CAASPP data 
collected on the CA Dashboard (measured by growth toward standard).  This action will be measured for success as indicated by ELPAC 
scores, redesignations, growth on the LAS Links diagnostics, and i-Ready ELA assessments, will be administered three times throughout the 
year. 

Goal 1, Action 5 - After assessing the needs, conditions, and circumstances of Endeavor/Voyager SED students, initial enrollment into the 
Endeavor/Voyager program reveals that nearly 100% are credit deficient. To meet the unique learning needs of these unduplicated pupils 
with high transiency and low academic performance levels, high-quality standards aligned instructional support and materials in ELA, Math, 
ELD, Social Science, and science are provided for these students. Materials include textbooks, StudySync (books and software), and other 
online software/curriculum, including Odysseyware.  According to Hattie, a good effect size is 0.4, and having effective curriculum, along with 
quality professional development for teachers has a greater effect size. This action is measured for success by increased scores on i-Ready 
diagnostics, which will be administered three times throughout the year and assessments results from SBAC and ELPAC data. 

Goal 1, Action 6 - After assessing the needs, conditions, and circumstances of Endeavor/Voyager SED students, 0% of all this group is on 
grade level and proficient in ELA and Math as measured by SBAC. To address the unique needs of this group, staff will provide instruction 
and instructional materials to support SED students' academic growth as measured by SBAC ELA and Math assessments. This includes the 
MyPath individualized lessons prescribed by i-Ready data. This action will be measured for success by increased growth scores on i-Ready 
diagnostics and summative assessments, which will be administered three times throughout the year. 

Goal 1, Action 9 - After assessing the needs, conditions, and circumstances of Endeavor/Voyager SED students, i-Ready Diagnostic 3 
(Spring 2022) data showed that 94% of Endeavor/Voyager students are at least two years below their current grade level in ELA and 100% 
are at least two grade level or more below in Math. To address these unique needs and support these students, teachers will use formative i-
Ready assessments and prescriptive MyPath lessons to help students become more academically proficient. Teachers will assign i-Ready 
lessons as part of the required classwork to support learning and increase academic proficiency. The instructional assistant will assist low-
performing students with additional support.  Additional instructional time will be provided to support these students through an additional 5 
periods of weekly Math instruction. This action will be measured for success as indicated by improvement on scores on i-Ready Math and 
ELA assessments, which will be administered three times throughout the year. 

Goal 1, Action 11 - After assessing the needs, conditions, and circumstances of Endeavor/Voyager SED students, this data based on the 
needs of incarcerated youth, who do not have the same access to elective courses as non-incarcerated youth. To support these students, an 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor/Voyager) Page 84 of 121 



 
 

   

  
 

 
 

  
 

   
  

  

 
 

 

  

    
 

   
     

  
 

  
 

 
 

  
 

   
  

 

Intro to welding class was provided using several virtual welders to create a real-life welding scenario in a safe environment. This action will 
be measured for success as indicated by enrollment and completion rates. 

Goal 1, Actions 12 and 13 - After assessing the needs, conditions, and circumstances of Endeavor/Voyager SED students, research shows 
students have greater access to individualized academic support from a teacher, given the smaller class sizes.  In addition, an Instructional 
Assistant is available to provide additional support to struggling students. In a policy brief from D.W. Schanzenbach (2014), the author states 
that "Smaller classes are particularly effective at raising achievement levels of low income and minority children." With 100% of Juvenile Hall 
students qualified as SED (low income) and 90% of students being minority students, this will help students progress and achieve in making 
progress toward graduation.  Student to teacher ratio should be 16:1, but during the 2020-21 school year, Endeavor / Voyager was below 
8:1. SED students will improve academic achievement in ELA and Math through this increased support.  The additional teacher allows 
students to benefit from increased in-person course offerings. This action is measured by student survey results, increase in academic 
performance and credit recovery. 

Goal 2, Action 6 - After assessing the needs, conditions, and circumstances of Endeavor/Voyager SED students, Endeavor/Voyager students 
lack the same enrichment experiences as their middle and upper class peers and supported by research from James Banks. The suggestion 
is "schools should provide all students with opportunities to participate in extra-and cocurricular activities that develop knowledge, skills, and 
attitudes that increase academic achievement and foster positive interracial relationships." With 100% of Endeavor/Voyager students 
qualifying as SED, these opportunities are vital to addressing learning gaps. As COVID-19 restrictions release in 2022, MCSOS will provide 
several external learning opportunities that include in person and virtual trips; invite guest presenters on a variety of topics; provide 
experiences in career exploration, SEL, and college experiences. The metric for this action would be the percentage of students participating 
in external learning opportunities through school. The participation rate will increase by 5% a year for this plan. Based on stakeholder 
feedback and the research provided above, this carryover action item from the prior LCAP is focused on the continuing need of Juvenile 
Hall's SED students to increase their collective experiences. With the COVID-19 pandemic postponing the external learning opportunities, 
this action was not immediately effective since few opportunities were provided. This action will be measured for success as indicated by 
percentage of students participating in extended learning opportunities outside the classroom. 

Goal 2, Actions 7 and 8 - Based on data from educational partner survey data, the needs, conditions, and circumstances of 
Endeavor/Voyager SED students, indicate that 92% of students feel to be successful by school staff. 
In a 2020 survey done by the Kaiser Family Foundation, young adults report the greatest percentage (56% of respondents) of anxiety and 
depressive disorders. Mental Health care facilitators report having doubled psychological evaluations in minors since the pandemic began. 
The 2021-22 school year was a challenge regarding the social-emotional well being of SED students who arrived in person in Fall 2021. 
However Endeavor/Voyager students remained in Juvenile Hall the duration of COVID. To address this for the school year 2022-23, MCSOS 
will continue to consult with the local county behavioral health department to provide professional development for staff to help identify 
students under duress. This will assist staff in making informed notifications to the school psychologist for support and resources. A Mental 
health focus for related concerns are substance use and abuse (Ingoglia, 2020), anxiety and depression, suicide and prevention, anger and 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor/Voyager) Page 85 of 121 



 
 

   

   
    

 
     

  
 

 
  

 

  
  

  
  

 
         
 

 

 
 

   
  

  

   
   

  
 

 
   

   
   

 
    

  
   

grief management, and access to counseling to overcome these issues will need to be included. During the COVID-19 pandemic, MCSOS 
increased collaboration with Madera County Behavioral Health to have their mental health specialists provide trauma-informed professional 
development to all MCSOS staff to provide awareness, training, and offer services for students and families in Madera County.  MCSOS 
plans to use Madera County Behavioral Health services at their site until the number of students in need are great enough to potentially work 
with students on site. This action does support reducing student drop out rates by helping meet their variety of needs and directly relates to 
the focus of Goal 2 by ensuring opportunities to provide for the social-emotional needs of Endeavor/Voyager students and staff.  When 
students feel physically, cognitively, and emotionally safe, they are better able to optimize their learning capacity. ParentSquare allows safe 
and effective communication between the school and students or parents. Teachers will teach, model, and practice social-emotional skills 
that promote a safe learning environment. Academic counselors will provide lessons on a variety of topics that affect social-emotional 
learning and better equip students to cope with challenges of academic achievement. An Academic counselor, RSP teacher and school 
psychologist will provide services to students to support academic needs and teach skills to cope with difficulties.  A small student to teacher 
ratio also contributes to a positive school environment by allowing teachers to develop stronger teacher to student relationships.  This action 
will be measured by the number of students that received from site support or were principally directed towards services provided outside of 
MCSOS. School climate surveys administered each spring will reflect the percentage of how students feel and if they are safe and supported 
emotionally, physically, and academically. 

A description of how services for foster youth, English learners, and low-income students are being increased or improved by the percentage 
required. 

Madera County Superintendent of Schools provides a basic instructional program designed to provide learning opportunities for all students. 
However, the MCSOS’s budget of $12,488,070 in LCFF base funding constrains the services MCSOS is able to provide.  After examining the 
needs of our unduplicated students, MCSOS uses its LCFF supplemental and concentration (S/C) funds of $201.954 and other resources to 
provide the additional actions and services as described above.  For example, in order to promote increased attendance, decreased chronic 
absenteeism, lower suspension rates, increase graduation rates, and improve academic outcomes for our high-needs students, MCSOS 
used Supplemental and Concentration funds to hire another teacher, increase time for a school counselor, provide more staff professional 
development for ELA, Math and SEL, as well as introducing CTE offerings for all students in the Endeavor/Voyager program.  Increasing 
access to a school counselor provides students with frequent academic counseling, social-emotional support and access to services. 

All increased/improved services are LEA-Wide initiatives aimed at increasing success for all students, by using strategies principally directed 
to improve the educational outcomes of unduplicated students These actions and services would not be provided, or increased and/or 
improved to the degree to which they are available to our high-needs students without the availability of the S/C funds. 

While all students may receive some of the services, the actions/services described in this section are principally directed at increasing or 
improving services and outcomes for unduplicated students. We believe no action provides a disproportionate increase or improvement in 
services for students not included in the unduplicated student groups.  The percentage of all increased/improved services for high-needs 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor/Voyager) Page 86 of 121 



 
 

   

    

     
 

 

  
   

 
   

 
  

         
 

   
 

 
 

        
 

 
 

  
 

 
 

  

           

  

           

 

students is equal to or exceeds the 50.53% noted at the top of this section.  If the entire S/C amount is budgeted for contributing services, 
include that amount as part of the narrative.  By directing all the supplemental and concentration funding toward actions principally directed 
toward our unduplicated students, MCSOS has increased or improved services by at least the percentage calculated above as compared to 
the services provided for all students. 

In determining the need for increased services for MCSOS's Unduplicated Pupils (socio-economically disadvantaged, English learners, foster 
youth), MCSOS examined valuable data for objective indicators of academic risk. Assessments given in the Spring of 2021 indicated that 
MCSOS unduplicated students were performing at rates far below the state level. In addition, the most recent local data from i-Ready for 
English Language Arts and mathematics was used, along with educational partner feedback and input. These criteria were the primary 
consideration in determining students' needs, actions for effective instruction for unduplicated student groups. These ongoing achievement 
and results are monitored and reported internally and with stakeholders to ensure the focus and determination of effectiveness remains 
centered on the outcomes for these students. 

A description of the plan for how the additional concentration grant add-on funding identified above will be used to increase the number of staff 
providing direct services to students at schools that have a high concentration (above 55 percent) of foster youth, English learners, and low-
income students, as applicable. 

N/A - MCSOS did not receive additional Supplemental and Concentration grant funds.   

Staff-to-student ratios by
type of school and 
concentration of 
unduplicated students 

Schools with a student concentration of 55 percent or 
less 

Schools with a student concentration of greater than 55 
percent 

Staff-to-student ratio of 
classified staff providing 
direct services to students 

N/A Endeavor/Voyager    

Staff-to-student ratio of 
certificated staff providing 
direct services to students 

N/A Endeavor/Voyager    

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor/Voyager) Page 87 of 121 



2022-23 Total Expenditures Table 

Totals LCFF Funds Other State 
Funds Local Funds Federal Funds Total Funds Total Personnel Total Non 

personnel 
Totals $546,991.00   $109,120.00 $102,283.00 $340,718.00 $1,099,112.00 $894,411.00 $204,701.00 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor/Voyager) Page 88 of 121 

XAll 

XAll $18,494.00 

XLow Income $5,000.00 

XLow Income 

XAll $43,177.00 

XStudents with 
Disabilities     

$500.00 

XLow Income $26,537.00 

Goal Action # Action Title Student Group(s) LCFF Funds Other State Funds Local Funds Federal Funds Total Funds 
1 1.1 Teacher Professional 

Development specific 
to English Learners     

XLow Income $2,000.00 $700.00 $2,700.00 

1 1.2 

1 1.3 

1 1.4 

1 1.5 

1 1.6 

1 1.7 

1 1.8 

1 1.9 

Provide Credit XAll $172,331.00 $30,600.00 $28,861.00 $231,792.00 
Recovery Options for 
All Students      
Create Individual $0.00 
Progress Plans and 
Career Assessment 
Surveys 
Reclassify EL $18,494.00 
Students 
Provide CCSS $5,000.00 
Curriculum and 
Materials for SED 
students 
Improve academic $0.00 
proficiency of SED 
Students on SBAC 
Math and ELA 
assessments      
Maintain students on $43,177.00 
track for Graduation      
Support students with $500.00 
IEPs 

SED students to $26,537.00 
make academic 
progress as 
measured by i-Ready 
assessments 
(Includes funding 

 
 

   

 
 

 

        
                 

 
         

   

   

         
 

 
  

  

   
 

  

   
 

  
 

  

  
 

   

   
 

    
 

  
   

   
 

   
  

   

   

         
 

 
   

 

  
 

  

         
 

    
 

     
 

 
   

 

    
         

 

 
   

 

           
 

 
   

 

-



 
 

   

         
 

   
  

     

   
 

    
 

  

     

 
    

         
 

 
   

 

  
   

 
    

         
 

 
  

  

  
   

 
    

         
 

 
   

 

   
  

   
 

    
 

  

    

   
 

   
  

  
  
  

 
          

 
  

  

  
      

    
    

 

  
    

     
   

 

  
     

     
  

  

  
   

     
   

 

  
     

           
   

 

             
   

 

Goal Action # Action Title Student Group(s) LCFF Funds Other State Funds Local Funds Federal Funds Total Funds 
related to Goal 1, 
Action 6) 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor/Voyager) Page 89 of 121 

1 1.10 Modify Graduation 
Requirements and 
Grade Level 
Reclassification, as 
needed   

XAll $0.00 

1 1.11 Increase students 
completing CTE 
Introductory Course  

XEnglish Learners      
XFoster Youth 
XLow Income 

$27,720.00 $27,720.00 

1 1.12 Maintain low student 
to teacher ratio 

XEnglish Learners      
XFoster Youth 
XLow Income 

$76,403.00 $76,403.00 $152,806.00 

1 1.13 Maintain low student 
to teacher ratio 

XEnglish Learners      
XFoster Youth 
XLow Income 

$137,213.00 $137,213.00 

1 1.14 Retain Highly 
Effective Teachers 

XAll $0.00 

1 1.15 Multi-Tiered Support 
Systems (MTSS) 
Professional 
Development    

XAll $1,800.00 $1,800.00 

2 2.1 Maintain a low 
Teacher to Student 
Ratio 

XEnglish Learners      
XLow Income 

$28,282.00 $28,282.00 $56,564.00 

2 2.2 Counseling 
Presentations  

XAll $0.00 

2 2.3 Maintain Low Chronic 
Absenteeism Rate   

XAll $1,000.00 $1,000.00 

2 2.4 Maintain access to 
technology   

XAll $4,000.00 $1,200.00 $5,200.00 

2 2.5 Reduce Suspension 
Rate 

XAll $300.00 $300.00 

2 2.6 Increase Student 
Participation   

XLow Income $1,000.00 $1,000.00 

2 2.7 Maintain a Positive 
Learning Environment  

XLow Income $9,000.00 $9,000.00 



Goal Action # Action Title Student Group(s) LCFF Funds Other State Funds Local Funds Federal Funds Total Funds 
2 2.8 XAll 

3 3.1 XAll 

3 3.2 XAll 

3 3.3 XAll 

3 3.4 XAll 

3 3.5 XAll 

3 3.6 XAll 

4 4.1 XAll 

4 4.2 XAll 

4 4.3 XAll 

4 4.4 XAll 

 
 

   

         
   

 

        

    
    

 

   

 

 
   

    
 

    

  
 

   

    
    

 

  
        

    
   

  

  
        

    
    

 

  

      

    
    

 

  
     

    
    

 

    

 
     

    
   

  

   
  

 

    

    
   

  

  
 

   

    
   

  

        
   

  

Increase collaboration 
with Madera County 
Department of 
Behavioral Health 
(MCDBH) 

$0.00 

Build CAES Foster 
and Homeless 
parent/caregiver 
capacity to support 
the educational and 
social-emotional 
needs of youth.     

$78,520.00 $102,283.00 $119,978.00 $300,781.00 

Document Home-
School 
Communication     

$0.00 

Endeavor/Voyager 
School Events 

$200.00 $200.00 

Parents Attending 
School Events 

$0.00 

Promote School 
Communication with 
Families  

$0.00 

Increase feedback 
from EL Parents 

$0.00 

Build LEA capacity to 
support the 
educational needs of 
Foster Youth. 

$2,000.00 $2,000.00 

Ensure school 
stability by minimizing 
changes in school 
placement if in the 
best interest of the 
youth. 

$1,500.00 $1,500.00 

Develop and 
coordinate college 
and career readiness 
and awareness 
support services and 
activities. 

$45,800.00 $45,800.00 

Build LEA capacity to 
support the social-

$15,000.00 $15,000.00 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor/Voyager) Page 90 of 121 



Goal Action # Action Title Student Group(s) LCFF Funds Other State Funds Local Funds Federal Funds Total Funds 

XAll 

XAll 
XAll 

 
 

   

         

     
   

 

 

    

    
   

  

        
   

 
         

   
 

 

emotional needs of 
Foster Youth. 

4 4.5 Build caregiver 
capacity to support 
the educational and 
social-emotional 
needs of Foster 
Youth. 

$500.00 $500.00 

5 5.1 Triennial Meetings      $12,328.00 $12,328.00 
5 5.2 Annual Reviews      $200.00 $200.00 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor/Voyager) Page 91 of 121 



 
 

   

 
 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
  

                
        

        

         
        

        
 

   
 

  
  

 
 

 

 

   

 

 
 

                         
 

    
 

 

 
 

                         
 

  
 

 

 
 

                        
  

  

 

 
 

                         
 

  

 

 
 

       
    

          

 
 

 

2022-23 Contributing Actions Table 

1. Projected
LCFF Base 

Grant 

2. Projected
LCFF 

Supplemental 
and/or

Concentration 
Grants 

3. Projected
Percentage to 

Increase or 
Improve

Services for 
the Coming
School Year 
(2 divided by 

1) 

LCFF 
Carryover —  
Percentage
(Percentage
from Prior 

Year) 

Total 
Percentage to 

Increase or 
Improve

Services for 
the Coming
School Year 

(3 + Carryover 
%) 

4. Total 
Planned 

Contributing 
Expenditures 
(LCFF Funds) 

5. Total 
Planned 

Percentage of 
Improved
Services 

(%) 

Planned 
Percentage to 

Increase or 
Improve

Services for 
the Coming
School Year 
(4 divided by 

1, plus 5) 

Totals by
Type 

Total LCFF 
Funds 

376,210 201,954 53.68% 18.92% 72.60% $313,155.00 0.00% 83.24 % Total: $313,155.00 
LEA-wide 

Total: 
Limited Total:     
Schoolwide 

Total: 

$313,155.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor/Voyager) Page 92 of 121 

1 1.6 Improve academic 
proficiency of SED Students 
on SBAC Math and ELA 
assessments 

XYes XLEA-wide  XLow Income XAll Schools  

1 1.9 SED students to make 
academic progress as 
measured by i-Ready 
assessments (Includes 
funding related to Goal 1, 
Action 6) 

XYes XLEA-wide  XLow Income XAll Schools  $26,537.00 

1 1.11 Increase students 
completing CTE 
Introductory Course 

XYes XLEA-wide  XEnglish Learners      
XFoster Youth 
XLow Income 

$27,720.00 

Goal Action # Action Title 
Contributing to 

Increased or 
Improved
Services? 

Scope Unduplicated
Student Group(s) Location 

Planned 
Expenditures for 

Contributing 
Actions (LCFF

Funds) 

Planned 
Percentage of 

Improved
Services (%) 

1 1.1 Teacher Professional 
Development specific to 
English Learners 

XYes XLEA-wide  XLow Income XAll Schools  $2,000.00 

1 1.5 Provide CCSS Curriculum 
and Materials for SED 
students 

XYes XLEA-wide  XLow Income XAll Schools  $5,000.00 



Goal Action # Action Title 
Contributing to 

Increased or 
Improved
Services? 

Scope Unduplicated
Student Group(s) Location 

Planned 
Expenditures for 

Contributing 
Actions (LCFF

Funds) 

Planned 
Percentage of 

Improved
Services (%) 

1 1.12 Maintain low student to 
teacher ratio 

XYes XLEA-wide  XEnglish Learners      
XFoster Youth 
XLow Income 

XAll Schools  

1 XYes XLEA-wide  XEnglish Learners      
XFoster Youth 
XLow Income 

XAll Schools  

2 XYes XLEA-wide  XEnglish Learners      
XLow Income 

XAll Schools  

2 XYes XLEA-wide  XLow Income XAll Schools  

2 Maintain a Positive Learning 
Environment 

XYes XLEA-wide  XLow Income XAll Schools  

 
 

   

   
 

  
  

 
 

 

 

  
 

 
 

       
    

          

        
 

  
 

 
 

       
    

          

        
 

  
 

 
 

       
          

        
 

  
 

 
 

                         
 

  
 

 
 

                         
 

 

$76,403.00 

1.13 Maintain low student to 
teacher ratio 

$137,213.00 

2.1 Maintain a low Teacher to 
Student Ratio 

$28,282.00 

2.6 Increase Student 
Participation 

$1,000.00 

2.7 $9,000.00 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor/Voyager) Page 93 of 121 



 
 

   

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

          

 

  
 

  
 

 
 

   
         

 
 

 

  

   
  

 
 

 

  

  
   

 
 

 

  

          
 

 

  

    
        

 
 

 

  

   
 

   

 
 

 

  

  
      

 
 

 

  

        
 

 

  

  

   

 
 

 

  

2021-22 Annual Update Table 

Totals 
Last Year's 

Total Planned 
Expenditures 
(Total Funds) 

Total Estimated  
Expenditures
(Total Funds) 

Totals $978,404.00 $909,233.00 

Last Year's 
Goal # 

Last Year's Action 
# 

Prior Action/Service Title Contributed to Increased 
or Improved Services? 

Last Year's Planned 
Expenditures
(Total Funds) 

Estimated Actual 
Expenditures

(Input Total Funds) 
1 1.1 Teacher Professional Development 

specific to English Learners 
Yes 
X 

$4,500.00 $489.00 

1 1.2 Provide Credit Recovery Options for 
All Students      

No 
X 

$241,365.00 $247,922.00 

1 1.3 Create Individual Progress Plans 
and Career Assessment Surveys    

No 
X 

$0.00 $0.00 

1 1.4 Reclassify EL Students No 
X 

$40,334.00 $23,663.00 

1 1.5 Provide CCSS Curriculum and 
Materials for SED students 

Yes 
X 

$5,000.00 $6,301.00 

1 1.6 Improve academic proficiency of 
SED Students on SBAC Math and 
ELA assessments     

No 
X 

$3,730.00 $3,730.00 

1 1.7 Maintain students on track for 
Graduation  

No 
X 

$1,000.00 $266.00 

1 1.8 Support students with IEPs     No 
X 

$4,590.00 $0.00 

1 1.9 SED students to make academic 
progress as measured by i-Ready 
assessments (Includes funding 
related to Goal 1, Action 6) 

Yes 
X 

$25,277.00 $0.00 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor/Voyager) Page 94 of 121 



 
 

   

  
 

  
 

 
 

  
 

     

 
 

 

  

  
      

 
 

 

  

  
   

 
 

 

  

  
   

 
 

 

  

      
 

 

  

  
  

 
 

 

  

        
 

 

  

   
 

 

  

     
 

 

  

         
 

 

  

      
 

 

  

  
      

 
 

 

  

   
 

      

 
 

 

  

Last Year's 
Goal # 

Last Year's Action 
# 

Prior Action/Service Title Contributed to Increased 
or Improved Services? 

Last Year's Planned 
Expenditures
(Total Funds) 

Estimated Actual 
Expenditures

(Input Total Funds) 
1 1.10 Modify Graduation Requirements 

and Grade Level Reclassification, 
as needed   

No 
X 

$0.00 $0.00 

1 1.11 Increase students completing CTE 
Introductory Course  

No 
X 

$39,433.00 $19,100.00 

1 1.12 Maintain low student to teacher 
ratio 

No 
X 

$129,522.00 $150,399.00 

1 1.13 Maintain low student to teacher 
ratio 

Yes 
X 

$119,276.00 $120,206.00 

1 1.14 Retain Highly Effective Teachers     No 
X 

$1,500.00 $489.00 

2 2.1 Maintain a low Teacher to Student 
Ratio 

Yes 
X 

$0.00 $51,925.00 

2 2.2 Counseling Presentations   No 
X 

$0.00 $0.00 

2 2.3 Maintain Chronic Absenteeism Rate    No 
X 

$500.00 $120.00 

2 2.4 Maintain access to technology      No 
X 

$4,700.00 $0.00 

2 2.5 Reduce Suspension Rate  No 
X 

$3,500.00 $180.00 

2 2.6 Increase Student Participation     Yes 
X 

$1,000.00 $120.00 

2 2.7 Maintain a Positive Learning 
Environment  

Yes 
X 

$7,260.00 $8,925.00 

2 2.8 Increase collaboration with Madera 
County Department of Behavioral 
Health (MCDBH)   

Yes 
X 

$0.00 $0.00 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor/Voyager) Page 95 of 121 



 
 

   

  
 

  
 

 
 

    
 

     

 
 

 

  

   
   

 
 

 

  

         
 

 

  

       
 

 

  

  
      

 
 

 

  

          
 

 

  

     
 

 

  

   

  
     

 
 

 

  

   
  

    

 
 

 

  

    
 

    

 
 

 

  

    

     

 
 

 

  

     
 

 

  

       

Last Year's 
Goal # 

Last Year's Action 
# 

Prior Action/Service Title Contributed to Increased 
or Improved Services? 

Last Year's Planned 
Expenditures
(Total Funds) 

Estimated Actual 
Expenditures

(Input Total Funds) 
3 3.1 Build CAES Foster and Homeless 

parent/caregiver capacity to support 
the educational and social-
emotional needs of youth.   

No 
X 

$273,445.00 $254,712.00 

3 3.2 Document Home-School 
Communication     

No 
X 

$0.00 $0.00 

3 3.3 Endeavor/Voyager School Events No 
X 

$200.00 $0.00 

3 3.4 Parents Attending School Events   No 
X 

$0.00 $0.00 

3 3.5 Promote School Communication 
with Families  

No 
X 

$0.00 $0.00 

3 3.6 Increase feedback from EL Parents No 
X 

$28,987.00 $0.00 

4 4.1 Build LEA capacity to support the 
educational needs of Foster Youth.    

No 
X 

$2,000.00 $7,058.00 

4 4.2 Ensure school stability by 
minimizing changes in school 
placement if in the best interest of 
the youth. 

No 
X 

$9,000.00 $1,500.00 

4 4.3 Develop and coordinate college and 
career readiness and awareness 
support services and activities.    

No 
X 

$10,800.00 $2,800.00 

4 4.4 Build LEA capacity to support the 
social-emotional needs of Foster 
Youth. 

No 
X 

$5,000.00 $0.00 

4 4.5 Build caregiver capacity to support 
the educational and social-
emotional needs of Foster Youth.  

No 
X 

$800.00 $600.00 

5 5.1 Triennial Meetings      No 
X 

$15,685.00 $8,728.00 

5 5.2 Annual Reviews      No $0.00 $0.00 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor/Voyager) Page 96 of 121 



 
 

   

  
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 

Last Year's 
Goal # 

Last Year's Action 
# 

Prior Action/Service Title Contributed to Increased 
or Improved Services? 

Last Year's Planned 
Expenditures
(Total Funds) 

Estimated Actual 
Expenditures

(Input Total Funds) 
X 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor/Voyager) Page 97 of 121 



 
 

   

 
 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 
                                

 

  
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

   

 

 
 

   
 

    
 

 
 

   
 

  

  

 
 

   
 

  
 

 
 

   
 

  
 

 
 

   
 

    
 

   
 

  
 

 
 

   
 

   
 

 

 
 

   
 

 

2021-22 Contributing Actions Annual Update Table 

6. Estimated 
LCFF 

Supplemental 
and/or

Concentration 
Grants 

(Input Dollar 
Amount) 

4. Total Planned 
Contributing 
Expenditures 
(LCFF Funds) 

7. Total Estimated 
Expenditures for 

Contributing 
Actions 

(LCFF Funds) 

Difference 
Between Planned 

and Estimated 
Expenditures for 

Contributing 
Actions 

(Subtract 7 from
4) 

5. Total Planned 
Percentage of 

Improved
Services (%) 

8. Total Estimated 
Percentage of 

Improved
Services 

(%) 

Difference 
Between Planned 

and Estimated 
Percentage of 

Improved
Services 

(Subtract 5 from
8) 

209,417  $134,536.00   $135,552.25   ($1,016.25)  0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 

Last 
Year's 
Goal # 

Last 
Year's 

Action # 
Prior Action/Service Title 

Contributing to 
Increased or 

Improved Services? 

Last Year's Planned 
Expenditures for 

Contributing 
Actions (LCFF

Funds) 

Estimated Actual 
Expenditures for 

Contributing 
Actions 

(Input LCFF Funds) 

Planned Percentage 
of Improved 

Services 

Estimated Actual 
Percentage of 

Improved Services
(Input Percentage) 

1 1.1 Teacher Professional 
Development specific to 
English Learners 

XYes $2,000.00 0 

1 1.5 Provide CCSS Curriculum and 
Materials for SED students 

XYes $5,000.00 $6,301.25 

1 1.9 SED students to make 
academic progress as 
measured by i-Ready 
assessments (Includes funding 
related to Goal 1, Action 6) 

XYes 0 

1 1.13 Maintain low student to 
teacher ratio 

XYes $119,276.00 $120,206 

2 2.1 Maintain a low Teacher to 
Student Ratio 

XYes 0 

2 2.6 Increase Student Participation XYes $1,000.00 $120 

2 2.7 Maintain a Positive Learning 
Environment 

XYes $7,260.00 $8,925 

2 2.8 Increase collaboration with 
Madera County Department of 
Behavioral Health (MCDBH) 

XYes 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor/Voyager) Page 98 of 121 



 
 

   

 
 

 

  

  

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

         
 

—

2021-22 LCFF Carryover Table 

9. Estimated 
Actual LCFF 
Base Grant 
(Input Dollar 

Amount) 

6. Estimated 
Actual LCFF 

Supplemental 
and/or

Concentration 
Grants 

LCFF 
Carryover —  
Percentage
(Percentage
from Prior 

Year) 

10. Total 
Percentage to 

Increase or 
Improve

Services for 
the Current 
School Year 

(6 divided by 9 
+ Carryover 

%) 

7. Total 
Estimated 

Actual 
Expenditures 

for 
Contributing 

Actions 
(LCFF Funds) 

8. Total 
Estimated 

Actual 
Percentage of 

Improved
Services 

(%) 

11. Estimated 
Actual 

Percentage of 
Increased or 

Improved
Services 

(7 divided by 
9, plus 8) 

12. LCFF 
Carryover 

Dollar Amount 
(Subtract 11
from 10 and 

multiply by 9) 

13. LCFF 
Carryover —  
Percentage

(12 divided by 
9) 

390,427 209,417 0 53.64% $135,552.25 0.00% 34.72% $73,864.75 18.92% 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor/Voyager) Page 99 of 121 



 
 

  

 
 

 

  

    

  
  

 

 
   

   

  

    
 

 
 

  
   

 
 

   
  

   
 

   
  

  

 

 

 

Instructions 
Plan Summary 

Engaging Educational Partners 

Goals and Actions 

Increased or Improved Services for Foster Youth, English Learners, and Low-Income Students 

For additional questions or technical assistance related to the completion of the Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP) template, 
please contact the local county office of education (COE), or the California Department of Education’s (CDE’s) Local Agency Systems Support 
Office, by phone at 916-319-0809 or by email at lcff@cde.ca.gov. 

Introduction and Instructions 
The Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF) requires local educational agencies (LEAs) to engage their local educational partners in an annual 
planning process to evaluate their progress within eight state priority areas encompassing all statutory metrics (COEs have 10 state priorities). 
LEAs document the results of this planning process in the LCAP using the template adopted by the State Board of Education. 

The LCAP development process serves three distinct, but related functions: 

• Comprehensive Strategic Planning: The process of developing and annually updating the LCAP supports comprehensive strategic planning 
(California Education Code [EC] Section 52064[e][1]). Strategic planning that is comprehensive connects budgetary decisions to teaching and 
learning performance data. LEAs should continually evaluate the hard choices they make about the use of limited resources to meet student and 
community needs to ensure opportunities and outcomes are improved for all students. 

• Meaningful Engagement of Educational Partners: The LCAP development process should result in an LCAP that reflects decisions made 
through meaningful engagement (EC Section 52064[e][1]). Local educational partners possess valuable perspectives and insights about an LEA's 
programs and services. Effective strategic planning will incorporate these perspectives and insights in order to identify potential goals and actions to 
be included in the LCAP. 

• Accountability and Compliance: The LCAP serves an important accountability function because aspects of the LCAP template require LEAs to 
show that they have complied with various requirements specified in the LCFF statutes and regulations, most notably: 

o Demonstrating that LEAs are increasing or improving services for foster youth, English learners, and low-income students in proportion to 
the amount of additional funding those students generate under LCFF (EC Section 52064[b][4-6]). 

o Establishing goals, supported by actions and related expenditures, that address the statutory priority areas and statutory metrics (EC 
sections 52064[b][1] and [2]). 

o Annually reviewing and updating the LCAP to reflect progress toward the goals (EC Section 52064[b][7]). 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor/Voyager) Page 100 of 121 

mailto:lcff@cde.ca.gov


 
 

  

       

  
       

  

  
  

  
  

  
  

     
    

 

  
 

  

 
 

  
   

  
 

 
    

 

 
 

The LCAP template, like each LEA’s final adopted LCAP, is a document, not a process. LEAs must use the template to memorialize the 
outcome of their LCAP development process, which should: (a) reflect comprehensive strategic planning (b) through meaningful engagement 
with educational partners that (c) meets legal requirements, as reflected in the final adopted LCAP. The sections included within the LCAP 
template do not and cannot reflect the full development process, just as the LCAP template itself is not intended as a tool for engaging 
educational partners. 

If a county superintendent of schools has jurisdiction over a single school district, the county board of education and the governing board of 
the school district may adopt and file for review and approval a single LCAP consistent with the requirements in EC sections 52060, 52062, 
52066, 52068, and 52070. The LCAP must clearly articulate to which entity’s budget (school district or county superintendent of schools) all 
budgeted and actual expenditures are aligned. 

The revised LCAP template for the 2021–22, 2022–23, and 2023–24 school years reflects statutory changes made through Assembly Bill 
1840 (Committee on Budget), Chapter 243, Statutes of 2018. These statutory changes enhance transparency regarding expenditures on 
actions included in the LCAP, including actions that contribute to meeting the requirement to increase or improve services for foster youth, 
English learners, and low-income students, and to streamline the information presented within the LCAP to make adopted LCAPs more 
accessible for educational partners and the public. 

At its most basic, the adopted LCAP should attempt to distill not just what the LEA is doing for students in transitional kindergarten through 
grade twelve (TK–12), but also allow educational partners to understand why, and whether those strategies are leading to improved 
opportunities and outcomes for students. LEAs are strongly encouraged to use language and a level of detail in their adopted LCAPs intended 
to be meaningful and accessible for the LEA’s diverse educational partners and the broader public. 

In developing and finalizing the LCAP for adoption, LEAs are encouraged to keep the following overarching frame at the forefront of the 
strategic planning and educational partner engagement functions: 

Given present performance across the state priorities and on indicators in the California School Dashboard (Dashboard), how is the 
LEA using its budgetary resources to respond to TK–12 student and community needs, and address any performance gaps, including 
by meeting its obligation to increase or improve services for foster youth, English learners, and low-income students? 

LEAs are encouraged to focus on a set of metrics and actions that the LEA believes, based on input gathered from educational partners, 
research, and experience, will have the biggest impact on behalf of its TK–12 students. 

These instructions address the requirements for each section of the LCAP, but may include information about effective practices when 
developing the LCAP and completing the LCAP itself. Additionally, information is included at the beginning of each section emphasizing the 
purpose that each section serves. 

Plan Summary 
Purpose 
2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor/Voyager) Page 101 of 121 



 
 

  

  
 

 

 
  

 
   

  
 

     
    

 

  
     

   
   

 
  

   

  

   
  

     

      

    

     
  

 

 

 

 

A well-developed Plan Summary section provides a meaningful context for the LCAP. This section provides information about an LEA’s 
community as well as relevant information about student needs and performance. In order to provide a meaningful context for the rest of the 
LCAP, the content of this section should be clearly and meaningfully related to the content included in the subsequent sections of the LCAP. 

Requirements and Instructions 
General Information – Briefly describe the LEA, its schools, and its students in grades TK–12, as applicable to the LEA. For example, 
information about an LEA in terms of geography, enrollment, or employment, the number and size of specific schools, recent community 
challenges, and other such information as an LEA wishes to include can enable a reader to more fully understand an LEA’s LCAP. 

Reflections: Successes – Based on a review of performance on the state indicators and local performance indicators included in the 
Dashboard, progress toward LCAP goals, local self-assessment tools, input from educational partners, and any other information, what 
progress is the LEA most proud of and how does the LEA plan to maintain or build upon that success? This may include identifying specific 
examples of how past increases or improvements in services for foster youth, English learners, and low-income students have led to improved 
performance for these students. 

Reflections: Identified Need – Referring to the Dashboard, identify: (a) any state indicator for which overall performance was in the “Red” or 
“Orange” performance category or any local indicator where the LEA received a “Not Met” or “Not Met for Two or More Years” rating AND (b) 
any state indicator for which performance for any student group was two or more performance levels below the “all student” performance. 
What steps is the LEA planning to take to address these areas of low performance and performance gaps? An LEA that is required to include 
a goal to address one or more consistently low-performing student groups or low-performing schools must identify that it is required to include 
this goal and must also identify the applicable student group(s) and/or school(s). Other needs may be identified using locally collected data 
including data collected to inform the self-reflection tools and reporting local indicators on the Dashboard. 

LCAP Highlights – Identify and briefly summarize the key features of this year’s LCAP. 

Comprehensive Support and Improvement – An LEA with a school or schools identified for comprehensive support and improvement (CSI) 
under the Every Student Succeeds Act must respond to the following prompts: 

● Schools Identified: Identify the schools within the LEA that have been identified for CSI. 

● Support for Identified Schools: Describe how the LEA has or will support the identified schools in developing CSI plans that included 
a school-level needs assessment, evidence-based interventions, and the identification of any resource inequities to be addressed 
through the implementation of the CSI plan. 

● Monitoring and Evaluating Effectiveness: Describe how the LEA will monitor and evaluate the implementation and effectiveness of 
the CSI plan to support student and school improvement. 

Engaging Educational Partners 
2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor/Voyager) Page 102 of 121 



 
 

  

 
 

 
 

    

     
 

  
 

 
  

 
 

   

  
 

 
 

    

 
   

 

 
  

    
 

  
 

Purpose 
Significant and purposeful engagement of parents, students, educators, and other educational partners, including those representing the 
student groups identified by LCFF, is critical to the development of the LCAP and the budget process. Consistent with statute, such 
engagement should support comprehensive strategic planning, accountability, and improvement across the state priorities and locally 
identified priorities (EC Section 52064[e][1]). Engagement of educational partners is an ongoing, annual process. 

This section is designed to reflect how the engagement of educational partners influenced the decisions reflected in the adopted LCAP. The 
goal is to allow educational partners that participated in the LCAP development process and the broader public understand how the LEA 
engaged educational partners and the impact of that engagement. LEAs are encouraged to keep this goal in the forefront when completing 
this section. 

Statute and regulations specify the educational partners that school districts and COEs must consult when developing the LCAP: teachers, 
principals, administrators, other school personnel, local bargaining units of the LEA, parents, and students. Before adopting the LCAP, school 
districts and COEs must share it with the Parent Advisory Committee and, if applicable, to its English Learner Parent Advisory Committee. The 
superintendent is required by statute to respond in writing to the comments received from these committees. School districts and COEs must 
also consult with the special education local plan area administrator(s) when developing the LCAP. 

Statute requires charter schools to consult with teachers, principals, administrators, other school personnel, parents, and students in 
developing the LCAP. The LCAP should also be shared with, and LEAs should request input from, schoolsite-level advisory groups, as 
applicable (e.g., schoolsite councils, English Learner Advisory Councils, student advisory groups, etc.), to facilitate alignment between 
schoolsite and district-level goals and actions. 

Information and resources that support effective engagement, define student consultation, and provide the requirements for advisory group 
composition, can be found under Resources on the following web page of the CDE’s website: https://www.cde.ca.gov/re/lc/. 

Requirements and Instructions 
Below is an excerpt from the 2018–19 Guide for Annual Audits of K–12 Local Education Agencies and State Compliance Reporting, which is 
provided to highlight the legal requirements for engagement of educational partners in the LCAP development process: 

Local Control and Accountability Plan:
For county offices of education and school districts only, verify the LEA: 

a) Presented the local control and accountability plan to the parent advisory committee in accordance with Education Code section 
52062(a)(1) or 52068(a)(1), as appropriate. 

b) If applicable, presented the local control and accountability plan to the English learner parent advisory committee, in accordance 
with Education Code section 52062(a)(2) or 52068(a)(2), as appropriate. 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor/Voyager) Page 103 of 121 

https://www.cde.ca.gov/re/lc/


 
 

  

    
  

 

     

     
 

 

  
   

  

 

   
  

  

  
  

  
 

 
 

   
  
   
   
  
  
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

c) Notified members of the public of the opportunity to submit comments regarding specific actions and expenditures proposed to 
be included in the local control and accountability plan in accordance with Education Code section 52062(a)(3) or 52068(a)(3), 
as appropriate. 

d) Held at least one public hearing in accordance with Education Code section 52062(b)(1) or 52068(b)(1), as appropriate. 

e) Adopted the local control and accountability plan in a public meeting in accordance with Education Code section 52062(b)(2) or 
52068(b)(2), as appropriate. 

Prompt 1: “A summary of the process used to engage educational partners and how this engagement was considered before finalizing the 
LCAP.” 

Describe the engagement process used by the LEA to involve educational partners in the development of the LCAP, including, at a minimum, 
describing how the LEA met its obligation to consult with all statutorily required educational partners as applicable to the type of LEA. A 
sufficient response to this prompt must include general information about the timeline of the process and meetings or other engagement 
strategies with educational partners. A response may also include information about an LEA’s philosophical approach to engaging its 
educational partners. 

Prompt 2: “A summary of the feedback provided by specific educational partners.” 

Describe and summarize the feedback provided by specific educational partners. A sufficient response to this prompt will indicate ideas, 
trends, or inputs that emerged from an analysis of the feedback received from educational partners. 

Prompt 3: “A description of the aspects of the LCAP that were influenced by specific input from educational partners.” 

A sufficient response to this prompt will provide educational partners and the public with clear, specific information about how the engagement 
process influenced the development of the LCAP. The response must describe aspects of the LCAP that were influenced by or developed in 
response to the educational partner feedback described in response to Prompt 2. This may include a description of how the LEA prioritized 
requests of educational partners within the context of the budgetary resources available or otherwise prioritized areas of focus within the 
LCAP. For the purposes of this prompt, “aspects” of an LCAP that may have been influenced by educational partner input can include, but are 
not necessarily limited to: 

• Inclusion of a goal or decision to pursue a Focus Goal (as described below) 
• Inclusion of metrics other than the statutorily required metrics 
• Determination of the desired outcome on one or more metrics 
• Inclusion of performance by one or more student groups in the Measuring and Reporting Results subsection 
• Inclusion of action(s) or a group of actions 
• Elimination of action(s) or group of actions 
• Changes to the level of proposed expenditures for one or more actions 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor/Voyager) Page 104 of 121 



 
 

  

   
  
  
   
   

 
 

      
 

   
    

  
  

  
  

  

 
  

 
  

   

  
    

      

  
 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

• Inclusion of action(s) as contributing to increased or improved services for unduplicated services 
• Determination of effectiveness of the specific actions to achieve the goal 
• Determination of material differences in expenditures 
• Determination of changes made to a goal for the ensuing LCAP year based on the annual update process 
• Determination of challenges or successes in the implementation of actions 

Goals and Actions 
Purpose 
Well-developed goals will clearly communicate to educational partners what the LEA plans to accomplish, what the LEA plans to do in order to 
accomplish the goal, and how the LEA will know when it has accomplished the goal. A goal statement, associated metrics and expected 
outcomes, and the actions included in the goal should be in alignment. The explanation for why the LEA included a goal is an opportunity for 
LEAs to clearly communicate to educational partners and the public why, among the various strengths and areas for improvement highlighted 
by performance data and strategies and actions that could be pursued, the LEA decided to pursue this goal, and the related metrics, expected 
outcomes, actions, and expenditures. 

A well-developed goal can be focused on the performance relative to a metric or metrics for all students, a specific student group(s), narrowing 
performance gaps, or implementing programs or strategies expected to impact outcomes. LEAs should assess the performance of their 
student groups when developing goals and the related actions to achieve such goals. 

Requirements and Instructions 
LEAs should prioritize the goals, specific actions, and related expenditures included within the LCAP within one or more state priorities. LEAs 
should consider performance on the state and local indicators, including their locally collected and reported data for the local indicators that 
are included in the Dashboard in determining whether and how to prioritize its goals within the LCAP. 

In order to support prioritization of goals, the LCAP template provides LEAs with the option of developing three different kinds of goals: 

• Focus Goal: A Focus Goal is relatively more concentrated in scope and may focus on a fewer number of metrics to measure improvement. A Focus 
Goal statement will be time bound and make clear how the goal is to be measured. 

• Broad Goal: A Broad Goal is relatively less concentrated in its scope and may focus on improving performance across a wide range of metrics. 

• Maintenance of Progress Goal: A Maintenance of Progress Goal includes actions that may be ongoing without significant changes and allows an 
LEA to track performance on any metrics not addressed in the other goals of the LCAP. 

At a minimum, the LCAP must address all LCFF priorities and associated metrics. 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor/Voyager) Page 105 of 121 



 
 

  

 
  

    
  

 

    
   

  
   

 

  
   

   
 

  
 

 
  

    
 

   

     

 
   

  

   
  
   

  

  
    

 

Focus Goal(s)
Goal Description: The description provided for a Focus Goal must be specific, measurable, and time bound. An LEA develops a Focus Goal 
to address areas of need that may require or benefit from a more specific and data intensive approach. The Focus Goal can explicitly 
reference the metric(s) by which achievement of the goal will be measured and the time frame according to which the LEA expects to achieve 
the goal. 

Explanation of why the LEA has developed this goal: Explain why the LEA has chosen to prioritize this goal. An explanation must be 
based on Dashboard data or other locally collected data. LEAs must describe how the LEA identified this goal for focused attention, including 
relevant consultation with educational partners. LEAs are encouraged to promote transparency and understanding around the decision to 
pursue a focus goal. 

Broad Goal 
Goal Description: Describe what the LEA plans to achieve through the actions included in the goal. The description of a broad goal will be 
clearly aligned with the expected measurable outcomes included for the goal. The goal description organizes the actions and expected 
outcomes in a cohesive and consistent manner. A goal description is specific enough to be measurable in either quantitative or qualitative 
terms. A broad goal is not as specific as a focus goal. While it is specific enough to be measurable, there are many different metrics for 
measuring progress toward the goal. 

Explanation of why the LEA has developed this goal: Explain why the LEA developed this goal and how the actions and metrics grouped 
together will help achieve the goal. 

Maintenance of Progress Goal
Goal Description: Describe how the LEA intends to maintain the progress made in the LCFF State Priorities not addressed by the other goals 
in the LCAP. Use this type of goal to address the state priorities and applicable metrics not addressed within the other goals in the LCAP. The 
state priorities and metrics to be addressed in this section are those for which the LEA, in consultation with educational partners, has 
determined to maintain actions and monitor progress while focusing implementation efforts on the actions covered by other goals in the LCAP. 

Explanation of why the LEA has developed this goal: Explain how the actions will sustain the progress exemplified by the related metrics. 

Required Goals
In general, LEAs have flexibility in determining what goals to include in the LCAP and what those goals will address; however, beginning with 
the development of the 2022–23 LCAP, LEAs that meet certain criteria are required to include a specific goal in their LCAP. 

Consistently low-performing student group(s) criteria: An LEA is eligible for Differentiated Assistance for three or more consecutive years 
based on the performance of the same student group or groups in the Dashboard. A list of the LEAs required to include a goal in the LCAP 
based on student group performance, and the student group(s) that lead to identification, may be found on the CDE’s Local Control Funding 
Formula web page at https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/aa/lc/. 

• Consistently low-performing student group(s) goal requirement: An LEA meeting the consistently low-performing student group(s) criteria must 
include a goal in its LCAP focused on improving the performance of the student group or groups that led to the LEA’s eligibility for Differentiated 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor/Voyager) Page 106 of 121 

https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/aa/lc/


 
 

  

   
  

 
 

   
   

   

 
 

 

   
     
  

  

 
 

      
   

 

       
 

   

 
  

 
  

 

 

 

 

 

 

Assistance. This goal must include metrics, outcomes, actions, and expenditures specific to addressing the needs of, and improving outcomes for, 
this student group or groups. An LEA required to address multiple student groups is not required to have a goal to address each student group; 
however, each student group must be specifically addressed in the goal. This requirement may not be met by combining this required goal with 
another goal. 

• Goal Description: Describe the outcomes the LEA plans to achieve to address the needs of, and improve outcomes for, the student group or 
groups that led to the LEA’s eligibility for Differentiated Assistance. 

• Explanation of why the LEA has developed this goal: Explain why the LEA is required to develop this goal, including identifying the student 
group(s) that lead to the LEA being required to develop this goal, how the actions and associated metrics included in this goal differ from previous 
efforts to improve outcomes for the student group(s), and why the LEA believes the actions, metrics, and expenditures included in this goal will help 
achieve the outcomes identified in the goal description. 

Low-performing school(s) criteria: The following criteria only applies to a school district or COE with two or more schools; it does not apply 
to a single-school district. A school district or COE has one or more schools that, for two consecutive years, received the two lowest 
performance levels on all but one of the state indicators for which the school(s) receive performance levels in the Dashboard and the 
performance of the “All Students” student group for the LEA is at least one performance level higher in all of those indicators. A list of the LEAs 
required to include a goal in the LCAP based on school performance, and the school(s) that lead to identification, may be found on the CDE’s 
Local Control Funding Formula web page at https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/aa/lc/. 

• Low-performing school(s) goal requirement: A school district or COE meeting the low-performing school(s) criteria must include a goal in its 
LCAP focusing on addressing the disparities in performance between the school(s) and the LEA as a whole. This goal must include metrics, 
outcomes, actions, and expenditures specific to addressing the needs of, and improving outcomes for, the students enrolled at the low-performing 
school or schools. An LEA required to address multiple schools is not required to have a goal to address each school; however, each school must 
be specifically addressed in the goal. This requirement may not be met by combining this goal with another goal. 

• Goal Description: Describe what outcomes the LEA plans to achieve to address the disparities in performance between the students enrolled at 
the low-performing school(s) and the students enrolled at the LEA as a whole. 

• Explanation of why the LEA has developed this goal: Explain why the LEA is required to develop this goal, including identifying the schools(s) 
that lead to the LEA being required to develop this goal; how the actions and associated metrics included in this goal differ from previous efforts to 
improve outcomes for the school(s); and why the LEA believes the actions, metrics, and expenditures included in this goal will help achieve the 
outcomes for students enrolled at the low-performing school or schools identified in the goal description. 

Measuring and Reporting Results:
For each LCAP year, identify the metric(s) that the LEA will use to track progress toward the expected outcomes. LEAs are encouraged to 
identify metrics for specific student groups, as appropriate, including expected outcomes that would reflect narrowing of any existing 
performance gaps. 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor/Voyager) Page 107 of 121 

https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/aa/lc/


 
 

  

   
    

 

       
  
 

 

 

 

  

   
   

 
 

 
 

 
  

 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Include in the baseline column the most recent data associated with this metric available at the time of adoption of the LCAP for the first year 
of the three-year plan. LEAs may use data as reported on the 2019 Dashboard for the baseline of a metric only if that data represents the 
most recent available (e.g., high school graduation rate). 

Using the most recent data available may involve reviewing data the LEA is preparing for submission to the California Longitudinal Pupil 
Achievement Data System (CALPADS) or data that the LEA has recently submitted to CALPADS. Because final 2020–21 outcomes on some 
metrics may not be computable at the time the 2021–24 LCAP is adopted (e.g., graduation rate, suspension rate), the most recent data 
available may include a point in time calculation taken each year on the same date for comparability purposes. 

The baseline data shall remain unchanged throughout the three-year LCAP. 

Complete the table as follows: 

● Metric: Indicate how progress is being measured using a metric. 

● Baseline: Enter the baseline when completing the LCAP for 2021–22. As described above, the baseline is the most recent data 
associated with a metric. Indicate the school year to which the data applies, consistent with the instructions above. 

● Year 1 Outcome: When completing the LCAP for 2022–23, enter the most recent data available. Indicate the school year to which the 
data applies, consistent with the instructions above. 

● Year 2 Outcome: When completing the LCAP for 2023–24, enter the most recent data available. Indicate the school year to which the 
data applies, consistent with the instructions above. 

● Year 3 Outcome: When completing the LCAP for 2024–25, enter the most recent data available. Indicate the school year to which the 
data applies, consistent with the instructions above. The 2024–25 LCAP will be the first year in the next three-year cycle. Completing 
this column will be part of the Annual Update for that year. 

● Desired Outcome for 2023–24: When completing the first year of the LCAP, enter the desired outcome for the relevant metric the LEA 
expects to achieve by the end of the 2023–24 LCAP year. 

Timeline for completing the “Measuring and Reporting Results” part of the Goal. 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor/Voyager) Page 108 of 121 



 
 

  

      
 

   
  

 
  

 
   

 
 

  
 

  

  
 

 
   

   
    

  
   

 

    

 

 

Metric Baseline Year 1 Outcome Year 2 Outcome Year 3 Outcome 
Desired Outcome 

for Year 3 
(2023–24) 

Enter information 
in this box when 
completing the 
LCAP for 2021– 
22. 

Enter information 
in this box when 
completing the 
LCAP for 2021– 
22. 

Enter information 
in this box when 
completing the 
LCAP for 2022– 
23. Leave blank 
until then. 

Enter information 
in this box when 
completing the 
LCAP for 2023– 
24. Leave blank 
until then. 

Enter information 
in this box when 
completing the 
LCAP for 2024– 
25. Leave blank 
until then. 

Enter information 
in this box when 
completing the 
LCAP for 2021– 
22 or when 
adding a new 
metric. 

The metrics may be quantitative or qualitative; but at minimum, an LEA’s LCAP must include goals that are measured using all of the 
applicable metrics for the related state priorities, in each LCAP year as applicable to the type of LEA. To the extent a state priority does not 
specify one or more metrics (e.g., implementation of state academic content and performance standards), the LEA must identify a metric to 
use within the LCAP. For these state priorities, LEAs are encouraged to use metrics based on or reported through the relevant self-reflection 
tool for local indicators within the Dashboard. 

Actions: Enter the action number. Provide a short title for the action. This title will also appear in the action tables. Provide a description of the 
action. Enter the total amount of expenditures associated with this action. Budgeted expenditures from specific fund sources will be provided 
in the summary tables. Indicate whether the action contributes to meeting the increase or improved services requirement as described in the 
Increased or Improved Services section using a “Y” for Yes or an “N” for No. (Note: for each such action offered on an LEA-wide or 
schoolwide basis, the LEA will need to provide additional information in the Increased or Improved Summary Section to address the 
requirements in California Code of Regulations, Title 5 [5 CCR] Section 15496(b) in the Increased or Improved Services Section of the LCAP). 

Actions for English Learners: School districts, COEs, and charter schools that have a numerically significant English learner student 
subgroup must include specific actions in the LCAP related to, at a minimum, the language acquisition programs, as defined in EC 
Section 306, provided to students and professional development activities specific to English learners. 

Actions for Foster Youth: School districts, COEs, and charter schools that have a numerically significant Foster Youth student 
subgroup are encouraged to include specific actions in the LCAP designed to meet needs specific to Foster Youth students. 

Goal Analysis: 

Enter the LCAP Year. 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor/Voyager) Page 109 of 121 



 
 

  

   
 

    
      

   

 
  

 

    
       

  
  

 
    

 

     
   

  
 

 
 

 
  

  
      

 

 
   

   
 

 

 

 

 

Using actual annual measurable outcome data, including data from the Dashboard, analyze whether the planned actions were effective in 
achieving the goal. Respond to the prompts as instructed. 

● Describe the overall implementation of the actions to achieve the articulated goal. Include a discussion of relevant challenges and 
successes experienced with the implementation process. This must include any instance where the LEA did not implement a planned 
action or implemented a planned action in a manner that differs substantively from how it was described in the adopted LCAP. 

● Explain material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures and between the Planned 
Percentages of Improved Services and Estimated Actual Percentages of Improved Services, as applicable. Minor variances in 
expenditures or percentages do not need to be addressed, and a dollar-for-dollar accounting is not required. 

● Describe the effectiveness of the specific actions to achieve the articulated goal as measured by the LEA. In some cases, not all 
actions in a goal will be intended to improve performance on all of the metrics associated with the goal. When responding to this 
prompt, LEAs may assess the effectiveness of a single action or group of actions within the goal in the context of performance on a 
single metric or group of specific metrics within the goal that are applicable to the action(s). Grouping actions with metrics will allow for 
more robust analysis of whether the strategy the LEA is using to impact a specified set of metrics is working and increase transparency 
for educational partners. LEAs are encouraged to use such an approach when goals include multiple actions and metrics that are not 
closely associated. 

● Describe any changes made to this goal, expected outcomes, metrics, or actions to achieve this goal as a result of this analysis and 
analysis of the data provided in the Dashboard or other local data, as applicable. 

Increased or Improved Services for Foster Youth, English Learners, and Low-
Income Students 
Purpose 
A well-written Increased or Improved Services section provides educational partners with a comprehensive description, within a single 
dedicated section, of how an LEA plans to increase or improve services for its unduplicated students in grades TK–12 as compared to all 
students in grades TK–12, as applicable, and how LEA-wide or schoolwide actions identified for this purpose meet regulatory requirements. 
Descriptions provided should include sufficient detail yet be sufficiently succinct to promote a broader understanding of educational partners to 
facilitate their ability to provide input. An LEA’s description in this section must align with the actions included in the Goals and Actions section 
as contributing. 

Requirements and Instructions 
Projected LCFF Supplemental and/or Concentration Grants: Specify the amount of LCFF supplemental and concentration grant funds the 
LEA estimates it will receive in the coming year based on the number and concentration of low income, foster youth, and English learner 
students. 
2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor/Voyager) Page 110 of 121 



 
 

  

 
 

    

 

  
   

 
 

    
    

    
 

 

  
  

   

    
  

    
     

  
  

   

  
 

    

    

 

 

 

Projected Additional LCFF Concentration Grant (15 percent): Specify the amount of additional LCFF concentration grant add-on funding, 
as described in EC Section 42238.02, that the LEA estimates it will receive in the coming year. 

Projected Percentage to Increase or Improve Services for the Coming School Year: Specify the estimated percentage by which services 
for unduplicated pupils must be increased or improved as compared to the services provided to all students in the LCAP year as calculated 
pursuant to 5 CCR Section 15496(a)(7). 

LCFF Carryover — Percentage: Specify the LCFF Carryover — Percentage identified in the LCFF Carryover Table. If a carryover 
percentage is not identified in the LCFF Carryover Table, specify a percentage of zero (0.00%). 

LCFF Carryover — Dollar: Specify the LCFF Carryover — Dollar amount identified in the LCFF Carryover Table. If a carryover amount is not 
identified in the LCFF Carryover Table, specify an amount of zero ($0). 

Total Percentage to Increase or Improve Services for the Coming School Year: Add the Projected Percentage to Increase or Improve 
Services for the Coming School Year and the Proportional LCFF Required Carryover Percentage and specify the percentage. This is the LEAs 
percentage by which services for unduplicated pupils must be increased or improved as compared to the services provided to all students in 
the LCAP year, as calculated pursuant to 5 CCR Section 15496(a)(7). 

Required Descriptions: 

For each action being provided to an entire school, or across the entire school district or COE, an explanation of (1) how the needs 
of foster youth, English learners, and low-income students were considered first, and (2) how these actions are effective in meeting 
the goals for these students. 

For each action included in the Goals and Actions section as contributing to the increased or improved services requirement for unduplicated 
pupils and provided on an LEA-wide or schoolwide basis, the LEA must include an explanation consistent with 5 CCR Section 15496(b). For 
any such actions continued into the 2021–24 LCAP from the 2017–2020 LCAP, the LEA must determine whether or not the action was 
effective as expected, and this determination must reflect evidence of outcome data or actual implementation to date. 

Principally Directed and Effective: An LEA demonstrates how an action is principally directed towards and effective in meeting the LEA’s 
goals for unduplicated students when the LEA explains how: 

● It considers the needs, conditions, or circumstances of its unduplicated pupils; 

● The action, or aspect(s) of the action (including, for example, its design, content, methods, or location), is based on these 
considerations; and 

● The action is intended to help achieve an expected measurable outcome of the associated goal. 

As such, the response provided in this section may rely on a needs assessment of unduplicated students. 
2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor/Voyager) Page 111 of 121 



Conclusory statements that a service will help achieve an expected outcome for the goal, without an explicit connection or further explanation 
as to how, are not sufficient. Further, simply stating that an LEA has a high enrollment percentage of a specific student group or groups does 
not meet the increase or improve services standard because enrolling students is not the same as serving students. 

For example, if an LEA determines that low-income students have a significantly lower attendance rate than the attendance rate for all 
students, it might justify LEA-wide or schoolwide actions to address this area of need in the following way: 

After assessing the needs, conditions, and circumstances of our low-income students, we learned that the attendance rate of our low-
income students is 7 percent lower than the attendance rate for all students. (Needs, Conditions, Circumstances [Principally Directed]) 

In order to address this condition of our low-income students, we will develop and implement a new attendance program that is 
designed to address some of the major causes of absenteeism, including lack of reliable transportation and food, as well as a school 
climate that does not emphasize the importance of attendance. Goal N, Actions X, Y, and Z provide additional transportation and 
nutritional resources as well as a districtwide educational campaign on the benefits of high attendance rates. (Contributing Action[s]) 

These actions are being provided on an LEA-wide basis and we expect/hope that all students with less than a 100 percent attendance 
rate will benefit. However, because of the significantly lower attendance rate of low-income students, and because the actions meet 
needs most associated with the chronic stresses and experiences of a socio-economically disadvantaged status, we expect that the 
attendance rate for our low-income students will increase significantly more than the average attendance rate of all other students. 
(Measurable Outcomes [Effective In]) 

COEs and Charter Schools: Describe how actions included as contributing to meeting the increased or improved services requirement on an 
LEA-wide basis are principally directed to and effective in meeting its goals for unduplicated pupils in the state and any local priorities as 
described above. In the case of COEs and charter schools, schoolwide and LEA-wide are considered to be synonymous. 

For School Districts Only: 

Actions Provided on an LEA-Wide Basis: 

Unduplicated Percentage > 55 percent: For school districts with an unduplicated pupil percentage of 55 percent or more, describe how 
these actions are principally directed to and effective in meeting its goals for unduplicated pupils in the state and any local priorities as 
described above. 

Unduplicated Percentage < 55 percent: For school districts with an unduplicated pupil percentage of less than 55 percent, describe how 
these actions are principally directed to and effective in meeting its goals for unduplicated pupils in the state and any local priorities. Also 
describe how the actions are the most effective use of the funds to meet these goals for its unduplicated pupils. Provide the basis for this 
determination, including any alternatives considered, supporting research, experience, or educational theory. 

Actions Provided on a Schoolwide Basis: 
2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor/Voyager) Page 112 of 121 



School Districts must identify in the description those actions being funded and provided on a schoolwide basis, and include the required 
description supporting the use of the funds on a schoolwide basis. 

For schools with 40 percent or more enrollment of unduplicated pupils: Describe how these actions are principally directed to and 
effective in meeting its goals for its unduplicated pupils in the state and any local priorities. 

For school districts expending funds on a schoolwide basis at a school with less than 40 percent enrollment of unduplicated pupils: 
Describe how these actions are principally directed to and how the actions are the most effective use of the funds to meet its goals for foster 
youth, English learners, and low-income students in the state and any local priorities. 

A description of how services for foster youth, English learners, and low-income students are being increased or improved by the 
percentage required. 

Consistent with the requirements of 5 CCR Section 15496, describe how services provided for unduplicated pupils are increased or improved 
by at least the percentage calculated as compared to the services provided for all students in the LCAP year. To improve services means to 
grow services in quality and to increase services means to grow services in quantity. Services are increased or improved by those actions in 
the LCAP that are included in the Goals and Actions section as contributing to the increased or improved services requirement, whether they 
are provided on an LEA-wide or schoolwide basis or provided on a limited basis to unduplicated students. A limited action is an action that 
only serves foster youth, English learners, and/or low-income students. This description must address how these action(s) are expected to 
result in the required proportional increase or improvement in services for unduplicated pupils as compared to the services the LEA provides 
to all students for the relevant LCAP year. 

For any action contributing to meeting the increased or improved services requirement that is associated with a Planned Percentage of 
Improved Services in the Contributing Summary Table rather than an expenditure of LCFF funds, describe the methodology that was used to 
determine the contribution of the action towards the proportional percentage. See the instructions for determining the Planned Percentage of 
Improved Services for information on calculating the Percentage of Improved Services. 

A description of the plan for how the additional concentration grant add-on funding identified above will be used to increase the 
number of staff providing direct services to students at schools that have a high concentration (above 55 percent) of foster youth, 
English learners, and low-income students, as applicable. 
An LEA that receives the additional concentration grant add-on described in EC Section 42238.02 is required to demonstrate how it is using 
these funds to increase the number of staff who provide direct services to students at schools with an enrollment of unduplicated students that 
is greater than 55 percent as compared to the number of staff who provide direct services to students at schools with an enrollment of 
unduplicated students that is equal to or less than 55 percent. The staff who provide direct services to students must be certificated staff 
and/or classified staff employed by the LEA; classified staff includes custodial staff. 

Provide the following descriptions, as applicable to the LEA: 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor/Voyager) Page 113 of 121 



 

 

 

An LEA that does not receive a concentration grant or the concentration grant add-on must indicate that a response to this prompt is not 
applicable. 

Identify the goal and action numbers of the actions in the LCAP that the LEA is implementing to meet the requirement to increase the number 
of staff who provide direct services to students at schools with an enrollment of unduplicated students that is greater than 55 percent. 

An LEA that does not have comparison schools from which to describe how it is using the concentration grant add-on funds, such as an LEA 
that only has schools with an enrollment of unduplicated students that is greater than 55 percent, must describe how it is using the funds to 
increase the number of credentialed staff, classified staff, or both, including custodial staff, who provide direct services to students at selected 
schools and the criteria used to determine which schools require additional staffing support. 

In the event that an additional concentration grant add-on is not sufficient to increase staff providing direct services to students at a school with 
an enrollment of unduplicated students that is greater than 55 percent, the LEA must describe how it is using the funds to retain staff providing 
direct services to students at a school with an enrollment of unduplicated students that is greater than 55 percent. 

Complete the table as follows: 

• Provide the staff-to-student ratio of classified staff providing direct services to students with a concentration of unduplicated students that is 55 
percent or less and the staff-to-student ratio of classified staff providing direct services to students at schools with a concentration of unduplicated 
students that is greater than 55 percent, as applicable to the LEA. The LEA may group its schools by grade span (Elementary, Middle/Junior High, 
and High Schools), as applicable to the LEA. The staff-to-student ratio must be based on the number of full time equivalent (FTE) staff and the 
number of enrolled students as counted on the first Wednesday in October of each year. 

• Provide the staff-to-student ratio of certificated staff providing direct services to students at schools with a concentration of unduplicated students 
that is 55 percent or less and the staff-to-student ratio of certificated staff providing direct services to students at schools with a concentration of 
unduplicated students that is greater than 55 percent, as applicable to the LEA. The LEA may group its schools by grade span (Elementary, 
Middle/Junior High, and High Schools), as applicable to the LEA. The staff-to-student ratio must be based on the number of FTE staff and the 
number of enrolled students as counted on the first Wednesday in October of each year. 

Action Tables 
Complete the Data Entry Table for each action in the LCAP. The information entered into this table will automatically populate the other Action 
Tables. Information is only entered into the Data Entry Table, the Annual Update Table, the Contributing Actions Annual Update Table, and 
the LCFF Carryover Table. With the exception of the Data Entry Table, the word “input” has been added to column headers to aid in identifying 
the column(s) where information will be entered. Information is not entered on the remaining Action tables. 

The following tables are required to be included as part of the LCAP adopted by the local governing board or governing body: 

• Table 1: Total Planned Expenditures Table (for the coming LCAP Year) 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor/Voyager) Page 114 of 121 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

• Table 2: Contributing Actions Table (for the coming LCAP Year) 

• Table 3: Annual Update Table (for the current LCAP Year) 

• Table 4: Contributing Actions Annual Update Table (for the current LCAP Year) 

• Table 5: LCFF Carryover Table (for the current LCAP Year) 

Note: The coming LCAP Year is the year that is being planned for, while the current LCAP year is the current year of implementation. For 
example, when developing the 2022–23 LCAP, 2022–23 will be the coming LCAP Year and 2021–22 will be the current LCAP Year. 

Data Entry Table 
The Data Entry Table may be included in the LCAP as adopted by the local governing board or governing body, but is not required to be 
included. In the Data Entry Table, input the following information for each action in the LCAP for that applicable LCAP year: 

• LCAP Year: Identify the applicable LCAP Year. 

• 1. Projected LCFF Base Grant: Provide the total amount of LCFF funding the LEA estimates it will receive for the coming school year, 
excluding the supplemental and concentration grants and the add-ons for the Targeted Instructional Improvement Grant Program and 
the Home to School Transportation Program, pursuant to 5 CCR Section 15496(a)(8). 

See EC sections 2574 (for COEs) and 42238.02 (for school districts and charter schools), as applicable, for LCFF apportionment 
calculations. 

• 2. Projected LCFF Supplemental and/or Concentration Grants: Provide the total amount of LCFF supplemental and concentration 
grants the LEA estimates it will receive on the basis of the number and concentration of unduplicated students for the coming school 
year. 

• 3. Projected Percentage to Increase or Improve Services for the Coming School Year: This percentage will not be entered; it is 
calculated based on the Projected LCFF Base Grant and the Projected LCFF Supplemental and/or Concentration Grants, pursuant to 5 
CCR Section 15496(a)(8). This is the percentage by which services for unduplicated pupils must be increased or improved as 
compared to the services provided to all students in the coming LCAP year. 

• LCFF Carryover — Percentage: Specify the LCFF Carryover — Percentage identified in the LCFF Carryover Table from the prior 
LCAP year. If a carryover percentage is not identified in the LCFF Carryover Table, specify a percentage of zero (0.00%). 

• Total Percentage to Increase or Improve Services for the Coming School Year: This percentage will not be entered; it is calculated 
based on the Projected Percentage to Increase or Improve Services for the Coming School Year and the LCFF Carryover — 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor/Voyager) Page 115 of 121 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Percentage. This is the percentage by which the LEA must increase or improve services for unduplicated pupils as compared to the 
services provided to all students in the coming LCAP year. 

• Goal #: Enter the LCAP Goal number for the action. 

• Action #: Enter the action’s number as indicated in the LCAP Goal. 

• Action Title: Provide a title of the action. 

• Student Group(s): Indicate the student group or groups who will be the primary beneficiary of the action by entering “All,” or by 
entering a specific student group or groups. 

• Contributing to Increased or Improved Services?: Type “Yes” if the action is included as contributing to meeting the increased or 
improved services; OR, type “No” if the action is not included as contributing to meeting the increased or improved services. 

• If “Yes” is entered into the Contributing column, then complete the following columns: 

o Scope: The scope of an action may be LEA-wide (i.e., districtwide, countywide, or charterwide), schoolwide, or limited. An action 
that is LEA-wide in scope upgrades the entire educational program of the LEA. An action that is schoolwide in scope upgrades 
the entire educational program of a single school. An action that is limited in its scope is an action that serves only one or more 
unduplicated student groups. 

o Unduplicated Student Group(s): Regardless of scope, contributing actions serve one or more unduplicated student groups. 
Indicate one or more unduplicated student groups for whom services are being increased or improved as compared to what all 
students receive. 

o Location: Identify the location where the action will be provided. If the action is provided to all schools within the LEA, the LEA 
must indicate “All Schools.” If the action is provided to specific schools within the LEA or specific grade spans only, the LEA must 
enter “Specific Schools” or “Specific Grade Spans.” Identify the individual school or a subset of schools or grade spans (e.g., all 
high schools or grades transitional kindergarten through grade five), as appropriate. 

• Time Span: Enter “ongoing” if the action will be implemented for an indeterminate period of time. Otherwise, indicate the span of time 
for which the action will be implemented. For example, an LEA might enter “1 Year,” or “2 Years,” or “6 Months.” 

• Total Personnel: Enter the total amount of personnel expenditures utilized to implement this action. 

• Total Non-Personnel: This amount will be automatically calculated based on information provided in the Total Personnel column and 
the Total Funds column. 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor/Voyager) Page 116 of 121 



 

 

 

 

 

 

• LCFF Funds: Enter the total amount of LCFF funds utilized to implement this action, if any. LCFF funds include all funds that make up 
an LEA’s total LCFF target (i.e., base grant, grade span adjustment, supplemental grant, concentration grant, Targeted Instructional 
Improvement Block Grant, and Home-To-School Transportation). 

o Note: For an action to contribute towards meeting the increased or improved services requirement it must include some 
measure of LCFF funding. The action may also include funding from other sources, however the extent to which an action 
contributes to meeting the increased or improved services requirement is based on the LCFF funding being used to implement 
the action. 

• Other State Funds: Enter the total amount of Other State Funds utilized to implement this action, if any. 

• Local Funds: Enter the total amount of Local Funds utilized to implement this action, if any. 

• Federal Funds: Enter the total amount of Federal Funds utilized to implement this action, if any. 

• Total Funds: This amount is automatically calculated based on amounts entered in the previous four columns. 

• Planned Percentage of Improved Services: For any action identified as contributing, being provided on a Limited basis to 
unduplicated students, and that does not have funding associated with the action, enter the planned quality improvement anticipated for 
the action as a percentage rounded to the nearest hundredth (0.00%). A limited action is an action that only serves foster youth, English 
learners, and/or low-income students. 

o As noted in the instructions for the Increased or Improved Services section, when identifying a Planned Percentage of Improved 
Services, the LEA must describe the methodology that it used to determine the contribution of the action towards the proportional 
percentage. The percentage of improved services for an action corresponds to the amount of LCFF funding that the LEA 
estimates it would expend to implement the action if it were funded. 

For example, an LEA determines that there is a need to analyze data to ensure that instructional aides and expanded learning 
providers know what targeted supports to provide to students who are foster youth. The LEA could implement this action by 
hiring additional staff to collect and analyze data and to coordinate supports for students, which the LEA estimates would cost 
$165,000. Instead, the LEA chooses to utilize a portion of existing staff time to analyze data relating to students who are foster 
youth. This analysis will then be shared with site principals who will use the data to coordinate services provided by instructional 
assistants and expanded learning providers to target support to students. In this example, the LEA would divide the estimated 
cost of $165,000 by the amount of LCFF Funding identified in the Data Entry Table and then convert the quotient to a 
percentage. This percentage is the Planned Percentage of Improved Service for the action. 

Contributing Actions Table 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor/Voyager) Page 117 of 121 



 

 

 

 

 

As noted above, information will not be entered in the Contributing Actions Table; however, the ‘Contributing to Increased or Improved 
Services?’ column will need to be checked to ensure that only actions with a “Yes” are displaying. If actions with a “No” are displayed or if 
actions that are contributing are not displaying in the column, use the drop-down menu in the column header to filter only the “Yes” responses.  

Annual Update Table 
In the Annual Update Table, provide the following information for each action in the LCAP for the relevant LCAP year: 

• Estimated Actual Expenditures: Enter the total estimated actual expenditures to implement this action, if any. 

Contributing Actions Annual Update Table 
In the Contributing Actions Annual Update Table, check the ‘Contributing to Increased or Improved Services?’ column to ensure that only 
actions with a “Yes” are displaying. If actions with a “No” are displayed or if actions that are contributing are not displaying in the column, use 
the drop-down menu in the column header to filter only the “Yes” responses. Provide the following information for each contributing action in 
the LCAP for the relevant LCAP year: 

• 6. Estimated Actual LCFF Supplemental and/or Concentration Grants: Provide the total amount of LCFF supplemental and concentration 
grants the LEA estimates it will actually receive based on of the number and concentration of unduplicated students in the current school year. 

• Estimated Actual Expenditures for Contributing Actions: Enter the total estimated actual expenditure of LCFF funds used to implement this 
action, if any. 

• Estimated Actual Percentage of Improved Services: For any action identified as contributing, being provided on a Limited basis only to 
unduplicated students, and that does not have funding associated with the action, enter the total estimated actual quality improvement anticipated 
for the action as a percentage rounded to the nearest hundredth (0.00%). 

o Building on the example provided above for calculating the Planned Percentage of Improved Services, the LEA in the example implements 
the action. As part of the annual update process, the LEA reviews implementation and student outcome data and determines that the action 
was implemented with fidelity and that outcomes for foster youth students improved. The LEA reviews the original estimated cost for the 
action and determines that had it hired additional staff to collect and analyze data and to coordinate supports for students that estimated 
actual cost would have been $169,500 due to a cost of living adjustment. The LEA would divide the estimated actual cost of $169,500 by the 
amount of LCFF Funding identified in the Data Entry Table and then convert the quotient to a percentage. This percentage is the Estimated 
Actual Percentage of Improved Services for the action. 

LCFF Carryover Table 
• 9. Estimated Actual LCFF Base Grant: Provide the total amount of LCFF funding the LEA estimates it will receive for the current 

school year, excluding the supplemental and concentration grants and the add-ons for the Targeted Instructional Improvement Grant 
Program and the Home to School Transportation Program, pursuant to 5 CCR Section 15496(a)(8). 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor/Voyager) Page 118 of 121 



 

 

 

 

 

 

• 10. Total Percentage to Increase or Improve Services for the Current School Year: This percentage will not be entered. The 
percentage is calculated based on the amounts of the Estimated Actual LCFF Base Grant (9) and the Estimated Actual LCFF 
Supplemental and/or Concentration Grants (6), pursuant to 5 CCR Section 15496(a)(8), plus the LCFF Carryover – Percentage from 
the prior year. This is the percentage by which services for unduplicated pupils must be increased or improved as compared to the 
services provided to all students in the current LCAP year. 

Calculations in the Action Tables 
To reduce the duplication of effort of LEAs, the Action Tables include functionality such as pre-population of fields and cells based on the 
information provided in the Data Entry Table, the Annual Update Summary Table, and the Contributing Actions Table. For transparency, the 
functionality and calculations used are provided below. 

Contributing Actions Table 
• 4. Total Planned Contributing Expenditures (LCFF Funds) 

o This amount is the total of the Planned Expenditures for Contributing Actions (LCFF Funds) column 

• 5. Total Planned Percentage of Improved Services 

o This percentage is the total of the Planned Percentage of Improved Services column 

• Planned Percentage to Increase or Improve Services for the coming school year (4 divided by 1, plus 5) 

o This percentage is calculated by dividing the Total Planned Contributing Expenditures (4) by the Projected LCFF Base Grant (1), converting 
the quotient to a percentage, and adding it to the Total Planned Percentage of Improved Services (5). 

Contributing Actions Annual Update Table
Pursuant to EC Section 42238.07(c)(2), if the Total Planned Contributing Expenditures (4) is less than the Estimated Actual LCFF 
Supplemental and Concentration Grants (6), the LEA is required to calculate the difference between the Total Planned Percentage of 
Improved Services (5) and the Total Estimated Actual Percentage of Improved Services (7). If the Total Planned Contributing Expenditures (4) 
is equal to or greater than the Estimated Actual LCFF Supplemental and Concentration Grants (6), the Difference Between Planned and 
Estimated Actual Percentage of Improved Services will display “Not Required.” 

• 6. Estimated Actual LCFF Supplemental and Concentration Grants 

o This is the total amount of LCFF supplemental and concentration grants the LEA estimates it will actually receive based on of the number 
and concentration of unduplicated students in the current school year. 

• 4. Total Planned Contributing Expenditures (LCFF Funds) 

o This amount is the total of the Last Year's Planned Expenditures for Contributing Actions (LCFF Funds) 
2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor/Voyager) Page 119 of 121 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

• 7. Total Estimated Actual Expenditures for Contributing Actions 

o This amount is the total of the Estimated Actual Expenditures for Contributing Actions (LCFF Funds) 

• Difference Between Planned and Estimated Actual Expenditures for Contributing Actions (Subtract 7 from 4) 

o This amount is the Total Estimated Actual Expenditures for Contributing Actions (7) subtracted from the Total Planned Contributing 
Expenditures (4) 

• 5. Total Planned Percentage of Improved Services (%) 

o This amount is the total of the Planned Percentage of Improved Services column 

• 8. Total Estimated Actual Percentage of Improved Services (%) 

o This amount is the total of the Estimated Actual Percentage of Improved Services column 

• Difference Between Planned and Estimated Actual Percentage of Improved Services (Subtract 5 from 8) 

o This amount is the Total Planned Percentage of Improved Services (5) subtracted from the Total Estimated Actual Percentage of Improved 
Services (8) 

LCFF Carryover Table 
• 10. Total Percentage to Increase or Improve Services for the Current School Year (6 divided by 9 + Carryover %) 

o This percentage is the Estimated Actual LCFF Supplemental and/or Concentration Grants (6) divided by the Estimated Actual LCFF Base 
Grant (9) plus the LCFF Carryover – Percentage from the prior year. 

• 11. Estimated Actual Percentage of Increased or Improved Services (7 divided by 9, plus 8) 

o This percentage is the Total Estimated Actual Expenditures for Contributing Actions (7) divided by the LCFF Funding (9), then converting the 
quotient to a percentage and adding the Total Estimated Actual Percentage of Improved Services (8). 

• 12. LCFF Carryover — Dollar Amount LCFF Carryover (Subtract 11 from 10 and multiply by 9) 

o If the Estimated Actual Percentage of Increased or Improved Services (11) is less than the Estimated Actual Percentage to Increase or 
Improve Services (10), the LEA is required to carry over LCFF funds. 

The amount of LCFF funds is calculated by subtracting the Estimated Actual Percentage to Increase or Improve Services (11) from the 
Estimated Actual Percentage of Increased or Improved Services (10) and then multiplying by the Estimated Actual LCFF Base Grant (9). 
This amount is the amount of LCFF funds that is required to be carried over to the coming year. 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor/Voyager) Page 120 of 121 



 • 13. LCFF Carryover — Percentage (12 divided by 9) 

o This percentage is the unmet portion of the Percentage to Increase or Improve Services that the LEA must carry over into the coming LCAP 
year. The percentage is calculated by dividing the LCFF Carryover (12) by the LCFF Funding (9). 

California Department of Education 
January 2022 

2022-23 Local Control Accountability Plan for Madera County Superintendent of Schools (Endeavor/Voyager) Page 121 of 121 



2/3/22, 8:34 AM CAES Parent LCAP Survey 2022 - Google Forms 

I • 
CAES Parent LCAP Survey 2022 

Questions Responses 6 'i Settings 

.•65 responses G . 

Accepting responses • 

Summary Question Individual 

1. My Child attends the following school: 

65 responses 

• MCIA 

• PTC Madera 

) • PTC Chowchilla 

e Endeavor/ Voyager 

► 

Demographics 

htlps://docs.google.com/forms/d/1zhV3cUalmQAFH43nWc7uYrTQ0zGJrmWVSDYOZ5Qhfp8/edit#responses 1/13 



-- -

- - - -

2/3/22, 8:34 AM CAES Parent LCAP Survey 2022 - Google Forms 

2. I identify most closely with the following : 

65 responses 

e Hispanic or Latino 

e Black or African American 

e Asian or Asian American 

e American Indian or Alaska Native 

e White, non-Hispanic 

e Two or more Races 

e Pacific Islander or Native Hawaiian 

e Prefer not to answer 

..- _, . • - ' - I --1 

3. My child or children at this school participate in the following programs: 

65 responses 

English Learner 3 (4.6%) 

) Foster Youth 

Free or reduced-price meals - 24 (36.9%) 

Special Education services 

Not sure 

None of the above 22 (33.8%) 

0 5 10 15 20 25 

. - -

Parent and Family Engagement 

) 

https://docs.google.com/forms/d/1zhV3cUalmQAFH43nWc7uYrTQ0zGJrmWVSDYOZ5Qhfp8/edit#responses 2/13 



2/3/22, 8:34 AM CAES Parent LCAP Survey 2022 - Google Forms 

4. The staff (Program Director, Principal, teachers, and classified staff) at my child's school 

builds a trusting and respectful relationship with my family. 

65 responses 

e Strongly Disagree 

e Disagree 

e Neither agree of disagree 

e Agree 

e Strongly Agree 

► 

5. My child's school has created a welcoming environment (friendly and helpful) for my 

family. 

65 responses 

) e Strongly Disagree 

e Disagree 

e Neither agree of disagree 

e Agree 

e Strongly Agree 

◄ 

) 

https://docs.google.com/forms/d/1zhV3cUalmQAFH43nWc7uYrTQ0zGJrmWVSDYOZ5Qhfp8/edit#responses 3/13 



2/3/22, 8:34 AM CAES Parent LCAP Survey 2022 - Google Forms 

6. The staff at my child's school is interested in our family's culture, language and goals for 

my child(ren). 

65 responses 

e Strongly Disagree 

e Disagree 

e Neither agree of disagree 

e Agree 

e Strongly Agree 

► 

7. My child's school utilizes accessible two-way communication between families and 

educators. 

65 responses 

) e Strongly Disagree 

e Disagree 

e Neither agree of disagree 

e Agree 

e Strongly Agree 

-1 - - • -_- --._- - ~- :_ - __- ----::-, - - __ -..-.----:_ I - _ _ 

► 

) 

https ://docs. google.com/forms/d/1 zh V3cUalmQAFH43nWc7 u Yr TQ0zGJrmWVSDYOZ5Qhfp8/ed it#responses 4/13 



1 

2/3/22, 8:34 AM CAES Parent LCAP Survey 2022 - Google Forms 

8. My child's school provides information and resources to support student learning in the 

home. 

65 responses 

e Strongly Disagree 

e Disagree 

e Neither agree of disagree 

e Agree 

e Strongly Agree 

► 

9. My child's school has policies for teachers to meet with families and students to discuss 

progress and ways to work together to support improved student achievement. 

65 responses 

e Strongly Disagree 

e Disagree 

e Neither agree of disagree 

e Agree 

e Strongly Agree 

► 

J 

https://docs.google.com/forms/d/1zhV3cUalmQAFH43nWc7uYrTQ0zGJrmWVSDYOZ5Qhfp8/edit#responses 5/13 



2/3/22, 8:34 AM CAES Parent LCAP Survey 2022 - Google Forms 

10. My child's school helps my family understand and exercise our legal rights and 

advocate for my child. 

I 65 responses 

e Strongly Disagree 

e Disagree 

Neither agree of disagree 

e Agree 

e Strongly Agree 

◄ ► 

11. My child's school supports and builds the capacity of family members to participate in 

advisory groups like School Site Council (SSC) English Learner Advisory Committee (ELAC) 

and the decision-making process. 

65 responses 

) 

e Strongly Disagree 

e Disagree 

e Neither agree of disagree 

e Agree 

e Strongly Agree 

◄ ► 

https://docs.google.com/forms/d/1zhV3cUalmQAFH43nWc7uYrTQ0zGJrmWVSDYOZ5Qhfp8/edit#responses 6/13 



----

2/3/22, 8:34 AM CAES Parent LCAP Survey 2022 - Google Forms 

12. My child's school provides opportunities for my input on school policies and programs, 

and seeks input from all represented groups of our school community. 

65 responses 

e Strongly Disagree 

e Disagree 

Neither agree of disagree 

e Agree 

e Strongly Agree 

- - - - I - .-. - --- -- --- - --- -

- - - - - -- -- - - - - - - - - - -- --- ► 

13. My child's school provides opportunities to have families, teachers, principals, and 

district administrators work together to plan, design, implement and evaluate family 

engagement activities at school and district levels. 

65 responses 

e Strongly Disagree 

e Disagree 

Neither agree of disagree 

e Agree 

e Strongly Agree 

◄ ► 

School Climate 

https://docs.google .corn/forrns/d/1 zh V3cU alrnQAFH43nWc7uYrTQ0zGJrrnWVSDYOZ5Qhfp8/edit#responses 7/13 



2/3/22, 8:34 AM CAES Parent LCAP Survey 2022 - Google Forms 

14. My child's school promotes academic success for all students. 

65 responses 

e Strongly Disagree 

e Disagree 

e Neither agree of disagree 

e Agree 

e Strongly Agree 

15. The teachers at my child's school are able to meet the academic needs of English 

Learners. 

65 responses 

e Strongly Disagree 

) e Disagree 

e Neither agree of disagree 

e Agree 

e Strongly Agree  

► 

} 

https://docs.google.com/forms/d/1 zhV3cUalmQAFH43nWc7uYrTQ0zGJrmWVSDYOZ5Qhfp8/edit#responses 8/13 



2/3/22, 8:34 AM CAES Parent LCAP Survey 2022 - Google Forms 

16. At my child's school, my child learns skills that are helpful in life. 

65 responses 

e Strongly Disagree 

e Disagree 

e Neither agree of disagree 

e Agree 

e Strongly Agree 

◄ ► 

17. My child's school staff take parent concerns seriously. 

65 responses 

e Strongly Disagree 

e Disagree 

) e Neither agree of disagree 

e Agree 

e Strongly Agree 

- .. T - -

◄ _- • • __I - - - -- - - - ~ - - - - ► 

https://docs.google.com/forms/d/1zhV3cUalmQAFH43nWc7uYrTQ0zGJrmWVSDYOZ5Qhfp8/edit#responses 9/13 



2/3/22. 8:34 AM CAES Parent LCAP Survey 2022 - Google Forms 

18. My child's school staff (Program Director, Principal, Teachers, Instructional Aides) 

communicates with me on a regular basis. 

65 responses 

e Strongly Disagree 

e Disagree 

e Neither agree of disagree 

e Agree 

e Strongly Agree 

19. My child(ren) feels safe at this school. 

65 responses 

e Strongly Disagree 

e Disagree 

e Neither agree of disagree 

e Agree 

e Strongly Agree 

--:,_ - - .. --,;-. .-== --- • . - -=.:: .:::. --= - - -_--:----- - ---:::-_· ·L.-- -

https://docs.google.com/forms/d/1zhV3cUalmQAFH43nWc7uYrTQ0zGJrmWVSDYOZ5Qhfp8/edit#responses 10/13 



2/3/22, 8:34 AM CAES Parent LCAP Survey 2022 - Google Forms 

20. My child's school has clean and well-maintained facilities. 

65 responses 

e Strongly Disagree 

e Disagree 

e Neither agree of disagree 

e Agree 

e Strongly Agree 

• I I -

_ , !" _ -~- _ _ _ _ 1' _ ·•~ _ __: __• _ -=• _ • _____. __I_ ~ ► 

21. Teachers at my child's school are well qualified to teach. 

65 responses 

e Strongly Disagree 

e Disagree 

e Neither agree of disagree 

e Agree 

e Strongly Agree 

► 

Participation in School and District Activities 

https://docs.google.com/forms/d/1zhV3cUalmQAFH43nWc7uYrTQ0zGJrmWVSDYOZ5Qhfp8/edit#responses 11/13 



2/3/22, 8:34 AM CAES Parent LCAP Survey 2022 - Google Forms 

22. In the past three years, I have participated in the following school or district events. 

(Check all that apply.) 

, 65 responses 

Parent Conferences 
Open House 

Back to School/New Parent ... 
School Parents Nights (Liter... - 2 (3.1 % ) 

School Site Council - 3 (4.6%) 
School English Learner Advi... 0 (0%) 

Parent Advisory Committee - 1 (1.5%) 
District English Learner Advi ... - 0 (0%) 

lep - 1 (1.5%) 
N/A - 1 (1.5%) 

None 1 (1.5%) 
None - 1 (1.5%) 

na 1 (1.5%) 
1 (1.5%) 

IEP meetings - 1 (1.5%) 
Volunteer in classroom - 1 (1.5%) 

21 (32.3%) 
- 17 (26.2%) 

49 (75.4~ 

0 10 20 30 40 50 

◄ ► 

23. I would like to see parent workshops offered in the following topics. (Check all that 

apply.) 

65 responses 

Using Technology 23 (35 .4%) 
Homework Help - ·26 (40%) 

Healthy Lifestyles (Physical, ... 21 (32.3%) 
Math 19(29.2%) 

Nutrition 11 (16.9%) 
Parenting Skills 

Social Emotional Supports 
Finding and Accessing Com .. . 4 (6.2%) 

English As a Second Langua .. . --2(3.1%) 

12 (18.5%) 
15 (23.1%) 

Self-Advocacy/Parental Rights 6 (9.2%) 
Early Childhood Development 4 (6.2%) 

Financial Literacy 7 (10.8%) 
English Literacy (Reading an ... 9 (13.8%) 

2 (3.1 %) 
Home Decor • - 1 (1.5%) 

N/A -
• - 1 (1.5%) 

College information • - 1 (1.5%) 

0 10 20 30 

► 

https://docs.google.com/forms/d/1zhV3cUalmQAFH43nWc7uYrTQ0zGJrmWVSDYOZ5Qhfp8/edit#responses 12/13 



2/3/22, 8:34 AM CAES Parent LCAP Survey 2022 - Google Forms 

Please add any additional comments about your child's program. Thank you for your time! 

65 responses 

') 
... 

N/A 

INone 

Thank you 

Great program 

Thank you 

The school supports the needs of students . 

Good teacher help 

Thank you for the support of my child and not givving up on her. 

) 

hltps://docs.google.com/forms/d/1zhV3cUalmQAFH43nWc7uYrTQ0zGJrmWVSDYOZ5Qhfp8/edil#responses 13/13 



Please add any additional comments about your child's program. Thank you for your 

time! 

NIA 

None 
Thank you 

Great program 
Thank you 

The school supports the needs of students . 

Good teacher help 
Thank you for the support of my child and not givving up on her. 

Great Job PTC Staff!!!! You were all helpful when my son started and you continue to be. I give 

his teachers and staff credit for the change I've seen in the last year. My son use to be quite 
never said too much was always distracted and had no desire to lean at his last school. In the last 

year he's Learned how to weld. He scored his first seasonal job as a sales associate. He enjoys 
meeting with his teachers and is no longer distracted. I could be happier with the progress he's 

made. Thank you!! 
Thanks for your help! 

Everything is good! 
Thanks 

Great teacher! 

To practice more on what the students need help on like reading. 
Thanks for supporting my child 

Thank You got Everything • 

No tengo preguntas , gracias , soy la mama de Evelyn jinez 
Mrs. G has been an amazing teacher to my son . We were lucky to have her all four years. We will 

miss her when he graduates. 
Thank You for ur time 

My child has only been in this program for a few months so far we have no concerns 

It's my daughters first year here. We haven't had an opportunity to get to know PTC as much 

My sons grades have gone up and his bad behavior has declined he is doing very well and I 
thank PTC for there hard work and dedication 

n 

This school has been the best for my daughter all around. 

Mikayla teacher is awesome she has help mikayla alot and I am so proud of mikayla 
thank you 

My son likes attending this kind of school enviroment. 

Overall I love ptc Chowchilla . We need more teachers like Neely and Gilstrap, they truly connect 

with the children ! 

Been here all 4 years of high school. MCIA for 4 years 
Speech teacher isnt helping . Jwramyas only seen her 5 times if that this yr. 

I'm very happy w my sons school 



Love the program 

He loves the school he loves the staff and everyone there very respectful and great 

Thank you for all you support 

No comments 

It's a great program 

Her teacher is amazing, thanks for all the hard work! 

We are very happy & grateful to have the teacher we have.. Mrs Neely is amazing! The Staff has 

been very welcoming & helpful.. 

This school has been so awesome to my son especially his teacher. He's been on a wonderful 

path and that's thanks to how his teacher teaches. Thanks 

Great program 

All staff at PTC are excellent and available when needed and care for all their students. 

I happy with it 

No 

Awesome school , love it great teachers and staff , always kind and responsible 

Nothing 

I like that my daughter understands her assignments with her teacher very clearly. 

I'm satisfied with the way the school treats my child . 



2/3/22, 9:59 AM CAES Student LCAP Survey 2022 - Google Forms 

I • 
CAES Student LCAP Survey 2022 

Questions Responses ii Settings 

175 responses •• • 

Accepting responses • 
Summary Question Individual 

1. The school I attend is: 

175 responses 

• MCIA 

• EndeavorNoyager 

• PTC Chowchilla 

• PTC Madera 

► 

https :/ /docs.google. com/forms/di 1036S 1 Wl81 u n4pu 94yYDtddA6F rkmyq3sVfyPkO HwB6w/edit#responses 1/15 



,

2/3/22, 9:59 AM CAES Student LCAP Survey 2022 - Google Forms 

2. My grade level is: 

175 responses 

Kindergarten 
1st Grade 

2nd Grade 
3rd Grade 
4th Grade 
5th Grade 
6th Grade 
7th Grade 
8th Grade 
9th Grade 

10th Grade 
11th Grade 
12th Grade 

J- 10 (5.7%) 
,, l- 4 (2.3%) 

I 7 (4%) 
~ 2(1.1%) 

...,,,.·..=.. ,-~. 9(5.1%) 
,._ ,,- 4 (2.3%) 

..... ,_ ,- 7 (4%) 
,_ ~-, 5 (2.9%) 

- 13 (7.4%) 
-

:, ', 

... '..IL,,J.~ --;. -~ - . -

.I 21 (12%) 
-

,-! 

-,. 

27 (15.4%) 
- 30 (17.1%) 

- 37(21.1%) 

0 10 20 30 40 

. ~ - - --- . - - - - - - = - - - - - ---=- - - - - - ► 

3. I identify most closely with the following: 

175 responses 

) 
e Hispanic or Latino 

e Black or African American 

e Asian or Asian American 

e American Indian or Alaska Native 

e White, non-Hispanic 

e Two or more Races 

e Pacific Islander or Native Hawaiian 

e Prefer not to answer 

1/2 'Y 

► 

https://docs.google.com/forms/d/1 036S1Wl81 un4pu94yYDtddA6Frkmyq3sVfyPkO HwB6w/edit#responses 2/15 



2/3/22, 9:59 AM CAES Student LCAP Survey 2022 - Google Forms 

4. I participate in the following programs (Choose all that apply): 

175 responses 

Designated English Learner 1-----------

Foster Youth 

31 (17.7%)
(ELD) class--------------

Special Education services - 3 (1.7%) 

◄ 
- -

'-

,,.-
-

~ 

• ~ ' ' 

0 

I 

-

-

20 

-

40 

- -

60 

-
--

-

- -

80 

- ► 

School Safety and Connectedness 

5. I feel safe at my school. 

175 responses 

e Strongly disagree 

e Disagree 

e Neutral 

e Agree 

e Strongly agree 

) 

h ttps :/ /docs. google.com/forms/d/1 036S 1 Wl81 un4pu94yYDtddA6 F rkmyq3s VfyP kO HwB6w/edit#responses 3/15 



2/3/22, 9:59 AM CAES Student LCAP Survey 2022 - Google Forms 

6. I feel like I am a part of my school. 

175 responses 

e Strongly disagree 

e Disagree 

e Neutral 

e Agree 

e Strongly agree 

Support for Learning 

7. My teacher(s) encourage me to be successful. 

) 175 responses 

► 

e Strongly disagree 

e Disagree 

e Neutral 

e Agree 

e Strongly agree 

► 

https ://docs. google. com/forms/d/1036S 1 Wl81 un4pu94yYDtddA6 F rkmyq 3sVfyPkO HwB6w/ed it#responses 4/15 



2/3/22, 9:59 AM CAES Student LCAP Survey 2022 - Google Forms 

8. My teachers give me enough time to finish my schoolwork/homework. 

175 responses 

e Strongly disagree 

e Disagree 

Neutral 

e Agree 

e Strongly agree 

◄ ► 

9. I am excited to learn. 

175 responses 

e Strongly disagree 

• Disagree 

Neutral 

e Agree 

e Strongly agree 

► 

https://docs. google.com/forms/d/1036S 1 Wl81 un4pu94yYDtddA6F rkmyq 3sVfyPkOHwB6w/edit#responses 5/15 



2/3/22, 9:59 AM CAES Student LCAP Survey 2022 - Google Forms 

10. I would like more help with my schoolwork/homework. 

175 responses 

e Strongly disagree 

e Disagree 

e Neutral 

e Agree 

e Strongly agree 

--- s::_----:;; • - .- -=- _: - - - - _ - ___ _~-- __- _- - _ _ _ • _ _ ~- --=-~ ____.,• I _ • _ 1 
1 ► 

11. At my school, I learn skills that help me in life. 

175 responses 

) 

e Strongly disagree 

e Disagree 

e Neutral 

e Agree 

e Strongly agree 

. 
. . .. -

. . 
. 

. 
- - ::-- ----; . 

-
-
-

. 

h tips:/ /docs.google .com/forms/d/1 036S 1 Wl81 u n4pu94yYDtddA6 F rkmyq3sVfyPkO HwB6w/ed il#responses 6/15 



2/3/22, 9:59 AM CAES Student LCAP Survey 2022 - Google Forms 

12. My teacher(s) talk to my parents/guardian on a regular basis. 

175 responses 

e Strongly disagree 

,. Disagree 

e Neutral 

e Agree 

e Strongly agree 

13. My parents participate in school events. 

175 responses 

e Strongly disagree 

e Disagree 

) e Neutral 

e Agree 

e Strongly agree 

- -----=------ --- - ,-- - - . -- - - - - • 
r!___~ • _ _ :__1_ _ __ ' _ _ _ _ _ __ _ -~ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ __ -=- _ _ _I ► 

) 

https ://docs.google .com/forms/di 1036S 1 Wl81 un4pu94yYDtddA6 F rkmyq 3sVfyPkO HwB6w/edit#responses 7/15 



2/3/22, 9:59 AM CAES Student LCAP Survey 2022 - Google Forms 

14. My teachers are very knowledgeable in the subject areas they teach. 

175 responses 

e Strongly disagree 

e Disagree 

• Neutral 

e Agree 

e Strongly agree 

- - - - ' 
- --- - - - - - - - - - - ► 

15. My teacher(s) teaches me in ways that I understand. 

175 responses 

e Strongly disagree 

e Disagree 

e Neutral 

e Agree 

e Strongly agree 

► 

) 

https ://docs.google. com/forms/di1 036S 1 Wl81 u n4pu94yYDtddA6F rkmyq 3s VfyPkOHw86w/ed it#responses 8/15 



2/3/22, 9:59 AM CAES Student LCAP Survey 2022 - Google Forms 

16. I plan on attending college or some other school (trade school, technical school) after 

high school. 

175 responses 

e Strongly disagree 

e Disagree 

Neutral 

e Agree 

e Strongly agree 

School Climate 

17. My school has clear expectations for student behavior. 

17 4 responses 

e Strongly disagree 

• Disagree 

Neutral 

e Agree 

e Strongly agree 

► 

► 

https://docs. google. com/forms/d/1036S 1 Wl81 un4pu94yYDtddA6 F rkmyq3sVfyPkOHwB6w/edit#responses 9/15 



2/3/22, 9:59 AM CAES Student LCAP Survey 2022 - Google Forms 

18. The staff at my school care about me. 

175 responses 

e Strongly disagree 

e Disagree 

• Neutral 

e Agree 

e Strongly agree 

19. The staff at my school treat students fairly. 

175 responses 

e Strongly disagree 

e Disagree 

) e Neutral 

e Agree 

e Strongly agree 

► 

https :/ /docs. google. com/forms/d/1 036S 1 Wl81 un4pu94 yYDtddA6 F rkmyq3sVfyPkOHwB6w/edit#responses 10/15 



2/3/22, 9:59 AM CAES Student LCAP Survey 2022 - Google Forms 

20. My classroom and school buildings are clean. 

175 responses 

e Strongly disagree 

• Disagree 

Neutral 

e Agree 

e Strongly agree 

◄ ► 

21. My parents feel welcome to participate at my school. 

175 responses 

) 

e Strongly disagree 

e Disagree 

Neutral 

e Agree 

e Strongly agree 

► 

https:/ /docs. google. com/forms/d/1 036S 1 Wl81 u n4pu94yYDtddA6Frkmyq3sVfyPkOHwB6w/edit#responses 11/15 



2/3/22, 9:59 AM CAES Student LCAP Survey 2022 - Google Forms 

22. I am happy to be at my school. 

175 responses 

e Strongly disagree 

e Disagree 

e Neutral 

e Agree 

e Strongly agree 

English Learner Programs 

23. I receive the support I need from my teachers. 

155 responses 

► 

e Strongly disagree 

e Disagree 

e Neutral 

e Agree 

e Strongly agree 

► 

h ttps :/ /docs. google.com/form s/d/1 036S 1 Wl81 un4pu 94yYDtddA6F rkmyq 3s VfyPkO HwB6w/ed it#responses 12/15 



2/3/22, 9:59 AM CAES Student LCAP Survey 2022 - Google Forms 

24. I feel comfortable talking in English in my classes. 

154 responses 

e Strongly disagree 

e Disagree 

e Neutral 

e Agree 

e Strongly agree 

- .. .------... - - - . ~ 

I - - - - - - - - - -- - - _J__ ___- • - - - - ....__ -

25. I feel comfortable reading and/or writing in English. 

1 57 responses 

e Strongly disagree 

e Disagree 

) e Neutral 

e Agree 

e Strongly agree 

https:/ /docs. google .com/forms/di 1 036S 1 Wl81 u n4pu 94yYDtddA6 F rkmyq3sVfyPkO H wB6w/edi t#responses 13/15 



2/3/22, 9:59 AM CAES Student LCAP Survey 2022 - Google Forms 

27. I participate in the following Career Technical Education (CTE) Courses at my school: 

51 responses 

Welding 15 (29.4%) 

Child Development 15 (29.4%) 

Careers in Education 16(31.4%) 

Construction 9 (17.6%) 

0 5 10 15 20 

- -_ - ~ _- . - - ' _- - - - - - ~ 

◄ - - - - - - -- - - - - ----- -- -

28. I would like to participate in the following Career Technical Education (CTE) Courses at 

my school: 

95 responses 

Welding 

Child Development 

Careers in Education 

Construction 

Culinary Arts & Hospitality Man ... 

Criminal Justice/Criminal Invest. .. 

Digital Media and Graphic Design 

Cosmetology 

Fire Fighting and Fire Fighting . .. 

Medical Careers 

I am not interested in participati ... 

- . , I 

- -. . ,·- 19 (20%) 

J- 7 (7.4%)' 
~ •, •• I~ ' '-! •~ :-.,. J- 14 (14.7%) 

'• .. -. r 10 (10.5%) 
-i:"• 14 (14.7%) 

- -- 6 (6.3%) 

-,. 1 11 (11.6%) 
, 7 (7.4%) 

~ t 18 (18.9%) 

- - . - --.- -

25 (26.3%) 

33 (34.7%) 

0 10 20 30 40 

► 

https:/ /docs.google.com/forms/d/1036S 1 WIS1 u n4pu94yYDtddA6F rkmyq 3sVfyPkOHwB6w/ed it#responses 15/15 



Thank you for taking time to complete this survey. Please share any additional 

comments that will help you be more successful in school.53 responses 

None 

N/A 

having responsibility and doing all my work. 

no 

pizza party 
My teacher is nice and she is the best teacher ever. 

I like school and I like my teacher 
I like math and I like my teacher because she helps me a lot! 

My teacher is nice. 

It's crazy that I'm already a junior going on senior. 
good 

I like my teacher. 

Pay more attention 
My teacher is nice and when I get something wrong she explains it to me again in a way I 

understand. 

Everything is great so far. 
clup needed 

I like my teacher Mrs. Rodriguez, and I love my friends in class. I like Zoom class because it's fun 

and I learn my sight words and math. 

Maybe we can have just a little more time in class. 
To get Straight A's 

I like school and I like Mrs. Rodriguez. 

Mrs. Rodriguez is nice and not mean. She is funny . I like my school because I do good and I get 

to go to the classroom store. I see my friends on the computer. 
I think if we don't wake up for zoom everyday it would be better because we can get more sleep, 

which is going to help us do our homework. 

yes 

finish my school work, passing and get all my credits and graduate. 
I love school and I love my teacher, Mrs. Rodriguez. 



I like coming to school because I have friends and I get to come with my cousin. I like the school 
lunches and my teacher Mrs. Rodriguez is the best. 
I would like to see classes offered with real job skills at my school. 
anything 

basketball because there basketball court and no use it.tech design . 

I would like to see the school have a mechanics as an elective. 
MCIA is a fun school that gives the right education. 

I am really glad to be in this school, I feel really successful and look forward to my future 

education in this school and in college. Something I think might help me is to be more aware of 
the programs the school offers such as scholarships, referrals, and so on. Overall, I am really 
satisfied. Thank-you! 

Need to do my work 

I like Mrs. Rodriguez and my rainbow classroom. 
The other students are pretty quiet and chill too. 

studying will help me me more successful in school 
no comment 
thank you 

<3 

kindness and time 

The school and its staff are amazing especially mrs.black and mr.shockley 
yeeee 
none. 

I will succeed in my classes this semester and graduate by June. 
Less work@ 

I will graduate thanks to my teachers. 
I like this school. 



Cecilia A. Massetti, Ed.D. 
Superintendent of Schools 

Agenda Item 8.8 

Board of Education Action Item 
September 13, 2022 

Topic:
Consideration Revision of MCOEP AR 2305 Conflict of Interest Code 

Background:  
Biennially, Madera County Superintendent of Schools must review and 
update MCOEP 2305 Conflict of Interest Code and the administrative 
regulations of this policy for submission to the Madera County Board of 
Supervisors Chief Clerk of the Board.  Proposed changes are marked in 
red. 

Financial Impact:
None 

Resource: 
Cecilia A. Massetti, Ed.D. 
Madera County Superintendent of Schools 

Recommendation: 
It is recommended the Board approve the revisions to MCOEP AR 2305 
Conflict of Interest Code. 

1105 South Madera Avenue  Madera, CA 93637  (559) 673-6051 FAX (559) 673-5569 
www.mcsos.org 

www.mcsos.org


2000 ADMINISTRATIVE 

2300 GENERAL ADMINISTRATIVE COMPLIANCE 

Conflict of Interest Code MCOEP 2305 

The Political Reform Act (Government Code Section 81000 at seq.) requires state and 
local government agencies to adopt and promulgate conflict of interest codes. 

The Fair Political Practices Commission (“FPPC”) has adopted a regulation (2 Cal. Code 
of Regs. § 18730) which contains the terms of a standard conflict of interest code which 
may be incorporated by reference in an agency’s code, and which may be amended by 
the Fair Political Practices Commission to conform to amendments in the Political Reform 
Act, following public notice and hearings. 

Therefore, the terms of 2 Cal. Code of Regs. 18730 and any amendments to it duly 
adopted by the FPPC are hereby incorporated by reference.  This regulation and the 
attached Appendices designating officials and employees and establishing disclosure 
categories shall constitute the conflict of interest code for the Madera County 
Superintendent of Schools Office of Education. 

Individuals holding designated positions, including Board members, shall adhere to the 
financial disclosure requirements of the Madera County Superintendent of Schools Office 
of Education conflict of interest code adopted pursuant to the provisions of Government 
Code 87300. 

Individuals holding designated positions, including board members, shall file their 
statements of economic interests with the Madera County Superintendent of Schools.  The 
Superintendent or designee shall make and retain copies of all statements and make them 
available for public inspection and reproduction, pursuant to Government Code Section 
81008. The originals shall be forwarded to the code reviewing body.  For governing board 
members and for County Superintendent, the Madera County Board of Supervisors Chief 
Clerk of the Board is the filing officer. 

Filing officer for designated employees of the Madera County Superintendent of Schools 
Office of Education is the Senior Executive Assistant/Public Information Officer, Madera 
County Superintendent of Schools.  The code reviewing body is the Madera County Board 
of Supervisors. 

LEGAL REFERENCE 
CA Code of Regulations Title 2, 18726.3 - 18730 

Adopted: April, 1992 
Revised: May 9, 2000 
Revised: October 10, 2000 

MCOEP 2305 1 of 5 



Revised: May 14, 2002 
Revised: January 22, 2003 
Revised: August 10, 2004 
Revised: April 12, 2005 
Revised: January 10, 2006 
Revised: August 8, 2006 
Revised: August 12, 2008 
Revised: September 14, 2010 
Revised: August 12, 2012 
Revised: August 12, 2014 
Revised: January 10, 2017 
Revised: August 11, 2020 
Revised: April 13, 2021 

MCOEP 2305 2 of 5 



 

 

 

2000 ADMINISTRATION 

2300 – GENERAL ADMINISTRATIVE COMPLIANCE 

Conflict of Interest Code MCOEP AR 2305 

The designated employees of the Madera County Superintendent of Schools (MCSOS) 
and the Madera County Board of Education members shall adhere to the financial 
disclosure requirements of the MCSOS Office of Education Conflict of Interest Code 
adopted pursuant to Government Code 87300. The following disclosure categories are 
to guide individuals in the determination of conflict. 

Disclosure Categories 
An investment, business position, interest in real property, or source of income is 
reportable if the business entity in which the investment or business position is held, the 
interest in real property, or the income or source of income may foreseeable be affected 
materially by any decision made or participated in by the designated employee by virtue of 
the employee’s position. 

Disclosure Category No. 1 
 Designated employees in Category No. 1 must report all investments, business 

positions in, and income from sources located in or doing business in the 
jurisdiction. Interests in real property located in the jurisdiction, including property 
located within a two mile radius of the jurisdiction or of any property owned or 
used by the agency. 

Disclosure Category No. 2 
 Designated employees in Category No. 2 must report all investments, business 

positions in, and income from sources which provide services, supplies, 
materials, machinery or equipment of the type utilized by the agency. 

Example: Purchasing Agent 

Disclosure Category 3 
 Designated employees in Category No. 3 must report all investments, business 

positions in, and income from sources which provide services, supplies, 
materials, machinery or equipment of the type utilized by the specified area of 
responsibility. 

Example: Transportation Official 

MCOEP AR 2305 3 of 5 



The designated positions are listed by category reflecting levels of required disclosure. 

Designated Positions       Disclosure Category 
Members, Board of Education 1 
County Committee on School District Organization 1 
County Superintendent of Schools 1 
Assistant Superintendent 1 
Associate Superintendent 1 
Executive Director, Career Technical and Alternative Education Services 1 
Executive Director, Student Programs and Services 1 
Chief, Business & Administrative Services Officer 1 
Chief, Information Systems and Technology Services Officer 1 
Chief Human Resources Officer 1 

Administrator, Human Resources 2 
Director, Special Education Local Plan Area 2 
Senior Director, Business Services 2 
Coordinator, Local Education Consortium 2 
Coordinator, Maintenance and Operations 2 
Director, Credential and Certification Programs 2 
Director, Local Control Accountability Plan (LCAP) and Strategic Planning 2 
Director Curriculum & Instruction 2 
Director, Human Resources 2 
Director, Student Achievement & Wellness 2 
Director, Early Learning Programs 2 
Fiscal Manager 2 
Manager, Facilities, Maintenance and Operations  2 
Principal  2 
Program Director 2 
Program Specialist, SELPA 2 

Business Systems Project Manager 3 
Coordinator, Early Learning Support Services 3 
Coordinator, Early Learning Programs 3 
Coordinator, Mental Health Program 3 
Coordinator, Student Events 3 
Director Curriculum & Instruction 3 
Director, Leadership Development and Special Programs 3 
Manager 3 
Program Specialist, SELPA 3 
School Counselor, Career and Alternative Education Services 3 
Specialist, Early Learning Programs 3 
Specialist, Information Technology Services 3 
Specialist, Information Systems Support 3 
Specialist, Network Services 3 

MCOEP AR 2305 4 of 5 



Those Consultants determined to be in a As determined by 
“decision making” capacity by the  the County 
County Superintendent of Schools Superintendent of 

Schools 

Adopted: September 14, 2010 
Revised: August 14, 2012 
Revised: August 12, 2014 
Revised: January 10, 2017 
Revised: August 14, 2018 
Revised: August 11, 2020 
Revised: April 13, 2021 
Revised: February 8, 2022 
Revised: September 13, 2022 

MCOEP AR 2305 5 of 5 


	SEPTEMBER 2022 AGENDA 
	AUGUST 2022 MINUTES
	5.3 SALARY    
	8.1 TCCs SEPT 2022  
	8.2 OBSOLETE SEPT 2022 
	8.3 EMERGENCY CARE BOARD PACKET 09.13.22
	8.4 BUDGET REVISIONS
	8.5 BOAD PACKET TEXTBOOKS CAES-SPED
	8.6 CONSOLIDATED APPLICATION  
	8.7 LCAP UPDATE COVERSHEET  
	8.7 LCAP UPDATE  
	8.8 MCOEP AR 2305 CONFLICT OF INTEREST COVERSHEET
	8.8 MCOEP AR 2305 CONFLICT OF INTEREST 



